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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 22 APRIL 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh ,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing ,  good morn ing ,  good  

morn ing  Mr  S ingh .  

MR SINGH:   Morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought  I  had to  push you guys.    

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rpe rson we indebted  fo r  the 10 

t ime I  th ink  we have reso lved some o f  the  issues  but  a t  

th is  s tage  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   To  save t ime I  th ink  i t  i s  –  we 

can proceed.   I f  any  issues ar ise  in  be tween.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   We wi l l  dea l  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cha i rperson as  you aware  today is  

schedu led  fo r  the  cont inuat ion  o f  the  ev idence o f  Mr  S ingh  

w i th in  the  Transnet  s t ream.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR SINGH:   Ano j  S ingh.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR SINGH:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR SINGH:   Yes I  do .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may be seated Mr  S ingh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cha i rperson  the  documents  tha t  a re  

o f  par t i cu la r  re levance to  Mr  S ingh ’s  ev idence are  

conta ined in  Transnet  Bund le  5(b)  and 5(c)  and  tha t  i s  

Exh ib i t  BB23.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   And I  have got  5 (c)  so  I  

guess tha t  i s  the  one you s tar t  w i t h .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  S ingh good morn ing .  
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MR SINGH:   Good morn ing  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease you have  

these two bund les  I  take  i t  in  f ron t  o f  you.   Cou ld  you tu rn  

to  Bund le  5 (c )  and go to  page 1750.    

MR SINGH:   We us ing  the  b lack  o r  red?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The b lack  numbers  yes.    

MR SINGH:   15?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1750.    

MR SINGH:   I  am there  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  a t  the  las t  10 

s i t t ing  o f  your  ev idence you contended tha t  Wi tness 3  had  

been spoon fed  in fo rmat ion  about  Knox Vau l t  by  someone 

w i th in  the  commiss ion  and tha t  tha t  i s  how he came to  say  

tha t  he  took you there .   Do you reca l l  tha t  ev idence? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now what  you f ind  a t  page 1750 and 

fu r ther  i s  an  a f f idav i t  o f  Jos iah  Leonard  he  is  an  

invest iga to r  a t  the  commiss ion  and i f  I  cou ld  take  you to  

parag raph 8  a t  parag raph – so r ry  page 1752 he  makes 

re ference to  your  ev idence a t  paragraphs 8 ,9  and 10 and 20 

he exp la ins  then  tha t  he  prov ided th is  a f f idav i t  in  tha t  

contex t .   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  page 1753 you 

w i l l  see  the re  a t  parag raph 12 tha t  Mr  Leonard  says  tha t  as  

par t  o f  h is  –  of  the  on-go ing  invest iga t ion  procedure  

per fo rmed a t  Transnet  he  in te rv iewed va r ious d r ivers  o r  
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CPO’s  who were  ass igned to  p ro tec t  and t ranspor t  

members  o f  Transnet  execut ive  management  team dur ing  

the  per iod  2009 to  2018.   He then says a t  paragraph 13  

tha t  on  29  Apr i l  he  in te rv iewed Wi tness 3  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.   

He says a t  paragraph 14 tha t  Wi tness 3  i n fo rmed  us  tha t  

he  se rved as  a  dr iver  and CPO for  Mr  S ingh wh i l e  be ing  

the  GCFO of  Transnet  commencing  in  Ju ly  2014 unt i l  h is  

secondment  to  Eskom.  

 And a t  15  Mr  Leonard  says tha t  in  add i t ion  to  o ther  

mat te rs  Wi tness 3  in fo rmed us  about  –  he  to ld  us  tha t  on  10 

s ix  o r  seven occas ions a f te r  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence 

Mr  S ingh wou ld  ins t ruc t  h im to  dr ive  to  Knox Vau l t  across  

the  road f rom the  K i l la rney Mal l .  

 Accord ing  to  Wi tness 3  Mr  S ingh wou ld  take  the  bag  

tha t  he  co l lec ted  f rom the  Gup ta  res idence (wh ich  he  

suspected conta ined cash)  f rom the  boot  o f  the  veh ic le  and  

go in to  the  Knox Vau l t  bu i ld ing .  

 Mr  S ingh wou ld  re turn  to  the  veh ic le  and Wi tness 3  

wou ld  no t ice  tha t  the  bag was now empty.   He in fo rmed us  

tha t  he  suspected tha t  Mr  S ingh had depos i t ed  the  20 

contents  in  a  sa fe  a t  Knox Vau l t .  

 Paragraph 16 i t  was dur ing  th is  in te rv iew wi th  

Wi tness 3  tha t  anyone w i th in  o r  f rom the  commiss ion  f i rs t  

became aware  o f  Knox Vau l t  and Mr  S ingh ’s  v i s i t s  to  Knox  

Vau l t .  
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 17  –  Wi tness 3  subsequent ly  deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  

se t t ing  ou t  the  abovement ioned fac ts .  

 So tha t  was an in te rv iew on the  29 t h  o f  Apr i l  2019.   

Mr  Leonard  goes on to  say tha t  based on the  f i rs t  

consu l ta t ion  w i th  Wi tness 3  the  commiss ion  issues a  

summons to  Knox  Vau l t  on  13  June 2019  in  te rms o f  wh ich  

Knox Vau l t  were  requ i red  to  p rov ide  the  commiss ion  w i th  

records  and documents  re la t ing  to  the  ren ta l  o f  sa fe ty  

depos i t  boxes by  spec i f i c  ind i v idua ls .  

 Mr  S ingh was among the  ind iv idua ls  whose reco rds 10 

were  summonsed .    

 Paragraph 19 on 20 June Knox Vau l t  compl ied  w i th  

the  summons and  produced the  fo l low ing customer  records  

fo r  Mr  S ingh.  

 And they then l i s ted  as  access records (customer  

v is i t s ,  app l i ca t ion  fo rm,  add i t iona l  box fo rms,  tax  invo i ces,  

cance l la t ion  fo rms,  c red i t  no te  and ident i f i ca t ion  

document ) .  

 Over  the  page Mr  Leonard  goes on to  say tha t  the  

records  rece ived  f rom Knox Vau l t  a re  a t tached  here to  20 

marked Annexure  EPL1.  

 Accord ing  to  the  access records  (customer  v i s i t s )  

Mr  S ingh v is i ted  Knox Vau l t  on  22  occas ions be tween Ju ly  

2013 and August  2017.   Ten o f  these v i s i t s  fa l l  w i th in  the  

per iod  tha t  Wi tness 3  served as  dr iver /CPO for  Mr  S ingh.  
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 22  -  As ment ioned above Wi tness 3  s ta ted  dur ing  

the  f i rs t  in te rv iew wi th  h im on 29 Apr i l  2019 tha t  he  had 

escor ted  Mr  S ingh to  Knox Vau l t  on  approx imate l y  s ix  o r  

seven occas ions dur ing  th is  per iod .  

 And then Mr  Leonard  w i th  re ference to  the  ev idence  

tha t  you had g iven before  says a t  paragraph  23 in  

conc lus ion  the  l ega l  i ssue tha t  a t t rac ted  med ia  a t ten t ion  

wh ich  I  assume Mr  S ingh was re fer r ing  to  in  h is  ev idence 

arose f rom the  execut ion  o f  a  summons i ssued  by  the  

commiss ion  in  te rms o f  wh ich  i t  took  custody o f  sa fe  10 

depos i t  boxes ren ted  by  Kuban Mood ley  a t  Knox Vau l t .    

 The execut ion  o f  the  summons occur red  on 25 June  

2019 more  than two months  a f te r  Wi tness 3  in fo rmed us  

about  Knox Vau l t  on  29  Apr i l  2019.  

 You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  do  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Have you got  any reason to  quest ion  

the  t ru th  and accuracy o f  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Leonard?  

MR SINGH:   Not  a t  th is  s tage.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R igh t .   So what  then wou ld  you say  20 

to  the  propos i t ion  tha t  the  on ly  way tha t  Wi tness  3  cou ld  

have known abou t  your  sa fe  depos i t  boxes a t  Knox Vau l t  i s  

i f  he  took you the re  as  he  a l leges?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  I  am not  sure  how Mr  –  Wi tness 3  

came to  know about  the  boxes tha t  as  we – as  I  have  
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tes t i f ied  be fore  Mr  Cha i r  Wi tness  3  has never  taken me to  

Knox Vau l t  on  any occas ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Sha l l  I  take  tha t  as  mean ing  tha t  

you are  say ing  you accept  tha t  he  go t  to  know about  i t  bu t  

you do not  know how he knew about  i t  because as  fa r  as  

you are  concerned he never  took you there?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  co r rec t  because as  you see in  

the  a f f idav i t  i t se l f  Mr  Cha i r  I  was not  the  on ly  pe rson tha t  

fo rmed the  par t  o f  –  tha t  fo rmed the  conten t  o f  the  

subpoena.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   There  were  o ther  peop le  tha t  ac tua l l y  were  

a lso  –  in fo rmat ion  was requested  f rom Knox Vau l ts  so  i t  

wou ld  seem tha t  maybe th rough tha t  p rocess peop le  had  

got  to  know about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   So  I  wou ld  accept  you r  p ropos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  Mr  S ingh I  am not  sure  tha t  I  

fo l low your  answer.   I  mean las t  t ime you sa id  tha t  and you 20 

must  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong.   Last  t ime I  unders tood you  

to  say tha t  Wi tness 3  came to  lea rn  about  th is  because i t  

was p lan ted  in fo rmat ion  by  a  member  o f  the  commiss ion .   

Now you accept  tha t  tha t  i s  no t  t rue  so  how is  i t  then tha t  

Wi tness 3  knows o f  your  fac i l i t y  a t  Knox Vau l t  un less  he  
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took  you there?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  i f  we  have regard  to  the  i n fo rmat ion  

tha t  i s  p resented  to  us  today a l l  o f  th is  in fo rmat ion  was 

ava i lab le  to  the  commiss ion  on  the  day tha t  my ev idence 

was led  ye t  none o f  th is  in fo rmat ion  was ava i lab le  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How does –  how does tha t  a f fec t  you r  

answer?  

MR SINGH:   Oh we l l  Mr  Cha i rpe rson tha t  i s  what  I  am –  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because tha t  i s… 

MR SINGH:   That  i s  what  I  am t ry ing  to… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i t  i s  –  because you –  you e i ther  

know what  the  pos i t ion  i s  o r  how Wi tness 3  wou ld  have  

come to  know about  the  i n fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  you and 

Knox Vau l t  o r  you do not  know you know.  Whether  you  

were  shown in fo rmat ion  o r  no t  i s  no t  go ing  to  a f fec t  what  

you knew.  

MR SINGH:   No but  tha t  i s  my –  tha t  i s  what  I  am t ry ing  to  

ge t  to  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   I s  tha t  on  the  day tha t  I  tes t i f ied  I  d id  no t  20 

know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  d id  you not  know? 

MR SINGH:   I  d id  no t  know tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  

the  invest iga tors  repor t  came to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  

invest iga to r  on  the  29 t h  o f  Apr i l  2019.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Fo r  example .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Because I  was not  p resented w i th  anyth ing  

re la t ing  to  Knox Vau l ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

MR SINGH:   So  when… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  tha t  –  i s  tha t  why you gave the  answer  

you gave because you d id  no t  know tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Because I  was asked how d id  he  come to  10 

know so I  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you were  deny ing .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   So I  then p re fer red  o r  p rov ided an 

exp lanat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   That  I  thought  was re levant  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you accept  now do you not  tha t  tha t  

exp lanat ion  you prov ided namely  o f  accus ing  somebody in  

the  commiss ion  to  have p lan ted  the  in fo rmat ion  o r  g iven 

h im tha t  in fo rmat ion  to  imp l ica te  you do you now accept  20 

tha t  tha t  i s  no t  t rue?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   So is  –  i s  –  as  I  unders tand  

i t  the  pos i t ion  you are  in  i s  you have den ied  tha t  Wi tness 3  

took you to  Knox Vau l t .   The ev idence tha t  you a lso  accept  
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suggest  tha t  he  –  he  must  have taken you there  bu t  –  o r  a t  

leas t  he  knows in fo rmat ion  tha t  you wou ld  have known i f  

he  had taken you there .   But  your  pos i t ion  i s  he  d id  no t  

take  you there  and you cannot  say  how he came to  know 

the  in fo rmat ion .  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you  Cha i rperson.   Now Mr 

S ingh prev ious ly  when you tes t i f ied  I  asked you th is  i s  a t  10 

page 64 o f  the  t ransc r ip t  o f  12  March day 360.   I  sa id  what  

were  you keep ing  in  these four  boxes?  And your  answer  

was Mr  Cha i r  the  four  boxes is  easy to  exp la in .   There  was  

a  box fo r  each one o f  the  fami ly  –  sor ry  each one  o f  the 

members  o f  the  fami ly.   You reca l l  g iv ing  tha t  ev idence? 

MR SINGH:   A long those l ines  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your  pardon.  

MR SINGH:   A long those l ines  yes Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   I  am read ing  f rom the  

t ranscr ip t .   So as  I  unders tand i t  the  four  members  o f  the  20 

fami ly  were  you,  your  w i fe  and your  two ch i ld ren .  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now in  2014  your  ch i ld ren  were  aged  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 13 of 296 
 

on  my ca l cu la t ions your  e ldest  ch i ld  was 12 and your  

youngest  ch i ld  was 4 .  

MR SINGH:   In  2014?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   That  cou ld  be  probab ly  be  r igh t  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Approx imate ly.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  i s  i t  tha t  you s to red in  the  

two boxes fo r  you r  ch i ld ren?  

MR SINGH:   I  do  no t  reca l l  r igh t  now but  i t  cou ld  have  10 

been documents  fo r  them – g i f ts  fo r  them,  jewe l le ry  fo r  

them.   Odds and sods I  do  no t  rea l l y  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Documents  fo r  them l i ke?  

MR SINGH:   B i r th  cer t i f i ca tes  and so  on .   ID  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease speak up  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  b i r th  cer t i f i ca tes ,  ID  documents  and  the  

l i ke .   But  Mr  Cha i r  these are  pe rsona l  –  these are  i ssues 

tha t  re la te  to  my persona l  be ing  a t  the  t ime.   I  do  no t  see 

the  re levance fo r  tha t  in  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  what  you were  –  you kept  in  the 20 

boxes is  obv ious l y  re levant  Mr  S ingh you know tha t .   You 

sure ly  know tha t  what  you kept  in  the  boxes is  re levant  

because there  are  a l legat ions o f  you tak ing  money f rom the  

Gupta ’s  and tak ing  i t  to  Knox Vau l t s  so  you say you d id  no t  

take  any money –  any cash  f rom the  Gupta ’s  and kept  i t  a t  
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Knox Vau l t  you –  you ind ica ted  what  you kept  in  those  

boxes but  i f  the  o ther  vers ion  i s  t rue  you may have kept  

money tha t  you got  f rom the  Gupta ’s  in  the  boxes.   I s  i t  

no t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes tha t  i s  t rue  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so  i t  i s  h igh ly  re levant .   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   And you then went  on  to  

exp la in  tha t  as  I  unders tood your  –  you wou ld  keep some 

jewe l le ry  fo r  you r  w i fe  and you a lso  sa id  tha t  you  might  

keep o r  you d id  keep cash fo r  yourse l f  to  a  max imum va lue  10 

as  I  reca l l  ev idence o f  R100 000.00.  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  the  number  was between 100 to  

200 000.00.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Be tween 100 and?  

MR SINGH:   200.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Be tween 100 and 200 and tha t  money  

you say you got  i f  my memory  serves me cor rec t ly  f rom 

moon l igh t ing  and gambl ing .  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  moon l igh t ing  was your  suggest ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  i s  the  te rm tha t  i s  commonly  20 

used when an execut ive  in  a  pos i t ion  such as  you does 

pr iva te  work  on  the  s ide .  

MR SINGH:   Okay i f  tha t  i s  the  way i t  i s  –  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  tha t  i s  how you got  the  money 

gambl ing  and moon l igh t ing .  
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MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R igh t .   Wel l  what  we do know f rom 

records is  tha t  you d id  no t  have four  boxes you had e igh t  

boxes you wou ld  have seen tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  le t  us  go  to  page 1758 .  So le t  

us… 

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  the  00 :17:43.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1758 and before  I  ge t  in to  the 

records  so  how does one square  th is  w i th  your  p rev ious 10 

ev idence.   Would  you now say tha t  you had two vau l ts  o r  

boxes fo r  each fami ly  member?  

 MR SINGH:   No Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  t he  –  I  a lso  d id  ment ion  i n  

the  prev ious tes t imony tha t  I  a lso  used the  boxes to  s to re  

documents  and s tu f f  tha t  was o f  re levance to  me  a t  the  

t ime.  So the  ba lance o f  the  doc –  the  boxes were  rea l l y  to  

s to re  documents  tha t  were  re levan t  to  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr  Myburgh ’s  quest ion  is  s ince  

when you gave your  ev idence you  sa id  you had –  you kept  20 

four  boxes because you –  the  fami ly  cons is ted  o f  four  

members .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How do you now exp la in  the  fac t  tha t  

there  were  no t  four  boxes there  were  e igh t  boxes?  Mr 
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Myburgh d id  I  ge t  you r  quest ion  r igh t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes Cha i rpe rson.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   So what  i s  the  exp lanat ion  fo r  hav ing  so  

many boxes much more  than doub le  the  number  o f  the 

fami ly  members?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  as  I  wou ld  reca l l  aga in  f rom the  

tes t imony tha t  I  had g i ven a t  the  t ime.   I  d id  say I  do  no t  

reca l l  the  number  o f  boxes tha t  I  ac tua l l y  had.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  jus t  say  tha t  aga in .  

MR SINGH:   I  sa id  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  exact  number  boxes 10 

tha t  I  had a t  the  t ime.   Because remember  a t  tha t  –  when I  

had g iven ev idence the  issue o f  Knox Vau l t  was no t  pu t  to  

us .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was not  what?  

MR SINGH:   Was not  pu t  to  us .   Was not  pu t  to  me sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ah  there  was a  d iscuss ion  o f  Knox Vau l t  

what  do  you mean i t  was not  pu t  to  you?  

MR SINGH:   No there  was –  there  was d iscuss ions re la t ing  

to  Knox Vau l t  tha t  emanated f rom my tes t imony a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

MR SINGH:   Based on Wi tness 3 ’s  tes t imony.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Bu t  the  de ta i l s  re la t ing  to  Knox Vau l ts  in  

te rms o f  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  you see before  you today d id  

no t  ex i s t  on  the  day tha t  I  tes t i f ied .  So when I  tes t i f ied  I  
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was tes t i f y ing  f rom memory.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You were  tes t i f y ing  f rom? 

MR SINGH:   From memory.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So  hence when you asked how many boxes do 

you have I  sa id  I  th ink  I  had approx imate l y  four  boxes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   My Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   A l r igh t  we l l  you sa id  

you had approx imate ly  four  bu t  i t  tu rns  ou t  you had tw ice  

the  number.    10 

MR SINGH:   Po in t  taken –  po in t  taken.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t  then  le t  us  go  to  page 1758.   

What  you w i l l  see  i t  i s  qu i te  usefu l  and handwr i t ten  

annota t ions a t  the  top .   You coun t  there  –  there  a re  e igh t  

boxes.   Those were  the  numbers  o f  the  boxes co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  le t  us  have a  look a t  how th i s  

un fo lded.   I f  you  go to  page 1759 you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  i s  

the  f i rs t  box tha t  you acqu i red  and  i t  was a  t ransact ion  tha t  

was a f fec ted  on the  12 t h  o f  February  2013 and you w i l l  see  20 

there  a t  page 1759 in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am so r ry  Mr  Myburgh where  do  you see  

the  da te?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The date  DCJ is  1760 a t  the  bo t tom 

under  Mr  S ingh ’s  s ignature .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  i s  12  February  2013.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  i s  a  l i t t le  obscure  bu t  i t  w i l l  become 

c lea r  f rom the  next  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  No,  no  I  can  see i t  now.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  we w i l l  become fami l ia r  w i th  these 

–  these documents  as  we go a long because the re  is  a  

ser ies  o f  them tha t  a re  the  same.   But  a t  1759 a t  

parag raph 8  you  w i l l  agree tha t  i t  re f lec ts  then tha t  you 10 

acqu i red  a  smal l  sa fe  box on  tha t  day?  I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And what  we see is  you made an  

annua l  cash payment ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you w i l l  then f ind  the  invo i ce  a t  

page 1761 there  you w i l l  see  the  invo i ce  is  da ted  12 

February  2013.   You may a  re fundab le  key depos i t  and  

then you ren ted th is  smal l  sa fe ty  depos i t  box ren ta l  and  

you pa id  R2700.00.   Was tha t  fo r  the  year?  20 

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you pa id  tha t  in  cash?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  we then go to  the  second  

t ransact ion .   Now tha t  you f ind  a t  page 1763 th is  i s  now on  
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the  8 t h  o f  May 2014 you acqu i red  a  la rge  box,  cor rec t?   

That  i s  re f lec ted  a t  1763.  

MR SINGH:   1763 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Number  1424 and you w i l l  see  a t  

1764 on the  same day you acqu i red  box number  1425 

another  la rge  box and in  fa i rness  to  you I  have looked a t  

these documents  qu i te  ca re fu l l y.   What  happened  is  tha t  

you upgraded the  smal l  box to  a  la rge  box and then you 

ren ted anothe r  la rge .   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  bu t  i f  tha t  i s  what  you  10 

say ing  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  le t  me exp la in  to  you i f  you  go  

to  page 1765 wh ich  i s  the  invo ice  re levant  to  you acqu i r ing  

these boxes you  see tha t  i t  says  the  second l ine  – la rge  

sa fe ty  depos i t  box ren ta l  and  then upgrade  S  to  L 

presumably  smal l  to  la rge .   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  do  S i r.   I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  tha t  i s  May 2014.   Then  in  the  

next  month  June  2014 and th is  i s  a t  page 1766 you then  

ren ted another  l a rge  box,  you conf i rm tha t  on  the  9 t h  o f  20 

June 2014.    

MR SINGH:   I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And the  invo i ce  you f ind  over  the  

page a t  1767 you  pa id  R4900.19 aga in  in  cash,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then the  next  t ransact ion  was two 

months  la te r  in  August  2014 you f ind  th is  a t  page 1768 th is  

t ime you ren ted another  la rge  box and now you had fou r,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you aga in  pa id  annua l ly  in  cash,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:   From 1768 tha t  i s  ( inaud ib le ) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Page 1768 i t  re f lec ts  annua l  cash.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  you pay in  cash?  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you go over  the  page  

1769 you see the  invo i ce  aga in  you pa id  an  amount  o f  

R4900.19 is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now the  f i f th  t ransact ion  occur red  

two months  la te r  in  August  2014  cou ld  I  ask  you  p lease 

documents  are  ou t  o f  sequence cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  th is  

t ime to  page 1774.   So we have dea l t  w i th  the  t ransact ion  20 

on the  1 s t  o f  August  2014 a t  1774 there  was a  second 

t ransact ion  in  August  2014 th i s  t ime on the  15 t h  o f  August ,  

you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And now you acqu i red  another  la rge  
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box  two weeks or  so  la te r.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Aga in  you pa id  annua l ly  in  cash.  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you f ind  the  invo i ce  a t  page 1775 

and so r ry  –  I  am inco r rec t  in  fac t  on  th is  day you acqu i red  

two boxes.   You go back to  1774 you w i l l  see  there  la rge  

number  requ i red  2 ,  you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And tha t  i s  why the  invo i ce  aga in  10 

se t t led  in  cash is  much la rger  th is  t ime fo r  R9160.08.   You 

see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  you now had s ix  la rge  boxes.  

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  we cou ld  now go to  the  s ix th  

t ransact ion  and tha t  you f ind  a t  page 1770  

MR SINGH:   1770 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th i s  occu r red  two months  la te r  in  20 

October  2014.   And here  you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  t ime you  

upgraded to  an  ex t ra  la rge  box.   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   So  1770.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1770.  

MR SINGH:   Yes S i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   You acqu i red  th is  t ime an ex t ra  la rge  

box to  go  w i th  your  s ix  la rge  boxes.   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Aga in  you pa id  in  cash.  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  cos t  you R6008.00 cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  now you  had s i x  la rge  boxes and 

one ex t ra  la rge  box and then the  next  t ransact ion  you f ind 

a t  1772 and th is  occu r red  in  the  next  year  9 t h  o f  February  10 

2015 and th is  t ime you acqu i red  fo r  yourse l f  an  ex t ra  ex t ra  

la rge  box.   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And aga in  you pa id  in  cash.  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now th is  t ime you were  g iven a  20% 

d iscount ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Why were  you be ing  g i ven d i scount?  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  S i r  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Do you know why you were  be ing  

g iven d iscounts?  

MR SINGH:   No S i r.   I  guess –  I  do  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Not  perhaps  because you were  a  very  

good customer?  
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MR SINGH:   I t  cou ld  be .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Then you see a t  page 1773 

tha t  fo r  tha t  ex t ra  ex t ra  la rge  box you pa id  in  cash  

R6740.01.   So tha t  i s  February  2015.   Then i f  I  can  ask  you 

p lease to  go  to  page 1776 we see tha t  what  happened 

here .  

MR SINGH:   1776 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1776.   I s  tha t  in  August  2017,  you  

then e f fec t i ve l y  cance l  your  fac i l i t y.   Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you re turned the  keys and you 

under take tha t  you no longer  requ i re  the  boxes.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then what  happens,  and  perhaps 

not  par t i cu la r ly  re levant ,  i s  the  documents  tha t  fo l lowed a t  

1770 and 1778,  e t  ce tera ,  they  were  then c red i t  no tes  

where  you re turned the  keys,  you were  cred i ted  and  

presumable  you were  c red i ted  because there  were  pro-ra ta  

c red i t  e f fec ts .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now Mr  S ingh,  I  jus t  want  to  hand up 

–  I  am go ing  to  ask  you to  go  to  the  access records or  

cus tomer  record ,  v is i t  record .   A t  page 1757.   Are  you 

there?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wi th  your  leave Cha i rperson ,  cou ld  I  

jus t  hand up a  copy o f  tha t  page  w i th  cer ta in  handwr i t ten 

annota t ions tha t  I  have made wh ich  w i l l  fac i l i ta te  my  

examinat ion  w i th  Mr  S ingh?  I  do  apo log ise  fo r  the  

handwr i t ing  bu t  i t  w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  shou ld  he lp  eve ryone.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine .   Thank you.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I s  th is  par t  o f  the  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  annota t ions made on page 1757.   10 

I  w i l l  g ive  you a  copy.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  I  have  done here ,  Mr  S ingh,  i s .   

From the  le f t -hand s ide  you w i l l  see  tha t  I  have boxed in  

your  name.   Tha t  box ing  re f lec ts  the  t ime tha t  you were  

employed a t  Transnet .   On the  r igh t -hand s ide ,  there  is  

another  box ing  runn ing  f rom 14 Ju ly  2018 up unt i l  

20  March 2015.   That  i s  the  t ime tha t  Wi tness 3  sa id  tha t  

he  worked fo r  you.   That  i s  tha t  box ing .   

Then. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  da te  w i th  the  r igh t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    On the  r igh t -hand s ide ,  f rom 

18 Ju ly  2014 th rough to  20  March 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  what  you ca l l  box ing  on  mine  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 25 of 296 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    When I  mean box ing ,  I  have jus t  

d rawn a  l ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  yes .   No,  no ,  no .   Now I  see.   

20  March?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no ,  no .   Now. . .  I  thought  i t  was  

the  one above tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So tha t  i s  20  March 2015 up to  

18  Ju ly  2014.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wi tness 3  says tha t  he  worked as 

Mr  S ingh ’s  d r ive r  bu t  the  da tes  tha t  fa l l  w i th in  tha t  range 

are  f rom 18 Ju l y  2014 unt i l  9  February  2015,  DCJ,  in  the 

m idd le  co lumn.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am look ing  a t  the  m idd le  co lumn.   

I s  the  f i rs t  da te  co lumn where  you  have boxed,  i s  the  f i rs t  

da te  20  March 2015?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  i t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  the  las t  da te  w i th in  the  box,  

18  Ju ly  2014?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Yes,  i t  i s .   I  am sor ry.   I  was  

jus t  read ing  i t  the  o ther  way a round.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have s ta r ted  w i th  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .bu t  yes  –  hopefu l l y,  we –  I  th ink 

we a re  on  the  same page.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So then Mr  S ingh,  what  I  have done  

a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  m idd le  co lumn,  i s  I  have go t  smal l .   

You requ i red  tha t  box on  the  12 t h  o f  February  2013 .   I  have  

put  an  as te r isk  because we know tha t  i t  was then 

conver ted .   Now I  want  to  fo l low the  h igh l igh t ing .   So on 

the  1 s t  p ink  h igh l igh t ,  on  the  8 t h  o f  May 2014,  you now 

acqu i red  two la rge  boxes.    10 

 You upgrade the  smal l ,  you get  a  la rge .   That  i s  

in  May o f  2014.   You then v i s i t  tha t  fac i l i t y  tw ice  aga in  in  

May and then in  June you acqu i re  another  l a rge  box.   You 

v is i ted  the  fac i l i t y  aga in  in  June  and Ju ly.   Two  months 

la te r  in  August ,  you acqu i re  another  la rge  box.   Cor rec t?   

On the  1 s t  o f  August  2014.   Do you  conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  on  the  1s t  o f . . .   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then we know,  two weeks la te r  

on  the  15 t h  o f  August  2014 you acqu i red  two more  la rge  

boxes.    Cor rec t?  20 

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Sorry,  Mr  Cha i r.   Th i s  i s  –  as  in  these dates  

w i th  these documents?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  
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MR SINGH :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then two months  la te r  –  so  you  

v is i ted  the  fac i l i t y,  you get  -  in  the  month  o f  August ,  you  

have ac tua l l y  acqu i red  th ree  la rge  boxes.   You v is i ted  the  

fac i l i t y  in  September  and then in  October,  you get  your  

ex t ra - la rge  box.   Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  tha t  –  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  11  October?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then you v is i t  the  fac i l i t y  in  

November  tw ice  and December  and then ear l y  in  the  next  

year,  you now get  an  ex t ra  ex t ra - la rge  box.   Do you see 

tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now I  want  to  jus t  ask  you  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ho ld  on ,  Mr  Myburgh.   I  have been  

wonder ing  why we –  I  seem to  lose  you.   The numbers  

have not  been wr i t ten  in  the  normal  sequence.   The ea r l ie r  20 

months  and the  year  a re  a t  the  top .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  i t  i s  the  o ther  way around.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  the  year  comes f i rs t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  one expects  
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tha t  when you get  a  document  l i ke  th is  and i t  g ives  you 

dates ,  you expect  tha t  the  ear l ie r  da te  wou ld  be  a t  the  top .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then you go down.   Th is  i s  the  o ther  

way around.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  the  o ther  way,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  in  o ther  words,  the  document  

bu i lds  up .  I t  re f lec ts  a t  the  bo t tom the  f i rs t  t ime when  

Mr  S ingh went  there .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And a t  the  top  the  las t  t ime he went  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  Mr  S ingh,  I  jus t  want  to  –  

presumable  on  these days when you acqu i red  these boxes,  

you had w i th  you the  th ings tha t  you wanted to  s to re  in  

them? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  wou ld  be  a  reasonab le  assumpt ion  bu t  I  

do  no t  reca l l .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  can you remember  what  caused 

you in  May o f  2014 to  ge t  two la rge  boxes?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  maybe –  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  exact  

reasons as  to  why these events  occur red  o r  why these  

boxes inc reased  each and every  s ing le ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  
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h igh l igh ted  i tem.   But  Mr  Cha i r,  aga in ,  as  I  ind ica ted  

prev ious ly.   These –  the  contents  o f  these boxes re la ted  to  

persona l  i tems,  documents  and e f fec ts .    

 Dur ing  th i s  pe r iod  o f  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r  aga in ,  as  i t  

re la tes  to  my pe rsona l  a f fa i rs ,  I  -  my ex -w i fe  were  go ing  

th rough a  separa t ion  p rocess.   So to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  

needed to  move s tu f f  f rom my res idence a t  the  t ime,  th is  

was then p laced in  these boxes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  in  August  o f  2014 when you take  

another  two boxes,  can you remember  why you d id  tha t?  10 

MR SINGH :    Look,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id .   In  te rms o f  the  

exact  na tu re  o f  why these occur red .   I  do  no t  reca l l  why 

tha t  happened in  August  2014 or  October  2014 but  I  

unders tand and know tha t  du r ing  th is  pe r iod  o f  t ime my 

v is i t s  there  and the  inc rease in  the  number  o f  boxes and  

the  s i ze  o f  the  boxes re la ted  to  me put t ing  in  my  persona l  

e f fec ts  and documents  and o ther  i n fo rmat ion  tha t  re la ted  to  

me mov ing  out  o f  my pr imary  res idence a t  the  t ime.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then,  why the  need to  ge t  an  

ex t ra - la rge  box and then a  need to  ge t  an  ex t ra  ex t ra - la rge  20 

box?  

MR SINGH :    So ,  Mr  Cha i r,  aga in .   I  w i l l  come back to  the  

po in t  o f  say ing  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  as  i t  re la tes  to  the  mov ing  

out  p rocess.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  ev idence you d id  no t  g ive  
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p rev ious l y  tha t  re la tes  to  the  mov ing  out  p rocess.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean,  p rev ious ly  you sa id  there  

are  four  boxes and they a re  easy  to  exp la in .   I t  i s  one fo r  

each o f  the  fami ly  members .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have sa id  to  you 

prev ious ly.   These mat te rs  a re  pr iva te  and conf ident ia l  

mat te rs  Mr  Cha i r  bu t  -  yes ,  I  d id  no t  exp la in  i t  be fore .    

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  bu t  Mr  S ingh.   I f  the  need to  acqu i re  

boxes had someth ing  to  do  w i th  you hav ing  to  take  some 10 

persona l  i tems tha t  had been kept  in  your  house wh ich  you  

had dec ided to  pu t  in  a t  Knox Vau l t ,  you wou ld  no t  have  

made i t  to  exp la in  anyth ing .   You wou ld  s imp ly  have sa id :   

You know,  I  made a  dec is ion  to  pu t  th ings,  some i tems a t  

Knox Vau l t  tha t  I  have kept  in  the  house.  

MR SINGH :    Look,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  was the  –  tha t  was the  

l ine  o f  my responses when I  was here  the  prev ious  

occas ion .   Now I  am presented w i th  substant ia l l y  more  

in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  the  na ture ,  the  ex ten t  and the  t im ing  

o f  the  – fo r  my t ransact ions w i th  Knox.   So I  am o f fe r ing  20 

you an exp lanat ion  re la t ing  to  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  

p resented to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   Cou ld  I  ask  you,  

p lease,  to  go  to  page 1759? 
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MR SINGH :    1759. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  you w i l l  see  and I  th ink  you go 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  one,  seven. . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1759.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    Jus t  g ive  me on second Cha i r  to  page back.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  come back to  tha t  h igh l igh ted  

document . . .   Now you gave ev idence the  las t  t ime and i t  i s  

borne out  by  th i s  page tha t  the  –  the  w id th  and the  depth  10 

o f  a l l  o f  you r  boxes were  the  same.   So you w i l l  see ,  i f  you  

look a t  smal l  a l l  the  way th rough to  ex t ra - la rge ,  the  w id th  

and the  depth  i s  the  same.   241 mm in  w id th  and the  depth  

445 mm.   So the  w id th  o f  about  24  and depth  o f  45 .5 .   

Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The on ly  d i f fe rence was  in  the  

he igh t .   So the  smal l  box was very  shor t  and so  i t  goes  

f rom 88 to  110 to  133,  260 fo r  an  ex t ra - la rge  and  then an 

ex t ra  ex t ra - la rge  520.   Do you see tha t?  20 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  have a  look a t  

one o f  these f i le  boxes he re ,  Mr  S ingh and I  have put  up  -  

a  f i le  box in  w id th  i s  29  cm.   These. . .  were  5  cm nar row 

than tha t .   A f i re  box is  a lso  45  cm in  depth .   A l  you have  
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to  work  ou t  i s  what  rea l l y  wou ld  the  accumula t ive  he igh t  

been o f  the  boxes tha t  you ren ted .    

 Wel l ,  we know tha t  you had f i ve  la rge  ones and 

tha t  wh ich  was 30 cm and tha t  you had one ex t ra - l a rge  and 

another  ex t ra  ex t ra - la rge .   When I  have added tha t  up ,  the  

to ta l  he igh t  wou ld  have been about  160 cm which  wou ld  be  

the  equ iva len t  o f  f i ve  f i le  boxes.   So i f  you  look f rom here ,  

th is  i s  th ree .    

 You w i l l  pu t  another  two on top  o f  tha t ,  i t  wou ld  

rea l l y  be  the  area,  rough ly,  tha t  you ren ted .   Do  you see  10 

tha t?  

MR SINGH :    There  is  fou r. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am look ing  f rom here .  

MR SINGH :    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    One,  two,  th ree .   We can –  I  cannot  

pu t  two there  because i t  i s  too  h igh .   I  cannot  reach  i t .   Ja ,  

so  i t  wou ld  be  f i ve .   You get  a  sense then o f  how much  

space i t  was.   Jus t  to  g ive  you an example .   A l though these 

are  a  l i t t le  b roader,  you can,  as  you know,  s to re  f i ve  lever  

a rch  f i les  in  each  one o f  these boxes.   So in  f i ve ,  you can  20 

s to re  25  l ever  a rch  f i les  and you can s to re  500-pages in  a  

leve r  ach f i le ,  as  you wou ld  know.   12  500 ha l f  pages.   I t  i s  

a  lo t  o f  space.   You can get  a  lo t  o f  th ings in  there ,  no t  so? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The las t  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  whether  i t  i s  no t  necessary  

fo r  the  record  jus t  to  ind ica te  what  the  s ize  o f  each  f i le  is 

in  te rms o f  he igh t  so  tha t  when  you –  when somebody  

reads the  reco rd  and you say f i ve  f i les  they have  an idea 

how h igh  they wou ld  go .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i f  you  have go the  number  ready,  jus t  

read i t  in to  the  record .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have done  a  rough ca lcu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  me –  perhaps du r ing  the  b reak  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . I  w i l l  make sure  tha t  i t  is  

comple te l y  accura te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  w i l l  a lso  g ive  Mr  S ingh ’s  lega l  

rep resenta t i ve  an  oppor tun i ty  to  conf i rm i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  

somet imes one  fo rge ts  these  th ings because one is  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and somebody is  read ing  the  record  

w i thout  –  has no  idea how h igh  the  f i les  were .   Okay  

a l r igh t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   Now Mr  S ingh,  the  las t  

t ime we spoke about  how much th is  was cost ing  you.   What  

we have seen is  tha t  a  la rge  box cost  about  R 4  000,00 a  

year,  an  ex t ra - l a rge  one about  R  5  000,00 and an ex t ra  

ex t ra - la rge  one,  I  th ink ,  in  the  orde r  –  in  the  reg ion  o f  

R 10 000,00.   So on my ca lcu la t ions th is  was cost ing  you a  

lo t ,  about  R 35 000,00 a  year.   Does tha t  reca l l  rough ly  

w i th  your  reco l lec t ion  in  s tudy ing  o f  these documents?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  take  i t  as  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And a l l  o f  tha t  money you pa id  here  10 

in  cash.   Where  d id  you get  tha t  cash f rom,  inc identa l l y?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have tes t i f ied .   The boxes a l so  

conta ined a round  R 200 000,00 in  cash.   So tha t  was the  

cash tha t  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  jus t  repea t  tha t  sentence,  p lease.  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id ,  as  I  have tes t i f ied  be fore ,  the  boxes  

d id  conta in  cash.   So I  used some o f  tha t  cash to  pay fo r  

these boxes and  I  a lso ,  obv ious ly,  rep len i shed tha t  cash  

f rom t ime to  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  Mr  Peter,  when he took ove r  

f rom you as  the  Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer.   Do you  

know tha t  he  a l so ,  h im and/or  h is  mothe r  acqu i red  boxed a t  

Knox Vau l t?  

MR SINGH :    I  d id  no t  know tha t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  fac t ,  he  and/o r  h is  mother  had  

seven la rge  boxes,  a  s im i la r  number  to  you.   I  assume you 

cannot  comment  o r  wou ld  you  descr ibe  tha t  to  a  

co inc idence?  

MR SINGH :    I  cannot  comment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now i f  I  cou ld  take  you back to  th is  

page 757 w i th  my annota t ions.   I f  you  have a  look  in  the  

m idd le  co lumn,  t ha t  box tha t  I  have done in  the  m idd le ,  

runn ing  f rom 18 Ju l y  2014 up unt i l  20  August  2015 .   A l l  o f  

those days,  except  fo r  one,  was a  weekday.   The day tha t  10 

was on a  weekend,  as  I  have i t ,  i s  the  11 t h  o f  October  

2014.   Perhaps you cou ld  jus t  mark  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Yes. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The res t  o f  the  days were  a l l  dur ing  

the  week.   So there  are  n ine  days  then tha t  fa l l  w i th in  tha t  

range,  weekdays.   What  I  wanted to  pu t  to  you,  Mr  S ingh,  

i s .   What  I  do  no t  fo l low is  th is .   Your  own ev idence and 

you have conf i rmed Wi tness 3 ’s  s ta tement  when Wi tness 3  

says,  how th ings wou ld  work  on  a  normal  work ing  day i s ,  I  

wou ld  go  and I  wou ld  go  and co l lec t  Mr  S ingh a t  h i s  home.   20 

Where  was tha t?   In  the  Midrand?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And I  wou ld  take  h im to  the 

Car l ton  Cent re  and I  wou ld  dr i ve  h im around the  who le  day 

and then I  wou ld  take  h im back and you worked,  i t  seems,  
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long hours .   So see ing  tha t  you went  to  Knox Vau l t  dur ing  

th is  pe r iod ,  n ine  t ime dur ing  the  week,  sure ly  Wi tness 3  

must  have taken  you there .   Who e lse  cou ld  have taken  

you there?   

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  a lso  my  own tes t imony and my 

tes t imony o f  Wi tness 3 ,  he  a lso  tes t i f ied  tha t  my persona l  

veh ic le  was parked a t  the  basement  o f  the  Transne t  o f f i ces  

dur ing  the  week and tha t  i s  the  veh ic le  tha t  I  wou ld  have  

used to  v is i t  Knox Vau l t  dur ing  the  per iod  o f  these days  

tha t  wou ld  appear  to  be  dur ing  the  week.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry.   Mr  S ingh,  I  thought  you might  

say  tha t  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  what  the  ev idence re f lec t s .   The  

ev idence re f lec ts ,  because you remember  th is  a r ise  in  the  

contex t  o f  the  Three R ive rs  and the  maroon bag o f  cash.    

 And the  ev idence  tha t  was g iven,  you conf i rmed  

th is ,  i s  tha t  occas iona l l y  what  you wou ld  do  is  you wou ld  

dr ive  your  b lue  M3 BMW to  the  Car l ton  Cent re  on  a  

Monday,  i t  wou ld  s tay  there  in  the  basement ,  i t  migh t  be  

washed on a  Fr iday and then you wou ld  d r ive  i t  home.   Not  

a l l  the  t ime.   Occas iona l l y.    20 

 No ev idence has been g iven in  these  

proceed ings tha t  you ever  dur ing  the  week drove yourse l f  

anywhere .   In  fac t ,  you conf i rmed Wi tness 3 ’s  ev idence.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  –  th is  i s  –  I  am a t  a  loss  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . . in  te rms o f  respond ing  to  th is  because 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  be fore  you  respond,  I  must  jus t  te l l  

you  tha t  my reco l lec t ion  too  is  tha t  you sa id  tha t  you wou ld  

dr ive  yourse l f  du r ing  the  weekends wh ich  I  unders tood to  

conf i rm tha t  genera l l y  speak ing ,  I  wou ld  no t  say  there  

wou ld  be  no except ion ,  bu t  genera l l y  speak ing ,  du r ing  the  

week,  when i t  i s  do ing  work ing  hours  you wou ld  be  dr iven 

by  your  d r ive r.  10 

MR SINGH :    Now tha t  i s  my po in t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    Genera l l y  speak ing ,  as  you had sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    N ine  t imes in  a  per iod  o f  a  year  i s  genera l l y  

speak ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  I  may have a l so  d r iven myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  So you mean you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Okay le t  me put  i t  to  you th is  way Mr  Cha i r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    Had I  known tha t  I  needed to  –  tha t  I  have  

dr iven myse l f  occas iona l l y  dur ing  the  week a t  the  t ime,  I  

wou ld  have sa id  so .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    
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MR SINGH :    Because Mr  Cha i r,  when I  was conf ron ted  

w i th  Wi tness 3 ’s  s ta tement  i t  was done on the  bas i s  tha t  

genera l l y  tha t  i s  what  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  is  your  vers ion  tha t ,  genera l l y,  when  

you wou ld  a l low your  d r i ver  to  d r i ve  you to  d i f fe ren t  p laces 

bu t  when i t  came to  go ing  to  Knox Vau l t ,  you wou ld  make  

sure  tha t  he  d id  no t  d r ive  you there .   You wou ld  dr ive  

yourse l f  there?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you say –  because th is  i s  an  10 

e igh t  month  per iod  –  you say tha t  in  an  e igh t  month  per iod  

you drove yourse l f  there  n ine  t imes dur ing  a  normal  

bus iness day?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   And you see the  t imes? 

MR SINGH :    I  do  see.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oppos i te  18  Ju ly  2014,  two o ’c lock ,  

then one o ’ c lock ,  e leven o ’c lock .   R igh t  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  

bus iness day.   Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Why d id  you not  want  you r  d r iver  to  

know tha t  you had reason to  go  to  Knox Vau l t?  

MR SINGH :    Look,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  d id  tes t i f y  p rev ious l y  

tha t  these were  persona l  mat te rs  and f rom my perspect ive  I  

d id  no t  rea l l y  wan t  h im to  be  par t  o f  these mat te rs .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i f  he  was not  go ing  to  see what  

was in  the  box,  he  wou ld  jus t  d r ive  you there .   Tha t  i s  a l l .   

And remain  in  the  ca r.   There  was noth ing ,  you know,  he  

was not  go ing  to  go  any persona l  mat te rs ,  o the r  than tha t  

you had some bus iness to  do  a t  Knox Vau l t .   Why d id  you  

not  want  h im to  know tha t  you had  some bus iness to  do  a t  

Knox Vau l t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  say  i t  was a  persona l  

dec is ion  tha t  I  made a t  the  t ime.    

CHAIRPERSON :    What  d id  you say to  the  p ropos i t ion  tha t  10 

you may have –  you might  no t  have wanted h im to  see tha t  

because you had  someth ing  to  h ide  about  your  v i s i t s  to  

Knox Vau l t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  do  no t  know i f  you ask  me to  

specu la te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   I  am say ing  i f  tha t  

p ropos i t ion  is  pu t  to  you,  you say –  because remember  h is  

vers ion  is .   He wou ld  dr ive  you to  the  Gupta  res idence.   

You wou ld  ge t  cash there .   And then he wou ld  dr ive  you to  

Knox Vau l t  where  you wou ld  take  tha t  cash.   Now,  f rom 20 

what  he  sa id ,  i t  does not  appear  tha t  tha t  wou ld  be  

leg i t imate  cash.    

 So I  ask  the  quest ion .   I f  tha t  was not  leg i t imate  

cash,  maybe tha t  m ight  have been the  reason why you  

wou ld  have,  on  your  vers ion ,  dec ided tha t  whenever  you 
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went  there  you d id  no t  want  h im to  know.   That  i s  assuming 

your  vers ion  is  t rue .    

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  no t  the  reason.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   What  i s  the  reason?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id  i t  was persona l  mat te rs  

tha t  I  dec ided to  dea l  w i th  on  my own.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And  tha t  was the  reason.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  can I  ask  10 

you,  p lease,  to  p ick  ou t  Exh ib i t  BB-14(b)?  

MR SINGH :    [Speaker  moves away f rom mic rophone –  

unc lea r ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you  got  the  page  number  

Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  to  

tu rn  to  page 127?  

MR SINGH :    [Speaker  moves away f rom mic rophone –  

unc lea r ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Go to  page 127.  20 

MR SINGH :    127? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  the  numbers  are  on  the  r igh t -

hand s ide .  

MR SINGH :    The  red  numbers?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  there  is  on l y  b lack  numbers  on  
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th is  i f  we are  in  the  same f i le .    

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  so r ry  to  in te r rup t .   

We jus t  t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh ,  a t  th i s  s tage,  my a t to rney and 

myse l f ,  i f  th is  bund le  was in  fac t  emai led  to  us  and when i t  

was so  tha t  so  tha t  we can fo l low the  ev idence or  maybe  

my lea rned f r iend  can ass is t  us  jus t  w i th  the  da te  on  wh ich  

th is  bund le  was mai led  to  us  so  tha t  we can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l . . .  I  do  no t  know when  i t  was  

mai led  to  my lea rned f r iend but  o f  course  she d id  have i t  

because th is  i s  Wi tness 3 ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  Mr  S ingh was  10 

examined on ex tens i ve l y  a t  the  las t  s i t t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  th ink  tha t  shou ld  he lp  he r.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  he lps  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    So  th is  f i l e  on ly  has red  numbers  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Fo r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you have my –  can I  ask  you to  

go  to  page 127?  Yes.    20 

MR SINGH :    I s  tha t  the  red  number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Wel l ,  i f  tha t  i s  a  red  number,  

f ine .  

MR SINGH :    Ja ,  sure .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I s  tha t  a  page f rom Wi tness 3 ’s  
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a f f idav i t  w i th  the  head ing  in  the  m idd le ,  COP Serv ices  to  

Ano j  S ingh?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Cou ld  I  take  you,  p lease,  to  

parag raph 31?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.  

“On a  normal  work ing  day,  I  used to  p i ck  

Mr  S ingh up a t  h is  home in  the  morn ing  around 

06:30 in  Wendywood and f rom the re ,  d r iv ing  to  10 

the  Car l ton  Cent re .  

A f te r  work ,  I  wou ld  drop h im o f f  a t  h is  home 

aga in . . . ”  

 You conf i rm tha t  in  your  ear l ie r  tes t imony,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The next  pa rag raph 32:  

“Dur ing  the  course  o f  the  day,  I  wou ld  d r ive  

h im to  meet ings or  to  wh ichever  dest ina t ion  he  

wou ld  ins t ruc t  me. . . ”  20 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You can conf i rmed tha t  the  las t  t ime,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    I f  you  say so .   I  do  no t  reca l l .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you go over  the  page to  128 a t  

36 ,  parag raph 36:  

“ In  ins tances,  S ingh wou ld  d r ive  to  the  o f f i ce  w i th  

h is  p r iva te  veh ic le ,  a  b lue  BMW M3 on Fr iday 

a f te rnoons he wou ld  t rave l  home wi th  h is  veh ic le ,  

the  veh ic le  wou ld  be  pa rked in  the  basement  o f  the  

Car l ton  Cent re  du r ing  the  week. ”  

You conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And in  fac t  you conf i rm tha t  on  10 

another  occas ion  in  dea l ing  w i th  the  Three R ivers  Lodge.   

Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i t  cer ta in ly  does not  appear  f rom 

th is  and f rom your  conf i rmat ion  o f  these pa ragraphs tha t  

you drove yourse l f  dur ing  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  be fore  my  learned 

f r iend cont inues,  w i th  the  greates t  o f  respect  to  h im,  what  

he  is  t r y ing  to  pu t  does not  exc lude what  the  w i tness gave  

ev idence.   So what  Mr  S ingh ’s  vers ion  is ,  tha t  he  20 

occas iona l l y  used h is  own veh ic le  to  do  cer ta in  th ings,  i s  

no t  exc luded by  what  the  w i tness sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  Mr  Myburgh put  the  quest ion ,  

le t  Mr  S ingh answer  and we take i t  f rom there .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  perhaps  I  cou ld  pu t  i t  most  eas i l y  

th is  way.   Mr  S ingh,  when you conf i rmed these paragraphs  

in  your  ev idence  you made no re ference to  the  fac t  tha t  

you wou ld  occas iona l l y  d r iver  you rse l f ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  tha t  was on the  bas is ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  we  

were  ta lk ing  abou t  genera l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh,  I  am s t i l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  Mr  S ingh,  i f  the  pos i t ion  was tha t  10 

somet imes you d id  dr ive  yourse l f  dur ing  the  week  sure l y  

you wou ld  have sa id  so  because  o therwise  the  s ta tement  

tha t  dur ing  the  week he wou ld  dr i ve  you around and your  

car  w i l l  be  parked the  who le  week  in  the  basement  and you 

wou ld  take  i t  on  Fr iday home and come back w i th  i t  on 

Monday wou ld  no t  be  cor rec t .   You unders tand? 

MR SINGH:    I  take  your  po in t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  and then there  is  jus t  two las t  

quest ions tha t  I  want  to  ask  w i th  re ference to  my hand 20 

annota t ions.  

MR SINGH:    Be fore  we move o f f  the  da tes ,  can we ask 

exact ly  what  da tes  were  these?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  days o f  the  week?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    We can do  tha t .   What  I  asked one  

o f  my team members to  do  yesterday was to  de termine i f  

any  o f  these days fe l l  w i th in  the  weekend and what  I  was 

adv ised is  tha t  the  on ly  weekend  day was the  11  October 

2014.  

MR SINGH:    I t  w i l l  be  in te res t ing  to  see the  res t  o f  the 

days.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon?  

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  i t  w i l l  be  in te res t ing  to  see the  res t  o f  

the  days wou ld  look l i ke .  10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  th ink  the  w i tness,  Mr  S ingh  

and Mr  Myburgh i s  speak ing  a t  c ross  purposes about  what  

Mr  S ingh is  re fe r r ing  to  as  what  days.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  were  you ,  Mr  S ingh,  wan t ing  to  

know wh ich  o f  these days wou ld  be  Monday or  Tuesday or  

Wednesday?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  jus t  whether  i t  i s  a  weekday o r  a  

weekend,  no t  jus t  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  –  o r  you wanted to  know tha t  

p lus  whether  i t  was a  Tuesday or  Monday o r  Wednesday or  

Thursday as  we l l ?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink ,  Mr  Cha i r,  jus t  the  days o f  the  week 

wou ld  be  su f f i c ien t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  what  day each one is?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  maybe one shou ld  ask  

why wou ld  tha t  mat te r  because we know tha t  Mr  Myburgh 

asked you the  quest ions because  the  ev idence was tha t  

dur ing  the  week your  ca r  wou ld  be  parked a t  the  basement  

and the  dr i ver  wou ld  dr i ve  you to  meet ings and dr ive  you  

around.   Why wou ld  tha t  –  why wou ld  knowing wh ich  day o f  

the  week each da te  be  impor tan t  o r  re levant?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  to  –  so  my vers ion  is ,  no  10 

mat te r  wh ich  day o f  the  week i t  was,  I  d rove to  the  vau l t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    On w i tness 3 ’s  ve rs ion  and based  on the  

ev idence tha t  I  led  be fore ,  you are  say ing  tha t  I  d id  no t  –  i t  

have wou ld  no t  been probab le  tha t  on  a  weekday I  wou ld  

have dr iven myse l f .   So a  weekday  a lso  i s  a  Monday  and i s  

a lso  a  Fr iday wh ich  meant  I  had access to  my ca r  on  a  

Monday and a  Fr iday based on the  vers ion  tha t  we had jus t  

d iscussed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  so  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MR SINGH:    So i f  i t  i s  on  a  Monday and  Fr iday  then i t  

concurs  w i th  le t  us  ca l l  i t  the  ev idence o f  w i tness 3 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  i t  be  abou t  the  car  …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    The  ca r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be ing  used on …[ in tervenes]  
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MR SINGH:    On a  Monday or  a  Fr iday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we l l  -  no ,  I  unders tand what  you 

say bu t  except  tha t  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  the  da tes  tha t  

appear  a t  page 1757,  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  appears  there  

shows tha t  i t  was  dur ing  the  da te  as  opposed to  a f te r  hours  

or  to  ear l y  in  the  morn ing ,  so  i t  wou ld  have been du r ing  the  

t ime when on w i tness 3 ’s  vers ion  the  ca r  was parked.   So I  

unders tand you to  be  suggest ing  tha t  look ,  w i tness  3  says  

on  Fr idays I  w i l l  take  the  home.  

MR SINGH:    Bu t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  equa l ly,  there  cou ld  be  many  10 

reasons as  to  why.   I  cou ld  e i ther  be  leav ing  the  o f f i ce  

ear ly,  I  had gone out  fo r  –  okay,  I  cannot  say  I  went  ou t  for  

lunch because on h is  vers ion  I  never  went  ou t  fo r  lunch 

w i thout  h im.   I  a lways went  ou t  w i t h  h im.   So equa l l y  so ,  Mr  

Cha i r,  I  cou ld  have been leav ing  the  o f f i ce  ear ly,  le t  us  say  

a t  14 .26 ,  fo r  example ,  i f  i t  was a  Fr iday,  I  cou ld  have been 

leav ing  the  o f f i ce  ear ly.   Or  i f  i t  was on a  Monday,  fo r  

example ,  and i t  was …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  were  leav ing  10 .30.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  i f  i t  was 10.55 on a  Monday  I  cou ld  20 

equa l ly  be  coming la te  to  the  o f f ice  or  I  cou ld  have had  

meet ings and then was coming to  the  o f f i ce .   So those are  

p laus ib le  exp lana t ions as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Jus t  so  tha t  I  unders tand  –  as  I  
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unders tand your  ev idence,  on  a  Monday you cou ld  go  to  

work  –  I  mean,  you seem to  work  long hours .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  fac t  w i tness 3  says tha t  he  

fe tched you a t  what  was i t ,  ha l f  past  s ix  in  the  morn ing .  

MR SINGH:    A round tha t  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he wou ld  take  you back home 

and o f ten  tha t  wou ld  be  a t  ten  o ’ c lock  or  even la te r.  

MR SINGH:    Not  –  we l l… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    O r  somet imes,  I  beg your  pardon.   10 

When wou ld  you  usua l ly  ge t  home on a  normal  work ing  

day?  

MR SINGH:    On a  normal  work ing  day probab ly  a round 

seven.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Seven,  so  bas i ca l l y  you were  on  

duty  f rom seven to  seven.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And as  I  unders tood your  ev idence,  

on  a  Monday you wou ld  no t  ge t  a  la te  s ta r t ,  you wou ld  

dr ive  your  own car  occas iona l l y  to  work .   P resumably  you  20 

le f t  about  the  same t ime.  

MR SINGH:    I  cou ld  no t  hear  you,  S i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  I  cou ld  no t  hear  you there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    As  I  unders tood the  ev idence,  i f  you  
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dec ided to  take  your  BMW to  work  on  a  Monday,  

p resumably  you wou ld  leave a t  the  same t ime.   There  

wou ld  no  reason to  go  to  work  la te .  

MR SINGH:    Un less  there  was a  meet ing  or… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Un less  I  had a  persona l  commi tment ,  o r… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sure .   And then,  o f  cou rse ,  the  same 

th ing  app l ies  when you dr ive  back.   Jus t  because  you are  

dr iv ing  your  own car  wou ld  no t  mean tha t  you wou ld  leave  

ear ly,  you wou ld  see out  the  bus iness day in  the  ord inary  10 

course ,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  w i l l  be  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Now your  ear l ie r  tes t imony  

a lso  gave r i se  to  the  need to  ge t  another  –  a  fu r ther  

a f f idav i t  f rom wi tness 3 .   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  

page 1919?  

MR SINGH:    O f  wh ich  bund le ,  S i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  bund le  5C.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  we aga in  want  to  

p lace  on record  –  I  unders tand what  my learned f r iend says 20 

tha t  these documents  –  bu t  we are  work ing  o f f  bund les  tha t  

i s  d isc losed to  us .   We come here  and we wou ld  l i ke  to  

fo l low the  ev idence based on bund les  tha t  were  d i sc losed.   

That  i s  why my a t to rney th rough  the  course  o f  the  week  

and even las t  week sa id  p lease fo rward  us  the  re ference  
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bund les .   I t  i s  no t  good enough to  say oh ,  bu t  we sent  you 

an emai l  w i th  the  w i tness ’ s ta tement ,  we wou ld  l i ke  to  

fo l low the  ev idence so  tha t  we know what  i s  happen ing  

w i th  re ference to  a  re ference bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know what  Mr  Myburgh 

has to  say bu t  I  do  know tha t  ev idence leaders  when they,  

as  the  w i tnesses comes here ,  they br ing  a  lo t  o f  f i l es  

be long ing  to  tha t  work  s t ream even when they m ight  no t  

necessar i l y  need  some but  jus t  to  have them a t  hand.   Mr  

Myburgh,  do  you want  to  say anyth ing?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  do  know tha t  my learned  

f r iend has rece ived and e lec t ron ic  company o f  EXHIBIT 23.   

I t  may be when I  re fe r  to  5B or  5C,  i t  i s  no t  easy fo r  her  to  

make tha t  de l ineat ion .   But  I  am re fer r ing  to  page 1919 o f  

EXHIBIT 23.   Mr  S ingh,  a re  you there?  

MR SINGH:    I  am,  S i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say 1919?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes and tha t ,  DCJ,  i s  in  you r  bund le  

5C.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So i f  you  go to  paragraph 5  and 

page 1920,  w i tness 3  says:  

“ In  summary Mr  S ingh probed the  tes t imony re la t ing  

to  me hav ing  ident i f ied  Mr  Matshe la  Koko and Ms  

L inda Mabaso a t  the  Gupta  res idence in  Saxonwold  
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dur ing  the  per iod  Ju l y  2013 to  December  2013 

wh i ls t  I  was seconded to  the  fo rmer  Min i s te r  Mr  

Malus i  G igaba dur ing  h is  tenure  a t  the  Depar tmen t  

o f  Pub l i c  Enterpr ises.   Mr  S ingh s ta tes  tha t  I  

recogn ise  Mr  Koko and Ms Mabaso in  2013  wh i ls t  

they  were  no t  pub l i c  f igures  and contends tha t  to  be  

anomaly  in  my ev idence. ”  

Wi tness 3  goes on:  

“ I  w ish  to  c la r i f y  the  I  m isunders tand ing  tha t  i s  

seeming ly  be ing  crea ted by  Mr  S ingh in  th is  regard .   10 

Dur ing  my tenure  as  c lose  pro tec t ion  o f f i cer  to  Mr  

G igaba dur ing  the  per iod  Ju ly  2013 to  December  

2013 I  d id  no t  who Mr  Koko and Ms Mabaso were  a t  

the  t ime.   Fur the r ,  my ev idence has not  been tha t  I  

knew who these  ind iv idua ls  were  in  2013.   I  on ly  

became aware  o f  who they a re  a t  a  la te r  s tage and  

tha t  po in t  in  t ime when I  saw these ind i v idua ls  I  

reca l led  tha t  I  had seen them on p rev ious occas ions  

and tha t  th is  dur ing  my tenure  on  the  secondment  a t  

DPE whi ls t  we were  a t  the  Gupta  res idence w i th  Mr  20 

G igaba. ”  

Paragraph 8 :  

“A t  the  t ime when my secondment  a t  the  DPE came 

to  an  end I  re tu rned to  Transnet  where  I  was 

redep loyed as  a  secur i t y  manager  o f  Transnet  
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o f f i ces  in  Car l ton  Cent re  in  January  2014.   Ju l y  

2014 I  was ass igned to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Group Ch ie f  

F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r  to  per fo rm d r iver  and c lose  

pro tec t ion  o f f i cer  du t ies  un t i l  the  end o f  February  

2019.   Dur ing  my  tenure  as  c lose  pro tec t ion  o f f i cer  

in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  GCFO which  is  loca ted  in  the  

execut ive  fo r  Transnet  I  came to  know o f  number  o f  

ind iv idua ls  e i the r  w i th in  Transnet  o r  who wou ld  

f requent  Transne t ’s  o f f i ces .   Fur ther ,  dur ing  the  

course  and scope  o f  my dut ies  as  a  c lose  pro tec t ion  10 

o f f i cer  I  was exposed to  a  number  o f  ind iv idua ls  

who may be regarded as  h igh  pro f i le  ind iv idua ls . ”  

Paragraph 9 :  

“Regard ing  Mr  Koko,  I  conf i rm tha t  I  d id  no t  know 

who he is  when I  saw h im a t  the  Gupta  res idence in  

2013.   I  on ly  began to  know who  Mr  Koko is  when 

Mr  S ingh was seconded to  Eskom dur ing  on  o r  

about  Ju ly  o r  August  2015.   I  p rov ided c lose  

pro tec t ion  and d r iver  serv ices  to  Mr  S ingh dur ing  

h is  secondment  a t  Eskom for  a  per iod  o f  20 

approx imate l y  two months .   I t  was  dur ing  th i s  per iod  

when I  saw Mr  Koko a t  Eskom and I  reca l led  tha t  I  

had seen h im on a  prev ious occas ion  in  2013 a t  the  

Gupta  res idence in  Saxonwold  dur ing  my  

secondment . ”  
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10 :  

“Regard ing  Ms Mabaso I  conf i rm tha t  I  d id  no t  know 

who she is  when  I  saw her  a t  the  Gupta  res idence 

in  2013.   When she was appo in ted  as  Cha i rpe rson 

o f  Transnet  2014 I  recogn ised her  as  someone I  had  

seen before .   I  reca l led  tha t  I  had seen on a  

prev ious occas ion  in  2013 a t  the  Gupta  res idence in  

Saxonwold  dur ing  my secondment  a t  the  DPE. ”  

Paragraph 11:  

“ I  hope the  above c la r i f ies  th i s  aspect  o f  my 10 

ev idence before  th is  honourab le  Commiss ion  wh ich  

ev idence I  ma in ta in  i s  to  the  best  o f  my knowledge  

t rue  and cor rec t . ”  

Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  Mr  Cha i r.   Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was requested  

in  te rms o f  c la r i f i ca t ion  based on,  as  Mr  Myburgh has sa id ,  

re la t ing  to  an  anomaly  tha t  I  had ra i sed in  w i tness 3 ’s  

ev idence and I  wou ld  want  to  say tha t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  

response seeks to  ampl i f y  ra ther  than c la r i f y  i t  in  my v iew 

in  tha t  w i tness 3  now conf i rms tha t  he  had not  known 20 

e i ther  o f  those ind iv idua ls  in  2013 or  who they were  in  

2013,  ye t  recogn is ing  a  year  and  maybe two years  la te r  

hav ing  seen them once,  he  immedia te ly  recogn ises them as 

the  same ind i v idua ls  tha t  he  had  seen once a t  the  Gupta  

res idence and I  submi t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  tha t  i s  h igh l y  
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improbab le  and I  mean,  in  my case,  I  do  no t  p robab ly  

remember  peop le  tha t  I  saw a  week ago and ye t  w i tness 3  

has the  ab i l i t y  to  remember  peop le  tha t  he  has no t  even  

spoken to  on  one occas ion  but  jus t  seen on one occas ion  

but  reca l l  them a  year  to  two years  la te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  any th ing  e lse?  

MR SINGH:    No,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  seems a  fa i r  po in t  to  make,  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     I  want  to  tu rn  to  another  top ic  and  10 

tha t  i s  your  b i  t rave l ,  persona l ,  p r iva te  t rave l .   Now I  

cer ta in ly  do  no t  in tend to  re - t raverse  in  any de ta i l  the 

ground tha t  was t raversed w i th  you  before  my co l league Mr  

Se leka in  the  Eskom s t ream but  I  jus t  wanted to  ask  you  

one or  two quest ions and tha t  i s  about  tha t  be fore  I  ge t  

on to  what  I  want  to  dea l  w i th .   Trave l  Exce l lence,  you  

d ispute  tha t  i t  was the  t rave l  agent  used by  Mr  Essa and  

Sahara  Compute rs .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  I  am go ing  to  

ob jec t .   My lea rned f r iend,  i f  he  says tha t  Mr  S ingh 20 

d isputes  tha t  he  needs to  re fer  to  the  ev idence where  he  

d isputed tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  he  is  ask ing  i t  whether  he  d isputes  

i t .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Oh.  
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MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  cannot ,  i t  i s  no t  w i th in  my  

knowledge to  know whether  Mr  Essa or  Sahara  used  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And how is  i t  tha t  you came to use 

th is  par t i cu la r  t rave l  agent?   I  mean,  what  we know is  i t  i s  

a  smal l  –  a  one woman show,  rea l l y,  tha t  was jo ined – Ms  

Su le iman jo ined them.   Now is  i t  tha t  you p icked th is  t rave l  

agency?  I t  i s  jus t… 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  th ink  I  tes t i f ied  be fore ,  be fore  

the  Commiss ion ,  I  do  no t  exact l y  reca l l  how I  ended up 10 

w i th  them so tha t  was my tes t imony a t  the  t ime,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  inso far  as  i t  i s  found tha t  Ms  

Su le iman ’s  ev idence is  accepted,  tha t  she was Mr  Essa ’s  

t rave l  agent ,  she was Sahara  Computer ’s  t rave l  agent ,  

your  ev idence is  jus t  co inc identa l  tha t  you happened to  

land up a t  the  same t rave l  agent .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you cannot  te l l  us  how tha t  

came about?  

MR SINGH:   No,  S i r.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now do you d ispute  Ms Su le iman ’s  

ev idence tha t  your  f l i gh ts  were  a l loca ted  to  Mr  Essa ’s  

account?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You do d i spute  tha t?   
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MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you have yourse l f  any  cred i t  

fac i l i t y  a t  Trave l  Exce l lence?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  based on the  tes t imony tha t  

we p rov ided prev ious ly,  I  was o f  the  v iew tha t  I  was 

book ing  t i cke ts  on  my own,  wh ich  I  then pa id  fo r  on  my  

own.   I  had no reco l lec t ion  or  assoc ia t ion  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  

the  account ing  and admin i s t ra t ion  o f  Trave l  Exce l lence was 

in  fac t  a l loca t ing  my t i cke ts  to  Mr  Essa ’s  account .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe I  w i l l  ask  th is  quest ion  in  10 

response to  Mr  Myburgh ’s  quest ion  whether  you d isputed  

tha t  Trave l  Exce l lence wou ld  a l loca te  your  book ings to  Mr  

Essa ’s  account ,  you sa id  yes,  you wou ld  d i spute  tha t .   I  am 

not  sure  whethe r  you t ru ly  want  to  d ispute  tha t  s imp ly 

because what  he  is  ta l k ing  about ,  Mr  Myburgh,  i s  the  

ev idence f rom the  two peop le  f rom – oh  we l l ,  the  one  

person f rom Trave l  Exce l lence who was say ing  in te rna l l y  a t  

Trave l  Exce l lence  th is  i s  what  we used to  do .   So now you 

d id  no t  work  fo r  Trave l  Exce l lence,  how wou ld  you know 

tha t  tha t  i s  no t  how they d id  i t?  20 

MR SINGH:    From tha t  perspect ive ,  I  accept  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  d i spute  tha t ,  a l l  you  might  be  

ab le  to  say i s  as  fa r  as  you are  concerned they  had no 

reason to  do  tha t .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  they  fac tua l l y  d id  tha t  you 

cannot  d ispute .  

MR SINGH:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you,  because her  

ev idence was tha t  she cons idered Mr  Essa to  be  the  

guarantor  o f  you r  t i cke t  bu t  I  th ink  in  l ine  w i th  what  the  

DCJ has asked you,  you wou ld  say we l l ,  I  cannot  d ispute  

tha t .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  so r ry,  I  do  no t  10 

want  to  in te r rup t  Mr  Myburgh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :     Bu t  he  jus t  ind i ca ted  tha t  he r  

ev idence was –  and I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  she gave ev idence  

or  i s  a  re fe r r ing  to  the  contents  o f  her  s ta tement?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  he  is  re fe r r ing  to  the  contents  o f  

the  a f f idav i t  because obv ious ly  the  contents  o f  an  a f f idav i t  

i s  ev idence,  i t  i s  jus t  ev idence on a f f idav i t .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  

what  he  means,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Because on the  las t  occas ion  we 

were  made aware  tha t  the  w i tness m ight  be  ca l led .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  yes .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  jus t  want  to  make sure  tha t  the 

w i tness has no t  been ca l led  in  the  in te r im and we were  no t  
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g iven not ice  o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  she has no t  been ca l led  in  the  

meant ime,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  we l l ,  Mr  S ingh,  you have the  

quest ion .  

MR SINGH:    I  am sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Her  ev idence or  her  a f f idav i t  –  her  

a f f idav i t  re f lec ts  tha t  she cons idered Mr  Essa to  be  the  

guarantor  o f  your  t i cke ts .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You cannot  d ispute  tha t  bu t  you say  

cer ta in ly  I  was  –  as  fa r  as  I  am concerned,  I  was 

t ransact ing  w i th  them comple te l y  independent ly.   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  hand up a  

schedu le ,  i f  I  may,  th is  one is  s l igh t l y  be t te r  a r ranged than  

the  prev ious one,  Cha i rperson,  wh ich  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  use as  

a  roadmap fo r  my examinat ion  o f  Mr  S ingh.   There  is  a  lo t  

o f  c ross- re fer r ing  and documents  are  in  d i f fe ren t  p laces,  

th is  wou ld  make th ings eas ie r.   I  do  no t  suggest  tha t  i t  has 20 

any ev ident ia ry  we igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  s imp ly  a  means to  examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  jus t  fo r  conven ience.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  want  to  –  perhaps I  can jus t  
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exp la in  th is  document ,  Mr  S ingh ,  and i f  you have any 

quest ions,  p lease ask  me.   I  have l i s ted  s ix  t r ips  wh ich  I  

want  to  quest ion  you on and i f  we take  the  f i r s t  t r ip ,  30  

Apr i l  to  2  May 2014 (BB23,  page 26 para  113.3 )  tha t  i s  the 

re ference to  the  10 .6 .   You w i l l  remember  in  the  10 .6  you 

were  asked to  answer  about  var ious t r ips .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh,  I  was l ook ing  a t  

the  document  you  have jus t  handed  up.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On the  f i le  shou ld  we go to  a  par t i cu la r  10 

page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  have not  gone to  any page ye t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  ye t .   Oh,  okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  maybe i t  wou ld  be  

conven ien t  i f  the  w i tness is  re fe r red  to  h is  ac tua l  a f f idav i t  

tha t  co l la tes  w i th  the  10 .6  because i t  wou ld  be  eas ier  fo r  

a l l  o f  us  to  fo l low.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  w i l l  ge t  there ,  I  am exp la in ing  what  20 

i t  dea ls  w i th .   So 30 Apr i l  to  2  May,  BB23,  page 426,  

parag raph 113.3 ,  tha t  was the  re ference in  the  10 .6  and  

then page 480,  paras  52  to  53 ,  tha t  i s  your  answer.  

 In  the  co lumn p resent  o r  f lew wi th ,  tha t  i s  the  

a l legat ion  made in  the  10 .6  tha t  p resent  in  Duba i  a t  th is  
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t ime were  Gupta  and Essa.   Where  Ms Su le iman ’s  a f f idav i t  

dea ls  w i th  the  t r ip ,  I  have paraphrased what  she says and 

then in  next  co lumn,  AS,  those are  your  in i t ia ls ,  I  have 

paraphrased wha t  your  response  was and then rea l l y  i t  

take  me to  what  I  am go ing  to  ask  you about  and  tha t  i s  

documents  in  BB23.   So I  am rea l l y  t ry ing  to  t ie  the  

documents  to  each o f  the  t r ips .  

 So I  am go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  30  Apr i l  to  2  May  

2014 t r ip ,  then the  3  June to  8  May t r ip ,  7  to  12  August  

t r ip ,  6  to  9  November  t r ip ,  25  February  to  1  March t r ip  and  10 

11 to  15  June t r ip .  

 Now what  I  want  to  jus t  ask  you,  as  I  unders tood 

your  ev idence tha t  you gave when you were  examined – 

when Mr  Se leka was lead ing  you,  as  I  unders tand  i t ,  you 

say tha t  a l l  o f  these t r ips  bu t  fo r  number  two were  pr iva te  

and persona l  t r ips ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now Mr  Se leka d id  no t  p ress  you on  

tha t  bu t  I  want  to  ask  you –  I  mean,  what  do  you mean tha t  

they were  p r iva te  and persona l  t r ips?   What  i s  i t  tha t  you  20 

were  do ing  there?  And now we are  ta lk ing  about  t r ips  one 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  jus t  to  be  accura te ,  I  th ink  he  d id  

ask  h im the  same quest ion  a t  some s tage or  anothe r,  say 

p lease c la r i f y  p r iva te  and persona l .  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 61 of 296 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  you can [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  DCJ you w i l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  maybe jus t  aga in  

fo r  the  record .   A t  the  t ime Mr  Se leka le f t  i t  there ,  Mr  S ingh 

made i t  c lear  tha t  i t  i s  p r iva te  what  h is  bus iness was  there .   

So tha t  i t  i s  jus t  c lear  fo r  the  record  and  i t  was 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  ja ,  maybe Mr  Myburgh means tha t  10 

the  mere  fac t  tha t  Mr  S ingh says  i t  i s  p r iva te  shou ld  no t  

end the  quest ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  –  I  th ink  –  ja ,  you may  

proceed,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you .   I  want  to  know –  my 

quest ion  s imp ly  i s ,  what  were  you do ing  there?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  S i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  were  you do ing  there?  

MR SINGH:    I  was on p r iva te  bus iness,  S i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    P r iva te  bus iness?  What  bus iness?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  these were  pr iva te  t r ips  tha t  I  was  

engaged on to  e i ther  ho l idays or  vacat ion  in  some cases.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH:    Ho l idays o r  vacat ions  in  some cases.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    P r iva te  bus iness and ho l idays are  

d i f fe ren t  th ings,  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:    Ja  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  need to  –  and I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  

be  –  we need to  be  c lear  he re .   What  i s  i t  tha t  you were  

do ing?  You sa id  tha t  t r ips  one,  th ree ,  f i ve  –  sor ry,  one,  

th ree ,  fou r,  f i ve  and s ix  were  pr i va te  and persona l ,  they  

were  no t  bus iness t r ips .   Now what  I  want  to  know,  what  

were  you do ing  there?  

MR SINGH:    So  le t  me c la r i f y,  Mr  Cha i r.   When I  say  they 10 

were  no t  bus iness t r ips ,  Mr  Cha i r,  they  were  no t  bus iness  

t r ips  as  i t  re la tes  to  o f f i c ia l  t rave l  fo r  Transnet  purposes.   

So they were  pr iva te  in  tha t  sense.   Does tha t  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    F ine ,  tha t  I  unders tand.   Now I  want  

to  know what  were  you do ing  the re?  So,  I  mean,  i t  is  no t  a  

d i f f i cu l t  quest ion .   I t  i s  p r iva te ,  yes ,  I  was on ho l i day.   I t  

was p r iva te ,  I  went  and rode a  mounta in  b ike  race or  I  

p layed go l f .   Wha t  i s  i t  tha t  you were  do ing  there?  

MR SINGH:    So  then subsequent  you asked what  were  you  20 

do ing  and I  then responded and sa id  I  was there  on  pr iva te  

–  as  I  sa id ,  I  was  there  was on pr i va te  and pr iva te  –  i t  was  

my p r iva te  t rave l  and you asked what  d id  I  do  and then I  

sa id  a t  some s tages I  was there  fo r  vacat ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes?  
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MR SINGH:    So. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ho l iday?  

MR SINGH:    On ho l iday.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Okay?  On some occas ions I  was there  to  –  

how can I  say  -  to  expand my pe rsona l  ne twork  w i th in  the  

UIE .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Expand?   

MR SINGH:   My own ab i l i t y  to ,  so  i t  was my own pr iva te  

bus iness.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  do  no t  unders tand.   

MR SINGH:   So  Mr  Cha i r,  th is  . . .  these l ine  o f  quest ion ing  

was put  to  me in  the  par l iamentary  inqu i ry,  and a t  tha t  

s tage Mr  Cha i r,  I  exp la ined to  the  par l iamentary  inqu i ry  

tha t  a t  tha t  s tage I  was engag ing  w i th  the  UIE  ind iv idua l ,  

and we had common bus iness ob jec t i ves  a t  the  t ime.   

 He sought  adv ice ,  and I  sought  adv ice  and we  

mutua l l y  co l labora ted .   That  was  the  reasons fo r  these  

t r ips .   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you were  under tak ing  these t r ips  20 

because there  was an ind iv idua l  in  Duba i  w i th  whom you 

were  exp lo r ing  bus iness oppor tun i t ies?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  who is  th is  ind iv idua l?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  I  d isc losed the  name o f  the 
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ind iv idua l  a t  the  par l iamentary  inqu i ry.   H is  name was Mr  

A lbu lash i .   .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  A lbu lash i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You want  to  spe l l  tha t  fo r  us?  

MR SINGH:   ALB,  i f  I  am cor rec t .   ALBULASHI .  

CHAIRPERSON:   ALBU? 

MR SINGH:   L .  

CHAIRPERSON:   L .  

MR SINGH:   SHI .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   SHI .    

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  tha t  the  surname or  the  name? 

MR SINGH:   That  i s  the  surname.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  have you got  the  name? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  have to  check my record .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   And prov ide  tha t  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Oh,  the  in i t ia ls ,  you remember  the  

in i t ia ls  maybe?  20 

MR SINGH:   No s i r,  I  th ink  i t  was M.  

CHAIRPERSON:   M?  

MR SINGH:   M.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  who d id  Mr  A lba lush i  work  fo r?  
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MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  he  is  a  p r iva te  c i t i zen .   He has h is  

own bus iness in te res ts .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  when you were  expand ing  your  

ne twork  as  you put  i t  in  the  UAE,  d id  i t  ex tend beyond Mr  

A lba lush i?   You had meet ings w i th  o ther  peop le  or  how d id  

you ex tend th is  ne twork  o f  yours?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  as  i t  re la tes  to  these t r ips  fac ing  

po in t ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  wou ld  requ i re  fo r  Mr  A lbu lush i  

and myse l f  to  meet  o ther  ind iv idua ls ,  tha t  wou ld  have been 

fac i l i ta ted  th rough h im and we wou ld  then meet  them,  yes  10 

Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   So you met  o ther  

ind iv idua ls?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You were  look ing  fo r  bus iness 

oppor tun i ty?  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  in  my case i t  was a  case o f  

t ry ing  to  unders tand what  wou ld  I  do  once  I  have  

comple ted  my s t in t  as  the  CFO of  Transnet  and  i t  was 

a lways my in ten t ion  tha t  I  wou ld  look a t  immigra t ing  f rom 20 

the  count ry  in  some way,  shape  or  fo rm,  in  te rms o f  me 

ab le  to  take  up some sor t  o f  oppor tun i ty  w i th in  the  g loba l  

env i ronment .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now d id  you  eve r  have occas ioned to 

open a  bank account  in  the  UAE? 
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MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  you ever  have occas ioned to  

purchase any p roper t y  in  the  UAE? 

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now what  we do see is  tha t  in  the  

space o f  l i t t le  over  13  and a  ha l f  months ,  30  Apr i l  2014 to  

June 2015,  you f requented Duba i  o f ten .   Cor rec t?     

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now perhaps we a re  jus t  dea l ing  w i th  

th is  p r i va te  and persona l  i ssue.   t r ip  number  2 ,  the  3  June  10 

to  8  June.  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  unders tood your  ev idence,  so  I  am 

go ing  to  go  i n to  the  de ta i l  in  a  moment ,  bu t  I  unders tood  

your  ev idence to  say look,  you seem to  have,  you were  no t  

in  Duba i  the  who le  t ime.   you were  the re ,  you  f lew to  

Frankfur t  and Heathrow and then fo r  a  per iod  o f  t ime you  

were  in  Duba i .  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wou ld  tha t  t ime tha t  you were  in  20 

Duba i ,  wou ld  tha t  a lso  have been  a  pr iva te  and persona l  

t r ip?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Was tha t  a  bus iness t r ip?  

MR SINGH:   Th i s  was a  bus iness t r ip .   Th is  was an o f f i c ia l  
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bus iness t r ip .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Number  two  is  an  o f f i c ia l ,  th roughout  

bus iness t r ip .   A l r igh t .   So le t  us  have a  look a t  the  f i rs t  

p r iva te  t r ip  on  30  Apr i l .   Then th ree  months  la te r  you go  

aga in  on  the  7 t h  o f  August .   Three months  la te r  you go  

aga in ,  6 t h  o f  November.   

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  maybe i t  is  oppor tune a t  th is  t ime 

wh i le  Mr  Myburgh is  ta lk ing  about  the  t r ip  o f  the  7 t h  o f  

August  [ ind is t inc t ] .   Mr  Cha i r,  my  prev ious tes t imony was  

tha t  I  conf i rmed th is  t r ip   based on the  ev idence tha t  had 10 

been prov ided by  Ms Su l l iman.   

 On re tu rn  home Mr  Cha i r,  the  fami ly  had ac tua l l y  

ind ica ted  to  me tha t  I  wou ld  have probab ly  no t  been,  I  

ac tua l l y,  we ac tua l l y  d id  no t  do  th is  t r ip ,  because there  was  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  Apr i l  one?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r,  i tem 3  on  the  tab le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  August?  

MR SINGH:   August  7  to  12 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

MR SINGH:   And the  reason fo r  tha t  Mr  Cha i r  was tha t  

there  was ac tua l l y  a  bereavement  in  the  fami ly,  and the  

bereavement  occur red  on the  1s t  o f  August .   There  was a  

ceremony on the  4 t h  o f  August  I  th ink  and then there  was a  

f ina l  c remat ion  on  the  6 t h  o f  Augus t .   
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 So  these dates  Mr  Cha i r,  a re  p rob lemat ic  in  te rms  

o f  the  fac t  tha t  I  d id  conf i rm them,  however  I  d id  no t ,  I  

ac tua l l y  d id  no t  f ly.   So we ac tua l l y  d id  no t  a t tend th is  t r ip .    

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you say tha t  you cer ta in ly  d id  no t  

t rave l ,  do  tha t  t r ip?  

MR SINGH:   Yes s i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   So we are  a t  November.   

What  we do know,  i s  you then go th ree  months  l a te r,  four  

months  la te r.   You go in  February  and then a  few months  10 

a f te r  tha t  you go  aga in  in  June.   So you went  there  qu i te  

o f ten .    

 Cor rec t?    

MR SINGH:   Wha t  i s  tha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You went  to  Duba i  o f ten .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now le t  us  take  the  f i rs t  t r ip .   You 

accept  tha t  you  went  on  i t .   You sa id  tha t  you were  

unaware  o f  the  presence o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ra jesh Gupta  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  R Gupta  and Mr  Essa.   Can I  ask  

you p lease,  and I  rea l l y  jus t  want  to  take  you th rough the  

documents  l i s ted  in  the  r igh t  hand co lumn.   Can I  ask  you 

to  go  to  page 1949.   Exh ib i t  23 .   Bund le  5C.   Now a t  1949  

th rough to  1954,  there  i s  a  se r ies  o f  documents  t ha t  fa l l  
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w i th in  th is  da te  range o f  your  t r ip ,  30  Apr i l  to  2  May.    

 Now cou ld  I  ask  you to  go  to  1949?  You see there  

is  an  emai l  in  face  o f  i t  f rom Ashu.   Do you know who Ashu 

is?    

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  i f  th is  i s  Mr  Ashu as  I  have tes t i f ied  

be fore ,  Mr  Ashu Shwala ,  then I  d id  tes t i f y  tha t  I  had an  

occas ion  to  meet  h im.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ashu Shwala  you knew h im as a ,  as  

work ing  a t  Sahara?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  s i r.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And what  pos i t ion  d id  you know he 

he ld  the re?  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  he  was the  CEO or  someth ing  o f  the 

company.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  the  CEO,  and d id  you know tha t  

he  worked in  Sahara ’s  o f f i ces  in  Johannesburg?   

MR SINGH:   Yes s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  S ingh,  I  can look up  your  

ev idence,  bu t  when I  asked you prev ious l y  about  Sahara  

and who worked there ,  was i t  no t  your  ev idence tha t  you 20 

d id  no t  know?  That  you assumed tha t  the  Gupta ’s  some o f  

the  Gupta  bro thers  worked there .   

 D id  you a lways know tha t  Mr  Shwala  worked a t  

Sahara ’s  o f f i ces  in  Johannesburg?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  when I  go t  to  meet  Mr  
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Shwala ,  bu t  the  reason why I  responded to  the  quest ion  o f  

whethe r  I  knew h im or  no t ,  was Mr  Se leka was go ing  

th rough th i s  long l i s t  o f  ind iv idua ls ,  and tha t  i s  when I  

recogn ised the  name,  and the  Mr  Se leka then asked how 

d id  you know h im and then I  sa id  we l l ,  I  met  h im a t  the  

funct ions,  a t  the  Gupta  res idence.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Now when you  went  to  

Duba i ,  in  what  ho te l  wou ld  you s tay?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  normal ly  a t  the  Obero i  Hote l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.   So you see tha t  th is  i s  an  10 

emai l  f rom Mr  Shwala  to  Tony Gup ta ,  and he is  fo rward ing  

someth ing  f rom tha t  ho te l ,  the  Obero i  Hote l .   I t  says :  

 “Charge s l ips  PDF.   Mr  Essa,  Mr  Gupta ,  Mr  S ingh. ”  

 Do you wee tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then over  the  page one  sees a  

ser ies  o f  cha rge s l ips .   

MR SINGH:   I  see  tha t  Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you  go to  page 1951,  you get  an  

invo i ce .   I t  i s  addressed to  Mr  Essa.   The r igh t  hand says i t  20 

re f lec t s  an  ar r i va l  on  the  29 t h  o f  Apr i l  and a  depar tu re  on  

the  1 s t  o f  May,  and you w i l l  see  tha t  tha t ,  on  the  face  o f  

th is  document ,  tha t  invo ice  was se t t led  us ing  a  Mas tercard  

ended 9115.  

 Do you see tha t?    
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MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then over  the  page a t  1952,  you  

have on the  face  o f  i t  an  invo i ce  th is  t ime in  the  name o f  

Mr  Ra jesh Gupta ,  a lso  ar r i v i ng  29  leav ing  1  May,  and tha t  

invo i ce  appears  a t  sor ry,  1953 to  have been se t t led  a l so  

us ing  th is  Maste rca rd ,  9115.   Do you see tha t?   a t  page  

1953.  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  we go to  page 19 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Cha i rperson,  be fore  my 10 

learned f r iend cont inue,  I  wou ld  l i ke  h im to  p lace  on record  

these documents  tha t  he  i s  cur ren t ly  re fe r r ing  to .   These  

are  documents  tha t  were  ob ta ined by  the  invest iga to rs  o r  i s  

i t  in  fac t  documents  tha t  were  ob ta ined th rough the  Gupta  

leads,  because  tha t  impacts  on  the  ve rac i t y  o f  the 

documents .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  thank you.   Cha i rpe rson,  what  

these documents  were  sourced f rom [ ind is t inc t ] ,  wh ich  as  

you know is  the  commiss ion ’s  rea l l y  da tabase o f  a l l  

documenta t ion .    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   To  my lea rned f r iend ’s  po in t ,  I  am 

adv ised tha t  these are  par t  o f  the  Gupta  leaked documents .   

what  you wou ld  know Cha i rpe rson is  tha t  there  i s  a  p ro jec t  

w i th in  the  commiss ion  to  seek to  au thent ica te  the  Gupta  
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leaked documents ,  and tha t  there  are  exper t s  work ing  on  

tha t .    

 I  unders tand tha t  tha t  i s  a  p ro jec t  tha t  i s  headed up  

by  a  lady named Anna Mar t  N ieman,  and the  in ten t ion  is  to  

es tab l i sh  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  these  documents.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  I  am aware  o f  tha t .   That  i s  s t i l l  

to  be  done.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Cha i rperson,  jus t  to  conf i rm.   

None o f  these documents  has as  ye t  been ver i f ied .   There  

is  no  META data  to  ve r i f y  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  i t .   i t  i s  no t  10 

be ing  ver i f ied  by  do ing  invest iga t ions in  Duba i  as  an  

example .   

 My learned f r iend is  us ing  i t  as  i t  i s ,  o r  as  i t  was  

obta ined th rough the  Gupta  leaks.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   So Mr  S ingh,  then a t  

1954 there  is  re fe rence to  i t  appears  another  invo i ce ,  

Ra jesh Gupta  and then you w i l l  see  in  the  m idd le ,  

accommodat ion  charge and there  is  re fe rence to  you and 

on the  face  o f  i t  there  i s  a  charge to  Mr  Gupta .  20 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  on the  face  o f  these documents ,  

what  you see is  t ha t  no t  on l y  were  Mr  R Gupta  and Mr  Essa 

in  Duba i ,  bu t  they were  in  the  same hote l  as  you  on the  
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face  o f  the  document ,  and i t  wou ld  a lso  appear  tha t  your  

accommodat ion  was charged to  the  account  o f  Ra jesh  

Gupta ,  h is  par t  o f  i t  and se t t led .    

 Do you have any  comment  on  th is?   And then what  

we see  f rom the  f i rs t  document  a t  1949,  tha t  cer ta in  PDF 

charge s l ips  were  then sent  by  Mr  Shwala  to  Tony  Gupta .   

Do you have any comment  on  these documents?    

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  these documents  I  have not  seen  

before .   They have not  been prov ided to  us  prev ious ly.   I  

th ink  these were  the  documents  tha t  ac tua l l y  came la te  las t  10 

n igh t ,  i f  I  am not  m is taken.   Mr  Cha i r,  i f  we can have leave 

to  examine these  documents  and prov ide  some comments  

in  due course .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  what  I  want  to  ask  you is  do  you 

s tand by  your  ve rs ion  tha t  you,  because th is  you have put  

in  you r  a f f idav i t .   You were  unaware  o f  the  presence o f  Mr  

Gupta  and Mr  Essa in  Duba i  in  so  fa r  as  they were  there .    

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you,  i s  i t  your  case tha t  you had  

no knowledge o f  them be ing  a t  the  Obero i  Hote l  a t  the 20 

same t ime as  you?   

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now,  and you wou ld  say I  assume 

you wou ld ,  tha t  you pa id  fo r  your  own accommodat ion .  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  s i r.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  the  Obero i?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And are  you ,  have you got  any proof  

o f  tha t?   Do you have any documenta t ion?  

MR SINGH:   No Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wou ld  you have pa id  in  cash?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  see .   Now these ne twork ing  

meet ings tha t  you had in  Duba i ,  d id  they ever  inc lude any 

o f  the  Guptas  and Mr  Essa?  10 

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  they eve r  inc lude Mr  Shwala?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t ,  then le t  us  go  to  the  second 

t r ip .   Th is  i s  3  June to  8  June.   Th i s  i s  my schedu le .   

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  s i r,  fo r  the  record  as  we l l  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  

you  look a t  as  we p laced on reco rd  Mr  Cha i r,  the  verac i t y  

and obv ious ly  in tegr i t y  o f  these documents  are  in  quest ion  

and obv ious ly  a re  be ing  checked.   [ ind is t inc t ]  we a l so  po in t  

ou t  tha t  the  S ingh tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  here  is  an  ANUJ.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page are  you look ing  a t?  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry,  1954 Mr  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   1954.   Yes,  okay jus t  repeat  the  po in t  

you were  mak ing?   

MR SINGH:   So  I  am say ing  tha t  the  S ingh tha t  i s  re fe r red  
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to  in  th is  in fo rmat ion  invo ice ,  i s  an  ANUJ S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   Not  an  ANOJ S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  assume tha t  i s  a  m is take  tha t  i s  

o f ten  made in  the  spe l l ing  o f  you r  name?   

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  the  way tha t  the  

ho te l  p ro toco l  normal ly  work ,  you are  requ i red  to  use your  

p roof  o f  ident i f i ca t ion  be fore  you  ac tua l l y  a re  a l l owed to  

take  up your  room,  and tha t  in  in te rna t iona l  t rave l  i t  i s  10 

normal ly  requ i red  fo r  you to  p roduce your  passpor t .   

 I f  your  passpor t  does not  record  to  the  reserva t ion  

tha t  you have,  then you have a  b i t  o f  a  p rob lem.   So in  th is  

case th i s  i s  no t  as  s imp le  p la in  way as  i t  i s  a  U versus an 

O.   I  th ink  i t  i s  a  l i t t le  b i t  more  prob lemat ic  than tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you a l ready say ing  th is  is  no t  a  

re ference to  you or  a re  you say ing  no ,  I  am not  necessar i l y  

say ing  i t  i s  no t  a  re ference to  me,  bu t  i t  may be tha t  i t  i s  

somebody e l se?   

MR SINGH:    No Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which  one are  you say ing?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  in  the  l igh t  o f ,  th is  i s  what  I  am 

say ing .   In  the  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  verac i t y  o f  these  

invo ices are  quest ioned Mr  Cha i r,  you cannot  assume tha t  

th is  i s  me.   I  am say ing  th is  i s  no t  me.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   So  you a re  say ing  tha t  th is  i s  no t  you?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r,  because  ANUJ is  no t  ANOJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  thank you Mr  S ingh.   Le t  us  go  

to  the  second t r ip  on  my schedu le .   Th is  one you  say i s  

bus iness.   3  June to  8  June.   I t  was a l leged tha t  you f lew 

together  w i th  Mr  R Gupta  and my pa raphras ing  o f  your  

ev idence and you  must  co r rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  th i s  i s  no t  

in tended to  have any ev ident ia ry  we igh t .   

 As  I  unders tood your  ev idence is  tha t  you t rave l led  10 

to  Frankfor t  and Heathrow between 4  and 6  June and you 

were  in  Duba i  be tween 6  and 8 .   You say i t  was a  bus iness  

t r ip .   You were  unaware  tha t  Mr  R  Gupta  was on the  f l igh t ,  

and then you d i sputed Ms Su le iman ’s  ve rs ion .  

 I  do  no t  want  to  tes t  you on tha t .   Would  tha t  

accu ra te l y  summar ise  i t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   [ ind is t inc t ]  what  your  ev idence was?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Cou ld  we p lease go  then to  20 

page 1955 o f  the  same bund le .   There  is  a  ser ies  o f  

documents  w i th in  th is  da te  range ,  runn ing  f rom 1555 to  

1962.    

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Cha i rperson,  jus t  fo r  the  

record .   I s  the  s i tua t ion  per ta in ing  to  these emai ls  s im i la r  
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as  to  what  was s ta ted  ea r l ie r,  i .e .  the  emai ls  tha t  i s  not  

re la ted  or  these emai ls ,  so  we have got  invo ices and we  

have got  emai ls .   

 A re  the  emai ls  a l so  emai ls  tha t  were  ob ta ined f rom 

the  Gupta  leaks?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  they are .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   So  we are  a t  1955 and  we 

need o f  cou rse  to  read these emai l s   backwards.   I f  you  go 

to  the  foo t  o f  tha t  page,  in  fac t  i f  you  go to  1956,  you see i t  10 

is  s igned by  Ashu.   When I  say  s igned,  he  is  the  au thor.   

So i t  i s  f rom Ashu .    

 I t  i s  to  Sarah [ ind is t inc t ]  who I  unders tand is  

someone f rom the  hote l :  

 “H i  Sarah.   As  d iscussed I  wou ld  l i ke  to  book a  

luxu ry  su i te  on  be low dates .   Check in  6 ,  check ou t  9 .   

Guest  names,  Ano j  S ingh. ”  

 You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then  fu r ther  up ,  aga in  f rom 20 

Sarah to  Ashu:  

 “Great  speak ing  to  you jus t  now.   P lease f ind  

a t tached conf i rmat ion  le t te r  f rom,  fo r  Mr  S ingh.   I  am a l so  

resend ing  the  conf i rmat ion  le t te r  fo r  Mr  Gupta . ”  

 You see tha t?  
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MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then i f  we go to  page 1957,  you w i l l  

see  tha t  the  Gupta  in  quest ion  appears  to  be  Mr  Ra jesh 

Gupta .   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There  is  a  reserva t ion  fo r  h im,  

a r r i v i ng  6 ,  leav ing  9  and he was  in  a  p res ident ia l  su i te .   

You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you  go to  page  1959,  th i s  on  the  10 

face  o f  i t  i s  your  reserva t ion .   You are  ar r i v ing  as  you have  

sa id  to  us ,  on  the  6 t h  o f  June and depar t ing  on  the  9 t h  o f  

June when you were  in  a  luxury  su i te .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  you in  fac t  s tay  a t  the  Obero i  

Hote l  dur ing  these or  on  these dates?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   On what  da tes  d id  you s tay  a t  that  

ho te l?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  th is  was an o f f i c ia l  t rave l .   So th is  20 

wou ld  be  the  ho te l  accommodat ion  wou ld  have been  

booked by  Transnet  Mr  Cha i r  and  pa id  fo r  by  Transnet  and 

whatever  ho te l  tha t  wou ld  have appeared to  be  a t  the  t ime 

wou ld  have been the  ho te l  tha t  I  s tayed a t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry?  
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MR SINGH:   Sor ry  Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  what  ho te l  d id  you s tay?  

MR SINGH:   I  was exp la in ing  tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   And I  was exp la in ing  to  the  Cha i r  tha t  th is  was 

an o f f i c ia l  t r ip .   So the  ho te l  wou ld  have been booked by  

Transnet  and pa id  fo r  by  Transnet .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   And tha t  i s  the  ho te l  tha t  I  wou ld  have s tayed 

in .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  bu t  can you remember  what  

ho te l  i t  was?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Or  do  you know tha t  i t  was  not  the  

Obero i?  

MR SINGH:   Def in i te ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Why?  

MR SINGH:   Because I  do  no t  th ink  Transnet  w i l l  use  the  

Obero i  Hote l  as  one . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You do not  th ink  they used i t?  20 

MR SINGH:   No.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R igh t ,  and then i f  you go to  1961,  so  

jus t  perhaps le t  us  pause fo r  a  moment .   What  were  you  

o f f i c ia l l y  do ing  i n  Duba i  be tween Fr iday the  6 t h  o f  June and 

Monday the  9 t h  o f  June?  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 80 of 296 
 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  exact ly  reca l l   bu t  there  are  

a  number  o f  reasons as  to  why one wou ld  have been in  

Duba i .   One o f  the  ra t ing  agenc ies  tha t  [ ind is t inc t ]  bo th  

Eskom and Transnet  was based in  Duba i .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Was?  

MR SINGH:   Was based in  Duba i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR SINGH:   One o f  the  ra t ing  agenc ies .   There  were  

f requent ,  there  were  some investo r  road shows tha t  we had 

done th rough Duba i  dur ing  th is  per iod  o f  t ime.   I  th ink  i t  10 

was par t i cu la r ly  f o r  Transnet ,  no t  fo r  Eskom.   In  te rms o f  

exp lor ing  the  Is lamic  f inanc ing  and investor  appet i te  

market .   

 They were  a l so  re ference v i s i t s  tha t  I  th ink  was  

ar ranged by  McK insey in  te rms  o f  unders tand ing  the 

methods tha t  a re  used to  manage const ruc t ion  pro jec ts ,  

because a t  tha t  t ime,  Duba i  was go ing  th rough a  mass ive  

const ruc t ion  boom and there  were  a  lo t  o f  o rgan isa t ions  

tha t  had adopted  d i f fe ren t  and innovat ive  and [ ind is t inc t ]  

leadersh ip  p ro jec t  management  t ype o f  ph i losoph ies .   20 

 That  i s  what  we wou ld  have been  look ing  a t  do ing ,  

in  Duba i .   But  Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  exact ly  th is  t r ip ,  I  am 

not ,  I  do  no t  reca l l .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You are  no t  sure?  

MR SINGH:   No.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  and then to  f in ish  o f f  these  

documents ,  cou ld  you go to  1961.   

MR SINGH:   I  am there  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And there  a t  the  top ,  in  the  face  o f  i t  

an  emai l  f rom Mr  Essa to  Ashu.   He is  fo rward ing  the  

Obero i  Duba i ,  Mr  A ,  PDF.   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you  go over  the  page a t  page 1962,  

you see some so r t  o f  ho te l  voucher  i t  seems expostay.com.   

To  the  Obero i  Hote l .   A r r i va l  da te  6 t h ,  depar tu re  da te  9 .   10 

Three n igh ts .   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:   I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  f igure  ou t  where  you are .   

Okay,  yes  I  see tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t ,  and then i f  we go to  t he  th i rd  

t r ip  on  my schedu le  f rom 7  to  12  August ,  as  I  unders tand  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh.   The page tha t  

you are  mov ing  away f rom was i t  1962?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   tha t  i s  an  accommodat ion  voucher,  20 

is  tha t  r igh t?   Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  s i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And the  reserva t ion  on  the  face  o f  i t  

appears  to  have been done on the  5 t h  o f  June 2015,  and  

the  ar r i va l  da te  was 6  June 2014 .   Depar tu re  da te  9  June 
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and  tha t  you were  re f lec ted  the re  as  the  c l ien t  and  the  

spe l l ing  was the  cor rec t  spe l l ing  o f  your  name.   

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  and th is  was the  Obero i  Hote l  in  

Duba i .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  we [word  cu t ]  999 schedu le ,  

tha t  i s  7  to  12  August  2014.   As  I  unders tand i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    7  to  12  August  Cha i rperson ,  2014,  

the  th i rd  t r ip  on  my schedu le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  yes .   That  i s  the  one 

he says he  d idn ’ t  under take.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So as  I  unders tand i t  p rev ious ly  Mr  

S ingh,  and you must  co r rec t  me  i f  I  am wrong,  when Mr  

Se leka was exam in ing  you I  unders tood tha t  you accepted 

tha t  you went  on  th is  t r ip  bu t  you had issues w i th  the  

invo i ces and you po in ted  out  a  who le  lo t  o f  d iscrepanc ies .  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  I  unders tand your  ev idence today  

you say tha t  when you re tu rned home and you d iscussed  

th is  w i th  members  o f  your  fami l y  and you came to  the  

conc lus ion  tha t  ac tua l l y  you inco r rec t ,  you hadn ’ t  engaged 
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on  th is  t r ip .    

MR SINGH:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t .     

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you had  in tended to .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  take  you p lease to  page 

1781,  now tha t ’s  ear l ie r  in  the  f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    1781?  Record  the  page r igh t  Mr  

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  1781 Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I ’ ve  go t  i t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  want  to  ask  you a  few quest ions in  

re la t ion  to  the  documents  you f ind  a t  1781 th rough to  1784.  

MR SINGH:    1784.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rpe rson is  th is  i n  Bund le  

23 ,  because we don ’ t  have those pages in  ou r  bund le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Th is  i s  Exh ib i t  23 ,  1781.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  the  bund le  tha t  we have been us ing  

th is  morn ing  5C.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  you f ind  a t  1781,  perhaps  

you must  s ta r t  a t  the  bo t tom,  reserva t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rpe rson sor ry  aga in  to  

in te r rup t ,  we don ’ t  seem to  have tha t  –  those documents ,  

and my a t to rney a lso  says the  same,  so  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  the  r igh t  bund le?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes Cha i rperson we have got  i t  
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on  l ine ,  we l l  no t  on l ine ,  we have downloaded the  re ference  

bund les  tha t  were  sent  to  us  e lec t ron ica l l y  and i f  we go  

th rough i t  we don ’ t  seem to  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  have page 1781?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   No,  ours  ends a t  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yours  ends where?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Jus t  bear  w i th  me fo r  a  second.    

No,  so  on  th is  bund le  we have got  1971 but  i f  you  look a t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i f  you ’ve  go t  1971 you shou ld  a lso  10 

have 1781,  the  page tha t  Mr  Myburgh has re fer red  us  to  i s  

1781 and then you go up to  17  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson i f  you can jus t  bear  

w i th  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   So 1719 in  BB23 seems to be  a 

document  –  I  jus t  want  to  go  to  the  s ta r t  o f  i t ,  i t  i s  A l i s ta i r  

Chauby ’s  submiss ions to  the  Commiss ion ,  now 1788 and 

then i t  goes to  1789,  Cha i rperson I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  do  you have a t  1781?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson I  see i t  i s  a lmost  lunch 

t ime,  perhaps th is  i s  someth ing  tha t  my learned f r iend and  

I  can sor t  ou t  and  not  ho ld  up  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .    Le t  us  jus t  ge t  those  

th ings sor ted  ou t  so  when we come back we can jus t  run  
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smooth ly.     

 Okay we are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  lunch and we w i l l  

resume a t  two.   We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you  Cha i rpe rson.   Mr  S ingh 

we were  dea l ing  [no  aud io ]  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you  Cha i rpe rson.   Mr  S ingh 

we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  7  to  12  August  2014 t r ip  tha t  you 

say you p lanned  but  d id  no t  under take.    Before  lunch I  

th ink  I  had taken  you to  page 1781 o f  Bund le  5C,  Exh ib i t  

23 .    

You see a t  the  foo t  o f  tha t  page  f rom the  Obero i  

Hote l  on  the  4 t h  o f  August  there  is  a  reserva t ion  wh ich  is  

a t tached over  the  page and i t  re f lec ts  a  reserva t ion  

conf i rmat ion  fo r  Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  a r r i va l  da te  the  7 t h  o f  

August  depar tu re  da te  the  12 t h .   So those were  the  p lan  20 

days,  da tes  o f  your  t r ip ,  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  exact  da tes  o f  

the  p lanned t r ip  bu t  I  guess i f  i t  i s  those dates  then i t  i s  

those dates .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh I  am a t  1781 but  I  
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suspect  you a re  no t  there  on  tha t  page.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1781,  the  rese rva t ion ,  h is  

conf i rmat ion  is  a t  1782,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay a l r igh t ,  yes .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And was i t  your  -  had i t  been your  

in ten t ion  to  s tay  a t  the  Obero i  Hote l?  

MR SINGH:    Not  tha t  I  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  as  I  unders tood your  ev idence,  

tha t  i s  where  you s tayed when  you went  on  persona l  

p r iva te  t r ips  to  Duba i .   10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  somet imes i t  was fo r  vacat ions we d id  

s tay  a t  o ther  ho te ls .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon.   

MR SINGH:    A t  some s tages when  they were  vacat ions we 

d id  s tay  a t  o ther  ho te ls .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  when  you were  there  on  th is  

expand ing  your  ne twork ,  you s tayed a t  the  Obero i?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  S ingh is  th is  then another  

co inc idence because on the  face  o f  i t ,  th is  was a lso  the  20 

Gupta ’s  ho te l  where  they s tayed,  I  do  no t  mean they owned  

i t  bu t  they a lso  s tayed there  are  l o ts  o f  ho te ls  in  Duba i ,  I  

have not  been there  as  o f ten  as  you but  they are  lo ts .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  t rue ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i s  th is  to  another  co inc idence,  
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co inc identa l l y  you were  w i th  the i r  t rave l  agent ,  

co inc identa l l y  you s tay  a t  the  same hote l .   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cha i rperson,  I  am go ing  to  

ob jec t ,  I  have not  heard  any ev idence led  be fo re  th is  

Commiss ion ,  where  my c l ien t  tes t i f ied  tha t  the  –  Trave l  

Exce l lence was the  t rave l  agency o f  the  Gupta ’s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  sure  tha t  Mr  Myburgh  sa id  i t  

was  

the  t rave l  agent  o f  the  Gupta ’s .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i r,  perhaps I  shou ld  re f ine  tha t ,  10 

what  there  is  ev idence o f  i s  Trave l  Exce l lence be ing  a  

t rave l  agent  o f  Mr  Essa and Sahara  Computers ,  so  le t  me 

qua l i f y  i t  tha t  way.   Now is  th is  a  co inc idence then Mr  

S ingh tha t  o f  a l l  the  ho te ls  in  Duba i ,  you jus t  happen to  

s tay  a t  the  one tha t  they seem to  a lso  s tay a t?  

MR SINGH:    I  guess so  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  ask  you,  you go to  Duba i  

o f ten .  How many hote ls  do  you th ink  they are  in  Duba i?  

MR SINGH:    Lo ts .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When you mean lo ts  l i ke  how many?  20 

MR SINGH:    Hundreds.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Hundreds?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And how many t rave l  agents  are  

there  in  Johannesburg  do  you th ink?  
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ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cha i rperson,  rea l l y  I  am go ing  

to  ob jec t  to  th is  l ine  o f  c ross  examinat ion .   I t  i s  –  le t  me 

jus t  s top  the re  be fore  I  say  someth ing  tha t  I  shou ld  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    I f  my learned f r iend wants  to  

pu t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine ,  we l l ,  I  guess we a l l  know 

there  a re  lo ts .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   I  do  no t  want  to  conver t  

you in to  some sor t  o f  exper t  I  am sor ry.   So what  we then 

go ing  back to  page 1781,  in  the  m idd le :  

“Dear  Ashu. ”  

That  p resumably  i s  Chawla :  

“P lease f ind  a t tached the  rev ised conf i rmat ion  le t te r  

w i th  doub le  occupancy. ”  

And then there  is  a  response f rom h im a t  the  top  o f  the  

page.  

“P lease swipe the  card  fo r  a l l  cha rges. ”  20 

Have you got  any  comments  to  make on these documents?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  1781,  fo r  

example  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  when  I  look  a t?  

MR SINGH:    1781.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SINGH:    What  i s  anomalous i n  th is  emai l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  

tha t  the  emai l  r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom,  i f  we look a t  the  –  there  

is  f rom Obero i  Duba i  reserva t ions ,  and the re  is  an  emai l  

address and then  sent  to  -  sent  Monday 04 o f  August  2014 

fo r  11pmto Sarah .   So tha t  t imestamp is  fo r  11pm.   Yet  i f  

you then look a t  the  emai l  then in  the  m idd le  o f  the  day,  

you see f rom Sarah to  Ashu but  tha t  i s  a  2 :17pm.  

I  am not  too  sure  how Sarah send someth ing  to  

Ashu before  rese rva t ions,  ac tua l l y  send i t  to  her  fo r  11pm.   10 

So,  aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r  the  anomal ies  in  these documents  

cont inue,  as  we  have d iscussed,  and po in ted  out  in  the  

past .    

Then,  Mr  Cha i r,  aga in ,  i f  th is  was the  p lanned t r i p  

and the  p lanned t r ip  obv ious ly  d id  no t  mater ia l i se .   Aga in ,  I  

am not  too  sure  why Mr  Ashu  is  charg ing  anyth ing ,  

because i t  was jus t  be ing  a  mat te r  o f  hav ing  to  cance l  the  

reserva t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  when d id  you cance l  the  t r ip ,  do  

you know i t  m igh t  have been shor t l y  be fo re  you le f t?  20 

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld  no t  reca l l  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  d id  Mr  Chawla  ever  book hote l  

accommodat ion  fo r  you?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ah ,  le t  us  then dea l  w i th  the  four th  
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t r ip  on  my l i s t  6 to  9  November  and i t  was s ta ted  in  the  

1060 tha t  you f lew on the  same l igh t  as  Mr  Essa and what  

you sa id  about  tha t ,  in  your  ev idence i s  tha t  you  d id  no t  

deny tha t  he  was on the  same f l igh t  bu t  you were  no t  

aware  o f  th is ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When you f lew to  Duba i ,  d id  you f l y  

bus iness c lass  or  d id  you f l y  economy c lass?  

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld  th ink  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y  i t  was 

bus iness.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you f l y  bus iness c lass?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  a i r l ine  wou ld  you  usua l ly  

f l y?  

MR SINGH:    I t  wou ld  be  Emi ra tes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  th is  i s  no t  rea l l y  a  mat te r  o f  no t  

hav ing  seen Mr  Essa a t  the  a i rpo r t ,  he  wou ld  have  may or  

may not  have been in  bus iness c lass .  

MR SINGH:    P robab ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  le t  us  dea l  w i th…[ in te rvene]   20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cha i rperson,  jus t  fo r  the  record  

there  is  a lso  f i rs t  c lass ,  so  there  is  a  very  b ig  d i s t inc t ion  

be tween f i rs t  c lass  and bus iness c lass ,  to  who can see who  

and who has got  access to  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you f l y  -  what  i s  i t  f i rs t  c lass  or  

d id  you f l y  bus iness c lass?  

MR SINGH:    Me?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    No,  as  I  sa id  bus iness c lass .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  no t  f i rs t  c lass .   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    The  probab i l i t y  o r  poss ib i l i t y  

ex i s ts ,  tha t  whoever  e lse  was on the  f l igh t  tha t  my learned  

f r iend re fers  to  cou ld  have f lown bus iness c lass  o r  fo r  tha t  10 

mat te r  economy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  hang on –  you remember  tha t  you 

w i l l  ge t  a  chance to  re -examine.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cha i rperson,  I  know tha t  I  have 

got  an  oppor tun i ty  to  re -examine  but  I  am a lso  need to  

p revent  un fa i rness and specu la t i ve  and innuendo be ing  put  

to  the  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  obv ious ly,  you can ob jec t  bu t  I  am 

jus t  say ing  you can ob jec t  in  cer ta in  c i rcumstances but  I  

am say ing  jus t  remember  tha t  you have tha t  oppor tun i ty  to  20 

re-examine la te r  on  and obv ious l y  when you re-examine,  i f  

you  th ink  the re  i s  someth ing  tha t  was not  pu t  co r rec t l y  t o  

the  w i tness and then you can use tha t  oppor tun i ty  to  pu t  i t  

cor rec t l y.   Yes,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Mr  S ingh I  now want  to  
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take  you to  the  o ther  bund le ,  Bund le  5B a lso  par t  o f  Exh ib i t  

23 .   Would  you p lease tu rn  to  page 770,  seven,  seven,  

zero?  

MR SINGH:    I  am there ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  we  see a t  the  foo t  o f  770 is  

a  reserva t ion  con f i rmat ion  and i f  you go over  the  page,  a t  

771 you w i l l  see  tha t  you are  re f lec ted  as  the  guest  a r r i va l  

da te ,  F r iday 7  November.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  I…[ in te rvene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    771,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    771,  okay I  th ink  she d id  no t  hear  tha t ,  

okay I  have got  771 on Transnet  Bund le  5 .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank  you,  771 re f lec ts  the  

reserva t ion  conf i rmat ion  you as  the  guest ,  a r r i v ing  7  

November,  depar t ing  9  November.   Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you s tay  in  the  Obero i  Hote l  

dur ing  those -  over  tha t  per iod?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  t ry  and speak up Mr  S ingh.  20 

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r  I  was jus t  fa r  away -  le t  me 

jus t  do  th is  aga in ,  l i ke  when we d id  las t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  A l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  I  can  take  you to  page 770 there  is  

L ima f rom the  hote l  to  Ashu:  
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“P lease f ind  be low the  conf i rmat ion  le t te r  fo r  Mr  

S ingh. ”  

And then f rom Ashu a t  the  top  o f  the  page on 6  November  

to  San jay  Grover.   Do you know h im? 

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say you d id  s tay  in  the  Obero i  

on  these dates?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can I  take  you then to  the  f i f th  t r ip  

on  my l i s t .   That  i s  a  t r ip  f rom the  25 t h  o f  February  to  the  10 

1 s t  o f  March .   I t  was recorded in  the  10 .6  tha t  Mr  Ra jesh 

Gupta  and Mr  Essa,  were  present  in  Duba i  ove r  th is  per iod  

and your  ev idence was tha t  you  were  unaware  o f  the i r  

p resence,  co r rec t?   

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  two se ts  

o f  documents  in  re la t ion  to  th is  t r ip .   The f i rs t  you  f ind  a t  

pages 775 in  the  same bund le  tha t  you in  th rough to  782.   

But  le t  us  s ta r t  a t  775 f rom the  hote l ,  da ted  the  23 r d  o f  

February :  20 

“Dear  Mr  Ashu.  

Greet ings f rom the  Obero i ,  Duba i  we are  p leased to  

conf i rm a i rpor t  t ransfer  as  requested f rom Mr  S ingh  

as  an  add i t iona l  supp lement  o f  AED 200 per  ca r,  pe r  

way. ”  
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Do you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When you  s tayed a t  the  Obero i ,  

wou ld  you use the  ho te l  t ransfer  as  a  means o f  ge t t ing  to  

and f rom the  hote l?  

MR SINGH:    I  d id  occas iona l l y  bu t  no t  on  a l l  o f  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you see tha t  tha t  i s  a  response 

to  the  emai l  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page f rom Ashu to  

reserva t ions tha t  says:  

“P lease a r range a i rpor t  p ickup fo r  the  same,  a r r i va l  10 

f l igh t  EK766. ”  

You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And  then the  reserva t ion  

conf i rmat ion  re f lec ts  you as  a r r i v ing  on  the  24 t h  o f  

February  and leav ing  on  the  26 t h  o f f  February.   You see 

tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Page you are  read ing ,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 776.  

MR SINGH:    776 ,  yes .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can I  take  you p lease to  page 780/  

MR SINGH:    Seven e igh t  zero?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Seven e igh t  zero .   Now,  th is  i s  on  

the  face  o f  i t  an  invo ice .   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  seven I  do  no t  have 780.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Seven e igh t  zero .  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  a lso  do  not  have i t ,  I  have got  779 and 

then 782,  no  780 and 781 are  no t  here .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  we l l ,  i t  seems tha t  

Cha i rperson I  am go ing  to  have to  a r range hard  cop ies  o f  

these two miss ing  pages overn igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  w i l l  come back to  th is  tomorrow.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  perhaps Mr  S ingh…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  they be  ab le  to  -  I  th ink  t hey can  

organ ise  i t  wh i l s t  you are  go ing  on i f  there  i s  a  copy 

ava i lab le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  do  you have 782?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have got  782.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and tha t  -  so  what  you w i l l  

see Mr  S ingh when we get  the  document  780 and 781 are  

two pages o f  an  invo i ce  and then there  is  anothe r  invo ice 

a t  782.  Are  you a t  782 now? 20 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You see i t  i s  in  your  name,  i t  i s  

addressed to  –  or  the  company  is  re f lec ted  as  Sahara  

Computers .   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  do ,  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And the  ar r i va l  and depar tu re  da tes  

is  24  February  and 1  March,  and i t  re f lec ts  payment  us ing  

MasterCard  8816.   You see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    I  see i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you see tha t  i t  appears  tha t  Ms 

N ike [? ]  jo ined you on th is  t r ip?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you pay  fo r  th is  yourse l f?   10 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you have any proof  o f  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r  I  do  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  you have pa id  cash?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  R18 309,00 tha t  -  was tha t ,  wou ld  

tha t  be  the  to ta l  o f  every th ing  namely  what  you pa id  on  

depar tu re  when you checked out?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r,  except  tha t  i t  i s  no t  rand ’s  

i t  i s…[ in tervene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Huh?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  except  tha t  i t  i s  no t  rands  as  you 

ment ioned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    I t  i s…[ in tervene]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  Duba i  money aga in  I  fo rge t?  

MR SINGH:    D i rham’s  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  and what  i s  the  exchange ra te  

more  or  less  be tween them? 

MR SINGH:   P robab ly  about  f i f t y - four  to  s ix ty  thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH:    Be tween f i f t y  and s i x ty  thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be tween f i f teen thousand rand?  

MR SINGH:    No,  no  be tween f i f t y  and s ix ty  thousand rand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay bu t  you –  so  you say  18 ,309 10 

Duba i  cur rency wou ld  be  about  50  to  R60 000,00 i n  South 

A f r i can cur rency?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a re  you say ing  tha t  you  car r ied  

about   

50  to  R60 000,00  o f  cash tha t  you used to  pay?  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  ar rangement  I  exp la ined to  

you prev ious l y  w i th  Mr  Aba lu t sh i ,  was the  ar rangement  tha t  

we had a  qu id  pro  quo tha t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  the  ar rangement  tha t  you had  20 

w i th  whom? 

MR SINGH:    The  ar rangement  tha t  we -  tha t  I  exp la ined to  

you prev ious ly  w i th  Mr  Aba lu t sh i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

MR SINGH:    Would  be  in  the  ve in  o f  the  fac t  tha t  o r  the  
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adv ice  and consu l ta t ions  tha t  I  was prov id ing  to  h im a t  the 

t ime.   He wou ld  then re imburse  me in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  

to  pay fo r  my accommodat ion  and expenses i n  Duba i  a t  the  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  remember  you ment ion ing  

the  ar rangement  about  payment  fo r  accommodat ion ,  I  

remember  tha t  you to ld  us  about  h im,  ja .   So you say the  

ar rangement  was  tha t  he  was pay ing  you fo r  consu l ta t ions  

tha t  you had w i th  h im,  bu t  the  ar rangement  was tha t  

ins tead o f  h im pay ing  -  g iv ing  you the  money he wou ld  pay  10 

fo r  your  accommodat ion?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  he  wou ld  phys ica l l y  p rov ide  

me the  cash and  I  w i l l  se t t le  the  b i l l  bu t  the  ar rangement  

was tha t  fo r  the  t imes tha t  I  was there ,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  

i t  was a  mutua l l y  benef ic ia l  a r rangement  tha t  he  and I  had,  

in  te rms o f  exchange o f  in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  wou ld  pay fo r  my 

t rave ls  and he wou ld  pay fo r  the  accommodat ion  a t  the  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  -  bu t  you say  you pa id  cash?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    50  to  R60 000,00 cash a t  the  ho te l?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you say you got  tha t  cash f rom h im?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And he gave i t  to  you,  in  cash?  
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MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so ,  Mr  S ingh,  what  -  th is  i s  

par t  o f  you r  moon l igh t ing .   So you -  jus t  so  tha t  I  

unders tand th is ,  a re  you te l l ing  me tha t  wh i ls t  you were  the  

Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r  a t  Transnet  you wou ld  go  to  

Duba i  and you wou ld  then adv ise  and consu l t  w i th  th is  

gent leman,  and he wou ld  then pay  you in  th is  ins tance the  

equ iva len t  o f  R60  000,00 to  se t t le  your  ho te l  b i l l?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  i s  i t  you  were  adv i s ing  and 

consu l t ing  about?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  the re  were  var ious top i cs  as  I  sa id  

in  my case,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  was rea l l y  look ing  to  es tab l i sh  

myse l f  

 

in  an  env i ronment  o ther  than South  A f r i ca  and Duba i  was  

an env i ronment  where  a  lo t  o f  Sou th  A f r i cans expats  se t t le  

down.   The Duba i  env i ronment  i s  an  env i ronment  tha t  is  

known fo r  i t s  -  as  a  f inanc ia l  hub and tha t  was the  reason I  20 

engaged in  a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Aba lu tsh i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  h is  i dea or  your  idea tha t  he  

shou ld  g ive  you cash and not  e lec t ron i ca l l y  t ransfer  money 

to  you o r  in  any o ther  way,  whose idea was i t?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  terms o f  es tab l i sh ing  bank  
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accounts  and the  l i ke  in  the  UAE i t  i s  p rob lemat ic  i f  you  

are  no t  a  res ident .   So i t  was an unders tand ing  tha t  we 

came to  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime,  as  a  mat te r  o f  conven ience.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  whose idea was i t?  

MR SINGH:    I  cannot  exact ly  reca l l  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  jus t  seems ve ry  pecu l ia r  tha t  in  South  

A f r i ca  w i tness 3  has sa id  tha t  you  used to  go  to  the  Gupta  

res idents  and co l lec t  cash and tha t  cash wou ld  go  to  Knox  

Vau l ts  no t  to  the  bank and the  lady f rom Trave l  Exce l lence,  

the  t rave l  agency says in  her  a f f idav i t  there  were  cer ta in  10 

t imes,  a  number  o f  t imes when you had to  se t t le  cer ta in  

invo i ces re la t ing  to  book ings tha t  they have made fo r  you,  

you wou ld  ca l l  them and say send  the  dr iver  and the  dr ive r  

wou ld  come the re  w i th  cash and f rom her  ev idence  

somet imes i t  i s  no t  smal l  amounts  o f  cash.  

Now you are  in  Duba i  want  and you are  supposed to  

se t t le  the  hote l  b i l l  wh ich  is  qu i t e  h igh  50  to  R60  000,00 

and you use cash  to  se t t le  i t  on  your  vers ion .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  maybe i t  i s  

wor thwhi le…[ in te rvene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  l i ke  you are  Mr  Cash.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i s  wor thwhi le  exp la in ing  the  

env i ronment  in  Duba i ,  I  th ink  the  env i ronment  in  Duba i  i s  

re la t i ve ly  less  l i ke  South  A f r i ca ,  in  tha t  cash is  a  very  

common cu r rency  o f  payment ,  and even la rge  sums o f  cash  
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and la rge  t ransact ions are  ac tua l l y  somet imes se t t led  in  

cash.    

And I  guess i t  is  because o f  the  sa fe t y  fac tor  i n  

Duba i  i s  much bet te r  than here  so  you obv ious l y  have the  

la t i tude o f ,  you know,  se t t l ing  in  cash ra the r  than us ing  

e lec t ron i c  funds t ransfer  un l i ke  what  we use here ,  so  I  

th ink  tha t  w i l l  p robab ly  exp la in  the  reason why cash is  a  

more  f requent  mechan ism tha t  i s  used to  se t t le  

t ransact ions in  Duba i .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  o f  course ,  you wou ld  rea l i se  wou ld  10 

you not  o r  you concede tha t ,  there fore  Mr  –  or  w i tness 3 ’s   

ev idence o f  you hav ing  cash,  tak ing  cash f rom the  Gupta ’s ,  

the  res idence,  Gupta ’s  res idence to  Knox Vau l ts  -   in  o ther  

words no t  any o ther  fo rm o f  money but  ac tua l  cash is  

cons i s ten t  w i th  the  fo rm o f  money tha t  you l i ke  us ing ,  you 

l i ke  us ing  cash.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cha i rperson…[ in tervene ]   

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r…[ in te rvene ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  f rom wha t  you have sa id  to  me i t  

looked l i ke  you l i ked  –  you have p re fer red  dea l ing  in  cash,  20 

no t  cheques and e lec t ron i c  t ransfe rs ,  am I  wrong?  

MR SINGH:    Not  necessar i l y,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You a lso  use the  o ther  means?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  use  cards ,  I  used e lec t ron i c  funds  

t ransfers ,  I  use  deb i t  o rders  l i ke  every  o ther  person .   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  S ingh I  jus t  want  to  take  you  

back.  I  mean,  I  unders tand how you were  t ry ing  to  make  

connect ions in  Duba i .   But  what  I  s t i l l  do  no t  have c lea r  my 

mind is  what  adv i ce ,  consu l ta t i ve  adv i ce  were  you g i v ing  to  

th is  connect ion  o f  yours  in  Duba i  t ha t  was to  the  va lue  o f  -   

we are  th rowing the  f igure  o f  R60 000,00 around,  to  pay  

the  ho te l  b i l l?   What  adv ice?  

MR SINGH:    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  he  was -  as  I  sa id ,  i t  was a  

mutua l l y  benef ic ia l  re la t ionsh ip .  He is  a  se l f -made  10 

bus inessman,  has in te res t  in  p roper t y  and va r ious re ta i l  

t rave l  endeavours ,  o r  bus inesses  and he was look ing  to  

expand and one o f  the  areas tha t  he  was look ing  to  expand 

in to  was A f r i ca .    

And South  A f r i ca  be ing  the  ga teway in to  A f r i ca ,  he  

was look ing  to  unders tand i f  there  were  oppor tun i t ies  to  

expand in to  Sou th  A f r i ca ,  and more  so  in to  A f r i ca  and 

obv ious ly,  my background in  te rms o f  unders tand ing  the  

South  A f r i can env i ronment ,  hav ing  the  exposure  to  the  -  le t  

us  say,  log is t i cs  env i ronment  in  South  A f r i ca  because o f  20 

Transnet  p roved  to  be  va luab le  to  h im,  as  we l l  as  

obv ious ly…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease speak up so  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  

recorded,  ja .  

MR SINGH:    Yes ,  and a lso  the  f inanc ia l  background tha t  I  
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car r ied  w i th  tha t ,  obv ious ly,  was  o f  in te res t  to  h im to  

unders tand,  how does he go about  ac tua l l y  do ing  and  

se t t ing  up  these potent ia l  bus inesses tha t  he  may ac tua l l y  

want  to  endeavour  in  coming in to  South  A f r i ca .  

CHAIRPERSON:    When d id  you meet  th is  man and where  

and how? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  the  f i rs t  t ime.  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  exac t ly  when Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  

was as  a  -  i f  I  reca l l ,  i t  was a t  a  ne twork ing  funct ion  tha t  I  10 

a t tended in  Duba i .   I  th ink  i t  was one o f  the  bus iness t r ips  

tha t  I  had under taken w i th  Transnet  and the re  was a  

ne twork ing  d inner  tha t  we needed to  a t tend.    

And there  was an open sess ion  where  peop le  had  

to ,  cou ld  -  there  was a  pane l ,  and then there  was quest ions  

and answers  tha t  we cou ld  then pose to  the  pane l .   And we  

engaged w i th  the  pane l  and I  had asked a  coup le  o f  

quest ions,  and I  th ink ,  Mr  Aba lu t sh i  was a l so  pa r t  o f  the 

sess ion ,  and post  tha t  sess ion ,  he  came up to  me and sa id ,  

l i s ten ,  he  unders tands tha t  I  am f rom South  A f r i ca  and tha t  20 

is  how we got  speak ing ,  and then got  to  unders tand my 

background,  and so  on ,  tha t  i s  how i t  happened Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  thank you.   Jus t  on  page 782.  

MR SINGH:    Seven?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    782,  you -  we were  dea l ing  w i th  th is  

invo i ce .  I t  re f lec ts  there  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  payment  by  way 

o f  a  MasterCard  end ing  a t  8816,  I  take  i t  tha t  i s  no t  your  

card?  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  you keep th is  f i l e  open a t  782 

and then cou ld  you tu rn  to  the  o ther  f i l e ,  p lease?  Right  to 

the back to page 1971.   

MR SINGH:   71?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1971.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is on Transnet Bundle 5(c).  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is correct  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You see there you see a p icture of  a  

credi t  card.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A Mastercard,  correct? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And do you see that  i t  ends wi th the 

digi ts 8816? 20 

MR SINGH:   I  see that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now i f  you go to page 1870 there is a  

document there that  ref lects that  that  is actual ly  Sanjay 

Grover ’s credi t  card.   You see that? 

MR SINGH:   I  see that .  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 105 of 296 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because he was author is ing the 

payment at  the t ime at  a  di fferent  hotel  and he puts out  his 

card number and there is his name, do you see that? 

MR SINGH:   I  do Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Chairperson we have managed to get  

copies made of  pages 780 and 781 i f  I  could perhaps hand 

that  up to your? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Associate and ask her  to  put  i t  in your 

f i le.   Has Mr Singh been – Mr Singh I  th ink you have been 10 

given 780 and 81 would you not  just  put  that  into Fi le 5(b)  

please?  So those documents perhaps I  could just  take you 

to them.   There is nothing there of  any part icular interest  

because i t  is  the f i rst  two pages real ly  of  the invoice that  

concludes at  782.   You see that? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct  Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now there is some addi t ional  

documents that  I  want to take you to in relat ion to  th is t r ip.   

You f ind those documents in  Bundle 5(c)  and could I  ask you 

please to turn to page 1963.  20 

MR SINGH:   5(c)? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   1963?  1963.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1963 running through to 1971.  Are you 

there?  1963 are you there? 
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MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So that  is on the face of  i t  is  an emai l  

f rom your t ravel  agent  Ms Suleiman on the 25t h of  February 

to Ashu and i t  is cc’d to you.   

“Please see at tached ai r  t icket  for Ms Nike.”  

She did go on this t r ip wi th you as you have already said,  

correct? 

MR SINGH:   Yes Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  see cc to  him Mr Myburgh I  see cc 

to Sal im Essa.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sorry to Mr Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your pardon.   I t  is cc’d to Mr 

Essa do you see that? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You want to comment on this? 

MR SINGH:   No Mr Chai r  I  do not  want to comment on i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your pardon.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  cannot hear my cl ient  

Chairperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes speak up Mr Singh.  

MR SINGH:   Sorry Mr Chai r.   I  th ink i t  is because of  th is  

00:04:18.   Let  me do this.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You can br ing i t  c loser i f  possible.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You want to comment  on th is 
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document? 

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr – No Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So just  so that  I  understand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry did you say no? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Just  so that  we understand i t  as of  the 

25t h of  February 2015 Ms Nike was actual ly working for 

Sahara Computers,  correct? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And her boss would have been Ashu 10 

Chawla? 

MR SINGH:   I  would not… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You descr ibed him as the CEO. 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  see.   And then i f  we go to 1964,  1964 

over the page there is  an ai r  t icket  f ly ing on the 25t h of  

February return ing on the 1s t  of  March and business class,  is 

that  r ight? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So just  that  I  understand i t  is i t  your  20 

evidence that  you paid for th is t icket? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Is  i t  your evidence that  you paid for  

th is t icket? 

MR SINGH:   No.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Not .   A l r ight .   Who paid for i t?  

MR SINGH:   I  would assume Sahara Computers.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sahara Computers? 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Right .   I  see.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Why do you only assume that  i t  was 

Sahara Computers?  Were you not  t ravel l ing wi th Eva,  was 

she t ravel l ing alone? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink she arr ived a couple of  days later Mr 

Chair  i f  you look at  the date.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MR SINGH:   I  say Mr Chai r  i f  you look at  the date I  th ink she 

arr ived a couple of  days later compared to mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   She arr ived af ter you had … 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   She arr ived af ter you? 

MR SINGH:   Yes 25 when is the 25t h?  I  am not  too sure 

what the date of  my f l ight  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Maybe Mr Myburgh can remind us 

when did Mr Singh t ravel? 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  – yes the annotat ion on my 

schedule of  t r ip 5 and this is what was in … 

MR SINGH:   This is 25.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And this is what was in – what was in 

the 1006 was 25 February 1 March.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR SINGH:   Oh yes,  yes I  see that .   No I  th ink we d id then 

t ravel  together.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But… 

CHAIRPERSON:   In which case I  would image you would 

know whether she was paid for by – or you – both of  you 

were paid for by Sahara Computers? 

MR SINGH:   No that  is why I  say she was probably paid for  

Sahara because she was not  pa id ( inaudible).  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   On hersel f?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You – 

MR SINGH:   No by Sahara.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no what I  mean is are you saying 

Sahara paid for her but  not  for you – you paid for yoursel f?  

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .   Sorry I  could not  hear the last  

part .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  am asking whether you are saying 

Sahara Computers paid for Ms Nike? 20 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you paid for  yoursel f  your own t ravel  

expenses.  

MR SINGH:   That  is correct  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Myburgh.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   So this was not  a business t r ip that  Ms 

Nike was undertaking this was a personal  t r ip? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink Mr Chair  i f  I  recal l  correct ly there was 

some business associated wi th th is t r ip wi th Ms Nike that  

she was undertak ing there but  detai ls of  which I  – I  do not  

have the detai ls.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You do not  have the detai ls? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  see.   Al r ight  so let  us go to page 

1966.  So there is an emai l  in the middle of  the page f rom 10 

Sanjay Grover but  then at  the top of  the page f rom Ashu to 

Tony Gupta forward Ober io Dubai  copy of  your invoice AS 

those are your in i t ia ls,  correct? 

MR SINGH:   Could be.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  we then go over  the page one f inds 

an invoice on the face of  i t  addressed to you in the name of  

the company Sahara Computers,  correct? 

MR SINGH:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ref lects an arr ival  on the 24t h of  

February and a departure on the 1s t  of  May.   I t  ref lects at  the 20 

foot  of  the page a debi t  for the picking up of  Ms Nike,  

correct?  The foot  of  1965 the col lect ion of  her presumably 

at  the ai rport .  

MR SINGH:   196.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1967 
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MR SINGH:   1967 yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You conf i rm that? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you go 1968 is a 

cont inuat ion of  the b i l l .   We get  to 1969 another bi l l  coming 

to 18 000AED which you have told us already is some 

R60 000;00.  

MR SINGH:   And this is the same – one and the same one 

r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   This is for a di fferent  t r ip.  10 

MR SINGH:   No i t  is the same tr ip.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No but  before we get  to that  did you 

pay the b i l l  on th is t r ip Mr Singh 25 February to 1 March – 

did you pay i t?  

MR SINGH:   Yes Sir  as I  have ment ioned before.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And how did you pay i t?  

MR SINGH:   I t  was paid in cash.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And where did you get  the cash f rom? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink i t  is the same one that  we have 

covered Mr Myburgh.   Remember when I  asked him whether 20 

i t  was his idea or . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Oh I  beg your pardon.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes we – we have asked him those 

quest ions ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes Chai r.   And I  have taken you – I  
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am sorry to the credi t  card the 8816. 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And I  have showed you that  i t  is  Mr 

Grover ’s card so I  beg your pardon.   I  am not  going to tax 

you twice about i t .   And then could we p lease go to the last  

t r ip  on my l ist  and that  is the 11 to 15 June t r ip.   I t  was again 

al leged this t ime that  Mr A Gupta and Mr R Gupta were 

present  in Dubai  together wi th Mr Essa and you test i f ied that  

you paid for the t icket ,  you referred to certain discrepancies 

and invoices and you say that  you were unaware of  thei r  10 

presence in Dubai .  

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  want  to take you please to a ser ies of  

documents again in relat ion to th is f inal  t r ip.   Could we start  

by going to page 1785?   

MR SINGH:   1785.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1785.    

MR SINGH:   17? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1785.    

MR SINGH:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There you f ind a reservat ion 

conf i rmat ion in your name arr iv ing on the 13t h of  June and 

depart ing on the 15t h of  June you see that? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Again at  the top you see there is an 



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 113 of 296 
 

emai l  f rom Ashu and i t  is sent  th is t ime to Sanjay Grover.   

Reservat ion conf i rmat ion at  the Obero i  Dubai  Anoj  S ingh you 

see that? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And could I  take you in relat ion to th is 

t r ip then to page 1972.  At  1972 there is at  the top on the 

face of  i t  an emai l  f rom reservat ions on the 11t h of  June to 

Ashu.  I t  says re booking for Sahara Computers.   Dear Mr 

Chawla as per our te lecon we have duly amended the 

reservat ion for Mr Anoj  Singh as below.  And then i t  sets out  10 

that  you were in a luxury sui te,  you see that? 

MR SINGH:   Where is that? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Did you stay at  the Oberoi  Hotel… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  remember to come closer to  the mic 

when you respond Mr S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   Sorry.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id you stay again at  the Obero i  Hotel  

dur ing this June t r ip of  yours? 

MR SINGH:   Yes I  d id.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Did you stay in a luxury sui te? 20 

MR SINGH:   I  do not  recal l  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now on that  page 1972 i t  refers to 

Room 2 you see that? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry on 1 – on 17? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1972 the page that  we just  ta lk ing 
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about .  

MR SINGH:   Where is i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Under Room 02 talks about a – the lux 

ci ty room and says i t  includes breakfast  etcetera and the last  

bul let  po int  says as per  your request  we wi l l  t ry and have the 

rooms arranged near to each other.   Do you have any idea 

who that  person or other person might  have been? 

MR SINGH:   No S ir.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  we go over  the page to 1973 an 

emai l  f rom Reservat ions the previous day subject  re booking 10 

for  Sahara Computers.   Dear Mr Chawla greet ings f rom the 

Oberoi  Dubai  we have duly noted the change in departure 

date of  Mr Gupta and the reservat ion has been amended 

accordingly.   You see that? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  I  could take you p lease to 

page 1976.  So at  the foot  of  the page of  1976 we see the 

reservat ion conf i rmat ion for Anoj  Singh we have al ready 

deal t  wi th that  and the at tachment  but  I  just  want to d irect  

your at tent ion to the top of  the page where there is an emai l  20 

f rom Ashu on the 11t h of  June to Sal im Essa do you see that? 

MR SINGH:   I  see that  Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Singh just  so that  I  understand 

your posi t ion in relat ion to al l  of  these – these invoices do I  

understand you to be saying that  they are – al l  of  them are 
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not  authent ic? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct  Mr Chai r  because the quest ion 

( inaudible).  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You need to go – you going to  need to 

speak up.  

MR SINGH:  Sorry – sorry yes Si r.   We quest ioned the 

authent ic i ty of  these documents Mr Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you do so on the basis that  you 

say wel l  Gupta was not  there,  Essa was not  there,  Chawla 

did not  arrange my booking,  who arranged these bookings?  10 

We know that  you stayed at  th is  Oberoi  Hotel  – how did you 

make your bookings? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  there were somet imes made by mysel f  

or they were made by Mr Abelushi . [?]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Made by yoursel f  or other – somet imes by 

who? 

MR SINGH:   By Mr Abelushi . [?]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And just  as much as you quest ion the 

authent ic i ty of  these invoices do you have any invoices of  20 

your own? 

MR SINGH:   Not  for the per iod in quest ion but  I  th ink I  do 

have one or two invoices Mr Chai r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  not  in rela t ion to these t r ips? 

MR SINGH:   No,  no.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   So you put  your eggs… 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson before my learned 

f r iend move on just  for our own understanding I  – on page 

1876 my learned f r iend refers to an emai l  and I  have taken 

note that  there is  a lot  of  at tachments to th is emai l  can he 

just  di rect  us to where we can f ind these at tachments? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We – we have not  come across these 

at tachments.    When I  asked the invest igators and I  wi l l  take 

a further instruct ion what I  was told is that  th is is a ser ies of  

– when I  say we have not  come across them what I  was told 10 

i t  was a ser ies of  l ike market ing type – you can go to this  

restaurant  or you can go to that  restaurant .   I  wi l l  take an 

instruct ion on that  and see i f  – i f  they can be found.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  they are found Chairperson we 

wi l l  then add – add them in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes that  is f ine ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Into this bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  of  course only i f  they are relevant .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  we wi l l  share them with our 

learned f r iend and then we can make a cal l  on that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes because… 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Then a last  point  in th is regard re 
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th is part icular emai l  is an example has no reference to the 

hotel  i tse l f  – to  the Oberoi  or  the t ravel  agency that  we 

referred to ear l ier.   So I  again just  wish to conf i rm is th is 

part icular emai l  between Ashu of  Sahara and Sal im Essa is  i t  

a lso an emai l  that  came f rom the Gupta Leaks? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  th ink that  we have made that  

c lear Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  so what I  was saying just  before 

my learned f r iend made her point  is that  you real ly put  al l  10 

your eggs in the basket  of  the authent ic i ty of  – or the lack of  

authent ic i ty? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Of  these invoices is that  r ight? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct  Si r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now I  would l ike i f  I  may to go back to  

th is schedule.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   This is page… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1757.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry Mr Myburgh sorry.   I  just  want to  

make sure that  we are on the same page Mr Singh or  I  mean 

on the same page as you are.   When you chal lenged the 

authent ic i ty of  these invoices and emai ls are you saying 
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somebody must  have fabr icated these invoices and emai ls  

they are not  genuine? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct  Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and – and you – you are not  sure who 

might  –  who that  might  be or  are you saying whoever they 

purported to have come f rom must have manipulated them? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  as conf i rmed they come from the 

leaks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So we do not  exact ly know who the leaks 10 

( inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay al r ight .   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   Could I  ask you please 

to go back to page 1757 and in part icular the – the 

annotated page that  I  handed up.    

MR SINGH:   This one? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1571? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1757.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is  the Knox Vaul t  customer – 

customer vis i t  schedule Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  am get t ing confused whether  i t  is  

15 (speaking over  each other).  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sorry 17 – 1757 I  might  have got  them 
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mixed up mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay alr ight .   Okay I  have got  i t .   Oh – 

ja I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the – that  is the document we 

looked at  where you blocked.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes and I  – i f  you st i l l  have my 

annotated page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is the one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  might  be easier.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now Mr Singh you ascr ibed at  a point  

in your evidence the fact  that  you got  more and more boxes 

to the fact  that  you were going through a divorce.   Can I  just  

ask you when is i t  that  you got  divorced? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink i t  was somet ime in 2017 or 2018. 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So i t  was a long t ime – i t  was some 

years af ter those bracketed vis i ts.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson in fact  the wi tness’ 

evidence was – i t  was at  the t ime he went through a 20 

separat ion he did not  use the word divorce.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight .   No wel l  that  is fa i r  enough.   

So you were divorced in 2017 or 18? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So at  – my next  quest ion I  was going 
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to ask you was when did you leave the mari ta l  home? 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chairperson maybe at  th is point  

because there is other persons involved we should consider  

that  th is  evidence not  be publ ic ly broadcasted.   I t  is  

somebody else’s – there is a thi rd party involved who is not  

part  of  these proceedings.   There is chi ldren and this is  

pr ivate.   When you deal  wi th Chai rperson as – when i t  comes 

to mari ta l  issues that  is indeed pr ivate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the quest ion of  the dates I  do not  see 

that  i t  should be a problem. The date when she – he lef t  the 10 

mari ta l  home.  I  do not  th ink that  – should be a problem.  

Okay you can answer that  Mr Singh.  

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  – exact ly recal l  but  as I  said i t  was the 

process of  separat ion of  a per iod or as i t  – as you can see 

extended period.   But  I  do not  recal l  exact ly when that  date 

would have been.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  in what year? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  do not  know. 

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  remember the year ei ther.  

MR SINGH:   No.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i f  you say that  then i t  looks l ike then 

you would not  be able to  rely on that  to say dur ing one of  

these visi ts you – you used – you may have gone to Knox 

Vaul t  to  put  in some personal  i tems because you were 
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leaving the mari ta l  home because that  suggests you know 

when i t  was and i t  would coincide wi th th is per iod.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chai r  when I  responded at  the t ime I  

said I  – i t  would have coincided wi th th is per iod – wi th th is  

t iming.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  when you say that  you are giving 

the impression that  you know that  you lef t  the mari ta l  home 

around this t ime.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  based on what you have just  said i t  10 

looks l ike you have no idea even which year.  

MR SINGH:   I  seem to recal l  i t  was in th is per iod of  t ime so 

i t  wi l l  probably have been in 2014 i f  I  am pushed to give a 

year.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no,  no you are not  being  pushed to 

say one or another you just  need to give your evidence 

t ruthful ly as you  -  as you know i t .  

MR SINGH:   As I  would recal l  i t  Mr Chai r  to the best  of  my 

abi l i ty i t  would be around 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   My Myburgh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   So i t  is around 2014.  So what  

I  just  wanted to ask you is how your  evidence in relat ion to  

Knox Vaul ts started is by me saying to you but  why do you 

store valuables at  Knox Vaul t  and your answer is wel l  th is i s  

a cr ime r idden country and as a fami ly we decided that  these 
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valuable i tems must be stored at  Knox Vaul ts.   Now your 

evidence seems to progress when you show and wel l  you 

taking a large box – two more large boxes then another  large 

box then an extra extra large box.  Then i t  progresses to wel l  

I  am going – I  wi l l  get  my language r ight  through a process 

of  separat ion and I  am actual ly stor ing my personal  affects 

there not  my valuables.   Is that  correct?  Do I  have your 

evidence correct? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So the whole purpose of  Knox Vaul ts at  10 

the end was to store your personal  affect  that  is what you 

ascr ibe the increase in the boxes? 

MR SINGH:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  yet  when I  asked you at  the 

beginning what you use Knox Vaul ts for you did not  say 

anything of  th is sort .   I t  is only when you confronted wi th  

how you incremental ly increase your holding of  these boxes 

that  you then – you value i t  why? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  as I  explained to you before Mr Chair  I  

th ink or ig inal ly I  d id not  real ly recal l  the number of  boxes 20 

that  I  had there.   I  d id  cover the aspect  of  saying in some 

cases personal  effects were stored.   Maybe as I  explained 

the extent  and – the extent  to which and the – as I  – as I  

explained the measure and extent  that  has now been 

explained to me this is when I  now real ised that  th is  is what 
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was happening at  the t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Singh in 2014 when you lef t  the 

mari ta l  home where did you go to l ive? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  was l iv ing wi th Ms Nike at  the t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So why did you then not  just  leave 

your non-valuable personal  effects at  her house?  Why did 

you have to p lace your non-valuable personal  effects at  Knox 

Vaul ts?  I  mean did you… 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  at  the t ime Ms Nike had a relat ively 

smal l  apartment and so i t  was not  pract ical  to store i tems 10 

there.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sorry.   Mr S ingh we talk ing about f ive 

– f ive boxes you do not  need a t r ip le garage and a gol f  cart  

to store those.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson I  am going to  object .   

I t  is unnecessary to get  sarcast ic wi th the wi tness.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  wi l l  – let  me rephrase my 

quest ions.   You do not  need a lot  of  storage space wi thin a 

house to store that  do you?  I  mean you must  accept  that? 

MR SINGH :    Equa l ly  so  Mr  Cha i r  and equa l l y  so  is  tha t  the  20 

cho ice  o f  me s tor ing  my persona l  e f fec ts  tha t  was s t i l l  

sub jec t  to  a  separa t ion  in  an  env i ronment  tha t  was not  – 

le t  us  say an  env i ronment  where  Ms N ike  was.   I t  was a lso  

a  cho ice  I  had to  make a t  the  t ime,  g iven the  

c i rcumstances.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  Mr  S ingh,  what  a re  we ta lk ing  

about  here ,  pe rsona l  e f fec ts?   What  persona l  e f fec ts?   

Look,  you have excepted tha t  they  are  no t  va luab le .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  they  may have been va luab le  fo r  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  who –  what  pe rsona l  e f fec ts  

were  they?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    We wou ld  –  sor ry,  Cha i rperson.   

Le t  the  w i tness answer.   I t  does not  he lp  to  in te r rup t  h im 

when he is  busy g iv ing  an  answer.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Answer  Mr  S ingh .  10 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  there  were  va r ious i tems o f  

documents ,  persona l  e f fec ts ,  l i ke ,  you know,  computers ,  

rad ios .   I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  there  was an ant ique  –  how 

can you ca l l  i t  –  a  box o f  sor ts  tha t  I  needed to  s to re  in  

there .   So they were  rea l l y  persona l  e f fec ts  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  I  

s to red  in  there  and documents  as  I  sa id  be fore ,  f rom what  I  

can reca l l .   I  do  no t  reca l l  pa r t i cu la r ly,  a t  th is  s tage,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So you accept  these are  no t  20 

va luab le  th ings?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  Mr  S ingh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  no ,  yes  in  th is  case?  When you say  

no ,  you mean yes? 
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MR SINGH :    [ laughs]   Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Yes?  You mean yes?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you have,  i t  seems a  few boxes 

o f  no t  va luab le  persona l  e f fec ts .   What  you sugges t ing  you  

do,  you go o f f  to  Knox Vau l t  and then a t  the  cost  o f  –  i t  

was,  I  th ink  we agreed,  R 10 000 ,00 a  year  you h i re  an  

ex t ra  ex t ra - la rge  box to  pu t  in  these non-va luab le  goods.    

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And when I  f i rs t  you ask  what  you 10 

used i t  fo r,  you accept ,  you never  ment ioned th is  a t  a l l .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ye t ,  i t  now becomes your  case as  to  

p redominant ly  what  was be ing  s to red in  the  boxes.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   When you went  on  these t r ips  

to  Duba i  tha t  you s ty le  as  persona l  o r  p r iva te .   D id  you 

ever  meet  anybody f rom SCR in  Duba i?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  have a l ready ment ioned 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   That  answer  was no?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR SINGH :    So  when you say CSR,  Ch ina  Serv i ces  

Ra i lways,  I  assume? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .d id  you  meet  anyone f rom any 

ra i lway company in  Duba i?  

MR SINGH :    Except  –  Transnet ,  no .   No ways.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH :    No o ther  compan ies .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You sa id  someth ing  about  Transnet?  10 

MR SINGH :    I  thought  I  wou ld  say no  ra i lway compan ies  

tha t  t raded w i th  Transnet  bu t  I  d id  no t  meet  any ra i lway 

compan ies  a t  a l l .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you have sa id  tha t  you  d id  no t  

meet  any o f  the  Gupta  bro thers?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you d id  no t  meet  Mr  Essa?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you d id  no t  meet  Mr  Chawla?  

MR SINGH :    No.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now jus t  on  tha t ,  I  mean be ing  

Ms N ike ’s  boss.   P resumably  you knew th is  man? 

MR SINGH :    As  I  sa id ,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH :    As  I  sa id  I  d id  no t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  d id  you meet  h im? 

MR SINGH :    A t  the  Gupta  res idence,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You met  h im a t  the  Gupta  res idence?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Dur ing  these cu l tu ra l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .o r  re l ig ious funct ions?  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Who e lse  d id  you meet  there? 

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  I  a l ready tes t i f ied  be fo re ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I t  10 

was the  Gupta  fami ly  members .   I  do  no t  reca l l  meet ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  i t  has  been ex tended  here  to  

Mr  Chawla .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  he was par t  o f  the  Sahara?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  o ther  bus inesspeop le  l inked to  

the  Gupta ’s  d id  you meet  there?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  reca l l  spec i f i ca l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  meet ing  20 

any o the r  bus inesspeop le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You d id  no t  meet  Mr  Essa?  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You d id  no t  meet  Mr  Essa?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  these D iwa l i  func t ions –  and you 

must  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong.   I  mean,  i t  seems to  be  a  

very  impor tan t  day on  the  re l ig ious  ca lendar.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  I  unders tand cor rec t l y.   When  

you inv i te  someone to  ce lebra te  D iwa l i  w i th  you,  wou ld  you  

typ ica l l y  inv i te  those peop le  tha t  a re  impor tan t  and c lose  to  

you or  wou ld  i t  be  an  a l l  come s i tua t ion?  

MR SINGH :    I t  depends,  s i r.   In  my case,  i t  i s  re la t i ve ly  a  

persona l  a f fa i rs  and i t  i s  rea l l y  very  c lose  fami ly  members  10 

on ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  you went  to  ce leb ra te  D iwa l i  w i th  

the  Guptas?  

MR SINGH :    No ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  sa id  tha t  I  a t tended  var ious 

re l ig ious funct ions a t  the i r  house.   I  d id  no t  spec i f i ca l l y  

ment ion  the  D iwa l i  func t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  you d id .    

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  how I  come to  ask  you about  

i t .    20 

MR SINGH :    In  th is  f i l e?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You can have a  look  a t  the  

t ranscr ip t .   But  so  are  you now say ing  and perhaps  I  have  

i t  wrong,  you might  have re fer r ing  to  some o the r  re l ig ious  

funct ion .   A re  you now say ing  you d id  no t  go  to  ce leb ra te  
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D iwa l i  w i th  the  Guptas?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  may a t tended one or  two o f  them.   

Maybe one.   But  I  do  no t ,  o f f -hand,  reca l l  a t tend ing  a  

D iwa l i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  were  the  cu l tu ra l  even ts  tha t  

you went  there  fo r?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  the  H indu ca lendar.   

The H indu ca lendar  has many –  I  mean fo r  example  now,  

we are  in  a  per iod  o f  what  i s  ca l led  Ram Navami  wh ich  is  

re l ig ious funct ion  tha t  requ i res  you to  observe  a  n ine-day 10 

per iod  and th is  wou ld  no rmal l y  e i ther  come in  the  

beg inn ing  o f  a  p lay  o r  end ing  o f  a  p lay  dur ing  th is  n ine-day  

per iod .   So i f  you  look a t  the  re l ig ious ca lendar  there  are  

number  o f  these re l ig ious . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  ment ion  maybe th ree  or  four  fo r  me.  

MR SINGH :    But  as  I  sa id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The names.  

MR SINGH :    As  I  sa id  there  is  Ram Navami  now.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    There  is  Saraswath i ,  there  is  D iwa l i ,  as  20 

ment ioned,  aga in  there  is  another  Saraswath i (? )  wh ich  is  

la te r  in  the  year.   So,  yes ,  there  is  a  number  o f  days Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess,  maybe fo r  those who are  no t  

H indu maybe to  h igh l igh t  the  most  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    The  most  popu la r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . .we l l -known.  

MR SINGH :    The  most  we l l - known,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  apar t  f rom not  ment ion ing . . .   

When I  asked you about  these,  you sa id :   Wel l ,  the  ones  

tha t  come to  m ind is  obv ious l y  the  D iwa l i  func t ion .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  when you asked ,  I  answered genera l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  and you see,  because I  

have been ask ing  you about :   Do  you not  jus t  inv i te  your  

nearest  and dearest  to  D iwa l i?   And you then suggested,  10 

we l l ,  you  d id  no t  go  to  D iwa l i  a t  the  Guptas  bu t  you d id ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    I  am t ry ing  to  reca l l ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You sa id  –  I  asked what  the  

funct ions i t  were?  You sa id :   Wel l ,  the  funct ions tha t  

comes to  m ind is  obv ious ly  the  D iwa l i  func t ions.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  you asked what  were  those re l ig ious – 

what  were  the  re l ig ious funct ions and I  sa id  one o f  the  

obv ious ones was D iwa l i .   I  d id  no t  say  I  a t tended the  

D iwa l i  func t ion .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  i s  my learned 

f r iend re fe r r ing  to  the  t ranscr ip t s ,  so  tha t  we can jus t  have  

a  look a t  the  re levant  pages.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . le t  me read the  fu l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    He does not  need to  read the  

fu l l ,  he  can jus t  re fe r  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  ac tua l l y  want  to  read the  fu l l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  maybe you must  s ta r t  by  exp la in ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  a t  page 2012 o f  the  t ranscr ip t  o f  

12  March 2021,  Day 360.  10 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  wh i le  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  s ta r t ,  p lease?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   Mr  S ingh,  oh  some wate r.   

Wi l l  somebody p lease g i ve  Mr  S ingh some wate r?    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  what  we –  I  was go ing  to  read  

f rom the  foo t  o f  page 24.  

“Mr  Myburgh:   And wh ich  members  o f  the  

Gupta  fami ly  wou ld  you in te rac t  w i th  on  these 

occas ions tha t  you a t tended the  Saxonwold  

res idence?  20 

Mr  S ingh:   Mr  Cha i r,  re l ig ious funct ions were  

a t tended by  a  number  o f  peop le  and th is  i s  

normal ly  the  case.   So I  had occas ion  to  meet  

Mr  A tho l  Gupta ,  Mr  Ra jesh Gupta ,  Mr  AJ Gupta  

as  we l l .  
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Mr  Myburgh:   Le t  me tu rn  ra the r  –  perhaps I  

cou ld  jus t  ask  you.   These  cu l tu ra l  and 

re l ig ious funct ions tha t  you a t tended,  d id  they 

typ ica l l y  a f te r  hours  or  on  the  weekends?  

Obv ious ly,  on  any  par t i cu la r  re l ig ious day.  

Mr  S ingh:   Wel l ,  the  ones tha t  come to  m ind is  

obv ious ly  the  D iwa l i  func t ions and the  D iwa l i  

func t ion  were  depend ing  on when the  occas ion  

o f  D iwa l i  wou ld  fa l l  in  the . . .  [And so  i t  goes  

on. ]  10 

Mr  Myburgh:   A l r igh t .   D id  you have occas ion  

to  v is i t  Sahara  Computers? . . . ”  

 So tha t  was the  quest ion  around D iwa l i .   I  jus t  

want  to  ge t  i t  c lear  f rom you.   D id  you go to  the  Guptas  

and ce lebra ted  D iwa l i  w i th  them,  yes o r  no?  

MR SINGH :    Look,  th is  i s  my response.   I  do  no t  reca l l  

go ing  bu t  maybe I  d id .   I  do  no t  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And f rom your  own perspect ive .   You 

have a  sense tha t  the  Guptas  inv i ted  those peop le  c lose  to  

them to  these funct ions or  d id  they adopt  an  a l l  come 20 

approach?  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r,  fo r  the  ones I  a t tended,  as  I  

exp la ined prev ious ly,  there  were  a  number  o f  peop le  tha t  

a t tended.   How and who and how they se lec ted  peop le  to  

be  inv i ted ,  I  wou ld  no t  know tha t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    And wou ld  my unders tand ing  be  

cor rec t  and p lease te l l  me i f  I  am wrong.   I f  you  ce lebra te  

D iwa l i  and in  th is  ins tance w i th  the  Guptas ,  then you are  

no t  ce lebra t ing  i t  w i th  your  own peop le  and fami ly,  i s  that  

r igh t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  in  these  ins tances when you went  

to  the  Guptas ,  you cho ice  to  go  and ce leb ra te  D iwa l i  w i th  

the  Guptas  ins tead o f  you r  own fami ly,  ins tead o f  those 

nearest  and dearest  to  you.  10 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  hence I  am say ing  Mr  Cha i r  bu t  I  do  no t  

reca l l  a t tend ing  a  D iwa l i  func t ion  a t  the  Guptas  because 

my –  as  I  have tes t i f ied ,  in  my case I  ce lebra ted  w i th  my 

nearest  and c losest  fami ly  as  opposed to  do ing  i t ,  you  

know,  w i th  le t  us  say o ther  peop le  tha t  I  am not  as  c lose  to  

as  my immedia te  fami ly.    

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  your  exper ience,  genera l l y  

speak ing?  I s  t ha t  when peop le  ce leb ra te  D iwa l i ,  they  

ce lebra te  them w i th  fami ly  and those c lose  to  them or  i s  i t  

tha t  they ce leb ra te  them wi th  whoever  comes in?   You 20 

know,  in  my cu l tu re ,  fo r  example ,  i f  there  i s  a  wedd ing  or  

someth ing  and you have s laughtered a  cow you  do not  

i ssue inv i tes  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You know.   Even a  s t range  who is  
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wa lk ing  passed,  i f  they  see tha t  there  i s  a  wedd ing ,  there  

must  be  food,  there  must  be  meat .   They take  a  de tour  and  

they come in to  your  house.  

MR SINGH :    [ laughs;  

CHAIRPERSON :    Nobody asked them:   Who inv i ted  you?   

Who are  you?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   And the  idea is ,  everyone who 

comes must  be  g iven food and i f  anybody leaves  w i thout  

be ing  o f fe red  food,  tha t  i s  someth ing  very  bad.  10 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  in  tha t  se tup  tha t  I  am ta lk ing  about ,  

anybody can come.   So w i th  the  D iwa l i ,  what  i s  your  

exper ience?  I s  i t  tha t  peop le  ce lebra te  them wi th  fami ly  

and those who are  c lose  to  them or  i s  i t  tha t  anybody tha t  

can come? 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  i t  depends.   Cer ta in ly  in  

my case,  i t  wou ld  be  those c losest  to  me,  whethe r  i t  i s  in  

the  ne ighbourhood a t  the  t ime because i t  i s  charac ter ised 

by  exchang ing  o f  you know eats  and those type o f  th ings.   20 

So wherever  you are  ac tua l l y  dur ing  tha t  t ime you ac tua l l y  

v is i t  peop le  as  we l l .    

 So i f  you  have acqua in tances,  you probab ly  go  

and exchange,  you know,  these eats  w i th  them.   They w i l l  

come to  you or  you wou ld  go  to  them.   The ne ighbours  
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wou ld  –  i f  you  had d inner,  the  ne ighbour  may jo in  you or  

you may jo in  the  ne ighbour  because as  you know tha t  

D iwa l i  in  the  even ing  there  is  f i rework  and s tu f f  l i ke  tha t  

and then i t  becomes more  o f  a  communal  t ype o f  th ing  w i th  

the  k ids  and everybody e lse .   So tha t  i s  p robab ly  what  my  

exper ience is .    

 Bu t  I  am not  too  sure  what  the  se tup  a t  the  

Guptas  is  fo r  example  because I  do  no t  th ink  I  cou ld  jus t  

p i t ch  up  there  and jus t  a r r i ve  and say I  am here  and I  want  

to  par t i c ipa te  in  the  D iwa l i  fes t i va l s ,  fo r  example .   Because  10 

they a re ,  I  wou ld  assume,  you w i l l  have to  –  l i ke  I  have  

been inv i ted .   So I  go  when I  am inv i ted .    

CHAIRPERSON :    S ince you d id  a t tend on your  vers ion  

var ious cu l tu ra l  events  or  funct ions a t  the  Gupta  res idence.   

Do you know o f  any reason why you might  have not  

a t tended D iwa l i?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  because o f  my pre fe rence to  

ce lebra te  i t  w i th  my c losest  as  you wou ld  say fami l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So  i t  i s  a  spec ia l  day.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So  we ded ica te  i t  to  the . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   The o ther  cu l tu ra l  events  wou ld  

no t  be  events  or  to  ce leb ra te  w i th  fami ly  those c losest  to  

you.  
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MR SINGH :    Not  necessar i l y  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.    

MR SINGH :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So Mr  S ingh,  jus t  to  fo l low on those  

quest ions.   What  I  jus t  want  to  ask  you is .   I  do  no t  fo l low 

you why the  Gupta ’s  inv i ted  you to  these events  because i t  

i s  you r  ev idence and you must  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  i s  

tha t  you never  went  to  the  Guptas ,  o ther  than when you  

were  inv i ted  to  re l ig ious or  cu l tu ra l  events .   You d id  no t  10 

in te rac t  w i th  them a t  a l l .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  wou ld  have caused them then 

jus t  to  inv i te  you?  You have noth ing  to  do  w i th  them but  

when a  re l ig ious or  cu l tu ra l  event  came up,  you a re  on  the  

guest  l i s t .   How d id  tha t  happen? 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  my lea rned f r iend  

might  fo rge t  the  ev idence o f  the  w i tness was tha t  he  d id  in  

fac t  meet  them a t  the  TNA b reakfas ts .   That  i s  how he got  

to  know them.    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    So ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  mean ,  equa l ly  so .   I t  cou ld  be  

asked why d id  the  Guptas  inv i te  me to  the  wedd ing?  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  what?  

MR SINGH :    You know,  to  the  Sun C i ty  wedd ing ,  fo r  
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example .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    I  do  no t  know why he inv i tes  me to  the  Sun  

C i ty  wedd ing  but  I  d id  no t  a t tend .   So I  guess the  same 

cou ld  be  asked.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  d id  they inv i te  you  to  the  

wedd ing?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  I  thought  they d id  no t  inv i te  you  

to  the  wedd ing .  10 

MR SINGH :    No,  I  sa id  they d id  bu t  I  d id  no t  a t tend.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you,  as  you have sa id ,  you 

cannot  exp la in  why they wou ld  have inv i ted  you  to  the  

wedd ing?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you cannot  rea l l y  exp la in ,  

cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  why they inv i ted  you to  these  

re l ig ious and cu l tu ra l  events?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  they  a re  o f  H indu descent .   I  am o f  

H indu descent  as  I  have exp la ined befo re  or  jus t  r igh t  20 

be fore .   I  go t  to  know them through  the  TNA breakfas ts  and  

tha t  i s  how the  re la t ionsh ip  grew.   And you wou ld  normal ly  

inv i te  peop le  o f  s im i la r  cu l tu re  to  these re l ig ious events .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  d id  you end  up be ing  c lose  to  them,  

the  Guptas?  
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MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  we need to  de f ine  

c lose.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you –  I  th ink  you d id  ind ica te  about  

how many t imes you might  have gone there .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id  about  ten  or  e leven 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .o r  twe lve  t imes or  whatever.   Over  

what  per iod ,  do  you remember?  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  tha t  was about  over  an  th ree  or  four  

year  pe r iod .  

CHAIRPERSON :    About  th ree  or  four  year  per iod  wh ich  

m ight  mean you wou ld  have gone  there  on  average about  

th ree  t imes a  year  o r  so .   Wel l ,  tha t  does not  s t r i ke  me as 

peop le  tha t  you are  un fami l ia r  w i th .   Maybe tha t  i s  the  way  

to  pu t  i t .  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  ag ree,  s i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you v i s i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Yes,  I  wou ld  v is i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . them for  th ree  t imes a  year.   How far  

d id  you l i ve  f rom where  they were?   How far  were  you? 

MR SINGH :    Ja ,  we l l ,  I  guess f rom – I  l i ve  in  Wendywood  
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Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   And what  k ind  o f  t ime in  te rms o f  

d is tance . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  say i t  i s  p robab ly  no t  more  than 20 –  

30-minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   So You say tha t  you L i f t  

a  mar i ta l  home In  about  2014.   You went  to  s tay  w i th  

Ms Na idoo.   She,  we know -  we w i l l  come to  the  da tes  in  a  

moment ,  bu t  in  2015,  She is  employed a t  Sahara  10 

Computers .   You have accepted tha t .  So was tha t  the  t ime 

where  th rough your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  her  you s ta r ted  to  

in te rac t  more  w i th  the  Guptas ,  You s tar ted  to  in te rac t  

Mr  Chawla .    

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  you never  go  ou t  to  d inner  fo r  

example  w i th  someone f rom Sahara  Computers?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And go a long w i th  Ms N ike?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  perhaps  I  can jus t  dea l  w i th  tha t .   

you gave ev idence and you d id  say da tes  were  no t  your  

th ing .   you see tha t  she was emp loyed there  in  2013 or  in  

2014 and tha t  she le f t  in  2015.   you see i t  a  year  and a  

ha l f  o r  two.   bu t  f rom what  we have been ab le  to  de termine 
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i t  seems tha t  Ms  N ike ,  in  fac t ,  commenced employment  a t  

Sahara  on  the  1s t  o f  January  2015 or  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  

January  2015.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  be fore  the  w i tness  

answers .   can my learned f r iend maybe she few re levant  

documenta t ion  w i th  us  tha t  they ob ta ined so  tha t  we can  

have a  look a t  i t  ourse l ves?  I t  was not  d isc losed to  us,  i t  

was not  ma i led  to  us.   We wou ld  l i ke  to  have a  look a t  i t  

be fore  he  cont inues w i th  th is  l ine  o f  quest ion ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am abso lu te ly  happy to  do  tha t  i f  i t  10 

is  in  d ispute .   I 'm  re fer r ing  to  her  L inkedIn  pro f i le  wh ich  

was shown by one o f  the  invest iga tors  yesterday.   I  mean,  I  

do  no t  know i f  th is  i s  a  b ig  i ssue.   I  mean,  I  am not  

suggest ing  -  I  am not  t ry ing  to  c r i t i c i se  you fo r  no t  ge t t ing  

the  da tes  spot  on  bu t  I  am -  we  can jus t  dea l  w i th  th is  

i ssue.    

 Does the  da te  accord  now wi th  your  reco l lec t ion  

tha t  she s ta r ted  there  in  January  2015?  what  I  have a l so  

seen and I  can p roduce i f  you want  i s  her  res ignat ion  f rom 

Transnet .   She res igned,  I  th ink  i t  was . . . [ in te rvenes ]   20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  the  same s i tua t ion  

goes,  w i th  respect ,  to  the  res igna t ion .   We have not  been 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You w i l l  ge t  Ms Van den Heever,  you w i l l  

ge t  i t .   But  Mr  Myburgh can ask  h im in  the  meant ime and 
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Mr  scene can answer  what  do  nurs ing  bu t  he  doesn ' t  know.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  I . . .   Ja ,  I  do  no t  know 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat  the  quest ion .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i t  needs to  be  

content ious.   Le t  me te l l  you  wha t  I  have seen and I  am 

happy -  o f  course  I  w i l l  p rov ide  you w i th  the  

documenta t ion .   what  I  was showing yesterday and  my re  

co l lec t ion  is  no t  necessar i l y  -  bu t  I  was shown a  l e t te r  o f  

res ignat ion  by  Ms  N ike  f rom Transnet .    10 

 I  th ink  i t  was -  she res igned on the  

3 r d  o f  November  and she spoke about  g iv ing  a  months ’ 

no t ice  and I  th ink  she says in  a  le t te r  tha t  wou ld  exp i re  on  

the  4 t h  o f  December.   And I  thought  tha t  i s  in te res t ing  

because i t  wasn ' t  a  ca lendar  months ’ no t ice .   and then I  

was shown the  L inkedIn  p ro f i le  wh ich  re f lec ts . . .  

 I  am assuming i t  i s  s t i l l  the  cur ren t  one oh i t  

m igh t  be  a  h is to r ic  one tha t  re f lec ts  tha t  she s ta r ted  a t  

Sahara  Computers  –  cer ta in l y  -  I  am not  sure  i f  i t  sa id  the  

1 s t  o f  January  bu t  i t  sa id  January  2015.   Do you want  to  20 

comment  on  tha t  o r  you can say no th ing  un t i l  I  show you  

the  documents .   

MR SINGH :    No,  no  I  -  I f  i t  i s  a  document  then  i t  i s  a  

document .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    does tha t  acco rd  go  w i th  your  
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reco l lec t ion?  

MR SINGH :    I f  i t  i s  documented then yes I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   And when d id  she leave 

because I  suppose now I  need to  ad jus t  th ings assuming 

tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  when d id  she then leave Sahara  

Computers?   Would  tha t  have been a  year  and a  ha l f  two  

years  f rom then?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  th ink  probab ly  a round tha t  t ime,  yes .   

I t  wou ld  then be around 2017.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A round?  10 

MR SINGH :    A round 2017,  tha t  wou ld  be .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  2017.   So a t  the  t ime tha t  you 

worked fo r  Eskom for  example ,  she was then work ing  a t  

Sahara  Compute rs?   

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And he r  boss a t  Sahara  Compute rs ,  

who was tha t?   

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  i t  wou ld  have been Mr  Chawla .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  i t  wou ld  have been Mr  Chawla .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    and d id  she work  together  w i th  the  

Gupta  bro thers?   

MR SINGH :    I  am assuming to  the  ex ten t  tha t  she  needed 

to .   I  wou ld  assume so .   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR SINGH :    I  sa id  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  she wou ld  needed to .   

I  wou ld  assume tha t  you wou ld  have.   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh,  Jus t  tu rn ing  to  a  d i f fe ren t  

top ic .   I  am in fo rmed tha t  rea l l y  a t  the  ou tse t  o f  the 

Commiss ion ’s  work ,  there  was a  t ime where  you in tended  

to  coopera te  w i th  the  Commiss ion  and you in  fac t  

vo lun tee red and  a f f idav i t  wh ich  was shown to  some 

invest iga to rs  and  I  th ink  some members  o f  the  Lega l  Team 

on a  sor t  o f  a  show and te l l  bas i s .   do  you reca l l  tha t?   10 

MR SINGH :    Mr.  Cha i r,  th is  was sub jec t  to  a conf ident ia l  

lega l  and pr i v i leged process tha t  we have under taken and 

I 'm  not  too  su re  why th is  i s  be ing  brought  up  now.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  what  I  want  to  f ind  ou t  i s  why 

d id  you w i thdraw your  coopera t ion?  

MR SINGH :    I t  was aga in  based  on lega l  adv ice  A t  the 

t ime wh ich  was  lega l l y  p r iv i leged and we dec ided to  

d iscont inue the  engagement  w i th  the  Commiss ion .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you s t i l l  have tha t  a f f idav i t?   

MR SINGH :    No.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  how can you say tha t  w i th  such  

cer ta in ty?   

MR SINGH :    Because I  don ' t  th ink  we ever  p roduced and 

a f f idav i t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   And who where  your  a t to rneys 
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a t  the  t ime?  

MR SINGH :    Thomson Wi l ks(?) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH :    Thomson Wi l ks .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    How d id  Ms N ike ’s  employment  w i th  

Sahara  come about?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  wou ld  th is  no t  be  

the  k ind  o f  quest i ons tha t  shou ld  be  d i rec ted  a t  her?   Wi th 

the  greates t  o f  respect ,  why must  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Ms Van den Heever.   Mr  S ingh  

might  know because there  is  a  vers ion  tha t  he  had a  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas ,  a  cer ta in  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

Guptas .   Of  course ,  he  has a  cer ta in  vers ion .   But  i t  i s  a  

leg i t imate  quest ion .   Do you know i t  happened Mr  S ingh? 

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r  she had accompanied  me to  

one o f  the  funct ions and she had got  chat t ing  to  the  peop le  

tha t  were  the re  and she had expressed an in te res t  in  –  he r  

a rea  o f  exper t i se  was p ro jec t  management  in  IT.   So I  

guess tha t  was the  ca ta lys t  o f  tha t  bu t  fu r ther  than tha t ,  20 

Mr  Cha i r,  I  am no t  too  sure .    

CHAIRPERSON :    She had accompanied you when you had 

gone . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    On one o f  the  occas ions.   

CHAIRPERSON :    On one o f  the  occas ions?  
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MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   And the re  she had  spoken  

to  one o f  the  Gup ta  peop le?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  assume so  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   I  want  to  move now to  a  

d i f fe ren t  top i c  and tha t  re la tes  to  your  FNB sa lary  account .   

Cou ld  you p lease  go to  Bund le  5(c ) ,  page 1568? 

MR SINGH :    15 . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    1568,  Mr  Myburgh?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    1568.   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  maybe  th is  i s  an  

oppor tune moment  be fore  my learned f r iend s ta r ts  w i th  th is  

l ine  o f  quest ions.   I  d id  approach h im th i s  morn ing  

per ta in ing  to  th i s  par t i cu la r  i ssue and maybe th is  a rgument  

shou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  i n  camera  because i t  re la tes  to  an 

issue tha t  we say  is  an  i n f r ingement  o f  our  c l ien t ’s  r igh t  to  

p r ivacy  under  the  Const i tu t ion  and there  is  a  number  o f  

i ssues we wou ld  l i ke  to  ra ise  in  tha t  regard .   I  was  hop ing  20 

tha t  I  cou ld  sor t  th is  ou t  w i th  my learned f r iend i n te r  par tes  

bu t  seeming ly  he  has dec ided to  go  ahead and I  wou ld  l i ke  

to  be  o f fe r  the  oppor tun i ty  to  make ce r ta in  submiss ions to  

you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You want  to  app ly  fo r  the  ev idence  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 146 of 296 
 

re la t ing  to  h is  bank accounts  to  be  he ld  i n  camera? 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    No,  Cha i rperson.   I  want  to  

make cer ta in  submiss ions to  you but  because o f  the 

content  o f  what  my learned f r iend is  to  pu t ,  I  th ink  tha t  

shou ld  be  i n  camera .   We a re  ob jec t ing  to  h im  be ing  

quest ioned on h is  p r iva te  bank account  de ta i l s .   We – I  

have to ld  my learned f r i end th is  morn ing  a l ready.   I  ob jec t  

to  i t  be  inc luded in  the  bund les .    

 He was never  in fo rmed o f  the  fac t  tha t  h is  bank 

records are  be ing  subpoenaed.   I  do  no t  be l ieve  there  i s  a  10 

lawfu l  bas i s  fo r  i t  be  subpoenaed.   There  is  no  a l legat ions  

tha t  there  was anyth ing  co r rup t ,  un toward  per ta in ing  to  

these bank s ta tements .   And fo r  the  invest iga tors  o r  

whoever  to  have subpoenaed th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay do not  make your  submiss ions 

now.   We are  go ing  to  take  an ad journment  a t  four  as  we 

normal ly  do .   Maybe shou ld  take  i t  now a  ten  m inutes  

ad journment  and  then when I  come back I  w i l l  hear  what  

you have to  say  and I  w i l l  hear  what  Mr  Myburgh  has to  

say.   We ad journ .  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    . . .p roposed  to  my learned f r iend.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe you can  jus t  ad jus t  you r  m ic ,  i t  

seems to  –  ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   I  have proposed to  my  learned 

f r iend tha t  one way o f  eventua l l y  reso lv ing  th is  i ssue is  

tha t  one might  remove the  bank  accounts  or  s ta tements  

and then jus t  dea l  w i th  the  mat te r  on  the  bas is  o f  Fundudz i  

repor t ,  Mr  Ben jamin ’s  a f f idav i t  and an Exce l  spreadsheet  

tha t  i s  a t tached.   I  unders tand tha t  tha t  i s  no t  acceptab le  

to  them.   So i t  does not  seem tha t  we can reso lve  th is  

impasse and …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i f  the  impasse is  no t  reso lved,  i f  I  

am asked to  make a  ru l ing ,  I  w i l l  make a  ru l ing .   The 10 

Commiss ion  is  invo l ved in  an  invest iga t ion  o f  g rea t  pub l i c  

in te res t  where  there  are  a l legat ions o f  co r rup t ion ,  there  

are  a l legat ions o f  cer ta in  peop le  hav ing  g iven  cer ta in  

peop le  money,  somet imes la rge  amounts  o f  money  in  o rder  

to  do  wrong th ings and the re  is  taxpayers ’ money invo lved,  

so  i f  I  have to  make a  ru l ing ,  I  w i l l  make a  ru l ing .   I  accept  

tha t  there  can be  issues o f  p r ivacy  and so  on  but  i f  I  have  

to  l i s ten  to  a rgument  I  w i l l  hear  a rgument  and make a  

ru l ing  bu t  we cannot  spend too  much t ime and not  

p roceed ing  w i th  the  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  20 

 Obv ious l y  th ings can be sor ted  ou t  tha t  i s  re levant ,  

somet imes th ings  cannot  be  so r ted  ou t  and when you are  

invo l ved in  someth ing  tha t  invo l ves pub l i c  in te res t  and 

pub l i c  money,  no t  every  so lu t ion  is  -  you know,  a  so lu t ion  

has go t  to  be  based a lso  on  an apprec ia t ion  tha t  a re  no t  
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jus t  i ssues o f  p r ivacy  they are  a lso  issues o f  pub l i c  

in te res t .  

 So i f  you  are  happy to  dea l  w i th  the  mat te r  in  the  

way you say you  were  propos ing  to  them,  a t  leas t  fo r  now 

maybe wh i le  the re  is  a  re f lec t ion  on  the  i ssue o f  bank 

s ta tements  then we cou ld  do  tha t  bu t  i t  may we l l  be  a t  the 

end tha t  the  issue tha t  needs to  be  conf ron ted might  have 

to  be  conf ron ted  but  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  i t  w i l l  no t  be  

necessary  to  conf ron t  i t .    

 So  but  i f  they  have an ob jec t ion  to  you even  10 

dea l ing  w i th  i t  in  th is  way,  you might  have to  see whethe r  

you –  I  shou ld  make a  ru l ing  whether  you can dea l  w i th  i t  

in  tha t  way fo r  now wi thout  necessar i l y  mak ing  a  ru l ing  on  

whethe r  you cannot  use the  f i rs t  approach you in tended to  

use,  so  –  bu t  I  do  no t  know what  you propose to  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  perhaps I  shou ld  hear  f rom my 

learned f r iend.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    She seems to  have an  overa l l  20 

ob jec t ion .   I  hope I  am characte r is ing  the  pos i t ion  

cor rec t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And want  to  see the  subpoenas 

before  she dec ides what  her  c l ien t  shou ld  do .   Jus t  to  
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p lace  tha t  on  record ,  DCJ.   The  invest iga to rs  a re  he re ,  

they have made  requests  fo r  these subpoenas.   We are  

wa i t ing  to  hear  when we w i l l  be  ab le  to  p roduce them by –  I  

am to ld  tha t  these were  amongst  the  very  ea r ly  subpoenas  

in  the  Commiss ion ,  so  they need to  be  dug up,  bu t  we are  

hopefu l  tha t  tha t  cou ld  ce r ta in ly  be  done overn igh t .   I  am 

sure  i t  cou ld .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   Ms van den Heever?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  thank you.   Our  

approach is  a  ve ry  s imp le  approach,  we do have cer ta in  10 

r igh ts  under  the  Const i tu t ion  and I  unders tand what  you  

say,  Cha i rpe rson,  there  is  some pub l ic  …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    In te res t .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    In te res t  tha t  i s  a t  p lay  bu t  pub l i c  

in te res t  must  be  we ighed up aga ins t  your  r igh t  to  p r ivacy.   

What  I  p ropose to  my learned f r iend –  and I  do  have an  

ob jec t ion  to  h im  go ing  to  on l y  the  conc lus ions and Mr  

Ben jamin ’s  a f f idav i t  because what  i s  conta ined in  the i r  f low  

d i rec t l y  f rom the  bank s ta tements ,  I  sa id  to  h im we  wish  to  

see a l l  the  bank s ta tements ,  the  subpoenas tha t  i s  here ,  I  20 

want  to  unders tand the  bas is  on  wh ich  subpoenas were  

app l ied  fo r  ob ta ined and what  exact ly  was subpoenaed.   

We s t i l l  have a  recourse ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    To ,  fo r  ins tance,  take  a  rev iew 
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p rocess pe r ta in ing  to  th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Bu t  I  can –  once we have had 

the  subpoenas,  we are  sens ib le  peop le  and we have  had a  

look a t  i t ,  then we can poss ib ly  adv ise  our  c l ien t  in  our  

d i f fe ren t  d i rec t ion  bu t  fo r  us  to  s i t  here  and jus t  go  ahead 

n i l l y  w i l l y  w i thout  p roper ly  be ing  appra ised o f  what  

happened,  hav ing  had the  oppor tun i ty  to  p roper l y  consu l t  

on  those w i th  the  c l ien t  and tak ing  a  proper  ins t ruc t ion  is  

no t  fa i r  to  the  c l i en t  and i t  i s  a t  th is  s tage I  wou ld  submi t  i s  10 

h igh l y  p re jud i c ia l  to  h im espec ia l l y  when i t  wou ld  have 

been a  s imp le  exerc i se  to  in fo rm h im on the  fac t  tha t  those  

subpoenas were  issued so  tha t  he  a t  tha t  s tage a l ready 

when th is  happened cou ld  have exerc ised any r igh ts  tha t  

he  had.    

 So we say –  and we respect fu l l y  submi t  tha t  we be 

g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  look  a t  the  subpoenas and make an 

in fo rmed dec is ion  and unt i l  tha t  s tage to  fo rce  h im to  dea l  

w i th  someth ing  tha t  f lows f rom the  bank s ta tements  t ha t  we 

say we have not  even seen the  subpoenas wou ld  be  h igh ly  20 

pre jud ic ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The bank s ta tements ,  he  has seen those  

I  assume fo r  some t ime.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    He has  not  seen them for  some 

t ime,  we recent ly  go t  to  know o f  them,  Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Bu t  tha t  i s  no t  the  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    The issue is  no t  an  iso la ted  se t  

o f  bank s ta tements  tha t  they want  to  p resent  o r  p resent  

ev idence on,  i t  i s  about  the  conspectus  o f  what  –  and I  do 

no t  want  to  pu t  –  to  a rgue or  to  t ry  and make submiss ions 

on  beha l f ,  we know what  the  pos i t ion  is  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Bu t  we have a  r i gh t  to  a l so  dea l  10 

w i th  i ssues in  a  cor rec t  and proper  manner  p ro tec t ing  our  

own in te res t  and our  r igh ts  as  a f fo rded in  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  te l l  me,  le t  us  assume –  wha t  wou ld  

be  the  best  scenar io  fo r  you when you see subpoenas? 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  see  

the  subpoenas.   I  need to  unders tand the  bas i s  fo r  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You want  to  see whether  the  bank  

s ta tements  were  ob ta ined lega l l y,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  i t  does not  even go 

to  tha t .   I  am ent i t led  to  see the  subpoenas,  I  can on ly  20 

make …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may be ent i t led  bu t  I  wan t  to  see  

what  the  connect ion  is  be tween see ing  the  subpoenas and 

the  ev idence not  p roceed ing  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  you have 

seen the  bank s ta tements .   That  i s  the  connect ion  tha t  I  
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want  to  unders tand.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  wou ld  l i ke  the  

oppor tun i ty   to  see them and then make submiss ions to  

you.   I  cannot  make submiss ions to  you as  to  where  I  w i l l  

go  w i th  i t  w i thout  see ing  the  s ta tements .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you see,  i f  you  do not  -  i f  you  cannot  

en l igh ten  me on tha t  I  remain  in  a  pos i t ion  where  I  do  no t  

see the  connect ion ,  you see?  Whereas what  I  am t ry ing  to  

see is  whether  you have a  case fo r  me to  say Mr  Myburgh  

shou ld  no t  lead  tha t  ev idence unt i l  you  have seen the  10 

subpoenas but  i f  I  do  no t  see the  connect ion ,  I  cannot  

ass is t  you.   So tha t  i s  why I  was ask ing  what  i s  the 

connect ion?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  my unders tand ing  

is   tha t  the  Commiss ion  has a  wh i le  ago a l ready  issues  

subpoenas in  respect  o f  var ious  bank s ta tements .   They  

now wish  to  e leva te  one o f  the  bank s ta tements  to  a  

cer ta in  pos i t ion .   I  need to  see the  o ther  bank s ta tements  

tha t  were  subpoenaed because you cannot  expec t  o f  my 

c l ien t  to  answer  quest ions in  i so la t i on ,  number  one.  20 

 Number  two,  I  need to  ensure  tha t  the  subpoenas  

were  done p roper ly,  they were  in  respect  o f  cer ta in  t ime 

per iods,  in  respect  o f  cer ta in  bank accounts  w i th  cer ta in  

fundamenta l  under ly ing  reasons to  subpoena them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  bas i ca l l y  i t  i s  two th ings you 
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say.   One,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  there  may be o ther  bank  

s ta tements  you wou ld  l i ke  to  see them.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  see the  

subpoenas,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  we l l  I  am say ing  too .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    And then the  bank s ta tements  i f  

they were  ob ta ined.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  you want  to  see the  subpoenas in  

o rder  to  see what  they covered  and  whether  they were  

lega l ,  you know?   And two,  you want  to  see o the r  bank 10 

s ta tements  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  there  may be o ther  bank 

s ta tements .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  may I  jus t  take  an  

ins t ruc t ion  f rom my a t to rney be fore  we…? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  wha t  do  you want  to  say?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  am not  sure  tha t  I  

have much to  say,  I  mean,  o ther  than –  I  am not  sure  tha t  I  

unders tand the  argument ,  to  be  f rank,  because i f  what  my 20 

learned f r iend a t  best  fo r  he r  i t  seems is  go ing  to  t ry  and 

suppress th is  ev idence because these subpoenas a t  best  

were  somehow i r regu lar  and tha t  p resumably  i s  the  best  o f  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  i f  they  were  i r regu lar  I  am sure  
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the  d iscre t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  the  one th ing .   The  

o ther  th ing  is ,  i s  i t  does not  do  away w i th  the  Fundudz i  

repor t ,  Fundudz i  repor t  i s  a  pub l i c  repor t ,  i t  says  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and i t  has  no t  been se t  as ide .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  has  no t  been se t  as ide ,  they had  

the  bank accounts ,  they ana lysed  them and they ac tua l l y  

asked Mr  S ingh fo r  h is  input .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he sa id  tha t  a l l  o f  the  amounts  

in  tha t  account  came f rom -  in  re la t ion  to  Transnet  o r  

Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  I  mean,  what  we d id  was to  

doub le  check Fundudz i ’s  work  and yes,  we have produced  

more  de ta i l  bu t  I  cannot  see where  th is  takes us  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  one th ing  we can exp lore  –  I  

th ink  there  are  two opt ions.   I  do  no t  see my way to  say ing  

le t  us  s top .   I  th ink  there  are  two  opt ions.   One opt ion  is  20 

whethe r  you are  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  o ther  i ssues fo r  the  res t  

o f  the  t ime tha t  we have fo r  today and then tomorrow 

hopefu l l y  there  wou ld  be  no issues anymore  because  

maybe whatever  subpoenas the re  are  wou ld  have been 

looked a t  and there  wou ld  be  no  prob lem.   That  i s  one 
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op t ion .  

 But  i f  the  pos i t ion  is  tha t  we e i ther  dea l  w i th  th i s  

o r  lose  the  t ime,  then there  is  the  d i f f i cu l t y  bu t  to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  the  mat te rs  a re  a l ready in  the  Fundudz i  repor t ,  

wh ich  has no t  been se t  as ide ,  I  wou ld  be  inc l ined to  say  

tha t  tha t  cou ld  be  dea l t  w i th .    

 So what  i s  the  pos i t ion ,  i s  i t  poss ib le  fo r  us  to  use  

the  t ime we have on issues o ther  than th i s?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i s  i t  no t  poss ib le?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    O f  course  i t  i s  poss ib le ,  DCJ,  to  

move –  to  change  gears  and to  dea l  w i th  someth ing  e lse .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We can  then hopefu l l y  ge t  the  

subpoenas overn igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    My learned  f r iend can then make a  

ca l l  on  th is  tomor row.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  I  th ink  le t  us  do  i t  tha t  way 

then.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  unders tand the re  is  anothe r  

w i tness a t  f i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  can cer ta in ly,  o f  course ,  dea l  

w i th  someth ing  –  t ry  and dea l  w i th  someth ing  d i sc reet ly  in  
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tha t  ha l f  an  hour  i f  tha t  i s  what  you have in  m ind.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  le t  us  do  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  want  now to  tu rn  –  I  w i l l  come back  

to  the  sa la ry  account  one way o r  the  o the r  tomorrow.   I  

want  to  tu rn  to  d iscuss w i th  you two th ings tha t  you have  

dea l t  w i th  in  your  a f f idav i t  and tha t  i s ,  what  seems to  be  a  

k ind  o f  an  impor tan t  ove ra l l  con tex t  in  re la t ion  to  the  

var ious ac ts  o f  p rocurement  tha t  we a re  go ing  to  be  10 

examin ing  in  the  ba lance o f  your  ev idence.  

 So I  want  to  s ta r t  o f f  by  dea l ing  w i th  the  market  

demand s t ra tegy,  the  so -ca l led  MDS.   I  unders tood f rom 

one o f  your  a f f idav i t s  tha t  you were  ac tua l l y  invo lved in  the  

deve lopment  o f  th is  s t ra tegy,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  was the  ro le  tha t  you 

p layed in  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  a t  the  t ime I  occup ied  the  pos i t ion  

o f  the  Act ing  CFO of  Transnet .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    The pos i t ion  o f?  

MR SINGH:    Ac t ing  CFO of  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  my c l ien t  my speak  
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in to  the  m ic ,  we cannot  hear  th is  s ide .   P lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  we a re  

re fer r i ng  to ,  do  you know which  one i t  i s?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  you  want  to  go  the re  you go the re  

bu t  I  want  jus t  to  dea l  w i th  in  a  genera l  way.  

MR SINGH:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And to  ac tua l l y  f ind  ou t  f rom you  

prec ise ly  what  the  MDS enta i led  and how s ign i f i can t  i t  was,  

no t  in to  your  job  bu t  to  the  work  rea l l y  o f  Transnet  a t  th is  10 

t ime.  

MR SINGH:    Okay.   I  th ink ,  Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  was exp la in ing ,  

a t  the  t ime I  was  the  Act ing  Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  

o f  Transnet  and one o f  the  funct ions tha t  I  had a t  the  t ime 

was l i ke  we spen t  an  inord ina te  amount  o f  t ime d iscuss ing  

the  corpora te  p lan  on  the  Eskom s ide ,  a  b ig  chunk o f  my  

t ime was a l so  taken up prepar ing  the  corpora te  p lan  fo r  

Transnet  and a t  the  t ime there  was a lso  a  change o f  the 

board ,  so  a  new board  had taken over  a t  the  t ime.   I  th ink  

tha t  co inc ided w i th  Min i s te r  G igaba tak ing  ove r  as  Min is te r  20 

o f  Pub l i c  Enterpr i ses .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do not  lower  your  vo ice .  

MR SINGH:    So r ry,  S i r,  le t  me get  th is  c lose r.   So tha t  

shou ld  be  bet te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  what  t he  techn ic ians had done 
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yes terday,  I  do  no t  know whethe r  a f te rnoon everybody was 

speak ing  ve ry  loud,  I  th ink  the  m ics  had been ad jus ted  so  

a t  leas t  maybe they shou ld  ad jus t  yours .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  maybe,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  jus t  because o f  

the  way I  s i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  we l l  they  are  hear ing ,  i f  they 

are  ab le  to  ad jus t  remote ly  where  they a re  then we can  

hear  you because  you lower  your  vo ice .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  jus t  

cont inue.  

MR SINGH:    So,  Mr  Cha i r,  there  was some how can I  say,  10 

cr i t i c i sm f rom the  new board  re la t ing  to  Transnet ’s  ab i l i t y  

to  un lock  the  va lue  in  the  economy v is -à-v is  the  fac t  tha t  

the  log is t i cs  cha in  p lays  a  very  c r i t i ca l  –  i s  a  very  c r i t i ca l  

component  o f  ac tua l l y  enab l ing  economic  g rowth .  

 To  the  ex ten t  tha t  the  ra i l  sys tem is  fu l l y  

capac i ta ted  or  i t  does not  have  excess capac i ty  to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  the  por ts  do  no t  excess capac i ty,  to  the  ex ten t  

the  p ipe l ines  do  not  have excess capac i ty,  your  economy i s  

const ra ined and  our  economy,  be ing  and expor t -d r iven  

economy to  the  ex ten t  tha t  the  wor ld  economy is  le t  us  say  20 

en joy ing  a  boom,  the  South  A f r i can economy is  const ra ined  

by  the  capac i ty  tha t  the  log i s t i cs  sys tem actua l l y  has so  

tha t  was one o f  the  bo t t lenecks tha t  the  board  had ac tua l l y  

ident i f ied  in  tha t  Transnet  was bas i ca l l y  a  bo t t leneck to  

economic  g rowth .  
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 So  in  respond ing  to  the  p repara t ion  o f  the  

corpo ra te  p lan ,  Mr  Cha i r,  we dec ided to  unders tand to  what  

ex ten t  i f  we were  to  enab le  the  economy and un-bo t t leneck 

the  const ra in ts  tha t  were  perce i ved to  be  the re  f rom a  

capac i ty  perspec t ive  in  the  ra i l  and the  por t  and the  

p ipe l ine  bus iness ,  what  wou ld  be  –  what  wou ld  Transnet  

look  l i ke  and,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  bas ica l l y  evo lved in to  what  we 

now ca l l  the  market  demand,  Cha i r.  

 So bas i ca l l y,  ins tead o f  const ra in ing  or  ins tead o f  

p lann ing  to  what  we ca l led  a t  the  t ime cont rac ted  demand,  10 

we p lanned now to  market  demand .   So i f  there  was  market  

demand fo r  100 mi l l ion  tons o f  ra i l  asset ,  whether  we had a  

cont rac t  fo r  i t  o r  no t ,  we were  p lann ing  to  ac tua l l y  pu t  the  

capac i ty  in  p lace  on the  bas i s  tha t  i t  wou ld  have been 

taken up.   Okay?  

 So tha t  was the  d i f fe rence between le t  us  say the  

h is to r i c  p lann ing  scenar io  and the  new p lann ing  scenar io  

wh ich  was out  o f  the  market  demand s t ra tegy.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  one o f  the  reasons why the  board  was  

cr i t i ca l  o f  the  p lann ing  scenar ios  and why we were  a  20 

bot t leneck to  the  economy is  tha t  they fe l t  tha t  the  count ry  

ac tua l l y  m issed out  an  oppor tun i ty  in  te rms o f  par t i c ipa t ing  

in  the  commodi ty  boom tha t  p receded the  f inanc ia l  c r i s is  

and the  commodi ty  s lump.    

 So f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  Mr  Cha i r,  we then sa id  
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okay,  le t  us  unconst ra in  the  p lann ing  pa rameters  and see  

what  comes out  o f  i t  and bas i ca l l y,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  then led  

to  the  deve lopment  o f  the  market  demand s t ra tegy,  the  

market  demand  s t ra tegy was counter -cyc l i ca l  in te rv iew 

s t ra tegy so  i t  ac tua l l y  invested  ahead o f  demand so  i t  

wou ld  pe rce ive  demand to  peak i n  th ree  years  f rom now.   

The investment  dec is ion  fo r  tha t  commodi ty  to  peak in  

th ree  years  had to  happen now because there  was a  lead  

t ime in  te rms o f  be ing  ab le  to  ac tua l l y  p lan  and execute  the  

pro jec ts  tha t  a re  requ i red  to  make su re  the  demand 10 

ac tua l l y  happens.   So tha t  was the  exp lanat ion  o f  counter-  

cyc l i ca l  investment  s t ra tegy.    

 The p lan  was premised on a  R300 b i l l i on  cap i ta l  

spend,  Mr  Cha i r,  and tha t  was fo r  the  who le  o f  Transnet  

be ing  Transnet  Fre igh t  Ra i l ,  wh ich  is  the  ra i l  en t i t y,  

Transnet  Nat iona l  Por ts  Author i t y,  Transnet  Por t  Termina ls  

and Transnet  P ipe l ine  as  we l l  as  Transnet  Eng ineer ing  and  

the  b iggest  chunk o f  the  spend,  Mr  Cha i r,  was a l l oca ted  to  

Ra i l  and the  b iggest  chunk o f  the  Ra i l  investment  was  

a l loca ted  to  locomot ives .  20 

 In  the  Por ts  bus iness the  b iggest  chunk o f  the  

cap i ta l  was a l loca ted  to  the  –  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y,  the  

w iden ing  and deepen ing  o f  the  harbours  on  the  Transnet  

Nat iona l  Por ts  Au thor i t y  s ide .  

 On the  Transnet  Por t  Te rmina l  s ide  i t  was re la ted  
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to  conta iner  s tack ing  areas,  ma in tenance o f  conta ine r  

s tack ing  areas,  improv ing  e f f i c ienc ies  in  the  po r ts  and 

cer ta in  c rane acqu is i t ions  as  we l l .  

 On the  Transnet  P ipe l ine  s ide  i t  was cont inu ing  

w i th  the  new mul t ip roduct  p ipe l ine  wh ich  is  the 

Johannesburg  to  Durban pet ro leum p ipe l ine  bu t  obv ious ly  

t ranspor ts  pe t ro leum products  f rom the  coast  to  Eng land.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  was a l so  l inked to  a  –  I  th ink  i t  was  

R110 or  R120 b i l l i on  fund ing  programme over  the  f ive  year  

per iod .    10 

 So,  Mr  Cha i r  in  a  nu tshe l l ,  tha t  was the  market  

demand s t ra tegy in  te rms o f  how i t  impacted Transnet  and  

how i t  impacted l e t  us  say the  b roader  economy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  jus t  wan t  to  fo l low up.   In  you r  

a f f idav i t  –  ac tua l l y  you can go the re  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke ,  th is  

i s  a t  bund le  5B,  page 472,  paragraph 15.  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry,  page number  472?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    472.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say a t  parag raph 15,  under  the  

head ing  Market  Demand S t ra tegy:  

“ I  conf i rm tha t  the  p lann ing  and deve lopment  o f  the  

market  demand s t ra tegy,  MDS,  was the  in i t ia t i ve  

and work  product  o f  myse l f  and the  corpora te  
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f inance depar tment  o f  Transnet . ”  

Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then you spoke about  300  b i l l i on 

cap i ta l  expend i tu re  and chunks o f  i t .   What  chunk  o f  tha t  

300 b i l l i on  was a l loca ted  to  Fre igh t  Ra i l?  

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l  o f fhand r igh t  now but  I  w i l l  

p robab ly  say probab ly  ha l f  o f  i t  o r  more  than ha l f  o f  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And o f  tha t  ha l f  tha t  was a l loca ted  to  

Fre igh t  Ra i l ,  what  chunk o f  tha t  was a l loca ted  to  10 

locomot ives?  

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld  th ink  p robab ly  60  to  70  b i l l i on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH:    60  to  70  b i l l i on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  wou ld  have been about… 

MR SINGH:    Ha l f  o f  the  ha l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ha l f  o f  the  ha l f .   So …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    35%.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  a  150 b i l l i on  was a l loca ted  to  

Fre igh t  Ra i l ,  about  ha l f  o f  tha t  was a l loca ted  to  Fre igh t  20 

Ra i l ,  about  ha l f  o f  tha t  was a l loca ted  to  locomot ives .  

MR SINGH:    I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.   And …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    So r ry,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  we –  be fo re  we move o f f  

parag raph 15,  I  th ink  you d id  g ive  some contex t  in  te rms o f  
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the  word ing  o f  parag raph 15.   The contex t  o f  th is  f i rs t  

parag raph re la tes  to  the  conceptua l  th ink ing  and  

conceptua l  work ,  so  i t  was in i t ia l  p lann ing  tha t  th is  re fers  

to  because the  corpo ra te  p lann ing  process,  as  we 

unders tand is  a  very  d i f fe ren t  complex  and deta i led 

process.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And f rom the  ev idence tha t  has been 

g iven before  the  MDS was announced in  Apr i l  2011 the  

investment  i t se l f  commenced a  year  la te r  in  Apr i l  2012.   

Does tha t  accord  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  10 

MR SINGH:    I t  p robab ly  w i l l ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    By  the  t i8me tha t  you were  then 

seconded f rom Transnet  to  Eskom one was about  th ree  

years  in to  the  MDS.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  take  i t  tha t  the  MDS,  speak ing  

broad ly,  wou ld  p robab ly  have been your  most  impor tan t  

task  o r  funct ion  in  those years .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  execut ing  the  co rpora te  p lan  wou ld  

have been,  whatever  was conta ined there in  wou ld  have 20 

been,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .   I  wan t  then to  ta lk  a  l i t t le  b i t  

about  the  BADC and de legat ions  o f  au thor i t y.   Now Mr  

Forman gave ev idence about  th is ,  I  jus t  want  to  see to  

what  ex ten t  you might  ag ree.   H is to r ica l l y  h is  ev idence was  
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tha t  h is to r ica l l y  the  board ,  inc lud ing  subcommi t tees,  d id  

no t  have any de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  when i t  came to  

procu rement - re la ted  mat te rs ,  there  had been a  

decent ra l i sed  procurement  sys tem in  p lace .   As  I  

unders tand,  tha t  i s  a t  an  opera t iona l  leve l ,  a  d iv is iona l  

leve l .   Does tha t  acco rd  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  hazard  to  say tha t  I  do  no t  

reca l l  in  te rms o f  –  wh ich  per iod  are  you ta lk ing  about  

spec i f i ca l l y?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  be fore  2011.  10 

MR SINGH:    Be fore  2011.   There  were  acqu is i t ion  counc i l s  

a t  a  g roup leve l  as  we l l ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    I  am not  too  su re  what  the  board  leve ls  were .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   What  he  tes t i f ied  to  i s  tha t  

in  2011 the  board  then acqu i red  these procurement  powers  

and a  spec ia l  subcommi t tee  o f  the  board  was c rea ted,  tha t  

be ing  BADC.   Tha t  I  th ink  you dea l  w i th  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  I  conf i rm tha t  yes ,  the 

BADC was a  product  o f  the  board .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  a  subcommi t tee  o f  the  board .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And d id  you  s i t  on  the  BADC? 

MR SINGH:    No,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.  
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MR SINGH:    I  was not  a  member  o f  the  BADC.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And perhaps you cou ld  jus t  he lp  us  

unders tand the  compos i t ion  o f  obv ious l y  an  impor tan t  body  

w i th in  Transnet .   What  was the  makeup o f  the  BADC?  

What  sor t  o f  qua l i t ies  where  the  board  look ing  fo r  because 

some o f  the  board  members  sa t  on  the  BADC.   What  

qua l i t ies  qua l i f ied  one to  be  a  BADC member?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  be  specu la t ing  i f  I  gave a  

response because the  –  I  w i l l  be  co r rec ted ,  I  may be 

mis taken,  bu t  I  th ink  the  compos i t ion  o f  -  le t  us  leave own 10 

the  BADC but  the  compos i t ion  o f  any o f  the  board  

subcommi t tees I  th ink  took p lace in  a  commi t tee  ca l led  the  

Corpora te  Governance and Nominat ions Commi t tee  and  

tha t  commi t tee  wou ld  s i t  and dec ide ,  you know,  based on 

the  PO’s  m ix  o f  the  board  wh ich  members  wou ld  be  

su i tab le  in  wh ich  commi t tees.   As  fa r  as  I  reca l l ,  tha t  i s  

how i t  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   And then the  ev idence was 

tha t  the  BADC’s  approva l  au thor i t y  was inc reased in  2012  

to  tenders  up  to  2  b i l l i on  w i th  the  board  be ing  requ i red  to  20 

approve tenders  above tha t .   Does tha t  accord  w i th  your  

reco l lec t ion?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  the  de lega t ions wou ld  have been a  

funct ion  o f  a  de legat ion  o f  a  par ty  f ramework ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .   And then what  we know as we l l  
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i s  tha t  Mr  Sharma was appo in ted  as  the  Cha i r  o f  the  BADC 

in  August  o f  2012 .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  am not  exact ly  sure  o f  the  da te  

bu t  I  am aware  tha t  Mr  Sharma was the  Cha i rman o f  the  

BADC.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And fo r  how long d id  he  serve  as  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  BADC? 

MR SINGH:    I  do  no t  reca l l ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  i t  have been fo r  a  number  o f  

years?  10 

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld  th ink  so ,  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  we do know when we come to  

the  locomot ives  I  th ink  in  ‘13 / ’14  he  was the  Cha i r  o f  the 

BADC.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now d id  you know Mr  Sharma?   

MR SINGH:   P r io r  to  h is  non-execut ive  ro le  as  a  d i rec tor,  

no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  you came to  know Mr  Sharma in  

h is  ro le  as  a  d i rec tor?  20 

MR SINGH:   That  i s ,  yes  tha t  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And to  what  ex ten t  wou ld  you in te rac t  

w i th  h im?  

MR SINGH:   A t  board  meet ings or  BBC meet ings or  i f  there 

were  any o ther  board  s t ra tegy sess ions,  tha t  was i t .   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  you know o f  any re la t ionsh ip  

be tween Mr  Sharma and Mr  Essa?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  then  the  ev idence has been  

tha t  in  2013 the  DOA added b id  ad jud i ca t ion  to  BADC 

powers  and de legated author i t y  t o  ce r ta in  ind iv idua ls  to  

p rove how va lue  t ransact ions,  yourse l f  and the  GCE.  

MR SINGH:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r,  bu t  no t  on ly  us .   I  mean  

o ther  execut ives  a lso  had powers .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja ,  you r  approva ls  au thor i t y  in  2013  10 

as  I  have i t  was  750 mi l l ion  and  the  GCE’s  was up to  a 

b i l l i on .  

MR SINGH:   You w i l l  have to  be  a  b i t  more  spec i f i c  

because i f  you look a t  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  f rame 

work .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   There  are  a  number  o f  sub ca tegor ies  w i th in  

the  de legat ion  and each o f  them have d i f fe ren t  va lues.   So 

i f  you  are  re fe r r i ng  to  cap i ta l  i t  wou ld  be  a  number.   The 

prob lem wi th  cap i ta l  i t  wou ld  be  a  number,  unapproved  20 

cap i ta l  wou ld  be  a  d i f fe ren t  number  fo r  example .    

 Fund ing  wou ld  be  a  d i f fe ren t  number  fo r  example .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  le t  me then ask  you.   When I  

asked you tha t  your  approva l  au thor i t y  was up  to  750 

mi l l ion ,  wh ich  o f  those th ings d id  t ha t  re la te  to?  
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MR SINGH:   I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r,  we d id  a t tach  the  de legat ion  

o f  au tho r i t y  f rame work  in  one o f  our  a f f idav i t s .   Maybe i f  

we can qu ick l y  go  to  tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  S ingh,  the  ac tua l  number  i s  no t  

impor tan t  to  me.   I  mean the  po in t  tha t  I  make is  tha t  in  

2013 spec i f i c  ind iv idua ls  were  then g iven autho r i t y  to  

conc lude how va lue  t ransact ions,  tha t  number  . . .  you  had a  

cer ta in  number,  p resumably  the  GEC had a  h igher  number.   

 I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  I  have read in  the  ev idence 

and what  has been re fer red  to  i s  tha t  to  an  ex ten t  you k ind  

o f  became a  one  person acqu is i t ion  counse l  th rough th is  

au thor i t y.   You want  to  comment  on  tha t?   You do not  

agree?   

MR SINGH:   No,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In  2016 BADC approva l  au thor i t y  had 

now been inc reased to  th ree  b i l l i on ,  the  board  re ta ined 

author i t y  fo r  tenders  above th is .   Would  you conf i rm tha t?  

We know tha t  you  le f t  in  2015,  in  the  m idd le  o f  2015.  20 

MR SINGH:   Yes,  when was the  increase?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  ta lked about  2016.  

MR SINGH:   Ja ,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Both  BADC,  yourse l f  and the  

GCE had the  powers  to  award  tenders  on  conf inement .   I s  
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tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  the  conf inement  de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  was changed a t  the  request  o f  the  BADC at  some 

po in t  in  t ime where  the  conf inement  de legat ion  was  

removed f rom a l l  g roup,  we l l  f rom a l l  o f f i c ia ls  o ther  than  

the  GCE and the  BVC and the  board .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Now Mr  Fro l i ck  in  h i s  

ev idence tes t i f ied  tha t  h is  so  ca l led  one person acqu is i t ion  

counse l  and the  w ide  spread use o f  the  conf inement  

p rocess were  amongst  the  areas o f  concern .   P rob lem 10 

areas tha t  he  i dent i f ied  wh ich  the  new PPM,  procurement  

p rocedures manua l ,  seeks to  address.  

 You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   Mr  Fro l i ck  was the ,  how can I  ca l l  i t?   

The procurement  governance guy  a t  Transnet  and  a t  the  

request  o f  ac tua l l y  the  board  he  under took an  exe rc ise  to  

unders tand how the  procu rement  env i ronment  w i th in  

Transnet  can ac tua l l y  be  s t rengthened and one o f  the 

recommendat ions  was tha t  the  conf inement  p rocess was  

be ing  f lou ted .   20 

 I  am not  too  sure  when exact ly  he  d id  the  exerc ise ,  

bu t  I  th ink  tha t  was one o f  the  issues tha t  he  led  the  board  

to  remove the  de legat ion  f rom a l l  execut ives  o ther  than the  

group ch ie f  execu t ive  and the  BBC and the  board .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  I  mean,  I  p resume tha t  the  
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con f inement  p rocess is  open to  abuse by  unscrupu lous  

ind iv idua ls  po ten t ia l l y.  

MR SINGH:   I  guess i t  i s  open to  in te rpre ta t ion  because 

l i ke  w i th  every  procedure  the re  is ,  o r  eve ry  po l i cy  there  is  

a  p rocedure  and the  procedure  is  open to  in te rpre ta t ion  in  

te rms o f  a re  you app ly ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now I  want  to  tu rn  to  the  1064  

locomot ives  and the  b ig  p ic tu re  as  I  ca l l  i t .   I  mean i t  rea l l y  

l ies  very  much a t  the  hear t  o f  my examinat ion  o f  you and I  

want  to  s ta r t  o f f  by  dea l ing  w i th  the  t ransact ion  adv i sors ,  10 

bu t  be fore  tha t  I  want  to  jus t  exp lo re  th is ,  the  b ig  p i c tu re .   

 I  want  to  s ta r t  ou t  by  jus t  d iscuss ing  your  ro le  and 

perhaps the  eas ies t  way i s  jus t  fo r  me to  pu t  to  you what  I  

th ink  i t  was and then you can te l l  me i f  I  am r igh t  o r  wrong.   

I t  seems tha t  you  p layed f rom wha t  I  can see a  cent ra l  ro le  

in  the  appo in tment  o f  the  t ransact ion  adv i so rs  in  the  

fo rmula t ion  o f  the  bus iness case,  in  the  tender  eva lua t ion  

and negot ia t ion  process,  in  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  LSA’s  

w i th  the  four  OEM’s ,  in  the  approva l  o f  the  inc rease in  the  

ETC and then in  the  fund ing  ar rangements ,  the  50  b i l l i on  20 

rand fund ing  ar rangement  tha t  was  put  in  p lace .   

 Would  tha t  be  an  accura te  summary o f  your  va r ious 

ro les  and in te rac t ions?  

MR SINGH:   So r ry,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  repeat  those .   You 

bas ica l l y  say  the  cent ra l  ro le  i n  the  appo in tmen t  o f  the 
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t ransact ion  adv i sors .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   

MR SINGH:   Fo rmula t ion  o f  the  bus iness case,  r igh t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   Tender  va lua t ion  and negot ia t ion  

process.    

MR SINGH:   Tender  eva lua t ion  and  negot ia t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Conc lus ion  o f  the  LSA’s  w i th  the  four  

OEM’s  wh ich  then f lows f rom tha t ,  the  approva l  o f  the 

increase in  the  ETC and the  50  b i l l i on  rand  fund ing  

ar rangements  tha t  were  pu t  in  p lace .    10 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  can  respond.   In  te rms  o f  the 

cent ra l  ro le  on  the  t ransact ion  adv isors ,  Mr  Cha i r  the  

t ransact ion  adv isors ,  I  was the  bus iness requester  fo r  the  

t ransact ion  adv isors .   So f rom tha t  perspect ive ,  I  wou ld  be  

rece iv ing  the i r  se rv ice .   

 So f rom tha t  perspect ive  I  wou ld  need to ,  I  wou ld  

have needed to  be  engaged f rom t ime to  t ime in  te rms o f  

what  was happen ing  on tha t  p rocurement  event .   I f  I  cannot  

say  I  p layed a  cent ra l  ro le  Mr  Cha i r,  because I  was not  the  

peop le  tha t  sa t  and eva lua ted the  tenders  fo r  example .   20 

 I  d id  no t  choose a  successfu l  tender,  bu t  d id  I  dea l  

w i th  mat te rs  tha t  emanated f rom,  tha t  f lowed the re  f rom,  

yes I  dea l t  w i th  i ssues tha t  f lowed f rom tha t  p rocess.   

Formula t ion  o f  the  bus iness case Mr  Cha i r,  the  bus iness  

case was a lways  owned by  o r  bus iness cases a re  a lways 
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owned by  the  asset  owner.   

 The asset  owner  in  th is  case was  Transnet  Fre igh t  

Ra i l .   So  Transnet  F re igh t  Ra i l  bas ica l l y  owned the  

bus iness.   Because o f  the  s i ze  o f  the  procu rement  event ,  

a t  tha t  s tage when the  bus iness case was deve loped was  

38 b i l l i on .  

 I t  needed to  have board  approva l  and obv ious ly  

m in is te r i a l  . . .  now in  those cases group o f  where  we sa t  a t  

g roup a t  the  t ime  took an  in te res t  in  those type o f  bus iness 

cases,  f rom the  t ime they were  incepted so  tha t  when i t  10 

ge ts  to  g roup and  to  the  board ,  you do not  have a  d ispa r i t y  

be tween bus iness  case tha t  i s  used tha t  i s  no t  o f  qua l i t y  o r  

tha t  have missed a  who le  lo t  o f ,  how can I  ca l l  i t?    

 I ssues tha t  needed to  have been  dea l t  w i th .   So  

yes,  in  te rms o f  my ro le  as  the  CFO,  I  was invo l ved in  the  

bus iness case and the  fo rmula t ion  the reof .   Tender  

eva lua t ion  and negot ia t ion  Mr  Cha i r.   Tender  eva lua t ion  I  

was not  par t  o f .   I  was not  pa r t  o f  the  tender  eva lua t ion  

teams,  o f  the  funct iona l  teams tha t  were  pu t  together  to  

eva lua te  the  tenders .   20 

 So i f  you  had to  ask  me d id  I  see a  tender  

document ,  Mr  Cha i r  no  I  d id  no t .   D id  I  eva lua te  a  tender  

document ,  no  I  d id  no t .   So f rom tha t  perspect ive  the  

tender  eva lua t ion  process was under taken by  the  cross  

funct ion  eva lua t ion  teams and they  produced [ ind i s t inc t ] .   
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 I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r,  in  our  ro les ,  the  ou tput  o f  those 

tender  eva lua t ion  teams,  wou ld  have probab ly  come across  

Mr  Gama’s  desk,  my desk and Mr  Mole fe ’s  desk wh ich  then 

wou ld  have wen t  th rough to  the  board  and the  BADC 

accord ing ly.   

 So tha t  i s  the  ro le  in  te rms o f  the  eva lua t ions.   In  

te rms o f  the  negot ia t ions  Mr  Cha i r,  and I  wou ld  take  the  

negot ia t ions  and  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  LSN,  pu t  them 

together  because  they bas ica l l y  negot ia t ions  was the  input  

and the  ou tput  was the  LSA or  the  locomot ive  supp ly  10 

agreement .   

 So Mr  Cha i r,  yes  there  I  d id  p lay  an  in t imate  ro le  in  

the  negot ia t ion  or  the ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  pos t  tender  

negot ia t ions .   That  w i l l  p robab ly  be  the  more  techn ica l  te rm  

and the  conc lus ion  o f  the  LSA.   In  te rms o f  the  in te res t  in  

ETC Mr  Cha i r,  c r i t i ca l  ro le .   

 I  do  no t  know i t  i s  up  fo r  in te rpre ta t ion  bu t  aga in  

the  increase in  ETC Mr  Cha i r,  i s  an  ou tput  o f  the  

negot ia t ion  and  LSA process and locomot ive  supp l ie r  

p rocess and the  [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  th is  management ,  th is  r i sk  20 

management  f ramework  and the  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y.   

 In  te rms o f ,  Mr  Cha i r  aga in  the  increase in  ETC,  

because i t  i s  a  cap i ta l  equ ipment  purchase,  the  inc rease in  

ETC wou ld  normal ly  have to  go  th rough the ,  aga in  the  

cap i ta l  o rgan isa t ion  w i th in  the  bus iness un i t ,  the  cap i ta l  
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o rgan isa t ion  in  the  group,  go  th rough the  approva l  

s t ruc tures  o f  the  cap i ta l  investment  commi t tee  a t  g roup  

leve l  and then obv ious ly  fo l low  i t s  way th rough to  the  

board  and i f  need  be the  m in is te r.   

 So f rom tha t  perspect ive  aga in  i t  was l i ke  funct ion  

as  CFO to  ove rsee the  cap i ta l  approva l  p rocess as  we l l .   In  

te rms o f  the  fund ing  ar rangement  Mr  Cha i r,  one o f  the  core  

funct ions o f  the  CFO funct ion  is  t he  fund ing  and obv ious ly,  

as  I  sa id  the  300  b i l l i on  rand cap i ta l  p lan  came I  th ink  w i th  

a  hundred or  125  b i l l i on  rand [ ind i s t inc t ]  over  the  f i ve  year   10 

per iod .   

 So the  fund ing  a r rangements  re la t ing  to  the  loco ’s  

wou ld  yes,  be  pa r t  o f  my funct ions and yes i t  wou ld  have  

occup ied  a  good par t  o f  my t ime.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  f rom what  we have seen,  you  

were  a  member  o f  the  locomot ive  s teer ing  commi t tee .   Is  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  th is  commi t tee  was env isaged but  i t  

ac tua l l y  never  ex i s ted  or  was  never,  how can I  say  

const i tu ted .   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then there  i s  a lso  a  re fe rence in  

ev idence,  and we  can come back to  who was supposed to  

s i t  on  i t  and who  was not .   There  has a lso  been re ference  

to  a  subcommi t tee  o f  the  locomot ive  s teer ing  commi t tee .   

Was tha t  someth ing  a l so  tha t  d id  no t  ge t  o f f  the  ground,  o r  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 175 of 296 
 

was there  a  subcommi t tee  and the  ev idence there  I  th ink 

re ference has been made to  you,  Mr  Gama and Mr  S ingh.   

 Was the re  a  subcommi t tee?  

MR SINGH:   Mr,  Mr  Gama and?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry  and Mr  Mole fe .   

MR SINGH:   Oh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   

MR SINGH:   Okay.   So I  th ink  tha t  aga in  i t  was not  a  fo rmal  

subcommi t tee .   Once the  board  had made the  dec is ion  to  

shor t  l i s t  and g iven us  the  dec i s ion  to  negot ia te ,  they 10 

de legated to  Mr  Mole fe  the  au tho r i t y  to  negot ia te  bu t  no t  

conc lude.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry,  w i l l  you  not  jus t  repea t  tha t ,  I  

d id  no t  hear  you?  

MR SINGH:   I  sa id  once the  board  had taken the  dec is ion  

to  shor t  l i s t  the  four  successfu l  tendere rs ,  they had 

de legated the  au thor i t y  to  Mr  Mole fe  as  the  GCE to  

negot ia te  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   Wi th  the  supp l ie rs ,  the  fou r  shor t  l i s t  20 

supp l ie rs ,  bu t  no t  conc lude the  cont rac t .   So Mr  Mole fe  in  

tu rn  requested tha t  Mr  Gama and myse l f  engage w i th  th is  

negot ia t ion  p rocess and prov ide  feedback to  h im on  a  da i l y  

bas is ,  so  I  had a  bas is  as  we requ i red  to  do  so .   

 So aga in ,  i t  was not  a  fo rmal  s teer ing  commi t tee ,  
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bu t  tha t  i s  how i t  came about .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We have got  I  th ink  two minutes  o r  so  

le f t .   Cou ld  I  jus t  take  you,  wh i ls t  we are  on  tha t .   Perhaps  

we can jus t  f ina l i se  tha t  d i sc reet  top ic .   Cou ld  you p lease  

tu rn  to  page 1520? 

MR SINGH:   O f  the  same bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   Sor ry,  th is  i s  in  5C.   A re  you in  

5C?   

MR SINGH:   1520?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1520,  ja .   I  th ink  th i s  i s  what  you a re  10 

dea l ing  w i th  a t  the  foo t  o f  tha t  page,  a t  parag raph 57.    

MR SINGH:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  you say the  board  o f  d i rec to rs  

de legated author i t y  to  f ina l i se  the  negot ia t ion  process o f  

the  shor t  l i s ted  b idders  o f  the  GCE.  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Do I  unders tand you to  have sa id  tha t  

the  de legat ion  was to  f ina l i se ,  bu t  no t  to  conc lude? 

MR SINGH:   That ,  i f  I  am cor rec t  in  my reco l lec t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then you go on to  exp la in  tha t  20 

the  GCE then requested the  board ,  Gama and yourse l f  to  

conduct  the  day to  day engagements  and negot ia t ions  w i th  

the  shor t l i s ted  b idders ,  the  OEM’s  and th is  i s  post  tender  

negot ia t ions  as  I  th ink  you te rmed i t .   

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR SINGH:   Yes,  when the  shor t  l i s t ing  was done.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then a t  59 :  

 “Par t   o f  th is  negot ia t ion  process  was a  fu l l  

complement  o f  Transnet  Employees wh ich  

inc luded the  TRF team,  Transnet  eng ineer ing  

team,  Dan ie  Sm i th ,  Lehur  and the  f inanc ia l  

negot ia t ion  team and o f  course  myse l f ,  Gama 

and or  G iyane i f  Gama was unava i lab le . ”  

 You go on to  say:  

 “G iyane was the  procu rement  sub jec t  mat te r  10 

exper t  and ac ted  as  Gama’s  des ignated 

rep resenta t i ve  when Gama cou ld  no t  a t tend 

the  negot ia t ion  sess ions.   From t ime to  t ime I  

a lso  prov ided an  update  to  Gama and Br ian  

Mole fe  o f  wha t  t ransp i red  dur ing  these  

sess ions,  pa r t i cu la r ly  pe r ta in ing  to  mater ia l  

i ssues,  such as  the  dec i s ions taken,  e tce tera . ”  

 You conf i rm tha t?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  say tha t  you  20 

were  the  ch ie f  negot ia to r?    

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  accura te  

as  we d id  no t  have any dec i s ion  mak ing  powers ,  bo th  Mr 

Gama and myse l f .   The de legated author i t y  was Mr  Mole fe ,  

so  he  had the  au thor i t y  res t ing  w i th  h im.   In  te rms  o f  the 
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in te rac t ions w i th  the  four  OEM’s ,  in  te rms o f  the  amount  o f  

t ime spent ,  yes  I  spent  the  most  o f  t ime w i th  them.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   

MR SINGH:   In  te rms o f  the  way tha t  the  in te rac t ion  

be tween Mr  Gama and myse l f  was  under taken,  I  dea l t  w i th  

more  the  f inanc ia l  i ssues and the  f inanc ia l  consequences 

thereof  and Mr  Gama dea l t  w i th  the  more  [ ind is t inc t ]  i ssues 

and the  consequences o f  the  locomot ives  ar r i v i ng ,  bu t  

because he was the  asset  owner,  my dec is ions I  had to  run 

by  h im because a t  the  end o f  the  day he  was pa id  fo r  tha t ,  10 

i f  you  unders tand  and then u l t imate ly  i f  we then ag reed,  we 

wou ld  then feedback those dec i s ions and those  issues  

back to  Mr  Mole fe .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cha i rperson ,  I  f in ished th is  top ic .   I  

am happy to  go  on  i f  you  want  me to  bu t  I  see i t  i s  f i ve  

o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  have seen the  ev idence  leader  

come in ,  bu t  I  do  no t  know i f  the  w i tness is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  he  is  over  there .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  he  is  here .   

CHAIRPERSON:   He is  here .   Ja ,  I  th ink  maybe  le t  us  

ad journ  so  tha t  I  can resume a f te r  some minutes  and then I  

dea l  w i th  the  Dene l  work  s t ream.   So tomorrow we  wi l l ,  le t  

us  work  on  the  bas i s  tha t  we w i l l  s ta r t  a t  ten ,  bu t  there  is  a  
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poss ib i l i t y  tha t  I  m igh t  want  us  to  s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  ten ,  

wh ich  may we l l  be  most  we lcome to  a l l  o f  you i f  there  are  

i ssues to  be  scra tched out  tomorrow morn ing .   

 But  i f  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  ha l f  past  ten  ins tead o f  ten  I  

w i l l  le t  Mr  Myburgh know and then he w i l l  le t  everybody  

know.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  so  we w i l l  then ad journ  the  day 

sess ion  fo r  today.   We ad journ .    

HEARING ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good even ing  Mr  Kennedy,  good even ing  

everybody.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Good even ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good even ing  Ms Brown.  

MS BROWN:    Good even ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  ass is t  

the  Commiss ion  aga in .  

MS BROWN:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    I  unders tand there  a re  lega l  20 

rep resenta t i ves  fo r  Ms Brown? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe they  can put  themse lves on  

record .  

COUNSEL FOR MS BROWN:   Chai r  W Dethenga[? ]  fo r  Ms 
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B rown,  I  am today ass is ted  by  Peop le  f rom the  Bar,  Mr  

Thab iso  Segag i [? ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  may I  ask  tha t  the 

w i tness be  asked  to  take  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  p lease  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   Please s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MS BROWN:    My  name is  Lynet te  Brown.  

REGISTRAR:  Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  10 

prescr ibed oath?  

MS BROWN:   No.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MS BROWN:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th .    I f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say  

so  he lp  me God.  

MS BROWN:   So he lp  me God.  20 

LYNETTE BROWN:   [d .s .s . ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    Yes you may proceed Mr  

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you  Cha i r.  Good even ing  Ms 

Brown.  
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MS BROWN:   Good even ing  Advocate  Kennedy.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ms Brown as the  lea rned Cha i r  has 

a l ready ind ica ted  you ass is ted  the  Cha i r  in  the  proceed ings  

o f  the  Commiss ion  prev ious ly  in  re la t ion  to  some o f  the 

o ther  en t i t ies .  Th is  even ing  my quest ions w i l l  be  focused 

spec i f i ca l l y  on  Dene l ,  wh ich  was a l so  a  S ta te  owned  

corpo ra t ion  under  the  Pub l i c  Enterpr ises  Min is t r y  when you 

he ld  the  pos i t ion  as  Min i s te r,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:    You ’ re  r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Ms Brown is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you 10 

have been p rov ided w i th  a  number  o f  documents  fo r  

purposes o f  th is  even ing ’s  hear ing? 

MS BROWN:    A re  these the  documents  Exh ib i t  W27  

onwards?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That ’s  cor rec t .  

MS BROWN:    Yes I  have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  the  ve rs ion  tha t  

you have s im i la r  to  ours  has page numbers  bo th  on  the  top 

le f t  and the  top  r igh t?  

MS BROWN:    I  am on a  –  I  have  them on a  computer  so  20 

yes I  have numbers  on  the  le f t  and  r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay now fo r  purposes  o f  the  

quest ion ing  we are  go ing  to  focus s imp ly  on  the  top  le f t ,  so  

you can ignore  the  top  r igh t  numbers .  

MS BROWN:    Yes,  bu t  you w i l l  have to  g ive  me the  page 
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Advocate .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Yes indeed.    

MS BROWN:    Because ja ,  so  tha t  I  can add a  page in to  

the  computer.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    F ine ,  so  I  am go ing  to  s ta r t  w i th  an  

a f f idav i t  tha t  you  s igned and you w i l l  f ind  tha t  –  i f  we look  

a t  the  top  le f t  hand page numbers ,  Dene l12-703,  I  am on ly  

go ing  to  use the  las t  d ig i t s  o f  the  number  fo r  conven ience,  

bu t  can you look ou t  fo r  the  a f f idav i t  where  i t  s ta r ts  a t  page  

703,  i t  i s  your  second supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  10 

MS BROWN:    703,  you jus t  have to  g ive  me one moment ,  I  

have my second supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you have i t  marked 703?  

MS BROWN:    Yes,  yes  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i f  I  can  ask  you then  to  tu rn  

ahead to  page 736,  sor ry  735 where  i t  appears  tha t  your  

s ignature  was made.  

MS BROWN:    I  have tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you have tha t?   Do you  conf i rm  

tha t  th is  document  i s  you r  a f f idav i t  tha t  you s igned before  20 

a  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths ,  i t  i s  re fe r red  to  as  your  second  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  

MS BROWN:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   I  be l ieve  th i s  a f f idav i t  

may have a l ready been in t roduced in  another  s t ream o f  
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ev idence Cha i r,  bu t  fo r  the  record  jus t  to  avo id  any 

poss ib le  doubt  in  tha t  regard  may I  then jus t  ask  the  

w i tness to  conf i rm the  contents  o f  the  a f f idav i t  and then I  

w i l l  ask  fo r  i t  to  be  admi t ted  as  ev idence in  th is  s t ream.    

Ms Brown . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

MS BROWN:    I  conf i rm tha t  i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  the  contents  a re  cor rec t  

fac tua l l y.  

MS BROWN:    Factua l l y  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  thank you very  much.    Cha i r  10 

may we then ask  fo r  th is  document  togethe r  w i th  i t s  

annexures to  be  admi t ted .   We have taken the  l iber ty  o f  

inc lud ing  th i s  as  Exh ib i t  W27 in  Dene l  bund le  12 ,  and we  

wou ld  ask  fo r  i t s  fo rmal  admiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say as  Exh ib i t  27?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    W27.  

CHAIRPERSON:    W27.   The second supp lementary  

a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Lynet te  Brown s tar t ing  a t  page 703 i s  

admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  W27.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Now Ms B rown i t  20 

appears  f rom your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you dea l  w i th  a  number  o f  

SU’s  re la t ing  par t i cu la r ly  to  the  appo in tment  o f  boards o f  

d i rec tors  to  var ious S ta te  owned ent i t ies ,  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We as I  have ind i ca ted  are  go ing  to  
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focus th is  even ing  on ly  on  the  Dene l  Board  appo in tments  

and i s  i t  co r rec t  tha t  you were  prov ided w i th  a  copy  o f  what  

has been re fer red  to  as  the  Fundudz i  repor t ,  you  in  fac t  

re fe r  to  tha t  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

MS BROWN:    Yes,  I  have been  prov ided w i th  Fundudz i  

repor t  by  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and you were  then g iven an  

oppor tun i ty  to  comment  on  the  Fundudz i  repor t  where  i t  

ra ised var ious fac ts  o r  comments  or  v iews in  re la t ion  to  our  

ro le  and the  ro le  o f  peop le  such as  your  PA in  the  process 10 

lead ing  up to  the  appo in tment  o f  the  var ious Boards,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MS BROWN:    That ’s  r igh t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now we a re  go ing  to  look  par t i cu la r l y  

a t  the  comments  tha t  you ra i sed  in  re la t ion  to  the  Dene l  

Board  as  I  have ind ica ted .    May I  take  you in  your  –  I  am 

sor ry  may I  jus t  ind ica te  fo r  the  record  Cha i r  tha t  the  

Fundudz i  repor t  has a l ready been  in t roduced in to  ev idence 

in  p rev ious hear ings by  th is  Commiss ion .    

 May I  take  you  Ms Brown to  page 710,  i t  i s  20 

parag raph 26 o f  your  a f f idav i t .  

MS BROWN:    I  am there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And here  jus t  above –  in  fac t  sor ry  

parag raph 28,  jus t  above 28 you have a  head ing  “ the  

appo in tment  o f  the  Dene l  Board  du r ing  2015” ,  cor rec t?  
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MS BROWN:    That  i s  so .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you re fer  in  pa ragraph 28 to  an  

app l i ca t ion  tha t  you submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion  to  g ive  

ev idence on the  tes t imony o f  Mr  Geta tso  K lakud i [? ] ,  and 

you say I  have  descr ibed the  appo in tment  o f  the  2015 

Dene l  Board  I  have noth ing  to  add  in  te rms o f  the  p rocess.  

MS BROWN:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now tha t  a rose as  I  unders tand i t  

f rom the  ev idence tha t  Mr  K lakud i  gave prev ious ly  a r is ing  

f rom the  Fundudz i  Repor t  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MS BROWN:    That  i s  so .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now we are  go ing  to  have a  look in  a  

moment  a t  some o f  the  par t i cu la r  ind iv idua l  aspects  tha t  

you have ra ised  some concerns  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  and I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  the  re levant  parag raphs so  tha t  

you can exp la in  the  concerns and  how they arose.    Your  

f i rs t  concern  ar i s ing  f rom the  Fundudz i  Repor t  i s  th is ,  in  

parag raph 28 you say I  am puzz led  by  the  ins inuat ion  in  

parag raph 14.6 .12  on page 61 o f  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  and  

you quote  i t  Ms B rown,  you say i t  reads:  20 

“ In  her  response Min is te r  Brown fa i led  to  dea l  w i th  

the  fac t  tha t  the  10  CV’s  were  no t  sent  to  the  

Min is te r ’s  o f f i ce  as  they were  ins tead sent  to  

Dav id ’s  pe rsona l  emai l  address. ”  

And you say:  
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“ Inc identa l l y  my  response a lso  answers  the  

Commiss ion ’s  request  to  exp la in  Ms K im Dav ids '  

ro le  in  the  appo in t  o f  d i rec tors  to  S ta te  Owned  

Ent i t ies . ”  

Cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:   Correc t .     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you proceed to  dea l  w i th  

the  ro le  o f  Ms K im Dav ids .    Now you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  in  the  

Fundudz i  repor t  there  was deta i led  re ference  to  the  

process tha t  was  fo l lowed accord ing  to  the  documents  –  10 

the  documentary  t ra i l  tha t  Fundudz i  fo l lowed o f  a  number  

o f  emai l s  and var ious o ther  documents  tha t  re la ted  to  

nominat ions o f  peop le  to  the  Board  o f  Dene l  as  we l l  as  the  

ac tua l  p rocess o f  approva l  o f  those nominees and by  you  

as  Min i s te r  and then u l t imate ly  a  fu r the r  approva l  tha t  was  

g iven by  the  Cab ine t .   Do you reca l l  tha t  was dea l t  w i th  in  

the  Fundudz i  Repor t?  

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now one  o f  the  th ings tha t  they  

commented on in  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  was the  ro le  tha t  Ms 20 

K im Dav ids  p layed in  the  process o f  rece iv ing  nominat ions,  

fo rward ing  them to  you fo r  cons ide ra t ion  and then a lso  the  

fac t  tha t  there  were  ce r ta in  emai l  addresses tha t  appeared 

o f  concern  o r  in te res t  to  the  Fundudz i  invest iga tors .    One 

was Ms Dav ids  . . . [ in te rvenes]     
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MS BROWN:    No .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Sor ry?    

MS BROWN:    Sor ry,  I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Car ry  on ,  one was the  emai l  address 

o f  Ms Dav ids .    Now what  d id  you want  to  say?  

MS BROWN:    I  wanted to  jus t  say  tha t  what  I  know in  the  

depar tment  tha t  the  server  was o f ten  o f f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS BROWN:    And they o f ten  used the i r  own addresses,  

the i r  p r iva te  addresses,  bu t  –  and Fundudz i  ac tua l l y  asked  10 

me fo r  the  ro le  o f  the  appo in tment  o f  d i rec tors ,  o f  K im 

Dav ids ’ ro le  in  the  appo in tment  o f  d i rec tors  to  S ta te Owned  

Companies ,  they  d idn ’ t  ask  me anyth ing  about  the  CV ’s  

tha t  were  sent ,  so  I  responded to  the  quest ion  o f  the  –  I  

mean I  have wr i t ten  i t  in  a l l  fa i rness,  Fundudz i ’s  wr i t ten  

quest ion  to  me was a  s imp le  one,  i t  d id  no t  ask  me to  dea l  

w i th  the  fac t  tha t  CV ’s  were  sent  to  Ms Dav ids  emai l ,  a l l  

tha t  was asked o f  me was the  ro le  in  the  appo in tment  o f  

bo th  members  and I  sa id  there  was no ro le  fo r  her  except  

fo r  her  to  be  ab le  to  pass on  whatever  CV ’s ,  whatever  20 

names,  what  comes in ,  whethe r  i t ’s  th rough a  wa lk- in  o r  i t  

i s  sent  v ia  emai l ,  a l l  she  had to  do  was pass i t  in  to  lega l  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Le t ’s  jus t  be  c lea r,  Ms Dav ids  was a t  

tha t  s tage your  PA,  i s  tha t  r igh t ,  your  secre ta ry?  
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MS BROWN:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  was he r  . . . [ in te rvenes]     

MS BROWN:    My  PA.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Her  o f f i c ia l  t i t l e  was tha t  PA to  the  

Min is te r.   

MS BROWN:    PA to  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  as  PA she  

wou ld  then be rece iv ing  cer ta in  documents  tha t  were  

u l t imate ly  addressed to  you as  Min is te r  she wou ld  rece ive  

i t  as  your  PA and then be respons ib le  fo r  pass ing  tha t  on  to  10 

you when requ i red  and process ing  any fu r ther  s teps such 

as  a  rep ly,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS BROWN:   No t  rea l l y  Cha i r,  in  fac t  Advocate  Kennedy I  

am f ind ing  i t  very  d isconcer t ing  tha t  I  see my own face and 

I  can ’ t  see you,  so  I  am not  su re  i f  –  I  see my own face 

tw ice ,  there  we go,  there  I  see you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh you see us  now.  

MS BROWN:   I  am not  ta lk ing  to  a  rea l  person Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you can see  h im now.  

MS BROWN:  I  can  Cha i r  thank you ve ry  much. ,  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And you can see me as we l l?  

MS BROWN:  I  can ’ t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ’ t  see me? 

MS BROWN:   I  can ’ t  see you –  there  I  can see you .   There  

I  see you now Cha i r,  bu t  fo r  a  wh i le  I  was on ly  see ing  
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myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh [ laugh ing ] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wel l  I  suggest  i t  i s  a  b less ing  tha t  

you don ’ t  see me here .   A l r igh t ,  le t ’s  ge t  back to  the  issue.   

So yes i s  there  anyth ing  e l se  you want  to  add in  re la t ion  to  

Ms Dav ids  ro le?  

MS BROWN:   That ’s  a l l  I  ac tua l l y  want  to  say,  i s  tha t  she 

d idn ’ t  have to  see me,  now I  am see ing  me aga in  so  now I  

am say ing  tha t  –  she d idn ’ t  have to  g ive  i t  to  me,  she jus t  

needs to  pass i t  on ,  i t  was in  essence i t  d idn ’ t  mat te r  10 

whose CV came in ,  they  had  to go  to  Lega l  and 

Governance.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Lega l  and Governance I  th ink  tha t ’s  

a lso  been re fe r red  to  in  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  as  LGR,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?   

MS BROWN:   Wel l  we used to  ca l l  i t  the  Lega l  &  

Governance Un i t  bu t  i t  i s  in  essence the  Lega l  Governance  

and R isk  Un i t  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and r igh t  now she in  fac t  gave 

the  same exp lanat ion  tha t  you gave in  re la t ion  to  the  use 20 

o f  a  persona l  emai l ,  she in  fac t  i s  re f lec ted  in  the  Fundudz i  

Repor t  as  say ing  tha t  somet imes her  depar tmenta l  serve r  

was down as you ind ica ted  and she wou ld  then use he r  

own emai l  address,  bu t  one o f  the  o ther  po in ts  tha t  was 

ra ised in  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  i s  an  emai l  address tha t  she 
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rece ived some documents  f rom and you dea l  w i th  tha t  in  

your  pa ragraph 31,  i f  I  may read i t  in to  the  record ,  you say 

she,  i t  i s  re fe r r ing  to  Ms Dav ids :  

“She has no o the r  ro le  to  p lay  o ther  than the  one I  

desc r ibed.   Th is  i s  no t  a  mat te r  o f  job  desc r ip t ion  

bu t  a  s imp le  mat te r  o f  common sense.   I  had 

responded tha t  I  do  no t  know what  

In fopor ta l1@zofu .com i s .   I t  i s  un fa i r  tha t  I  seem to  

be  expected to  loca te  and exp la in  Ms K im Dav ids  

a l leged in te rac t ions w i th  tha t  address. ”  10 

Now o f  cou rse  what  Fundudz i  have commented on is  the  

fac t  tha t  a  number  o f  documents ,  and  we ’ re  go ing  to  look  

a t  a  few in  a  moment ,  in  fac t  were  sent  to  Ms Dav ids  

whethe r  o r  no t  to  her  depar tmen ta l  emai l  address or  her  

p r iva te  emai l  address f rom th is  par t i cu la r  emai l  add ress 

tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  here ,  the  In fopor ta l  address in  i t s  shor t  

te rm l i ke  tha t .  

 Now o f  cou rse  there  has been ev idence led  in  the  

Commiss ion  prev ious l y  about  th is  par t i cu la r  emai l  add ress 

hav ing  fea tured in  va r ious o ther  mat te rs  and the  apparent  20 

l ink  be tween tha t  emai l  address  and the  Gupta  Assoc ia tes ,  

such as  pa r t i cu la r ly  Mr  Essa and Mr  Chau le r.    You have 

ind ica ted  in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you were  no t  aware  o f  th is  

emai l  address,  have you s ince  lea rn t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   No.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry?   Car ry  on .     

MS BROWN:   I  am sor ry  I  am . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Yes,  i f  you  can jus t  wa i t  fo r  the  

quest ion .    Have you s ince  learn t  o f  the  connect ion  

be tween tha t  ema i l  address and the  Gupta  Assoc ia te?  

MS BROWN:   Wel l  I  don ’ t  th ink  I  know who tha t  emai l  

add ress be longs to ,  I  s t i l l  don ’ t  know who i t  be longs to ,  i t  

sounds l i ke  i t  cou ld  be  h im,  I  have l i s tened to  some o f  the 

sess ions on  the  Commiss ion  du r ing  the  Eskom per iod  and  

in  essence i t ’s  I  l i s tened to  somebody yesterday speak ing  10 

on –  an  IT fo rens ic  exper t  speak ing  on  Ms  Dan ie ls ’ records  

and tha t  there  cou ld  have been another  number  and I  am 

assuming tha t ’s  p robab ly  what  you are  re fe r r ing  to  bu t  I  

can ’ t  te l l  you  tha t  I  know who tha t  –  and I  don ’ t  want  to  

specu la te ,  because I  am under  oa th  and I  don ’ t  want  to  

specu la te  about  who the  In fopor ta l  address re la tes  to ,  i t  is  

no t  on  my computer,  i t  was on Ms Dav ids ’ compute r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     I  unders tand your  pos i t ion  Ms 

Brown.  Were  you aware  a t  the  t ime tha t  the re  was  

cor respondence be ing  rece ived by  Ms Dav ids  f rom th is  20 

par t i cu la r  emai l  address?  

MS BROWN:   No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     And so   you wou ldn ’ t  have been 

aware  i f  there  i s  a  connect ion  be tween tha t  emai l  add ress 

and the  Gupta  Assoc ia tes ,  you weren ’ t  aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  
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t ime and you are  no t  ab le  to  comment  on  tha t  now as I  

unders tand your  pos i t ion?  

MS BROWN:   I  can ’ t  comment  on  i t  now.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Yes,  may I  jus t  ask  you th i s  t hough,  

i f  the  Commiss ion  f inds  on  the  bas i s  o f  the  ev idence was  

led ,  o f  wh ich  you obv ious ly  have  no persona l  knowledge,  

tha t  th is  was a  Gupta  l inked emai l  address you fee l  now,  

w i th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  any concern .   Do you have any 

comment  to  make on the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  Ms Dav is  may 

have been rece iv ing  cor respondence f rom a  Gupta  l inked 10 

emai l  address about  such sens i t i ve  mat te rs  as the  

nominat ion  and appo in tment  o f  Board  members?  

MS BROWN:   O f  course  i t  wou ld  be  d is tu rb ing  to  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     And i f  you  had known abou t  tha t  a t  

the  t ime what  m ight  you have done? 

MS BROWN:   We l l  I  am in  a cour t  case a t  the  moment  fo r  

hav ing  asked Ms  Dav ids  to  leave ,  I  haven ’ t  opposed the  

cour t  mat te r  bu t  I  do  –  I  have –  so  I  am not  sure  what  I  

wou ld  have done,  I  mean i t  i s  specu la t i ve  and i t  i s  

specu la t ion  bu t  I  wou ld  have ac ted .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess the  one th ing  you shou ld  be  ab le  

to  say w i th  conf idence maybe is  tha t  a t  leas t  you  wou ld  

have ca l led  fo r  an  exp lanat ion?  

MS BROWN:     O f  course  Cha i r  I  thought  the  Advocate  

wanted someth ing  harsher.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  tha t  may be  so  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  am abso lu te ly,  I  wou ld  have asked.  

CHAIRPERSON:     And then depend ing  on the  exp lanat ion  

you might  have  taken whatever  ac t ion  you deemed 

appropr ia te .  

MS BROWN:   Exact ly.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Thank you.   Ms Brown what  was the  

sys tem in  p lace  fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  Board  Members  to  10 

en t i t ies  such as  Dene l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  somebody jus t  d is tu rb ing  you?  

MS BROWN:   I  have the  te lev is ion  on ,  somebody has the  

te lev is ion  on  and  I  can hear  myse l f  speak ing  somewhere ,  

so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you have asked them to  take  –  to  

swi tch  i t  o f f  ja .  

MS BROWN:   I  am very  sor ry  about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     So  you were  ab le  to  see yourse l f  20 

tw ice  and hear  yourse l f  tw ice .  

MS BROWN:   I  can  hear  myse l f  tw ice ,  i t  sounds te r r ib le .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Okay Ms Brown the  quest ion  is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   Sor ry  what  i s  the  quest ion?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:     Yes,  le t  me repeat  i t ,  a t  the  t ime you  

–  sor ry  may I  jus t  ask  a t  what  –  rough ly  a t  what  s tage d id  

you become Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  En terpr i ses ,  can you reca l l  

rough ly  the  da te  t ha t  you took up  tha t  o f f i ce?  

MS BROWN:   That  was one o f  the  most  t raumat ic  days fo r  

me,  so  I  w i l l  never  fo rge t  i t ,  26 t h  o f  May 2014.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say  t raumat ic  Ms Brown,  I  

thought  tha t  was promot ion?   I  thought  tha t  was a  

promot ion .  10 

MS BROWN:   I t  fe l l  square ly  in  t he  m idd le  o f  a  NASREC 

Conference . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  the  sca le  o f  –  I  don ’ t  want  to  

speak about  i t ,  whoever  wants  to  become a  po l i t i c ian  

shou ld  speak to  me next  t ime.     

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ms Brown o f  course  tha t  was about  a  

year  be fo re  the  Dene l  Board  appo in tments  were  made tha t  

we a re  look ing  a t  here ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS BROWN:   Yes ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  when you  ar r i ved as  Min is te r  and 20 

then when you proceeded to  under take var ious  Board 

appo in tments ,  inc lud ing  Dene l  was there  a  par t i cu la r  

sys tem tha t  you fo l lowed fo r  the  rece iv ing  o f  –  o r  inv i ta t ion  

fo r  nominat ions and app l i ca t ion  and d id  you have such a  

sys tem and how d id  you fo l low i t?  
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MS BROWN:   Yes we l l  there  was a  sys tem in  p lace .    Le t  

me p lease a l so  say Advocate  Kennedy,  o r  Cha i r  ac tua l l y,  

there  was a  sys tem in  p lace  and th is  sys tem,  and I  heard  

den ia l  o f  th is  as  we l l ,  bu t  as  fa r  as  I  was concerned the  

sys tem was to  adver t i se  w i th  c lear  o r  le t ’s  s tep  one s tep  

back,  every  th ree  years  Dene l ,  any o f  the  S ta te  owned 

compan ies  boards came up fo r  renewal  o r  ro ta t ion ,  they 

ca l l  i t  ro ta t ion .    So fo r  –  so  i t  i s  fo r  ro ta t ion  or  re ten t ion .  

 Now when I  a r r i ved,  so  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  I  do  jus t  

because I  am –  I  woke up one morn ing  and th ink  i t ’s  a  10 

good idea to  ro ta te  the  Board .   The Depar tment  te l l s  me 

tha t  i t  i s  now,  the  Board  has been in  p lace  fo r  th ree  months  

–  th ree  years  –  and we now have to  assess the  Board  and 

do a l l  o f  those th ings.  

 Then a t  the  same t ime we put  ou t  an  adver t  fo r  –  to  

open i t  up ,  now I  have heard  somebody,  I  can ’ t  remember  

who i t  was,  say ing  tha t  they . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  th is ,  bu t  I  was 

to ld  by  the  Lega l  & Governance Un i t  tha t  the  r i sk  was not  

su f f i c ien t  fo r  wha t  we were  requ i r i ng  and tha t  i t  wou ld  be  

good and I  thought  i t  was good anyway,  to  open up  the  l i s t  20 

so  tha t  we cou ld  have –  tha t  l i s t  i s  happen ing .  

 The Lega l  and –  so  then the  adver t ,  i t  usua l l y  runs  

fo r  about  two weeks or  so  and then the  Lega l  &  

Governance Un i t  rece ives themse lves,  o r,  wh ich  is  more  

popu lar l y  done i s  tha t  i t  comes to  the  Min i s te r ’s  o f f i ce ,  
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whethe r  i t  i s  in  Pre tor ia  o r  in  Cape Town and they e i ther  

d rop  i t  o r  they emai l  i t .    

 Th is  i s  a l l  in  my mind,  th is  i s  what  I  be l ieve  

happened.    I  made ac tua l l y  –  i t  was –  remember  th is  

p rocess isn ’ t  a  process tha t  was ac tua l l y  carved in  s tone,  

th is  i s  a  p rocess tha t  deve loped w i th in  –  i t  was a  

convent ion  –  i t  deve loped w i th in  t h is  –  the  Depar tment  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses  and so  I  fo l lowed tha t  one as  we l l ,  and 

then I  wou ld  ge t  a  shor t l i s t  o f  the  names,  because  

everybody app l ied ,  ha i rd ressers ,  you know peop le  who  10 

were  work ing ,  everybody app l ied  and so  there  were  a lways 

a  who le  number  o f  peop le  who app l ied  fo r  the  Boards,  so  

what  wou ld  happen is  tha t  the  Governance Un i t  w i th in  the  

Lega l  &  Governance Un i t ,  w i l l  rece ive  th i s  and they w i l l  s i f t  

th rough a l l  the  –  they w i l l  s i f t  th rough a l l  the  CV ’s  and i f  

there  are  no  CV’s  i f  there  are  names w i th  te lephone 

numbers ,  where  somebody nominates  somebody they w i l l  

go  the  ex t ra  m i le ,  and then I  wou ld  ge t  the  mat r i x ,  a  very 

la rge  sheet  tha t  says these are  the  peop le  who ac tua l l y  

qua l i f y  fo r  the  po r t fo l io ,  wh ichever  por t fo l io  i t  i s .  20 

 Cha i r  th is  happened seven years  ago,  tha t ’s  my 

reco l lec t ion .    Now I  th ink  –  okay le t  me jus t  leave i t  a t  

tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.    Ms Brown there  

is  re fe rence in  these papers  to  your  ind ica t ing  when asked  
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by  Fundudz i  tha t  there  were  a  few peop le  who had ac tua l l y  

approached you to  be  appo in ted  to  the  Dene l  Board  and  

you ind ica ted  in  your  response tha t  you then gave them 

d i rec t ions as  i t  were  to  the  Lega l  &  Governance Commi t tee  

where  they shou ld  submi t  the i r  app l i ca t ions fo rma l ly.   Is  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:     Wel l  I  e i ther  d id  tha t  o r  I  gave them –  I  

never  knew the i r  numbers  and I  wou ldn ’ t  g ive  ou t  de ta i l s ,  

p r iva te  numbers  to  no t  –  yes s t rangers  to  them,  bu t  no t  

s t rangers  to  me,  so  I  wou ld  g i ve  my own o f f i ce ’s  number  10 

and te l l  them to  wr i te  to  my own o f f i ce .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MS BROWN:   Or  send an emai l  to  my own o f f i ce .    There  

were  no t  a  la rge  number  o f  peop le  who d id  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now you have touched on the  

broad approach tha t  was fo l lowed  or  the  sys tem tha t  had 

been fo l lowed f rom the  past  in to  th is  s tage,  can I  ask  you  

to  what  ex ten t  d id  you take  in to  account ,  i f  a t  a l l ,  the 

par t i cu la r  sk i l l s  and qua l i f i ca t ions o f  ind i v idua l  app l i cants  

o r  nominees and a  poss ib le  need to  have a  ba lance  20 

between the  sk i l l s  o f  peop le  who wou ld  s i t  on  one  o f  your  

Boards,  on  tha t  payro l l .  

MS BROWN:   I  th ink  i t ’s  -  Chai r  I  th ink i t  is  an incredibly  

important  –  that  was what the matr ix const i tuted because in 

the advert  i t  would tel l  you that  we need people wi th 
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f inancial  ski l ls,  legal  ski l ls.   We need people wi th knowledge 

in av iat ion.   We need people in wi th knowledge in energy.   

We need people and so forth.   So there was a wide – we 

need people wi th forensic capabi l i t ies.   We need people wi th 

internal  audi t  capabi l i t ies.    

 Now I  cannot look i t  was seven years ago I  cannot 

real ly remember what exact ly went  into the adverts and I  do 

not  have any documentat ion for i t .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  

MS BROWN:   But  I  th ink that  is a crucial  and a very 10 

important  part  of  appoint ing boards.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .   Now you then proceed in your 

aff idavi t  to make some comments on the appointment of  Mr 

Daniel  Mantsha as Chairman of  Denel .   You see that  at  the 

foot  of  page 711? 

MS BROWN:   3.2? 

ADV KENNEDY:   In fact  the headings at  the foot  of  page 711 

and then 712 paragraph 33 is your comment.   Now… 

MS BROWN:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   I t  is correct  is i t  not  that  Mr Mantsha was 20 

nominated as a new board member in 2015 and also as 

chairperson?  Is that  correct?  Ms Brown.  I t  looks l ike we 

have lost  her.   We have lost  the connect ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  looks l ike she is  f rozen.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink the technic ians wi l l  at tend to  i t .    

MS BROWN:   Nominated as Chai r  and board member.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay you – you had f rozen Ms Brown 

so we did not  hear what you were saying except  what the 

few words you have just  ment ioned now as you ended your 

response.   So please start  your response af resh.  

MS BROWN:   Okay.   I  am saying that  i t  was seven years ago 

and I  remember him being nominated as a board member but  

I  th ink f rom amongst  the group I  cannot  remember real ly.   

You wi l l  – I  am not  sure i f  he was nominated as chai r  and 10 

board member.   I  th ink he was just  nominated as board 

member.   To you Chai r  and to Advocate Kennedy this was 

seven years ago I  do not  remember the granular detai ls.  

ADV KENNEDY:   No I  fu l ly understand that .   My quest ion 

was simply that  you approved the appointment  of  Mr 

Mantsha as both a director and as chairperson f rom mid.  

MS BROWN:   I  d id.  

ADV KENNEDY:   From mid-2015 is that  correct? 

MS BROWN:   In 2015? 

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.   Now can I  take you now to another 20 

document page 767 one of  those that  were furnished to your 

legal  team yesterday.    

MS BROWN:   Wel l  af ter nine.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes we are sorry that  i t  came at  a fa i r ly 

late stage.  
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MS BROWN:   Time – I  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you not  say last  t ime Ms Brown you 

are – did you not  say last  t ime that  you are… 

MS BROWN:   I  am not  placing any object ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are ret i red.   Did you not  say last  you 

are ret i red?  How can you complain about  t ime.  You have 

got  al l  the t ime. 767 you said? 

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Ms Brown do you have 767 yet? 10 

MS BROWN:   I  do have i t .  

ADV KENNEDY:   That  is a cabinet  memorandum.  I t  is dated 

the 11t h of  May 2015.  

MS BROWN:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Now that  is as I  understand i t  f rom the 

document is a document that  would have been generated 

f rom within your department and wi th your approval  to then 

submit  your decis ion to appoint  var ious members of  the new 

board to cabinet  for i ts f inal  approval .   Is that  r ight? 

MS BROWN:   Yes that  would be – that  would be so.  20 

ADV KENNEDY:   As Minister you were the Minister  o f  State 

represent ing the state as the nominal  shareholder in Denel ,  

is that  r ight? 

MS BROWN:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   So in terms of  your… 
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MS BROWN:   Shareholder representat ive.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Shareholder ’s  representat ive that  is  

correct .   So in ordinary company law you as the shareholder 

or the shareholder representat ive you would have the 

decision making powers to appoint  board members but  

because th is was a government  owned ent i ty on whose 

behal f  you were the shareholder ’s representat ive you 

presumably would then put  i t  to cabinet  for i ts approval ,  is 

that  r ight? 

MS BROWN:   Yes I  – I  would take i t  to the ANC Deployment 10 

Commit tee and then I  wi l l  take i t  to cabinet .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .   And – and i t  was then sent  to 

cabinet  over – only once you had approved the appointment 

of  these individuals to the board and Mr Mantsha as 

chairperson in par t icular,  is that  r ight? 

MS BROWN:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right  now th is memorandum helpful ly sets 

out  the – the persons who were now approved by you and 

were now being put  to the cabinet  for approval  and i f  I  can 

take you to the next  page 768 you wi l l  see at  paragraph 5 20 

headed Discussion.    

MS BROWN:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Now I  am not  going to read everything into 

the record but  e ffect ively i t  refers to the need to rotate 

members or to appoint  new members and i t  seems that  was 
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decided was that  one of  the outgoing board members was 

selected for re-appointment,  is that  correct? 

MS BROWN:   I  – wel l  yes i t  is – I  can see i t  now yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right  and in fact  i t  was a Mr Motseke I  

bel ieve we see that  in 5.2 that  he would be… 

MS BROWN:   I  see that  there.  

ADV KENNEDY:   That  he would be re-appointed for the 

purpose of  cont inui ty.   But  apart  f rom him there were nine 

other members of  the outgoing board who were not  to be re-

appointed is that  r ight? 10 

MS BROWN:   That  is so.  

ADV KENNEDY:   R ight .   Now the document then says and 

here I  would l ike to read i t  into the record i f  I  may?   

“ I t  is recommended – this is paragraph 5.3 i t  

is recommended that  Mr Daniel  Mantsha be 

appointed as non-execut ive di rector and 

chairperson of  the Denel  board and Mr 

Tamsanqa Msomi and then i t  g ives al l  the 

rest  of  the names that  is Msomi,  Mahumapelo 

that  is Mr Tanyame I  th ink i t  is,  Mahumapelo,  20 

Ms Pinkie Mahlangu,  Lieutenant  General  

Nkabinde ret i red,  Ms Mpho Kgomongoe, Ms 

Khumbudzo Ntshavheni  and Ms Mandindi  and 

Ms Mokoena be appointed to the board wi th  

effect  f rom 14 July – I  beg your pardon 24 
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July 2015 for a  per iod of  three years subject  

to annual  review by the Minister  of  Publ ic  

Enterpr ises.”  

 That  is what was recommended.  

MS BROWN:   That  is – yes,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .  And then what is then set  out  f rom 

paragraph 5.4 is the prof i les of  the new nominees and the 

f i rst  is that  of  Mr Mantsha 541.   I t  says:  

“Mr Daniel  Mantsha obtained BJuris in 1991 

and LLB in 1993 both f rom the Univers i ty of  10 

Venda.  Mr Mantsha is an at torney who has 

acquired valuable experience over the years 

in corporate f inance,  t ransact ional  advising,  

business management,  commercial  law,  

media and communicat ion.   He has 

part ic ipated in major  t ransact ions such as 

advising the Ci ty of  Johannesburg on issuing 

the f i rst  munic ipal  bond in the Afr ican 

cont inent  corporat isat ion of  Eskom as wel l  as 

a t ransact ional  advisor to the Nat ional  20 

Department of  Labour on procurement of  IT 

systems.  Mr Mantsha is recommended for  

appointment as non-execut ive di rector and 

chairperson of  the Denel  board.   He br ings 

expert ise in t ransact ions,  business strategy 
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and law to the board.   His CV is  herewith 

at tached as Annexure B1. ”  

 Now we have not  included the CV just  to t ry and keep 

the documentat ion sl im here.   Were you sat isf ied on the 

basis of  th is summary of  his background that  Mr Mantsha 

was a sui table person to be appointed as chai rperson of  the 

Denel  board? 

MS BROWN:   A decision I  made seven years ago Chai r  i t  – I  

– I  s igned off  on this document so the whole document I  

supported.   The assumpt ion – the only assumpt ion I  can 10 

make is that  whoever is appointed to th is commit tee that  

they have a l l  been vet ted and they al l  are – that  they al l  

have been vet ted and they al l  have the – the appl icat ion – or 

the expert ise that  they say they have and that  my 

department would have done that .  

ADV KENNEDY:   What is the commit tee – I  beg your pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what – I  am sorry Mr Kennedy.   But  Ms 

Brown why would you make an assumpt ion about that?  Why 

would you not  sat isfy yoursel f  that  i t  has been done?  I t  is  

such an important  th ing.  20 

MS BROWN:   How wi l l  you – I  need to sat isfy mysel f  other 

than through a wel l -equipped, wel l  run department.   I  had no 

reason to bel ieve that  any of  the – especial ly  that  uni t  in 

part icular that  any of  them would put  forward and not  check 

– or not  vet  in the way they are supposed to do so.   In fact  
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the vet t ing does not  only happen with them but  i t  has also 

happened at  – takes place wi th an external  audi t .   I  am just  

not  sure what you mean Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No you see … 

MS BROWN:   What was i t  that  you think I  was supposed to 

do? 

CHAIRPERSON:   You see i f  you have to make a decision – 

an important  decision such as ei ther appoint ing or 

recommending members of  a board you must  sat isfy yoursel f  

that  anyone you recommend or you appoint  is sui table and 10 

appropriate to be appointed.   Okay.    

Now you cannot sat isfy yoursel f  on important  th ings 

by making assumpt ions.   You have got  to say I  want to be 

sat isf ied.   I f  somebody for example – i f  i t  is important  that  

somebody should have for example a certain degree you 

cannot or you should not  just  be happy wi th a l ine f rom in his  

CV that  he has or  she has the degree you need to see proof  

of  the degree.   You should not  make an assumpt ion when i t  

comes to important  matters.    

So I  do not  know whether when you said you 20 

assumed whether  that  was del iberate or whether i t  was a 

manner of  ta lk ing but  I  expected you to – I  would have 

expected you to  sat isfy yoursel f  that  certain important  

requi rements that  they needed to comply wi th or meet  before 

you could recommend them or  appoint  them were met  and 



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 206 of 296 
 

your department should place before you documentat ion that  

would sat isfy you.   That  is what I  am talk ing about .    

MS BROWN:   Yes and we – they have both an external  –  

they have an internal  arrangement where they do the vet t ing 

and then they have an external  arrangement.   Then I  look at  

i t  wi th in and I  – I  am a bi t  fuzzy in my head about how but  I  

th ink where they present  i t  to me as a commit tee.    

They have checked the qual i f icat ions of  the person,  

they have checked the credi t  record of  the person.   They 

have checked – I  mean I  cannot  remember what they al l  10 

check but  they check a whole number of  th ings so that  they 

vet ted – vet  these people.    

And as – when I  came in there was a company cal led 

Nexus who would do the external  vet t ing and this has been a 

process that  has taken place for I  th ink a couple of  ministers 

before me as wel l  and I  adopted that  process too.   

So of  course i f  Mr Daniel  Mantsha only had a matr ic 

and was saying as stay at  home for h is – or he was a 

beaut ic ian or he – no I  do not  want to rubbish anybody’s jobs 

but  i f  he was just  s i t t ing at  home and he had a matr ic  of  20 

course I  would not  approve i t  but  they – they checked 

whether you were – and I  am using him as an example 

whether he real ly  has a BJuris,  whether he had a LLB they 

check those things.    

I  asked him that  in the meet ing.   Have you checked 
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qual i f icat ions,  have you checked whether or not  they 

part ic ipated in major t ransact ions and so forth?   

CHAIRPERSON:   And you were assured? 

MS BROWN:   And I  was assured.   I  d id not  just  take the 

document and sign the document  off .   I  have to apply my 

mind to the document.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Kennedy I  interrupted you.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  interrupted you,  you may cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Thank you Chai r.   Ms Brown i f  I  can take 10 

you to page 773.  

MS BROWN:   77? 

ADV KENNEDY:   3.    

MS BROWN:   I  have 773.  

ADV KENNEDY:   That  is part  o f  th is report  that  served 

before cabinet  –  the cabinet  memorandum and that  bears 

your signature,  is that  correct? 

MS BROWN:   That  is r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY:   So in effect  th is  was conf i rming that  you 

had approved the appointment of  Mr Mantsha and his 20 

col leagues to the board wi th Mr Mantsha as Chai rperson and 

you were effect ively recommending those appointments to 

the cabinet  for the ir  approval  too.   Is that  correct? 

MS BROWN:   Yes that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Okay.   Just  for the sake of  completeness 
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can I  take you back to an ear l ier document at  page 740.   Do 

you have that? 

MS BROWN:   740 seems to be a descr ipt ion – my – i t  is just  

an index.  

ADV KENNEDY:   No 740 on the top lef t .  

MS BROWN:   Yes tel l  me what – I  mean we were going qui te 

f ine now. I  need to know what the… 

ADV KENNEDY:   What the document is? 

MS BROWN:   So i t  says Cont rol  F  

ADV KENNEDY:   So i t  is  10 

MS BROWN:   7? 

ADV KENNEDY:   740.   I t  is a decision memorandum. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Top lef t  page – top lef t  page i t  is a 

memorandum f rom… 

MS BROWN:   Okay I  have i t .   I  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you got  i t?  

MS BROWN:   I t  is  the one wi th Melanchton and so forth.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  

MS BROWN:   Melanchton Makobe 

ADV KENNEDY:   That  is correct .   I t  came from Melanchton 20 

Makobe who was at  that  stage your act ing Deputy Di rector  

General  LGR, is that  correct .  

MS BROWN:   That  is so.   Oh wel l  I  do not  – I  cannot  

remember but  i t  must  so.  

ADV KENNEDY:   No I  am just  asking you to have a look at  i t  
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and just  to reacquaint  yoursel f  wi th  i t .   So that  is a  

memorandum that  came from Mr Makobe f rom the LG the 

Legal  and Governance Uni t  that  you have indicated ear l ier  

was responsible for  processing and making and evaluat ing 

and making recommendat ions on the var ious nominees, 

correct? 

MS BROWN:   Yes this could be so.  

ADV KENNEDY:   And i t  was addressed to yoursel f ,  you see 

that? 

MS BROWN:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY:   And then i f  I  can take you please to page 

742 paragraph 2.2.   You have that? 

MS BROWN:   742 yes I  have got  742.  

ADV KENNEDY:   And i t  is paragraph 

MS BROWN:   Paragraph.  

ADV KENNEDY:   2.2 Cabinet  memorandum 4 of  2015 

appointment of  non-execut ive d irectors to the Denel  board.  

MS BROWN:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Now this  again refers to the 

recommendat ions.   This was as i t  appears f rom the rest  of  20 

the document was a mot ivat ion to you to approve the 

appointment of  Mr Mantsha as the chairperson and the other 

individuals as the other di rectors of  the Denel  board.   

Correct? 

MS BROWN:   Correct .  
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ADV KENNEDY:   And i f  I  can take you to page 745 i t  

appears that  you signed that  against  the word approved 

within a c i rc le.   You see that? 

MS BROWN:   Yes I  would have done that .   

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .  

MS BROWN:   I  am looking there.   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   And so this approval  ref lects the process 

that  was reached within the department you then approved 

the mot ivat ion and thereaf ter  what happened was the cabinet  

memorandum that  we have looked at  a moment ago is that  10 

r ight? 

MS BROWN:   That  is r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .   Now I  am not  going into the – into 

any detai l  in  the text  of  the document but  that  s imply refers 

as did the cabinet  memorandum to the fact  that  there needed 

to be new appointments made to the board only one would 

be reappointed f rom the old board,  the rest  would be f resh 

appointees and that  included Mr Mantsha and that  is  what 

the basis on which you approved the recommendat ion.   

Correct? 20 

MS BROWN:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Now did you know Mr Mantsha before you 

made this decis ion? 

MS BROWN:   No I  d id not  know anybody on that  board.  

MS BROWN:   Nobody at  al l .   Had you not  come across Mr 
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Mantsha? 

MS BROWN:   No,  no I  am – I  was a parochial  provincial  

pol i t ic ian for most  of  my l i fe.   The last  four years I  went into 

nat ional .   I  have – I  have l ived and stayed and been the 

speaker and the premier and everything e lse in my own 

province.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes but  the quest ion was speci f ical ly about  

Mr Mantsha.   Whatever – however … 

MS BROWN:   00:22:22 I  have never met Mr Mantsha before.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Okay.   10 

MS BROWN:   I  have never met any of  the board members 

before.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .   Were you aware – so you would – 

but  you would have been aware f rom presumably the CV and 

whatever the department ’s LGR uni t  put  up to you including 

the synopsis of  Mr Mantsha’s qual i f icat ions and his  

experience.    

What – what the good points were in his favour to  

select  him above the others as the chairperson of  Denel .  You 

re l ied on what  was – what  the informat ion that  was g iven to 20 

you.  

MS BROWN:   I  th ink i t  was based on informat ion that  was 

given to me. 

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  

MS BROWN:   I  cannot – I  real ly  cannot remember what  
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exact ly the reasons were.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  Because you did not  know him 

personal ly you just  test i f ied so i t  must  have been based on 

informat ion that  was given to you,  correct? 

MS BROWN:   Wel l  informat ion given to me both in the 

meet ing as wel l  as – in  the meet ing where they present  the 

documentat ion to me.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  

MS BROWN:   As wel l  as documentat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  10 

MS BROWN:   And then we take i t  through the process and 

then we come back and we wri te up – they wri te up the f inal  

documentat ion for  cabinet .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .   Now you were in  your  second 

aff idavi t  – can I  take you back to page 712? 

CHAIRPERSON:   712 Mr Kennedy? 

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes Chai r.    

MS BROWN:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY:   You then deal  wi th something that  arose in  

the Fundudzi  Report  and they commented in the report  on 20 

the fact  that  Mr Mantsha had been admit ted as an at torney 

some years before but  at  some stage pr ior to his nominat ion 

for  appointment to  the Denel  board had been st ruck off  as an 

at torney.   He had later been re- instated as an at torney and 

you were – you were asked speci f ical ly to deal  wi th th is  
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aspect .   Now you -  – i f  I  may read into the record 33.1 th is – 

“ I  have only th is to say 33.1 the str ik ing off  

occurred in 2007 three years later in 2011 

the High Court  saw i t  f i t  to reinstate him to 

the role of  at torneys. ”  

Now were you aware at  the t ime that  you approved 

the recommendat ion that  he should be appointed were you 

aware at  that  stage or only subsequent ly that  at  a part icular  

point  in his career  he had been st ruck off  as an at torney? 

MS BROWN:   No in fact  I  th ink I  only got  to know about i t  10 

af ter and I  d id see in Mr 00:25:35 statement that  he or  

somebody’s statement that  they say that  they actual ly to ld  

me.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Right .  

MS BROWN:   Now I  cannot remember that  but  I  – I  heard 

about i t  post  when – and that  is why somewhere along the 

l ine my spokesperson is cal led by the media and the media 

asked about his background. 

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  

MS BROWN:   And so I  –  and that  is  how I  got  to know about  20 

i t .  

ADV KENNEDY:   So that  is… 

MS BROWN:   I  d id not  – and this was one of  the di ff icul t ies I  

had wi th the vet t ing process because you know people are 

vet ted and you do not  have al l  the informat ion.  So how – how 
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can you bel ieve and t rust  the vet t ing process?  But  that  

happened anyway.   So ja.  

ADV KENNEDY:   So i f  I  understand you correct ly as far as 

you can recal l  you were not  aware at  the t ime that  you 

approved the appointment of  Mr Mantsha as chairperson and 

recommended that  for f inal  approval  to the cabinet  you were 

not  aware of  the history that  he had for some period been 

st ruck off  as an at torney.  

MS BROWN:   You see Chai r  I  would have prepared mysel f  

for cabinet  i f  I  knew that  Mr Mantsha so I  cannot – you know 10 

i t  was just  seven years – so long ago.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.  

MS BROWN:   But  I  th ink – I  th ink I  got  to know about i t  

because I  remember something about my spokesperson 

coming to me and saying that  there is a media enquiry about 

my appointment of  Mr Mantsha as the chai r.   I  th ink i t  

happened that  way.    

So I  immediately phoned Mr Mantsha I  d id th is  

personal ly.   I  phoned Mr Mantsha and I  asked him about i t .   I  

remember that  as wel l .   But  then I  remember very l i t t le else 20 

about i t .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Now there – the facts that  you record there 

in paragraph 33.1 the st r ik ing off  occurred in 2007 three 

years later in  2011 the High Court  saw i t  f i t  to reinstate him.   

You recal l  where you got  that  informat ion f rom? 
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MS BROWN:   I  – I  cannot remember.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Okay.  

MS BROWN:   But  I  must  – I  must  have had that  –  I  must  

have got ten that  informat ion f rom Mr Mantsha himsel f .  

ADV KENNEDY:   Yes.   In fact  i t  is t rue that  he was struck off  

in around 2007 and around 2011 he was reinstated as – as – 

on the role of  at torneys that  – that  is factual ly correct  but  i t  

was just  interested to know where you got  the informat ion 

f rom.  

MS BROWN:   No,  no I  would have got ten i t  f rom ei ther – or I  10 

would have asked the spokesperson to do research about – 

on the matter or  I  would have handed i t  over to the legal  

commit tee.    

I  mean to the legal  un i t  wi th in the legal  and 

governance uni t .  Because somehow I  would have got ten that  

or I  would have sent  i t  to my PA and say please send i t  off  to 

the legal  and governance uni t ,  send i t  o ff  to the 

spokesperson,  send i t  off  to whoever.  

ADV KENNEDY:   Your aff idavi t  then cont inues in 33.2  

“There was no legal  impediment or any other  20 

impediment that  was f lagged in the 

recommendat ions made to me dur ing May 

2015 when he was appointed.”  

Now the memo that  was sent  to you that  you signed we a 

saw a moment ago making the recommendat ion that  certainly 
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does not  indicate that  there was any legal  impediment to  

have been recommended or  appo in ted .   And in  fac t ,  a t  that  

s tage,  fac tua l l y,  i t  i s  so  tha t  he  had been re ins ta ted  as  an  

a t to rney.   What  you say,  though,  in  33 .3  i s :  

“Between h is  readmiss ion  in  2011 and 2015,  I  

was and am s t i l l  no t  aware  o f  any fac tor  tha t  

may have d i squa l i f ied  h im f rom be ing  a  d i rec tor  

o r  a  cha i rman o f  a  board . . . ”  

MS BROWN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now le t  us  accept  fo r  a  moment  tha t  10 

there  was no reason to  d isqua l i f y  h im.   What  you then go 

on to  i s  –  to  go  beyond the  quest ion  o f  whether  he  was  

d isqua l i f ied  f rom be ing  appo in ted  to  a  quest ion  o f  whether  

he  shou ld  have been accepted,  nonethe less .   And what  you  

have sa id  in  your  a f f idav i t  i s  th is ,  33 .4 :  

“Sure ly,  one mus t  g ive  ind i v idua ls  the  benef i t  

o f  doubt .  

The a l leged t ransgress ions occur red  before  

2015 when he was s t ruck  o f f .  

I  wou ld  l i ke  to  be l ieve  tha t  he  had somehow 20 

a toned enough to  be  readmi t ted  th ree  years  

la te r  in  2011.  

Now to  ho ld  i t  aga ins t  h im tha t  he  was s t ruck  

o f f  e igh t  yea rs  ago does not  seem fa i r  to  me.  

I  do  be l ieve  peop le  must  be  a l lowed to  fo rge t  
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pas t  t ransgress ions i f  they  have a toned  

there fo re . . . ”  

 Now le t  us  leave  as ide  the  quest i on  o f  whether  

there  was any lega l  d isqua l i f i ca t ion .   You are  probab ly  

r igh t  tha t  there  was no lega l  d i squa l i f i ca t ion  o f  h im be ing  

cons idered fo r  appo in tment  bu t  here  you were  dea l ing  w i th  

whethe r  i t  wou ld  be  appropr ia te  to  appo in t  somebody and 

your  a t t i tude here  seems to  be :   Wel l ,  he  must  have  a toned 

fo r  h is  s ins ,  as  i t  were ,  because he was readmi t ted .   So,  

there fo re ,  one shou ld  g ive  peop le  a  second chance.   You 10 

s t i l l  s tand by  tha t  v iew Ms Brown? 

MS BROWN :    No,  Advocate ,  sure ly,  I  s tand f i rm ly  by  tha t .   

You know,  so  many peop le  go  to  –  look,  le t  me jus t  say  I  

s tand by  tha t  ru le .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .  

MS BROWN :    Or  tha t  v iew.   I  am a lso  assuming tha t  i t  i s  

qu i te  okay to  have an op in ion  tha t  peop le  can have  second 

changes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  bu t  here  we are  dea l i ng  w i th  

second chances fo r  what?   He was now be ing  appo in ted ,  20 

no t  on ly  as  a  non-execut ive  d i rec tor  bu t  a lso  as  the  

cha i rperson o f  a  major  s ta te  organ – a  majo r  s ta te  en t i t y,  

Dene l ,  wh ich  had expend i tu re  and  revenue invo lv ing  

hundreds o f  thousands,  i f  no t  b i l l ions  o f  rands and  where  

these were  pub l i c  f i l es  fo r  wh ich  you were  respons ib le .    
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 What  I  s imp ly  want  to  ask  you  is .   A re  you 

suggest ing  tha t  i f  somebody has p rev ious ly  been s t ruck  o f f  

and the  judgment  o f  h is  s t r i k ing  o f f  in  fac t  re f lec ts  tha t  

what  was se r ious  i r regu lar i t ies  in  re la t ion  to  h is  account ing  

fo r  c l ien ts ’ funds,  a re  you say ing  tha t ,  we l l ,  everybody  

must  ge t  a  second chance,  no t  jus t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN :    . . . th is  happened a f te r,  post - fac to .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What  happened a f te r?  

MS BROWN :    When I  heard  about  Mr  Mantsha ’s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    I  ac tua l l y  do  –  I  do  be l ieve  tha t  peop le  –  he  

was –  f i rs t l y,  le t  me take one s tep  back.   F i rs t l y,  

Mr  Mantsha,  th ree  years  a f te r  he  was found gu i l t y  o f  

someth ing  or  he  has been s t ruck  o f f  the  ro le ,  th ree  years  

la te r  h is  peers  a t  cour t  ac tua l l y  b rought  h im back and  

d isbar red  h im.   I  do  no t  know what  the  lega l  word  fo r  tha t  

w i l l  be  .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  i t  i s  s t ruck  f rom the  ro l l .  

MS BROWN :    . . .and then he is  d isbar red .   So th ree  years  20 

la te r  th is  happens to  Mr  Mantsha .   Now I  am ask ing  the  

quest ion  –  I  am wonder ing  what  your  quest ion  is .   What  

does your  quest ion  re la te  to ,  s i r?   I s  i t  re la t ing  to  my  

mora l i t y  a round i t  o r  my mora l  s tand ing  around i t  o r  i s  i t  

re la t ing  to  a  lega l  s tand ing  around i t?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Wel l ,  un fo r tunate ly,  Ms B rown I  am 

not  he re  to  ask  your  –  to  answer  your  quest ions here .   You  

are  here  to  answer  m ine.  

MS BROWN :    [ laughs]   That  i s  qu i te  t rue .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And I  am not  t ry ing  to  a  cheap shot .   

What  –  le t  me jus t  pu t  th is  th ing  in  contex t .   The  

Cha i rperson has  obv ious ly  fo r  somet ime been hear ing  

masses o f  ev idence about  a l lega t ions o f  s ta te  capture  in  

re la t ion  to  en t i t ies  such as  Dene l  and the  Cha i rpe rson has 

heard  var ious tes t imony re la t ing  to  var ious t ransact ions,  10 

some o f  wh ich  invo l ved pa r t i cu la r  dec is ions taken by  

Mr  Mantsha as  cha i rperson.    

 For  example ,  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  th is  

Commiss ion  has heard  ev idence re la t ing  to  a  t ransact ion  in  

wh ich  the  procurement  o f f i c ia ls  a t  Dene l  were  no t  p repared  

to  s ign  o f f  the i r  approva l  because the re  were  var ious 

breaches.   And u l t imate ly,  Mr  Mantsha h imse l f ,  a l though he  

was a  Non-execu t ive  D i rec tor,  saw f i t  as  the  cha i rperson to  

s ign  o f f  approva l  fo r  a  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion .    

 That  was a  t ransact ion  tha t  invo l ved a  cont rac t  20 

be tween Dene l  and an ent i t y  know as VR Laser  in  wh ich  

the  Guptas  and  the i r  assoc ia tes  as  we l l  as  the  fo rmer  

Pres ident  Zuma’s  son had a  major  commerc ia l  in te res t .    

 And so  the  Cha i rperson o f  th is  Commiss ion  has 

heard  tha t  ev idence.   One o f  the  fac tors  the  Cha i rpe rson  
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may cons ide r  re levant  in  the  repor t  tha t  he  w i l l  be  wr i t ing  

fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  Pres ident  and the  na t ion ,  re la tes  to  

how such s i tua t ions –  what  s i tua t ions may ac tua l l y  have  

ar isen,  whethe r  there  was s ta te  capture ,  whether  there  

were  i r regu lar i t ies  and whether  there  was  proper  

accountab i l i t y.    

 Now one o f  the  issues the  Cha i rperson,  no  

doubt ,  may cons ider  re levant  i s  how i t  came about  tha t  

par t i cu la r  ind iv idua ls  came to  be  appo in ted  to  boards such 

as  Dene l .   And Mr  Mantsha who gave ev idence here ,  a  few 10 

weeks ago,  has  conf i rmed tha t  shor t l y  a f te r  he  was 

appo in ted  as  cha i rperson he happens to  have taken w i th in  

a  space o f  a  few  months a  few t r i ps  overseas,  somet imes 

onboard  a  pr i va te  p lane owned by  a  Gupta  owned company  

or  by  ar rangements  made by  a  Gup ta  o f f i c ia l ,  Mr  Chwala  to  

make book ings,  e tce tera .    

 Now one o f  the  concerns the  Cha i rpe rson may in  

h is  w isdom,  i t  i s  obv ious ly  no t  my funct ion  to  dec ide  these 

th ings,  what  the  Cha i rperson o f  th is  Commiss ion  may  

cons ider  re levant  i s  whether  the  sys tems tha t  were  in  p lace  20 

fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  persons such as  Mr  Mantsha,  the  

pos i t ions  tha t  were  so  se r ious and so  sen io r  and so  

respons ib le ,  whether  those sys tems were  adequate  

sys tems,  whethe r  they were  an  appropr ia te  o f  sys tems,  

whethe r  they were  m isused or  p roper l y  used,  whether  the  
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sys tems may be inadequate .  

 And the  Cha i rperson may cons ider  i t  appropr ia te  

to  make recommendat ions to  the  Pres ident  as  to  whether  

there  shou ld  be  changes and sa feguards in t roduced in to  

sys tems in  fu tu re  to  ensure  tha t  there  are  no  prob lems o f  

the  thought  o f  na ture  tha t  may  have become apparent  

dur ing  the i r  tes t imony.    

 I  hope I  have made i t  c lear  what  the  contex t  in  

wh ich  my quest ion  is  be ing  posed.   And I  am not  

suggest ing  tha t  you shou ld  take  fu l l  b lame or  any b lame fo r  10 

anyth ing  i n  pa r t i cu la r.   I  am jus t  quest ion ing  you in  re la t ion  

to  how you went  about  you r  task  as  Min is te r.   What  you 

knew.    

 You have a l ready  to ld  us  tha t  you  d id  no t  know 

a t  the  t ime you approved h is  appo in tment  tha t  he  had been  

s t ruck  o f f  bu t  th is  pa ragraph tha t  I  have jus t  read  out  to  

you f rom your  ve ry  own a f f idav i t ,  suggest  tha t  i f  you  had  

known i t  wou ld  no t  have been a  fac tor  tha t  wou ld  have  

been taken in to  account  by  you  as  someth ing  negat ive  

wh ich  wou ld  mean tha t  Mr  Mantsha shou ld  no t  be  p re fer red  20 

above any o ther  cand ida te .   Do you unders tand the  context  

in  wh ich  I  am put t ing  i t  to  you?  

MS BROWN :    I  unders tand the  contex t  and I  am say ing  

tha t  i t  i s  no t  p re fer red .   I t  i s  the  fac t  tha t  i t  happened and  

i t  was now post - f ac to  and I  now had to  de fend the  dec is ion  
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tha t  I  have taken.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    And hav ing  sa id  t ha t .   For  as  long  as  you 

have a  s ta te-owned company governed by  two ac ts  tha t  a re  

a lmost  d i rec t l y  in  oppos i t ion  w i th  each o the r.   The  

Companies  Act  wh ich  ac tua l l y  says the  Min is te r  has the  

r igh t  to  appo in t  a  board  or  the  shareho lder  has –  the  main  

shareho lder  has the  r igh t  to  appo in t  the  board .   And the  

PFMA – then you  w i l l  no t  have tha t  p rob lem because then  

you are  leav ing  i t  up  to  the  mora l i t y  o r  the  po l i t i ca l  10 

be l ieves or  the  re l ig ious be l ie fs  o f  somebody.   You are  

leav ing  i t  up  somebody to  make a  dec is ion  based on the i r  

own be l ieve  o f  someth ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  Ms . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN :    And I  th ink  i t  m igh t  be  usefu l  to  ac tua l l y  

have a  f i rmer  recommendat ion  because in  ten  years ’ t ime I  

cou ld  come back to  the  commiss ion  –  I  mean,  a  

commiss ion  l i ke  your  own,  s ta te  inqu i ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  the  Brown Commiss ion .  

MS BROWN :    [ laughs]   I t  cou ld  be .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Brown . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS BROWN :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . le t  us  ge t  to  the  po in t .   Le t  us  ge t  to  

the  po in t .   Le t  us  ge t  to  the  po in t  i s .  

MS BROWN :    No ,  the  po in t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   Hang on.   I  w i l l  te l l  you  what  

the  po in t  i s  tha t  I  am ta lk ing  about .   I  am unders tand your  

ev idence to  be .   As  fa r  as  you are  concerned,  the  fac t  tha t  

Mr  Mantsha had  been s t ruck  o f f  as  an  a t to rney  d id  no t  

mat te r,  as  fa r  as  you are  concerned,  in  te rms o f  whether  he  

shou ld  have been –  you shou ld  have appo in ted  h im as a  

D i rec tor  o f  Dene l  and on whe ther  you shou ld  have  

appo in ted  h im as Cha i rperson.   I s  my unders tand ing  o f  

your  ev idence cor rec t?  

MS BROWN :    And he as  reappo in ted .   Cha i r,  I  know –  he  10 

was reappo in ted .   He was reappo in ted  by  h is  peers  in  a 

cour t ,  in  a  h igh  cour t  to  be  ab le  to  do  h is  se rv i ces  th ree  

years  la te r  aga in .   I  ac tua l l y  accepted tha t .   And you a re  

r igh t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  am r igh t?  

MS BROWN :    . . . to  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    . . .he  has been reappo in ted  by  h is  own  

peers .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MS BROWN :    In  the  h igh  cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  h igh  cour t  a re  no t  h i s  peers .   

H is  peers  a re  h i s  a t to rneys.  

MS BROWN :    We l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The h igh  cour t  a re  judges,  okay.   But  
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you  are  r igh t  to  say he  had been  re ins ta ted  by  the  h igh  

cour t  and o f  course  when the  h igh  cour t  re ins ta ted  h im,  i t  

wou ld  have heard  whether  the  Law Soc ie ty  had any 

ob jec t ion  to  h im  be ing  re ins ta ted  and the  Law Soc ie ty,  

wh ich  cons is t s  o f  a t to rneys,  wou ld  have had a  say on  

whethe r  he  shou ld  be  re ins ta ted .   He had been s t ruck  o f f ,  

i t  seems in  2007  and he was re ins ta ted  as  an  a t to rney in  

2011.   You mean  tha t  you do not  see tha t  as  a  b lo t  on  h is  

record  as  someth ing  wrong,  as  someth ing  negat ive  on  h is  

record ,  the  fac t  tha t  he  had been s t ruck  o f f?  10 

MS BROWN :    O f  course  I  see i t  as  someth ing  nega t ive  bu t  

I  have taken –  I  took  tha t  dec i s ion  tha t  because –  and I  

fu l l y  agree w i th  you -  tha t  he  has been c leared by  the  h igh  

cour t  and he was now fo r  a lmost  e igh t  yea rs  ab le  to  

p rac t ise  w i thout  hav ing  recommi t ted  the  cr ime tha t  he  

commi t ted  in to  2007.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  Ms Brown.   He had not  been c lea red  

o f  h is  t ransgress ions.   He had been found gu i l t y  o f  h is  

t ransgress ions.   He had been s t ruck  o f f .   For  a  cer ta in  

number  o f  years  he  cou ld  no t  p rac t ise  lawfu l l y  bu t  he  had  20 

been re ins ta ted .   That  i s  no t  the  same as been c lea red.   

You unders tand tha t?   I f  can  make an example  fo r  you.   I t  

i s  l i ke  somebody  who is  conv ic ted  o f  a  c r ime,  he  goes to  

p r ison,  serves the  sentence and then they are  re leased  

back to  soc ie ty  a f te r  they have se rved. . .   They have been  
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conv i c ted  and tha t  remains  on  the i r  record .   Do you  

unders tand tha t  compar ison?  

MS BROWN :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you –  when you heard  tha t  he  had  

been s t ruck  o f f ,  d id  you f ind  ou t  what  i t  i s  tha t  had caused  

h im to  be  s t ruck  o f f?  

MS BROWN :    I  ac tua l l y  cannot  remember,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And. . .   You see,  fo r  me i t  wou ld  –  I  

wou ld  have expected you to  have been maybe shocked  

when you heard  a f te r  you had appo in ted  h im,  no t  on ly  as  a  10 

D i rec tor  bu t  as  Cha i rperson o f  the  Board  o f  Dene l  when 

you hear  tha t  he  had been s t ruck  o f f  as  an  a t to rney  be fore .   

And tha t  tha t  wou ld  have caused you to  say:   Wha t  –  why  

was he s t ruck  o f f?   I  want  to  see a l l  the  reco rds .   Or,  I  

want  to  hear  –  I  want  a l l  the  fac ts .    

 And I  wou ld  no t  have expected  you to  have 

fo rgo t ten  tha t  i f  you  had known what  i t  was because I  

wou ld  have expected tha t  you wou ld  have sa id ,  bu t  maybe 

I  am wrong,  you wou ld  have sa id :   Oh,  why was I  no t  to ld  

about  such an impor tan t  th ing?  20 

MS BROWN :    Oh,  no  I  d id  say tha t  Cha i r.   I  d id  ra ise  i t  

w i th  our  Lega l  and Governance Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS BROWN :    Because I  –  jus t  the  fac t  tha t  tha t  has 

escaped them,  was qu i te  –  fo r  me  qu i te  complex .   I  d id  no t  
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unders tand tha t  they –  why they m issed h im or  why they  

m issed tha t  in  pa r t i cu la r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    And I  had to  then  f ind  ou t  a f te rwards tha t  

they have th is  doub le  ve t t ing  and I  had to  f ind  ou t  

a f te rwards tha t  he  ac tua l l y  –  and maybe you a re  r igh t  

Cha i r,  maybe I  shou ld  no t  have appo in ted  h im.   I  –  and 

maybe I  shou ld  no t  have appo in ted  h im and not  he ld  the  

v iew tha t  in  tha t  I  he ld  in  33 .4  and 33.5 .   I  mean,  maybe i t  

i s  an  impor tan t  th ing  when you make recommendat ions or  10 

f ind  peop le  gu i l t y  o f  th ings,  tha t  i s  someth ing  tha t  you w i l l  

have to  pu t  in  your  recommendat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  see,  I  w i l l  be  f rank w i th  you.   I  

th ink  tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  somebody d id  no t  do  h is  o r  her  

job  to  es tab l i sh  tha t  Mr  Mantsha had been s t ruck  o f f  be fore  

and br ing  tha t  to  the  a t ten t ion  –  to  your  a t ten t ion ,  was very  

bad.   But  I  hope i t  i s  no t  a  s i tua t ion  where  somebody was 

aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  he  had been s t ruck  o f f  the  ro le  bu t  

rea l i sed i f  tha t  was put  up ,  was d i sc losed,  he  wou ld  no t  be 

appo in ted  to  the  board  and dec ided not  to  make sure  i t  was 20 

d isc losed.    

 And then somebody who had been  s t ruck  o f f  the 

ro l l  and had on ly  been re ins ta ted  in  the  past  o r  th ree  years  

or  so  was then appo in ted  to  the  board .   But  what  concerns 

me,  Ms Brown,  i s  tha t  when th is  fac t  i s  b rought  to  your  
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a t ten t ion  you seemed to  have thought  tha t  i t  wou ld  no t  

have made any d i f fe rence.   You wou ld  s t i l l  have appo in ted  

h im even i f  you had know as a  D i rec tor  o f  Dene l  and as  

Cha i rperson o f  the  board .   That  i s  how I  read your  

ev idence.   Am I  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN :    No.   Cha i r,  i f  I  knew tha t  be fore  I  wou ld  

have taken a  d i f fe ren t  s tance on i t .   The fac t  tha t  I  have  

now appo in ted  the  board  and i t  ac tua l l y  –  I  th ink  I  say  i t  

somewhere  –  I  th ink  i t  came about  –  i t  d id  no t  come 

immedia te ly.   I  was made aware  dur ing  June tha t  he  had  10 

been s t ruck  o f f  the  ro le .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t .  

MS BROWN :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t ,  Ms  Brown.   

May i t  jus t  he lp  you and pe rhaps the  Commiss ion  to  ge t  to  

tha t .   You are  qu i te  r igh t .   You d id  dea l  w i th  i t  in  33 .5 .    

MS BROWN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You say th i s :  

“A f te r  he  was appo in ted  in  May  2015,  I  was 

made aware  dur ing  June 2015 tha t  he  had  20 

been s t ruck  o f f  the  ro l l .  

On the  cons idera t ions I  ment ioned above,  I  

gave h im the  benef i t  o f  the  doubt . . . ”  

MS BROWN :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  tha t  las t  sentence does not  say  
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you  wou ld  have  taken a  d i f fe ren t  dec i s ion  i f  you  had  

known.   I t  says :   On the  cons idera t ions I  ment ioned  above,  

I  gave h im the  benef i t  o f  the  doubt .   That  sentence means,  

you wou ld  have g iven the  benef i t  o f  the  doubt  even i f  you 

had become aware  o f  th is  be fo re .   That  i s  how I  unders tand  

i t .   What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MS BROWN :    I  persona l ly  fee l  tha t  I  cou ld  have g i ven h im  

the  benef i t  o f  the  doubt  post  the  appo in tment  bu t  I  –  and i f  

I  knew i t  be fore ,  I  am not  –  I  th ink  I  wou ld  have appo in ted  

h im but  I  d id  appo in t  h im even though he –  a  mon th  a f te r  10 

h is  appo in tment  th is  i ssue happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  why d id  you not  when you got  to  

hear  tha t  he  had  been s t ruck  o f  the  ro l l ,  when you got  to  

hear  in  June a f te r  he  had been appo in ted  in  May,  why d id  

you not  take  the  v iew tha t  we cannot  have somebody who 

had been s t ruck  o f f  as  an  a t to rney and had been –  we l l ,  

who had been s t ruck  o f f  as  an  a t to rney,  o f  cou rse  he was 

re ins ta ted  –  leave the  board  o f  such an impor tan t  SOE?   

 That  i s  the  a t t i tude I  wou ld  have expected you to  

take .   I s  there  someth ing  wrong w i th  my expecta t ion?  I  20 

wou ld  have expected you to  say:   There  are  so  many 

a t to rneys whose  reco rds are  impeccab le  who have not  

been s t ruck  o f f .   Why can we not  f ind  somebody e l se  i f  we 

want  an  a t to rney as  cha i rpe rson o f  the  board?  

 Why shou ld  we take somebody who has been 
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s t ruck  o f f ,  who was s t ruck  o f f  and got  re ins ta ted?   

MS BROWN :    Cha i r,  you might  be  r igh t  about  tha t  bu t  I  –  

the  po in t  i s  tha t  I  have –  I  a lso  fee l  tha t  I  have g iven  

Mr  Mantsha another  chance to  be  ab le  to ,  fo r  want  o f  a  

be t te r  word ,  to  redeem h imse l f  and  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  he  can  redeem h imse l f  in  h is  

p rac t ise  as  an  a t to rney.   The h igh  cour t  gave h im a  chance  

to  go  back to  p rac t ise .   He can redeem h imse l f  the re .   Th i s  

i s  an  SOE.   A ve ry  impor tan t  SOE.   You need peop le  o f  –  

w i th  good t rack  records  and in teg r i t y  and so  on ,  i s  i t  no t?  10 

MS BROWN :    Yes,  Cha i r.   And I  mean – and I  th ink  tha t  

our  ve t t ing  process w i l l  ac tua l l y  ensure  tha t  we do have  

peop le  w i th  good  e th ics  and good  mora l  s tand ing  and so  

fo r th .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS BROWN :    Bu t  i t  d id  no t  happen.  And I  mean,  I  cannot  

–  I  a lmost  cannot  th ink  o f  answer  fo r  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    . . .a t  th is  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MS BROWN :    The po in t  i s .   I  thought ,  and I  say  i t  aga in ,  

and when I  was wr i t ing  the  a f f idav i t ,  I  th ink  tha t  I  thought  

tha t  he  was now d isbar red  f rom –  he  was now a l l owed to  

prac t ise  aga in  a f te r  th ree  years  o f  be ing  bar red  tha t  i t  

wou ld  mean tha t  he  wou ld  be  ab le  to  –  he  wou ld  have  
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a toned and he was admi t ted  th ree  years  la te r  in  2011 and  

four  years  la te r  he  ge ts  appo in ted  to  the  board .   I  d id  no t  

th ink  about  i t  in  the  way you have been th ink ing  about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    And maybe I  was wrong.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS BROWN :    Bu t  I  have done tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Brown,  jus t  to  

comple te  th i s  top ic  and le t  me ask  you th i s .   You ind ica ted  10 

a t  an  ear ly  s tage  o f  your  ev idence  tha t  you,  in  fac t ,  had a  

la rge  number  o f  app l i ca t ions.   Many peop le  app l ied  to  be  

appo in ted  to  the  board .   Some,  in  fac t ,  even approached  

you d i rec t l y  and  you d i rec ted  them to  the  –  your  o f f i ce  

where  they shou ld  fo l low the  cor rec t  fo rmal i t ies  and so  

fo r th .  

 Can you reca l l  why i t  was tha t  Mr  Mantsha 

par t i cu la r l y  s tood  out?   P resumable ,  i f  you  as  the  Min is te r  

as  the  shareho lder  representa t i ve  are  mak ing  e f fec t i ve l y  

the  dec is ion  because your  depar tment  cannot  make tha t  20 

dec is ion .   You have to  make tha t  dec i s ion  sub jec t  to  

Cab ine t  approva l  bu t  o f  course  you made your  

recommendat ion  to  Cab ine t .    

 P resumable  when you as  a  respons ib le  Cab ine t  

Min is te r  fo r  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses  are  faced w i th  a  la rge  
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number  o f  peop le  who have e i the r  been nominated or  who 

have app l ied  to  be  appo in ted  to  the  board  and you are  

choos ing  who the  board  shou ld  be  and who in  par t i cu la r  

ou t  o f  them shou ld  be  the  cha i rpe rson o f  the  board .  

 I  am jus t  in te res ted  to  exp lore  w i th  you how 

wou ld  you process tha t  so r t  o f  dec is ion?  You d id  no t  know 

Mr  Mantsha a t  a l l  f rom before .   You have had h i s  CV and 

the  summary o f  h is  exper ience and so  fo r th  g iven  to  you,  

the  in te rna l  documents .    

 P resumable  you  wou ld  be  look ing  fo r  a  10 

cha i rperson a t  somebody who is  no t  on ly  a  good,  we l l -

qua l i f ied  cand ida te  bu t  somebody  who presumable  shou ld  

s tand head and shou lders  above o ther  cand ida tes  i n  o rder  

to  appo in t  h im or  her  as  cha i rpe rson o f  the  board .  

 Now i f  you d id  no t  know Mr  Mantsha f rom before ,  

what  was s tand ing  to  h is  c red i t?   We know –  I  am go ing  to  

take  you th rough in  a  moment  the  pro f i le  o f  the  o the r  

peop le  whom you appo in ted .   I  th ink  t here  was th ree  o r  

four  o the r  peop le  who were  lawyers  appo in ted  to  th is  

board .    20 

 I  th ink  the  Commiss ion  may f ind  i t  o f  in te res t  to  

unders tand your  thought  p rocess in  dec id ing  why  

Mr  Mantsha s tood  head and shou lders  above the  res t .   May 

I  s ta r t  by  ask ing  you th is?   Am I  r igh t  in  assuming tha t  you 

wou ld  no t  jus t  rubbers tamp what  was put  on  your  desk by  
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the  commi t tee ,  by  the  Lega l  and Governance Peop le?   I s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MS BROWN :    Wel l ,  they  wou ld  no t  pu t  i t  on  my desk.   

They had presented i t  to  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   I  accep t  tha t  and tha t  i s  a l l  par t  

o f  the  proper  p rocess and you shou ld  have taken tha t  in to 

account .   What  I  am ask ing  you,  though,  i s .   I t  wou ld  no t  

be  jus t  a  manua l  rubbers tamping o f  whatever  

recommendat ion  was put  be fore  you.   You,  p resumable ,  as  

the  rea l  dec i s ion  maker,  sub jec t  to  ra t i f i ca t ion  or  a  f ina l  10 

approva l  by  the  Cab ine t ,  you had  to  be  sa t is f ied  tha t  when 

–  whoever  recommended to  you tha t  Mr  Mantsha shou ld  be  

appo in ted  tha t  there  was good reason fo r  tha t .   He was the  

best  cand ida te  among the  many cand ida tes  fo r  the  job .   

Would  tha t  be  fa i r  to  say?  

MS BROWN :    Yes.   I  th ink  tha t  was the  process where  

they wou ld  ident i t y  two or  th ree  peop le .   I  cannot  

remember  bu t  ja  two or  th ree  peop le  cou ld  be  the  board  

cha i r.   And they wou ld  be  look ing  a t  peop le  who had 

knowledge o f  b ig  p ro jec ts ,  peop le  w i th  knowledge o f  –  ag ,  20 

a  range o f  i ssues .   L ike ,  peop le  who know about  bus iness  

cases.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    Peop le  who know how to  manage a  f inanc ia l  

p rocess.   As  I  sa id ,  huge pro jec t s ,  f inanc ing .   Those k ind  
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o f  peop le  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    . . .who,  in  essence,  w i l l  be  ab le  to  a lso  

lega l l y  manage the  process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R igh t .  

MS BROWN :    So  they w i l l  be  ab le  to  do  the  –  they w i l l  be 

ab le  to  ove rsee the  cont rac t  tha t  o r  whatever  i t  i s  tha t  they 

need to  do  and they w i l l  be  ab le  to  do  so  lega l l y.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    So  I  am not  –  I  am unsure  about  how the  10 

cho ice  o f  Mr  Man tsha o r  any o ther  board  member  because  

i t  was around tha t  t ime as  we l l  tha t  most  o f  the  boards 

were  appo in ted ,  you know,  la te  2014,  ear l y  2015.   So a l l  

s ix  boards had been appo in ted .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Le t  me say immedia te ly  tha t  I  

have no d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  your  suggest ion  tha t  you shou ld  be  

look ing  a t  peop le  fo r  par t i cu la r  sk i l l s .   What  I  am in t r igued  

about  i s  what  made Mr  Mantsha such a  spec ia l ,  espec ia l l y  

su i tab le  person because you d id  no t  know h im,  you had 

CVs f rom a  who le  lo t  o f  peop le ,  as  you sa id  a l though you 20 

u l t imate ly  re t rac ted  peop le  even l i ke  ha i rd ressers  and so  

fo r th  app l ied  and  then you cor rec t l y  po in ted  out  o f  course  

you shou ld  no t  d isc r im inate  aga ins t  anybody but  you were  

look ing  fo r  par t i cu la r  sk i l l s  and le t  me accept  immedia te l y  

tha t  a  lega l  sk i l l  i s  someth ing  use fu l  fo r  a  Cha i rpe rson to  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 234 of 296 
 

have,  bu t  why Mr  Mantsha?  

 Le t  me jus t  take  you th rough i t .   We wi l l  see  in  a  

moment  tha t  the re  were ,  as  I  sa id ,  about  th ree  o ther  

peop le  tha t  you appo in ted  as  Cha i rperson to  th is  board .   

The o ther  peop le  a lso  had some commendab le  summar ies  

o f  the i r  work  h is to ry  and the i r  qua l i f i ca t ions.   Mr  Mantsha 

does not  seem to  have been –  and I  mean no d isc red i t  to  

Mr  Mantsha a t  a l l ,  a l l  I  am say ing  is ,  Mr  Mantsha does not  

seem to  have had anyth ing  to  an  ob jec t i ve  ou ts ide  v iew 

tha t  made h im s tand head or  shou lders  above anybody  10 

e lse ,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    He d id  no t  s tand  out .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He d id  no t  s tand out ,  w i th  respect  

tha t  i s  so .   Now,  what  was an in te res t ing  fea ture  about  Mr  

Mantsha pe rhaps  was tha t  he  had in  fac t  fo r  pa r t  o f  h is  

lega l  ca reer  been s t ruck  o f f .   Now your  a f f idav i t  suggests  

tha t  we l l ,  tha t  was neut ra l ,  he  had  been rehab i l i ta ted ,  as  i t  

were ,  he  must  have a toned fo r  h i s  m isdemeanours  because 

he was re ins ta ted .   But  tha t  a t  best  must  be  a  neut ra l  –  

some peop le  m ight  regard  i t  as  a  ser ious negat ive ,  o thers  20 

might  take  the  more  generous a t t i tude tha t  you perhaps  

adopted say ing  we l l ,  no ,  I  gave  h im the  benef i t  o f  the 

doubt ,  so  tha t  a t  best  was neut ra l  bu t  as  t he  learned 

Cha i rperson as  you a  moment  ago ,  a few minutes  ago,  he  

sa id  bu t  there  a re  count less  peop le  w i th  to ta l l y  spot less  
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records  as  lawyers ,  why d id  Mr  Mantsha get  i t ,  ge t  th is  

appo in tment?    

Now what  I  want  to  th row in to  the  m ix  we l l  in  the  

quest ion  and I  am sor ry  i f  i t  ge t t ing  a  b i t  long but  I  am 

t ry ing  to  exp la in  what  I  am rea l l y  look ing  a t .   Some peop le  

m ight  look  a t  th is  appo in tment  as  be ing  prob lemat ic  

because Mr  Mantsha was one o f  numerous app l i cants ,  Mr  

Mantsha was one  o f  a  number  o f  lega l  app l i cants ,  some o f  

whom made i t  to  the  board  and o thers  presumably  d id  no t .  

Mr  Mantsha may  be regarded in  a  negat ive  l igh t  10 

because he was  s t ruck  o f f  –  o r,  a t  best  fo r  h im,  tha t  i s  

neut ra l .   Then on top  o f  i t  what  we have i s  the  ev idence 

f rom Mr  Mantsha  h imse l f  who came to  exp la in  tha t  he  d id  

have a  re la t ionsh ip  or  f r iendsh ip  and bus iness connect ions 

ou ts ide  h i s  board  invo lvement  a t  Dene l  w i th  the  Gupta  

fami ly ,  he  went  to  meet ings w i th  some o f  tha t  fami ly ,  he  

had bus iness and persona l  dea l i ng  w i th  some o f  the i r  

assoc ia tes  and a l so  w i th  Mr  Duduzane Zuma.  

So wou ld  no t  a  layperson look ing  a t  th is  f rom the  

outs ide  and the  pub ic  o f  course  does fo l low to  some 20 

degree th is  so r t  o f  th ing ,  i s  i t  no t  reasonab le  fo r  someone 

to  in fe r  tha t  wa i t  a  m inute ,  perhaps the  rea l  exp lanat ion  fo r  

Mr  Mantsha be ing  appo in ted  as  Cha i rperson was  tha t  he  

was not  jus t  a  lawyer  w i th  a  b i t  o f  a  chequered past ,  he  

was a  lawyer  who a lso  had persona l  and bus iness  
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connect ions w i th  a  very  we l l - connected fami ly  and the i r  

bus iness assoc ia tes  and pe rhaps  the  pub l i c  m igh t  have 

regard  to  some o f  the  o ther  ev idence tha t  has a l ready been 

presented before  the  Cha i rperson in  th is  Commiss ion  

re la t ing  to  o ther  s ta te  en t i t ies  where  low and beho ld  i t  

tu rned out  tha t  some o f  the  d i rec tors  appo in ted  by  you,  Ms  

Brown,  a lso  had  connect ions w i th  the  Guptas  o r  the i r  

assoc ia tes  l i ke  Mr  Sa l im Essa.    

I s  i t  a l l  a  co inc idence?  You a re  the  pe rson who  

took the  majo r  par t  o f  the  dec is ion  to  appo in t  Mr  Mantsha  10 

and is  the  sor t  o f  the  conc lus ion  tha t  I  suggested as  be ing  

a  poss ib le  conc lus ion  no t  a  reasonab le  one? 

MS BROWN :    You wou ld  l i ke  me to  respond to  tha t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  p lease.  

MS BROWN :    You see,  i f  I  were  to  ho ld  the  nar ra t i ve  tha t  -  

now I  cannot  see  you any longer  and I  do  l i ke  to  speak to  

you wh i le  see ing  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The techn ic ians shou ld  rec t i f y  tha t .  

MS BROWN :    Because I  am now speak ing  to  myse l f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You are  speak ing  to  the  Cha i rpe rson  20 

pr imar i l y,  Ms Brown.  

MS BROWN :    We l l ,  a lso  see the  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am l i s ten ing  to  you.   You a l so  cannot  

see me?  

MS BROWN :    I  can  see you now,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and Mr  Kennedy?  

MS BROWN :    No t  a t  the  same t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  ye t .  

MS BROWN :    Bu t  I  can see …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you can hear  me,  Ms Brown.  

MS BROWN :    I  jus t  do  no t  want  to  look  a t  myse l f  wh i le  I  

am ta lk ing .   I  m igh t  be  ca l led  na rc i ss i s t  as  we l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Perhaps c lose  your  eyes then wh i le  

you answer.    

MS BROWN :    The issue is  –  I  am unsure ,  Cha i r,  the  10 

quest ion  Mr  Kennedy ra ises .   You see,  I  do  no t  know how 

much o f  what  you are  say ing  –  we l l ,  I  heard  Mr  Mantsha  

and I  heard  what  he  had to  say and I  saw the  Gupta  Leaks  

and say about  Mr  Mantsha but  I  no t  very  sure  tha t  tha t  can 

be sa id  fo r  a l l  the  boards and a l l  the  members  o f  boards 

and o f  course  we are  dea l ing  w i th  Dene l  today and,  I  

mean,  some o f  the  Dene l  peop le  have gone on to  do  o ther  

fabu lous th ings.   I  mean,  we even had a  person who is  

today Min is te r.   A re  these a l l  jus t  Gupta  appo in tees?  And I  

mean,  I  read th rough the  Fundudz i  repor ts  and the  20 

Fundudz i  repor t  says tha t  these peop le  a l l  came to  my  

depar tment  and I  appo in ted  them because o f  –  I  cannot  

remember,  bu t  anyway,  I  appo in ted  them.  

 There  is  no  way  tha t  I  can make a  dec i s ion  on  

somebody.   I  mean,  I  do  no t  fee l  the  way you do and I  w i l l  
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never  fee l  the  way you do,  Adv Kennedy,  about  no t  g iven  

somebody a  second chance or  you ,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  fee l  we 

shou ld  be  g i v ing  peop le  a  second chance.   I  fee l  there  

shou ld  be  enough checks and ba lances w i th in  s ta te  owned 

compan ies  to  be  ab le  to  ensure  tha t  whoever  i s  the  board  

members ,  whoever  i s  the  Cha i r,  tha t  the  s ta te  owned  

compan ies  w i l l  remain  in  good hands.    

Now I  am sure  –  i t  comes back  a l l  the  t ime tha t  

these peop le  were  l inked to  the  Guptas  and these peop le  

were  l inked to  Essa and so  on  and they –  I  do  no t  have  10 

tha t  o r ien ta t ion ,  I  do  no t  have an or ien ta t ion  tha t  says tha t  

–  un less  they have s to len  f rom the  company they must  go  

to  ja i l .   I f  the  Guptas  have s to len  f rom our  compan ies  they  

must  go  to  –  they  must  be  charged ,  t r ied  and go to  ja i l .  

Bu t  I  fee l  tha t  –  in  fac t  I  ac tua l l y  thought  even 

though Mr  Mantsha had a  number  o f  a t t r ibu tes  tha t  I  found  

very  d i f f i cu l t  to  dea l  w i th  somet imes,  I  th ink  he  was –  he  

dea l t  w i th  Dene l  very  we l l  and I  have seen some o f  the  – 

the  issue o f  h im s ign ing  o f f  on  Dene l  As ia ,  I  mean,  I  heard  

i t  in  the  Commiss ion  wh ich  means tha t  overs igh t  in  my 20 

depar tment  i s  a lso  a  prob lem,  i f  we d id  no t  p ick  tha t  up .  

So I  do  no t  fee l  the  way you do about  -  how do I  ve t  

somebody and say you cannot  be long to  –  or  you cannot  be  

f r iends w i th  a ,  b ,  c  and d?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Ms Brown …[ in tervenes]  
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MS BROWN :    Un less  I  have known tha t  a ,  b ,  c  and d  have  

ac tua l l y  s to len  f rom the  s ta te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Ms B rown,  what  you a re  say ing  

wh ich  you have sa id  qu i te  a  few t imes about  g iv ing  peop le  

a  second chance  seems to  me to  amount  to  th is  as  we l l .   

You wou ld  have no prob lem appo in t ing  to  –  you wou ld  have  

had no prob lem,  as  Min i s te r,  appo in t ing  as  a  d i rec to r  o f  

Dene l  somebody who may have p rev ious ly  been conv ic ted  

o f  cor rup t ion  or  the f t  because you be l ieve  they must  be 

g iven a  second chance.   I s  tha t  un fa i r  to  unders tand your  10 

ev idence to  be  to  tha t  e f fec t  i f  one takes what  you are  

say ing  to  i t s  log ica l  conc lus ion?  

MS BROWN :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  you  have taken tha t  log ica l  

conc lus ion  a l ready and so  I  am happy fo r  you to  have tha t  

log ica l  conc lus ion  f rom me.   I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  I  do  fee l  

tha t  i f  in  the  course  o f  the  runn ing  o f  the  company the  

company was fun  to  the  ground,  l i ke  I  am see ing  today,  

then I  wou ld  have  ac ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

MS BROWN :    I f  i t  was dependent  on  Mr  Mantsha.   I  had no 20 

way o f  knowing tha t  Mr  Mantsha ac tua l l y  s igned the  Dene l  

As ia  dea l  because tha t  i s  no t  r igh t ,  i t  i s  the  o f f i c ia ls  who –  

I  mean,  i t  i s  the  execut ive  who shou ld  be  s ign ing ,  he  has 

no  bus iness to  be  s ign ing  tha t  and I  d id  no t  know tha t  a t  

the  t ime.   I  am ta lk ing  about  the  th ings tha t  must  be  done 
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d i rec t l y  and whether  o r  no t  a  par t i cu la r  person –  I  am jus t  

compar ing  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS BROWN :    And I  am jus t  say ing  to  you,  Cha i r,  maybe I  

have done the  wrong th ing  to  appo in t  Mr  Mantsha.   I  do  no t  

know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  you have –  to  your  c red i t  you  

have sa id  t ha t  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  i t  was wrong to  appo in t  

h im.   You have made tha t  po in t .   Now you have sa id  –  I  

have taken what  you sa id  to  i t s  log ica l  conc lus ion ,  I  am not  10 

sure  whethe r  you  meant  I  have a l ready made up my mind  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS BROWN :    I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  what  I  want  to  say to  you  is  i t  i s  

my job  to  tes t  the  ev idence tha t  is  be ing  g iven and what  I  

am do ing  is ,  tes t  what  you are  say ing  aga ins t  –  among 

o ther  th ings,  log ic ,  so  –  and I  am put t ing  i t  to  you in  o rde r  

to  be  fa i r  to  you to  say when  you speak l i ke  th is ,  I  

unders tand you to  be  say ing  in  e f fec t  the  fo l low ing ,  i f  you  

take  th is  to  i t s  log ica l  conc lus ion  and then I  pu t  i t  to  you to  20 

say is  my unders tand ing  co r rec t?   I  am g iv ing  you a  chance  

to  say no ,  no ,  no ,  you r  log i c  i s  no t  r igh t  o r  you  have I  

m isunders tood me,  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  mean or  to  say you  

know what ,  Cha i rperson,  when you  put  i t  l i ke  tha t ,  I  d id  no t  

rea l i se ,  bu t  tha t  cannot  be  r igh t ,  I  d id  no t  rea l i se  tha t  tha t  
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i s  what  i t  means,  what  I  was th ink ing  is  the  fo l low ing.     

 So  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  I  have made a  dec i s ion  bu t  I  am 

l i s ten ing  to  you,  when you g i ve  your  ev idence I  tes t  i t  

aga ins t  among o ther  th ings log ic ,  as  my log ic  and I  am 

g iv ing  you a  chance to  say no ,  no ,  no ,  Cha i rperson,   you 

have I  m isunders tood me o r,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  do  no t  agree 

w i th  your  log ic ,  here  is  a  f law in  your  log ic  and then I  look  

a t  tha t .   You might  persuade me to  say no ,  no ,  no ,  I  th ink 

you have a  fa i r  po in t .   Okay?  Tha t  i s  what  I  am do ing .  

MS BROWN :    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You unders tand?  

MS BROWN :    I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Brown,  I  th ink  

le t  us  take  the  spot l igh t  away f rom how you came to  make  

the  dec is ion  a t  the  t ime.   What  I  wou ld  now l i ke  to  ask  you,  

i s  do  you fee l  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  tha t  you may  

have been duped  or  man ipu la ted  by  perhaps peop le  w i th in  

your  depar tment  to  favour  Mr  Mantsha where  you  d id  no t  

know h im a t  a l l ,  they  g ive  you a  CV wh ich  d id  no t  show any 20 

prob lem in  re la t i on  to  h id  be ing  s t ruck  o f f ,  where  you d id  

no t  know a t  the  t ime tha t  he  was –  he  had some persona l  

and pr i va te  bus iness connect ions w i th  Gupta  members  and 

assoc ia tes  as  we l l  as  the  then Pres ident ’s  son and you d id  

no t  know a t  the  t ime tha t  Mr  Mantsha,  once he was g iven  
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the  re ins  o f  the  Cha i rpersonsh ip  o f  the  board  then went  

ahead and approved var ious dea ls  wh ich  you sa id ,  

cor rec t l y,  shou ld  be  done by  the  execut ive  management ,  

no t  by  d i rec tors .   Do you fee l  pe rhaps tha t  you may have 

been manipu la ted  or  used to  push fo rward  somebody l i ke  

Mr  Mantsha?  

MS BROWN :    I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  I  th ink  tha t  I  shou ld  never  

g ive  the  –  I  shou ld  never  b lame a l l  o f  those peop le  around  

me as opposed to  the  fac t  tha t  I  m igh t  no t  have had a l l  the  

fac ts  a t  hand.    10 

You see,  Adv Kennedy,  you made a  po in t  ear l ie r  and  

you sa id  so  many peop le  have been appo in ted  by  you –  

you make tha t  po in t  to  me and you sa id  so  many  peop le  

were  appo in ted  by  me who were  l inked to  the  Guptas .  

Now I  must  te l l  you  tha t  I  –  there  is  no t  a  co lumn 

tha t  says do  you  know the  Guptas  in  the  ve t t ing  process 

because I  went  back,  I  remember  go ing  back to  the  lega l  

and governance un i t  and ask ing  how do you de termine  

whethe r  somebody is  co r rup t  o r  no t?   Or  how can you 

check tha t?   And they wou ld  say th is  and tha t  and tha t  and 20 

tha t  bu t  nowhere  can I  te l l  you  tha t  somebody was  l inked  

to  the  Guptas .   I  cannot  te l l  you  tha t  be fore  they are  

appo in ted  un less  I  ac tua l l y  know them,  so  I  am not  sure  i f  

–  I  mean,  I  shou ld  take  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  eve ry  ac t i on  tha t  

happens in  my depar tment  because I  was the  execut ives  
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au thor i t y,  I  was not  the  account ing  o f f i ce r  bu t  I  was the  

execut ive  au tho r i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.   Does i t  no t  come 

as a  mat te r  o f  some concern  to  you tha t  some peop le  m ight  

f ind  tha t  there  is  a  poss ib le  pa t te rn  tha t  app l ies  no t  on ly  to  

Dene l  bu t  o ther  s ta te  en t i t ies  tha t  jus t  i s  a  remarkab le  

co inc idence or  perhaps someth ing  more  s in is te r  tha t   

number  o f  peop le  connected to  t he  Guptas  in  fac t  landed 

up in  key pos i t ions such as  Mr  Mantsha a t  Dene l  and  

o thers  in  o the r  s ta te  en t i t ies?   I  accept  tha t  you have 10 

…[ in tervenes]  

MS BROWN :    Wel l ,  I  had one re ference dur ing  –  I  had one  

re ference dur ing  -  and tha t  was a  newspaper  a r t i c le  where  

the  who le  o f  Eskom board  was l inked to  the  Guptas  and I  

ca l led  them up ind iv idua l l y  and when I  go t  to  ha l f  o f  them I  

d id  no t  cont inue  because ha l f  o f  those connect ions and  

l inkages were  no t  t rue  and so  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     So  ha l f  were  t rue ,  were  no t  t rue?  

MS BROWN :    I  cannot  g ive  you a  d i rec t  answer  on  i t .   You 

know,  I  can a lso  –  there  i s  a  lo t  o f  a  nar ra t i ve  t ha t  says  20 

tha t  we were  a l l  –  I  mean,  I  have reca l led  a  Gupta  m in is te r,  

remember,  i f  you  fo l low your  log ic  t h rough because i t  i s  the 

same log i c  tha t  i s  in  the  pub l i c  space.     

So,  I  mean –  and  tha t  has doomed me to  he l l .   I  w i l l  

never  ge t  a  job  anywhere ,  I  w i l l  never  be  ab le  to  do  
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any th ing ,  I  w i l l  never  –  you know and I  am captured by  the  

s ta te .   So I  am doomed.   I  am not  ready to  be  doomed but  I  

am doomed in  th is  count ry  and tha t  goes fo r  lo ts  o f  peop le  

whose names are  connected to  me .  

 So le t  me say to  you tha t  i f  in  any  way I  fee l  tha t  I  

have done what  –  I  mean,  what  you are  say ing ,  tha t  I  have  

appo in ted  a l l  these Gupta  peop le  –  and I  hope tha t  the 

repor t  w i l l  be  fa i r  in  tha t  we w i l l  be  ab le  to  respond  before  

i t  becomes pub l i c  and I  a lso  hope tha t  everybody wou ld  ge t  

a  chance to  say  whether  i t  i s  t rue  tha t  they were  Gupta  10 

peop le  o r  no t  and tha t  i t  i s  no t  jus t  an  assumpt ion  tha t  i s  

be ing  made.   I  cannot  make tha t  dec is ion ,  I  canno t  make 

tha t  assumpt ion  fo r  anyone ac tua l l y  un less  –  l i ke  Mr  

Mantsha who sa id  tha t  he  knew them before .   I  d id  no t  

know Mr  Mantsha  knew them before .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now aga in  I  must  want  to  

conc lude th is  l ine  o f  quest ion ing  s imp ly  by  say ing  th is .   Do 

you not  fee l ,  though,  now tha t  you have heard  the  ev idence  

–  some o f  the  ev idence tha t  has come before  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  there  may have been some manipu la t ion  20 

o f  the  process,  perhaps not  by  you de l ibera te ly  o r  even 

hav ing  any respons ib i l i t y  fo r  i t  bu t  the  process may have  

been manipu la ted  in  a  way tha t  jus t  happens to  have 

benef i ted  the  Guptas  in  a  major  way?  

MS BROWN :    I  do  no t  know tha t ,  S i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MS BROWN :    You see,  I  do  no t  know –  I  am hop ing  tha t  

the  Commiss ion  w i l l  a t  the  end o f  the  Commiss ion ’s  

p rocess w i l l  g ive  us  a  lo t  more  c la r i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS BROWN :    Because I  do  no t  know tha t .   I f  I  s i t  where  I  

am s i t t ing  now and I  looked –  and I  am sor ry  tha t  I  am 

go ing  to  take  jus t  th ree  o r  four  m inutes .   I  -  in  Dene l ,  i t  i s  

one cont rac t  tha t  d id  no t  ge t  o f f  the  ground tha t  was w i th  

the  company,  tha t  has been w i th  Dene l  fo r  a lmost  seven  10 

years  be fore  tha t .   That  i s  what  I  know about  Dene l  As ia .   I  

th ink  –  and I  do  no t  want  to  dea l  w i th  o ther  por t fo l ios  bu t  i t  

i s  a lmost  -  and Eskom,  wh ich  I  know a  lo t  about  –  i t  i s  4% 

o f  a  R50 b i l l i on  per  month  fo r  40  years  and they have been 

around I  suppose ,  fo r  the  las t  ten  years .  

 But ,  I  mean,  I  fee l  qu i te  s t rong ly  tha t  I  rea l l y  wou ld  

l i ke  (a )  a  rea l  unders tand ing  o f  what  i t  cos t  to  have th is  – 

what  i t  cos t  the  s ta te ,  what  i t  cos t  each s ta te  owned 

company and –  ja ,  I  do  no t  want  to  cont inue but  I  do  –  I  do  

no t  have a  sense  o f  i t .   I  see  cont rac ts  in  Eskom,  I  see one 20 

cont rac t  in  Dene l  tha t  does not  ge t  o f f  the  ground,  I  see a  

number  o f  cont rac ts  in  Transnet  tha t  looks l i ke  i t  a lso  

go ing  in  the  d i rec t ion  and i t  d id  no t  s ta r t  in  my t ime but  i t  

looks  l i ke  i t  i s  a lso  go ing  to  the  d i rec t ion  tha t  i t  has  some 

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas .   What  co l lec t i ve ly  and what  
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cumula t ive ly  has tha t  ac tua l l y  meant  fo r  th is  count ry?  

 I  mean,  how much d id  i t  cos t  the  count ry  i s  what  I  

am say ing  because I  do  no t  have  -  I  have an overwhe lm ing 

sense tha t  a lmos t  every  company in  every  one o f  the  s ta te 

owned compan ies  ac tua l l y  e i ther  be long to  somebody who  

le f t  the  company  and then opened a  company and i t  was 

la rge ly  wh i te  and  I  th ink  tha t  there  was an a t tempt  to  t ry  

and br ing  in ,  even though they were  fo re ign ,  I  th ink  so ,  

tha t  there  was an  a t tempt  to  t ry  and rework  the  economy so  

tha t  more  b lack  peop le  cou ld  be  pa r t i c ipants  in  tha t  10 

economy.    

And I  have heard  you,  Adv Kennedy,  on  th is  mat te r.   

I  th ink  i t  i s  qu i te  a  ser ious mat te r  bu t  I  th ink  there  is  tha t  

a lso  tha t  we need to  –  and I  am hop ing  one day tha t  there  

w i l l  be  another  s tudy tha t  ac tua l l y  shows the  e f fec ts  o f  the 

Guptas  in  the  fu l l  economy or  the  fu l l  economy as i t  counts  

fo r  s ta te  owned compan ies .   I  am sor ry  tha t  I  took  a  b i t  o f  

t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  may I  p roceed?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  apprec ia te  tha t  you w i l l  no t  have 

fo l lowed a l l  o f  the  ev idence tha t  has been led  in  th is  

Commiss ion  on  these va r ious  s ta te  en t i t ies  inc lud ing  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 247 of 296 
 

Dene l .   I  am not  go ing  to  take  you th rough a l l  o f  the 

ev idence tha t  has a l ready been p resented  to  the  

Cha i rperson in  ea r l ie r  sess ions where  in  fac t  focus was put  

on  no t  jus t  the  Dene l  As ia  cont rac t  wh ich  u l t imate ly  was  

not  b rought  in to  e f fec t ,  as  you have po in ted  out  bu t  o ther  

cont rac ts  wh ich  in  fac t  invo lved very  substant ia l  amounts  

tha t  Dene l  g ran ted to  VR Laser  par t i cu la r l y  the  p la t fo rm 

hu l l s  cont rac t  and the  Dene l  Land Systems acqu is i t ion .   

That  the  Cha i rpe rson has a l ready heard  ev idence on and I  

want  to  suggest  to  you tha t  your  ind ica t ion  tha t  the  cost  o f  10 

what  may have been inappropr ia te ,  may not  have been tha t  

much,  i s  perhaps a  se r ious unders ta tement .  

MS BROWN :    No,  no ,  I  am no t  say ing  i t  was not  tha t  

much.   I  th ink  any co r rup t ion  in  any –  i t  does not  mat te r  i f  

i t  i s  one cent ,  i s  impor tan t  fo r  us  to  look  a t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Indeed.  

MS BROWN :    I  do  no t  want  to  m isrep resented by  –  in  –  by  

myse l f  maybe or  I  m isunders tood in  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you fo r  tha t  c la r i f ica t ion .   

When you d id  d iscover  in  June 2015 o f  Mr  Mantsha ’s  more  20 

chequered h is to ry  as  an  a t to rney who had been s t ruck  o f f ,  

d id  i t  no t  occur  to  you a t  tha t  s tage to  say to  cab ine t  jus t  a  

month  ago cab ine t  approved the  appo in tment  o r  the  

appo in tment  took  e f fec t  jus t  a  month  ago o f  Mr  Mantsha  

have now d i scovered someth ing  e lse  about  h im,  perhaps  
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we shou ld  recons ider  the  appo in tment ,  perhaps  o thers  

w i th in  cab ine t  may take  a  less  generous v iew o f  g iv ing  

peop le  a  second chance.   D id  tha t  occu r  to  you a t  a l l?  

MS BROWN :    Wel l ,  i t  was not  a  convent ion  cab ine t  bu t  I  

m igh t  –  I  cou ld  have done tha t ,  you are  r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  r igh t ,  bu t  d id  i t  occur.  

MS BROWN :    I t  was not  a  convent ion  fo r  anyone to  be 

ab le  to  jus t  wa lk  in to  cab ine t  and  put  up  the i r  hands and 

say I  have made a  m is take on th is  o r  tha t  and –  and so  bu t  

–  I  mean,  i f  –  I  cou ld  have done tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  do  no t  th ink  Mr  Kennedy  means  

tha t  you shou ld  have brought  i t  to  cab ine t  in  tha t  way.   You 

cou ld  have brought  i t  an  acceptab le  –  in  the  usua l  way in  

wh ich  mat te rs  tha t  members  o f  the  cab ine t  w ish  to  be  

d iscussed a t  cab ine t  pu t  i t ,  so  there  must  be  –  I  am sure  

there  i s  a  way how you make su re  tha t  a  cer ta in  mat te r  w i l l  

be  d i scussed so  you cou ld  have –  I  do  no t  know whether  

your  wr i te  a  memo and get  i t  approved by  the  Pres ident  

tha t  i t  can  go to  cab ine t  bu t  i t  cou ld  have been done in  a  

way o ther  than the  one you descr ibed,  i s  i t  no t?  20 

MS BROWN :    I  d id  no t  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  ask  you another  quest ion ,  you w i l l  

remember  tha t  ear l ie r  on  Mr  Kennedy re fer red  to  the  

member  o f  the  2015 board  who had  come f rom the  prev ious 

board ,  I  th ink  i t  was Mr  Motseke or  –  Motseke I  th ink  who 
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was re ta ined.   You remember  tha t  par t  o f  –  tha t  d iscuss ion  

ear l ie r.  

MS BROWN :    I  remember,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I  th ink  some o r  o ther  w i tness has  

ind ica ted  befo re  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  the  reason why Mr  

Motseke was re ta ined and cont inued under  the  2015 board  

to  be  a  member  o f  the  board  fo r  the  sake o f  cont inu i t y,  

wou ld  tha t  accord  w i th  what  you wou ld  expect ,  namely  tha t  

there  shou ld  be  one or  more  members  o f  the  one board ,  

the  ou tgo ing  board  who remain  to  be  par t  o f  the  new board  10 

so  as  to  ensure  cont inu i t y?  

MS BROWN:   I  t h ink  t ha t  sor t  o f  i s  where  I  learn t ,  I  learn t  

i t  in  the  depar tment .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   That  I  have one or  two members  remain ing  

fo r  cont inu i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Do you know what  c r i te r i a  may have 

been used to  choose Mr  Motseke  out  o f  a l l  the  pre-2015 

board  members  to  be  the  one who wou ld  cont inue  under  

the  2015 board?  20 

MS BROWN:   I  cannot  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You cannot  remember.  

MS BROWN:   I  cannot  even remember  what  Mr  Motseke 

looks l i ke .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MS BROWN:   So  I  do  no t  rea l l y  remember  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you remember  whether  in  the  

depar tment  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   But  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   There  was a  se t  o f  c r i te r ia  fo r  choos ing  

members  who wou ld  cont inue in  the  next  board ,  when the  

board  in  wh ich  they had se rved,  i t s  te rm ended.   Do you 

know whethe r  there  was a  se t  o f  c r i te r ia  to  say we must  

look  fo r  somebody who meets  th is  c r i te r ia?  

MS BROWN:   You know Cha i r,  there  i s  an  assessment  tha t  10 

is  done,  and maybe your  inves t iga tor  shou ld  ge t  the  

assessment  o f  the  2014 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Board .   

MS BROWN:   Dene l  board .   Because I  cannot  remember  

the  de ta i l  o f  i t ,  bu t  there  is  an  assessment  done.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   And look,  i t  i s  no t  a lways l i s ted  a l l  the 

de ta i l s  on  the  assessment  because some th ings are  jus t  

persona l  hor r ib le  th ings  tha t  I  do  no t  th ink  needs to  be  sa id  

about  peop le .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  i f  an  

assessment  i s  made,  then i t s  a im must  be  to  ge t  somebody 

who is  l i ke ly  to  make a  mean ing fu l  cont r i bu t ion  a t  leas t  in  

the  new board .   

MS BROWN:   I  th ink  so .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   I  th ink  you are  r igh t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  th ink  the  Fendudz i  repor t  says Mr  

Motseke a lso  had some assoc ia t ion  w i th  the  Guptas .   I  

cannot  remember  the  de ta i l s .   When they say someth ing  

e lse ,  i f  I  am no t  m is taken or  some o ther  w i tness sa id  

someth ing  e lse ,  no t  so  k ind  about  h im.    

 But  suggest ing  tha t  there  must  have been o ther  

board  members  who were  much more  qua l i f ied  or  su i tab le  

to  be ,  to  cont inue.   But  you say there  were  assessments  10 

tha t  the  depar tment  used to  make and those assessments  

may we l l  have been used to  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS BROWN:    I  th ink  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS BROWN:   I  th ink  tha t  cou ld  be  one way o f  the 

[ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS BROWN:   And cou ld  be  one reason.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   Ms  Brown,  20 

may we now move to  a  coup le  o f  pages o f  the  Fundudz i  

repor t .    

MS BROWN:   I  wonder  Cha i r,  i f  i t  i s  poss ib le  jus t  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   A shor t  b reak?  
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MS BROWN:   I  want  to  take  a  comfor t  b reak.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   For  jus t  two minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS BROWN:   So  i t  does not  have to  be  long.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I t  i s  ten  to  e igh t ,  le t  

us  g i ve  i t  ten  m inutes .   We resume a t  e igh t .  

MS BROWN:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS   10 

INQUIRY RESUMES:  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

MS BROWN:   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ms Brown,  can I  take  you in  the  same 

bund le  to  page 746?  That  i s  the  f i rs t  t i t l e  page  o f  the  

Fundudz i  repor t .    

MS BROWN:   Yes ,  I  am there .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now in  the  body o f  the  Fundudz i  

repor t ,  we have inc luded on ly  ex t rac ts  tha t  were  re levant  20 

to  Dene l ,  and there  i s  a  d iscuss ion  f rom page 748.   You 

have tha t?    

MS BROWN:   I  am there .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   From paragraph 14.3  they dea l  w i th  

the  process tha t  was fo l lowed in  the  appo in tments  o f  
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var ious s ta te  en t i t ies ,  inc lud ing  Dene l  appo in tments  made  

by  you or  a t  leas t  approved by  you and they dea l  

par t i cu la r l y  w i th  the  use o f  the  in fo  por t  emai l  address tha t  

you have a l ready dea l t  w i th .   

 For  example  a t  page 754 and e f fec t i ve l y  what  they  

have prov ided by  way o f  th is  repor t ,  i s  ev idence tha t  th is  

in fo  por t  emai l  was indeed connected to  Gupta  assoc ia tes  

and tha t  emai l  address sent  a  number  o f  nominat ions to  Ms  

Dav ids ,  your  PA a t  the  t ime.   

 Nominat ions fo r  appo in tment  to  the  Dene l  board .   10 

You were  no t  aware  o f  tha t  a t  tha t  s tage,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?    

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You canno t  deny tha t  i t  was,  you  

cannot  deny tha t  i t  was used,  bu t  you say you were  no t  

aware  o f  tha t  a t  tha t  s tage.   

MS BROWN:   No,  I  was not  aware  o f  i t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  and i f  I  can  now take  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes?  Car ry  on ,  car ry  on .   D id  you 20 

want  to  add someth ing?  

MS BROWN:   No,  no  I  do  no t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   I f  I  can  now take you to  some 

o f  the  emai ls ,  i f  I  m igh t  jus t  have a  moment  Cha i r.   I f  I  can  

take  you p lease to  page 780.  
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MS BROWN:   780? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  i s  cor rec t .   

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You w i l l  see  tha t  the  very  top  address 

sect ion ,  re fe rs  t o  an  emai l  be ing  sent  f rom K imber ley  

Dav ids  a t  he r  Gmai l  address,  to  K im Dav ids  a t  the  DPE.gov  

address.   So she  was presumably  fo rward ing  to  he r  o the r  

emai l ,  the  emai l  concerned.  

MS BROWN:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now the  next  emai l  i s  what  in te res ts  10 

me.   The fo rwarded  message tha t  she fo rwarded  to  her  

o ther  o f f i c ia l  emai l  address,  comes f rom somebody ra the r  

en igmat ica l l y  t i t led  bus iness man and here  we see tha t  the  

emai l  address is  the  in fopor ta l1@zoho.com address tha t  

we have jus t  dea l t  w i th .  

MS BROWN:   I  see  tha t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  was sent  on  the  6 t h  o f  March 2015.   

The sub jec t  i s  Dene l .   That  was sent  f rom th is  in fo  por ta l  

emai l  address tha t  Fundudz i  es tab l i shed was l inked to  the  

Guptas  or  the i r  assoc ia tes .   I t  was  addressed to  K imber ley  20 

Dav ids  a t  her  gmai l . com address wh ich  presumably  was  

her  p r i va te  address and she then fo rwarded as  we have  

seen a t  the  top ,  th is  very  message to  he rse l f  a t  the  

depar tmenta l  emai l .  

 The l i s t  i s  then g iven w i th  two co lumns tha t  then  

mailto:infoportal1@zoho.com
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fo l lows under  two head ings,  gender  and member  and tha t  

i s  the  l i s t  o f  ind i v idua ls  p roposed  fo r  appo in tment  to  the  

board  w i th  Mr  Mantsha as  Cha i rman,  Tami  Motsumi ,  

Johannes Motseke.  

 Johannes Motseke o f  course  we have a l ready seen  

is  the  ind i v idua l  who surv ived the  t rans i t ion  f rom the  o ld  

board  to  the  new.   Remember  tha t?  

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then Jan Shake,  somebody  ca l led  

P ier re .   There  is  no  surname g iven.   Then Mr  Johame,  I  10 

apo log ise  i f  I  am mang l ing  the  pronunc ia t ion ,  Mahuma 

Pe lo ,  S i lence Ntshaven i ,  P ink ie  Mah langu,  Visham Naidoo,  

Mpho Gomogwe and Genera l  Vus i  Nkab inde.   

 You see tha t?  

MS BROWN:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then i t  says :  

 “H i .   Here  is  madam’s  recommendat ion . ”  

 She does not  say  who madam is :  

 “You have most  CV ’s ,  jus t  m iss ing  Jan Shake  

wh ich  I  w i l l  p rov ide  tomorrow.   A t tached fo r  20 

Mpho,  P ink ie ,  Genera l ,  S i lence and Toyami . ”  

 And then there  is  a  f ina l  l ine  wh ich  says:  

 “You have CA/aud i to r / lega l /po l i cy / IT de fence 

tech  incumbent  a rmy defence.   So a  so l id  m ix  

o f  sk i l l s . ”  
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 That  i s  what  th is  unnamed author  o f  th is  emai l  

ind ica tes .   Now there  was a  suggest ion  in  the  Fundudz i  

repor t  tha t  the  person named as P ier re  w i thout  h is  

surname,  was somebody who you  had  recommended,  tha t  

the  madam re fe r red  to  in  tha t  paragraph jus t  under  the  l i s t ,  

tha t  he  was your  recommendat ion .    

 The repor t  ind ica tes ,  I  do  no t  th ink  I  need to  take  

you to  i t ,  ind ica tes  tha t  you conveyed to  the  Fundudz i  

invest iga to rs  o r  a t  leas t  responded  to  the i r  repor t ,  tha t  you 

d id  no t  know who th is  P ier re  was and you had not  10 

recommended h im.   

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:   Wel l ,  I  had a  genera l  pos i t ion  o f  no t  

recommending peop le .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   There  were  lo ts  o f  peop le  tha t  I  wou ld  have 

l i ked  to  have passed the  ve t t ing  p rocess.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   Because I  knew tha t  they,  because many 

min is te rs  te l l  me  tha t  can so  and  so  app ly  and so  and  so  20 

app ly,  and I  say  yes,  they can.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sure .   

MS BROWN:   And so  they app ly,  bu t  I  be fore  the  Fundudz i  

repor t ,  I  have no t  seen th i s  repor t .   But  I  a lso  must  say  

tha t  I  th ink  there  are  names here  who i f  they  jus t  now as I  
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was prepar ing ,  no t  because I  have a  wonder fu l  memory 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   Bu t  some o f  these  names are  present  and 

some d id  no t  make i t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  I  am go ing  to  go  in to  tha t  in  a  

moment ,  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  indu lge  me wi th  answer ing  the  

quest ion  tha t  I  was pos ing  to  you.    

MS BROWN:   Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  was spec i f i ca l l y  re la t ing  to  a  person  10 

re fer red  to  on ly  by  h i s  f i rs t  name o f  P ie r re .   You d id  no t  

recommend h im.  

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cor rec t?    

MS BROWN:   No,  I  rea l l y  . . .  no ,  I  wou ld  no t  have 

recommended anybody.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  we l l  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  fee l  tha t  eve rybody shou ld  go  th rough the  

process o f  app ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  we l l  then  perhaps answer  th is  Ms  20 

Brown.   Do you know who the  P ier re  i s  tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  

here?  

MS BROWN:   D id  you know . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  am not  sure .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 258 of 296 
 

MS BROWN:   I  know two P ier re ’s .   I  do  no t  know i f  I  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you know i f  e i ther  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  know two P ier re ’s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you know i f  e i ther  o f  them app l ied  

fo r  a  pos i t ion  on  the  Dene l  board?  

MS BROWN:   I  know two P ier re ’s  and they cou ld  have 

asked me.   I  do  no t  know.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You do no t  know i f  they  app l ied .   10 

Thank you.  

MS BROWN:   Bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  they wou ld  have app l ied  a t  

a l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Okay,  now so  as  fa r  as  you a re  

concerned,  you cannot  c la r i f y  who th i s  P ier re  i s .   But  i t  

cer ta in ly  was not  somebody who you were  recommending  

to  yourse l f ,  to  appo in t .  I s  tha t  fa i r?  

MS BROWN:   No,  the  fac t  i s  tha t  whoever  wants  to  j o in  the  

Dene l  board  must  app ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   20 

MS BROWN:   That ,  i t  wou ld  be  unfa i r  fo r  me to  say I  want  

so  and so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ms Brown,  i f  you  jus t  indu lge  me.   I  

am not  ask ing  you i f  i t  wou ld  have  been fa i r  fo r  you  to  have  

nominated somebody.   I  have asked you a  very  s imp le  and 
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con f ined quest ion .   D id  you recommend anybody  by  the  

name o f  P ie r re  fo r  appo in tments  to  the  board?  

MS BROWN:   No.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   A l r igh t ,  we l l  le t  us  then  

go to  the  exe rc i se  tha t  you were  suggest ing  we look a t  a  

moment  ago,  wh ich  i s  when we look a t  a l l  o f  the  names,  so  

th is  emai l  we know came f rom somebody who  d id  not  

a t tach  h is  o r  her  name to  th is  en igmat ic  t i t le  bus inessman 

f rom in fo  por ta l  tha t  Fundudz i  have ev idence,  was l inked to  

Gupta  assoc ia tes .   10 

 The l i s t  here  says a  number  o f  names who inc lude  

Mr  Mantsha,  the  f i rs t  one as  Cha i rman.   He in  f ac t  was 

approved.   We know tha t ,  co r rec t?  

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thami  Mosumi  was a l so  appo in ted  by  

you,  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Johannes Motsek i  was the  person  

who was on the  prev ious board  and who was then re-

appo in ted  by  you,  cor rec t?  20 

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Jan  Shake  is  the  name tha t  i s  pu t  

fo rward  in  th is  l i s t .   You d id  no t  appo in t  h im,  co r rec t?  

MS BROWN:   The way you are  ask ing  the  quest ions,  i s  I  

ge t  the  l i s t  o f  peop le  and I  appo in t  whoever  i s  on  tha t  l i s t .   
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I  make the  dec i s ion  f rom tha t  l i s t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   And I  make i t  in  consu l ta t ion  w i th  my 

depar tment .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  Ms Brown,  I  am sor ry  to  in te r rup t  

bu t  rea l l y  t ime is  p rec ious pa r t i cu la r ly  in  a  commiss ion  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  know,  bu t  I  cannot  a l low . . .  you know s i r,  I  

cannot  a l low you  to say you appo in ted  th is  person  cor rec t  

and then I  have to  jus t  say  yes.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  mean I  wou ld  l i ke  t o ,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Ms Brown,  i f  o f  course  you know 

tha t  you d id  no t  appo in t  h im you can say yes I  d id  no t  

appo in t  h im or  no ,  I  d id  no t  appo in t  h im.   I f  you  cannot  

remember  whether  you d id  o r  you d id  no t ,  you can say I  

cannot  remember.   

 So there  is  a  way o f  g iv ing  a  shor t  answer,  bu t  

based on the  . . .  on  what  you have jus t  sa id ,  do  you mean  

tha t  you r  depar tment  wou ld  b r ing  you the  exact  number  o f  20 

names requ i red  fo r  appo in tmen t  and you wou ld  then 

appo in t  those peop le .   

 Or  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  they wou ld  g ive  you more  

names than you needed to  appo in t  and you wou ld  choose  

f rom those?  
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MS BROWN:   They wou ld  present  i t  to  me wi th  the ,  w i th  a  

number  o f  peop le  around the  tab le  and we w i l l  d iscuss the  

names and f rom those names,  I  wou ld  then . . .  f rom the  

d iscuss ion  we w i l l  make the  fu r the r  shor t  l i s t  and then I  do  

appo in t  a t  the  end,  where  I  approve,  a f te r  i t  i s  looked by  

lega l ,  by  governance,  by  the  un i ts  and whoever  e l se  is  on  

the  l i s t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MS BROWN:   So  yes,  in  tha t  respect  yes  I  approve i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  the  answer  i s  you do,  you used to  be  10 

g iven a  longer  l i s t  o f  names than you needed to  appo in t .   

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And th rough  d iscuss ion  w i th  your  

depar tment  a  shor t  l i s t  wou ld  be ,  wou ld  emerge and tha t  i s  

the  l i s t  tha t  you wou ld ,  tha t  i s  the  l i s t  o f  peop le  t ha t  you 

wou ld  appo in t .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS BROWN:   Tha t  i s  r igh t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  can you remember  or  you cannot  

remember  whethe r  you appo in ted  Jan Shake? 

MS BROWN:   I  do  no t  th ink  we appo in ted  Jan  Shake,  20 

whoever  he  is .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS BROWN:   Or  P ier re .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

MS BROWN:    I  do  no t  th ink  we appo in ted  h im.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  hope tha t  has he lped Mr  Kennedy.  

MS BROWN:   I  cannot  remember,  bu t  I  th ink  I  do  no t  

remember  a  Jan Shake.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t ,  thank you.   I f  I  may  cont inue 

Cha i r?   I f  I  can  jus t  t ry  and he lp  you Ms Brown jus t  to  

make th is  perhaps a  l i t t le  s imp ler.   When I  in te r rup ted  you  

ear l ie r  to  t ry  and  keep you to  a  par t i cu la r  quest ion  I  asked  

then,  you were  in  the  process o f  say ing  some names on 

th is  l i s t ,  a t  page 780 d id  no t  make  i t .   10 

 I  am agree ing  w i th  you.   I  am not  t ry ing  to  t r i ck  you  

or  to  d isagree w i th  you a t  a l l .   I f  I  can  jus t  ge t  to  the  

bo t tom l ine .   Of  th is  l i s t  o f ,  what  i s  i t?   I t  i s  11  names.   

Three d id  no t  make i t .   In  o ther  words they a re  no t  the  

names tha t  you approved and put  up  to  cab ine t  fo r  i t s  

approva l .   

 I f  I  can  he lp  you  the  names are  Jan Shake,  P ie r re  

and Visham Naidoo,  bu t  a l l  o f  the  o ther  names,  the  o ther  

e igh t ,  were  appo in ted  to  the  new board .   Now do you 

conf i rm tha t  o r  can you not  remember  o r  what?    20 

MS BROWN:   I  am abso lu te ly  su re ,  because I  remember  

tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You a re  sure  o f  what?  

MS BROWN:   There  was a  fe l low,  I  am abso lu te ly  . . .  i f  tha t  

i s  what  has been found.   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   I  cannot  remember  the  board  peop le ’s  

names.   But  i f  tha t  i s  i t ,  I  agree w i th  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Exact ly  and  I  am not  go ing  to  waste  

your  t ime or  the  commiss ion ’s  t ime to  take  you to  compare  

th is  l i s t  w i th  the  l i s t  tha t  went  to  cab ine t ,  tha t  was the  f ina l  

l i s t  tha t  were  appo in ted .   Now so  e igh t  ou t  o f  the  11 ,  tha t  

were  on  th is  l i s t  tha t  came f rom the  in fo  por ta l  emai l  

add ress to  Dav ids ,  f rom outs ide  the  depar tment  to   ins ide 

the  depar tment  in to  your  PA’s  emai l ,  wh ich  she then shared  10 

w i th  her  depar tmenta l  emai l ,  represents  a  l i s t  tha t  came 

f rom someone who Fundudz i  a l leges was a  Gupta  l inked  

assoc ia te .  

 In  e f fec t  say ing  th is  i s  the  l i s t  o f  peop le  to  be  

appo in ted ,  and o f  those 11 e igh t  succeeded.   Now does  

tha t  t roub le  you?   You wou ld  no t  have been aware  a t  the  

t ime,  accord ing  to  your  ev idence ear l ie r.   

MS BROWN:   Ret rospect ive ly  i t  does t roub le  me.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  am ask ing  you to  

do .   Because I  accept  tha t  you,  you ind i ca ted  ea r l ie r  tha t  20 

you were  no t  aware  i t  had came f rom th is  in fo  por ta l  emai l  

add ress or  tha t  tha t  was l inked to  the  Guptas .   I t  in  fac t  

came f rom a  Gup ta  assoc ia te ,  bu t  w i th  the ,  w i th  h inds igh t  

you say i t  does t roub le  you.   

 In  what  sense?   
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MS BROWN:   I t  t roub les  me tha t  I  . . .  tha t  a lmost  every,  

tha t  e igh t  o f  11  peop le  have come f rom th is  l i s t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   Tha t  came f rom outs ide .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   So  how does th is  l i s t  ge t  in to ,  th is  l i s t  s t i l l  

has  to  go  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   To  go  th rough a  ve t t ing  process.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  indeed.   10 

MS BROWN:   So  and i t  d id .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MS BROWN:   And both  an  in te rna l  and ex terna l  ve t t ing  

process.   Somewhere  a long the  l ine ,  I  remember  tha t  

Mape lo  fe l low fe l l  ou t  fo r  some reason.   I  th ink  I  even  

asked h im to  leave,  and somebody qu i te  ea r ly  on  had an 

in te rnat iona l  s tudy oppor tun i ty.   

 I  do  no t  know who i t  was,  bu t  i t  was a  woman.   I  

cannot  remember  who i t  was and I  recommended tha t  she 

go ahead and do tha t .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now Fundudz i  have a l so  

prov ided ev idence in  the i r  repor t  backed up by  numerous 

annexures,  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  the  same in fo  por ta l  address 

was used fo r  var ious o ther  communica t ions and tha t  lega l  

and governance may a lso  have rece ived some o f  those  
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emai ls .   

 P resumably  you do not  know about  tha t ,  cor rec t?    

MS BROWN:   I  do  no t  know.   I  do  no t  know about  i t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  one second.   Ms Brown,  Mr  

Kennedy asked you in  what  way th is  t roub led  you and your  

answer  was i f  I  unders tood you cor rec t l y,  tha t  you  

appo in ted  . . .  what  t roub led  you was tha t  you appo in ted  

e igh t  peop le  f rom outs ide .   

 Now I  am not  su re  whether  tha t  shou ld  t roub le  you,  10 

bu t  I  wou ld  have  imag ined tha t  what  shou ld  have t roub led  

you is  tha t  somebody outs ide  o f  the  depar tment ,  seems to  

have compi led  a  l i s t ,  a  substant ia l  l i s t  o f  names tha t  he  o r  

she thought  shou ld  be ,  o f  peop le  tha t  shou ld  be  appo in ted  

to  the  board  o f  Dene l .   

 Out  o f  tha t  11 ,  a l l  e igh t  o r  the  o the r  e igh t  a l l  go t  in ,  

o r  go t  appo in ted  f rom one source ,  as  opposed to  peop le  

coming f rom d i f fe ren t  sources.   Would  you,  do  you not  

agree tha t  tha t  shou ld  be ,  tha t  i s  what  shou ld  t roub le  you?   

MS BROWN:   Bu t  I  d id  s ta te  i t  i s  f rom,  I  shou ld  have  sa id  i t  20 

is  f rom a  l i s t  tha t  came f rom outs ide .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   One l i s t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   I  d id  say tha t  o r  I  meant  tha t .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  I  th ink  you may have meant  tha t .   

MS BROWN:   I  jus t  so  w ish  I  knew what  the  ema i ls  were  

be fore  the  ones tha t  had jus t  been  taken out .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  bu t  you see  the  impress ion  I  ge t  and 

I  jus t  want  you to  comment  on  th i s ,  whether  you share  the  

same impress ion  or  whether  you th ink  tha t  i s  j us t i f i ca t ion  

fo r  the  impress ion .   The impress ion  I  ge t  and tha t  is  par t  o f  

what  concerns me.   

 I s  tha t  i t  looks  l i ke  there  i s  somebody out ,  there  

was somebody f rom outs ide  o f  Dene l  who was bas i ca l l y  10 

dec id ing  what  was good fo r  Dene l ,  and in  te rms o f  wh ich  

peop le  shou ld  vo te  in to  the  board  o f  Dene l  and  not  jus t  

send ing  one name or  two names,  send ing  what  I  wou ld 

imag ine  wou ld  be  the  majo r i t y.   I  do  no t ,  I  cannot  

remember  how many board  members  Dene l  had under  the  

2015 board ,  bu t  I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  e igh t  i s  p robab ly  the  

major i t y.   

 So tha t  i s  my concern  as  to  was there  somebody  

outs ide  o f  Dene l  who was dete rm in ing  tha t  and r i gh t ly  o r  

wrong ly,  maybe no I  shou ld  no t  say  r igh t ly  o r  wrong ly,  bu t  20 

he  was o r  she was succeed ing ,  because she puts  up  or  he  

pu ts  up  11  names,  e igh t  o f  those peop le  become members  

o f  the  board  o f  Dene l .   

 Why does he want  so  many peop le  o f  h is  cho ice  to  

be  on  the  Dene l  board  and how does i t  come about  tha t  
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e igh t  o f  them get  ac tua l l y  appo in ted?  Were  there  no t  

o the r,  were  there  no t  many o the r  peop le  who came f rom 

o ther  sou rces?  Why is  i t  tha t  so  many tha t  came f rom h im 

or  he r,  succeeded in  ge t t ing  on to  the  board?  

 So tha t  i s  the  impress ion  I  have  and tha t  i s  wha t  

concerns me.   Do you th ink  the ,  do  you share  the  

impress ion  or  the  concern  or  do  you th ink  there  i s  no 

jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  i t?  

MS BROWN:   G iven the  fac t  tha t  there  is  a  p rocess  Cha i r,  I  

cannot  . . .  I  do  no t  know why  e igh t  f rom one  person 10 

succeeds and I  s igned o f f  on  i t .   So I  cannot  exp la in  i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS BROWN:   To  you.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Jus t  to  p i ck  up  on  

the  las t  quest ion ing  f rom the  Cha i r  Ms Brown.   May I  jus t  

ask  you to  focus  on  th is  par t i cu la r  aspect .   You have sa id 

ear l ie r  tha t  there  were  a l l  sor t s  o f  peop le  app ly ing  le f t ,  

r igh t  and cent re  and some,  there  were  a  few peop le  who in  20 

fac t  even asked you cou ld  they be  appo in ted  and you qu i te  

p roper ly  sa id  th is  i s  how you must  go  about  i t .   

 You do not  do  i t  th rough me,  you go th rough my 

o f f i ce  and they must  f i l l  i n  the  cor rec t  fo rms and  submi t  

the i r  CV ’s  jus t  l i ke  the  res t  o f  them,  cor rec t?  
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MS BROWN:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And so  no t  even a  m in i s te r  wou ld  

in te r fe re  w i th  the  appo in tment ,  sor ry  the  eva lua t ion  

process done by  the  lega l  and  the  LGR.   Lega l  and 

governance sect i on ,  co r rec t?    

MS BROWN:   No,  I  w i l l  no t  in te r fe re .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  presumably  you wou ld  ag ree w i th  

me tha t  i f  the  fac ts  show,  i f  the  Cha i rpe rson u l t imate ly  

f inds  on  the  ev idence tha t  in  fac t  a  l i s t  was be ing  put  to  

the  depar tment  v ia  Ms Dav ids ,  your  PA,  to  say these 11 10 

shou ld  be  appo in ted ,  o f  whom e igh t  ac tua l l y  were  

appo in ted ,  wou ld  you ag ree tha t  tha t  c lea r ly  i s  a  v io la t ion  

o f  p roper  p rocedures?  

 Your  lega l  and governance team and  Ms Dav is  and 

anybody e lse  w i th in  the  depar tment  shou ld  no t  a l low some 

outs ide  en t i t y,  whether  i t  i s  the  Guptas  or  anybody e lse ,  

f rom put t ing  fo rward  the i r  l i s t  o r  the i r  s la te  as  i t  were ,  o f  

peop le  tha t  they wou ld  l i ke  pu t  on  the  board .   

 Would  you agree tha t  tha t  wou ld  be  wrong?   

MS BROWN:   I  agree.   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  jus t  pu t  a lso  th is  concern  Ms  

Brown?  

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   When one looks a t  th is  l i s t ,  one sees tha t  
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Mr  Mantsha is  r igh t  a t  the  top  there  and he,  next  to  h is  

name is  wr i t ten  the  word  Cha i rman.   So the  person who is  

send ing  th is  l i s t ,  wants  Mr  Mantsha to  be  Cha i rperson.   We 

know tha t  Mr  Mantsha,  you end  up appo in t ing  h im as  

Cha i rperson.   

 We know tha t  Mr  Mantsha gets  appo in ted  as  

Cha i rperson desp i te  the  b lo t  on  h is  record  tha t  we ta lked  

about ,  bu t  we are  no t  go ing  to  go  back there .   But  we know 

because I  th ink  you accepted too ,  tha t  Mr  Mantsha d id  no t  

s tand out  among the  members  o f  the  board .   10 

 So the  quest ion  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   Look Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  say  he  d id  no t  s tand out  

aga ins t  the  members  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  then I  am sor ry.   Then I  am sor ry.   I  

thought  you accepted tha t ,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  d id  no t  say  he  d id  no t  s tand out  aga ins t  the  

o ther  members  o f  the  board .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  oh .  

MS BROWN:   I  had more  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  h im,  post  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

MS BROWN:   Bu t  I  mean he d id  s tand out .   

CHAIRPERSON:   He d id  s tand ou t .   On what  g rounds do 

you say he  s tood out?  

MS BROWN:   I ,  i f  you  jus t  went  back,  maybe I  jus t  need to  

go  back to  h is  CV,  Mr  Mantsha ’s  CV.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes,  can I  perhaps he lp  you on tha t?  

MS BROWN:   I  th ink  fo r  me i t  had to  do  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Kennedy w i l l  te l l  you  the  page.   

MS BROWN:   In te rna t iona l ,  a l l  o f  tha t .   H is  ab i l i t y  to  do  b ig  

dea ls ,  h is  ab i l i t y  to ,  he  hav ing  had f inanc ia l  background  

and so  fo r th .   But  I  mean,  hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  I  have a l so  

acceded to  you Cha i r,  tha t  I  shou ld  have been a  b i t  more  

caut ious about  the  fac t  . . .  I  th ink  the  th ing  tha t  I  was,  i s  

tha t  h is  own . . .  the  cour t ,  the  H igh  Cour t  a l lowed Mr  

Mantsha back and tha t  was the  th ing  tha t  I ,  tha t  i s  why Mr  10 

Mantsha was not  d isqua l i f ied  by  me persona l ly.  

 I  d id  no t  d isqua l i f y  h im persona l ly,  bu t  fo r  the  res t  

o f  i t  I  must  say  tha t  we ac tua l l y  t ook,  we ac tua l l y  took th i s  

in  d iscuss ion  fo rm,  l i ke  we do w i th  eve ry  board  

appo in tment .   So I  do  no t  know how th is  cou ld  have  

happened.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .   Wel l ,  i f  you  are  ab le  to  

say or  in  o ther  words,  i s  what  you  ca l l  h is  par t i c ipa t ion  in  

in te rna t iona l  dea ls  what  made h im s tand out  in  your  v iew?  

MS BROWN:   Not  jus t  tha t .   I  remember  on l y  tha t  fo r  now.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You remember  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   Bu t  I  th ink  he  a lso  par t i c ipa ted  in  s tu f f  a t  

Eskom.   He had some knowledge o f  s ta te  owned compan ies  

and I  read i t  somewhere  as  we l l ,  and I  jus t  cannot  see i t  on  

my desk he re .   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Can I  he lp  you Ms Brown?   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  Mr  Kennedy w i l l  he lp  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Can I  he lp  you?  I  th ink  you  may be  

re fer r i ng  to  the  summary o f  h is  background a t  page 769.   

We looked a t  tha t  ear l ie r.   

MS BROWN:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   769.    

MS BROWN:   So  tha t  was 769.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  says  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I ,  yes .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   5 .4 .1 .  

MS BROWN:   I  have,  espec ia l l y  fo r  the  s ta te  owned 

compan ies ,  I  used to  be  f inance MC.   So I  know tha t  I  do 

have a ,  have years  in  co rpora te  f inance,  t ransact iona l  

adv is ing ,  bus iness management ,  commerc ia l  law,  med ia  

and communica t ion .   He has  par t i c ipa ted  in  major  

t ransact ions,  such as  adv is ing  the  C i ty  o f  Johannesburg ,  

Corpora te  D ivers ion  o f  I scom as we l l  as  t ransact ion  

adv isor  to  the  Na t iona l  Depar tmen t  o f  Labour  on  procur ing  

o f ,  deponent  o f  IT sys tems.   I  wanted somebody,  the  Cha i r  20 

shou ld  be  somebody w i th  v is ion  and b ig  p i c tu re ,  and w i th  

e lements  l i ke  th is  so  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS BROWN:   So tha t  wou ld  have been my reason.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  wou ld  have been what  made h im 
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s tand out  to  you?  

MS BROWN:   To me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you reca l l  whether  i t  i s  jus t  what  was 

wr i t ten  he re  o r  in  h is  CV . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:    I  th ink  i t  was in  h is  CV,  because I  read a l l  

the i r  CV ’s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On ly  o r  whethe r  there  was any 

invest iga t ion  to  check whether  what  was sa id  in  the  CV 

was cor rec t  o r  there  was not  tha t  k ind  o f  exe rc i se  or  was  

there?  10 

MS BROWN:    No,  Cha i r,  the re  is  tha t  k ind  o f  an  

invest iga t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  as  par t  o f  the  ve t t ing?  

MS BROWN:    That  i s  par t  o f  the  ve t t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS BROWN:    That  i s  par t  o f  the  ve t t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  bu t  o f  cou rse ,  no t  

on ly  d id  he  s tand  out  in  your  v iew,  as  somebody who might  

make a  good  Cha i rperson because o f  h is  d iverse  20 

background,  bu t  o f  course  s ign i f i can t ly  he  was a lso  

ident i f ied  as  the  proposed Cha i rpe rson in  the  l i s t  tha t  came 

f rom th is  in fo  por ta l  address,  co r rec t?  

MS BROWN:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    And I  see tha t  th is  does not  say  anyth ing  

about  any exper ience he might  have had o f  cha i r ing  Boards  

o f  b ig  compan ies  or  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t .   But  you say,  i t  d id  

conta in  th ings tha t  appea led  to  you to  say th is  i s  somebody 

who cou ld  lead the  Board?  

MS BROWN:    Bu t  Cha i r  in  our  adver ts  I  can remember  

th is ,  because I  remember  ask ing ,  shou ld  we not  be  pu t t ing  

in  the  adver ts  the  fac t  tha t  the  person shou ld  have Cha i red  

a  Board  be fore  and i t  was a  ve ry  b ig  d i scuss ion  in  my 

depar tment ,  where  they say,  no t  everybody had access to  10 

be  a l lowed to  Cha i r  a  Board ,  and I  th ink  I  conceded on  

tha t ,  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  was one o f  my quest ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Kennedy.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A re  you suggest ing  i t  i s  a  mere  

co inc idence,  then tha t  you thought  Mr  Mantsha had these  

a t t r ibu tes  wh ich  mer i ted  h is  appo in tment ,  as  Cha i rpe rson  

on the  one hand,  and tha t  tha t  was jus t  a  pure  co inc idence 

w i th  the  fac t  tha t  the  emai l  tha t  came f rom apparent ly,  

Gupta  assoc ia tes  recommended the  same appo in tee  as  

Cha i rperson?  20 

MS BROWN:    I  do  no t  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wel l  were  you in f luenced by  the  l i s t?  

MS BROWN:    Maybe qu ie t l y  I  was -  I  do  no t  know.   I  

cannot ,  I  cannot ,  say…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l…[ in te rvene ]  
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MS BROWN:    I  cannot  say  what  –  I  do  remember  meet ing ,  

Mr  Mantsha in  the  -  on  the  p remises o f  Par l iament  when I  

was coming out ,  and he was wa lk ing  w i th  somebody,  and 

he in t roduced h imse l f  to  me and I  was very  p leased a t  the  

t ime tha t  he  was the  Cha i r  bu t  I  have noth ing  e l se ,  I  mean,  

tha t  was post  h is  appo in tment .  

c lose  h i s  boys  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  jus t  want  to  make an observa t ion  

Ms Brown and you may w ish  to  comment  on  i t  o r  you might  

no t  w ish  to  comment  on  i t .  10 

When I  see the  -  and tha t  th is  l i s t  o f  names came 

f rom Bus inessman and remember ing  tha t  there  is  a  

suggest ion  tha t  Bus inessman was ac tua l l y  Mr  Sa l im Essa  

or  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  says p robab ly  i t  i s ,  Mr  Sa l im Essa I  

am reminded o f  ev idence tha t  we dea l t  w i th  when you were  

g iv ing  ev idence in  respect  o f  the  Eskom work s t ream.   

Of  course  Mr  Kennedy was not  there  fo r  tha t  one ,  

bu t  you w i l l  remember  tha t  Mr  Tso ts i  gave ev idence  or  you 

were  to ld  tha t  he  had g iven ev idence before  the  

Commiss ion  to  the  e f fec t s  tha t ,  in  December  2014,  when  20 

the  Eskom Board  was 2014,  when the  new Eskom Board  

was appo in ted  soon a f te r  tha t ,  he  rece ived an emai l  f rom 

Mr  Sa l im Essa in  wh ich  Mr  Sa l im Essa had prepared a  l i s t  

o f  members  o f  the  Board ,  who shou ld  fa l l  in to  var ious 

commi t tees o f  the  Board .   
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And the  ev idence Mr  Tsots i  gave was to  the  fac t  

tha t  Mr  Sa l im Essa had asked h im to  send tha t  l is t  to  you,  

as  h i s  p roposa l  and tha t  was in  December  2014.   You might  

reca l l  in  te rms o f  tha t  ev idence tha t  you had not  responded 

to  the  emai l  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  sent  to  you,  wh ich  conta ined the  

compos i t ion  o f  commi t tees tha t  he  sa id ,  had come f rom Mr  

Sa l im Essa.  

But  what  he  d id  say i s  tha t  la te r,  i t  m igh t  have been 

la te r  in  January  2015,  when the  two o f  you -  when  he was  

mak ing  d i f fe ren t  p roposa ls  on  the  compos i t ion  o f  10 

commi t tees,  h i s  vers ion  is  tha t  you ins i s ted  tha t  the  

compos i t ion  o f  commi t tees tha t  shou ld  be  imp lemented  

shou ld  be  a  par t i cu la r  compos i t ion  and he sa id  tha t  

par t i cu la r  compos i t ion  was the  one or  tha t  o f  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa has sent .  

Now,  you d id  say  tha t ,  I  th ink  you  d id  say tha t  you 

knew noth ing  about  Sa l im Essa hav ing  sent  any 

compos i t ion ,  you  got  an  emai l  f rom h im,  wh ich  you  took to  

be  a  proposa l  f rom h im,  say ing  th is  i s  the  compos i t ion  tha t  

was be ing  suggested.   But  I  th ink  la te r  on ,  you sent  an  20 

emai l  where  you were  say ing ,  we l l ,  there  must  be  a  

reso lu t ion  o f  the  Board ,  wh ich  says,  th is  i s  the  

compos i t ion ,  as  suggested or  p roposed by  the  Board .   

So the  po in t  I  am mak ing is  I  am jus t  observ ing  

tha t ,  whereas tha t  i s  what  Mr  Tsots i  sa id  under  Eskom,  



22 APRIL 2021 – DAY 380 
 

Page 276 of 296 
 

here  we have somebody us ing  an  emai l  address tha t  i s  

a l leged to  be  assoc ia ted  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa send ing  a  l i s t  

o f  names to  your  PA o f  peop le  tha t  were  be ing  put  fo rward  

to  be  appo in ted  as  members  o f  the  Dene l  Board  and the  

major i t y  o f  them get  appo in ted  and the  one tha t  was 

suggested to  be  the  Cha i rperson  does get  appo in ted  as  

Cha i rperson as  we l l .   

So  I  am jus t  say ing ,  when I  see th is ,  I  ge t  reminded  

o f  tha t  ev idence,  you might  w ish  to  say someth ing ,  you  

might  say,  look ,  I  do  no t  have anyth ing  to  say.   I  am jus t  10 

shar ing  w i th  you what  i s  in  my –  what  i s  c ross ing  my mind  

as  I  look  a t  th is ,  and I  th ink  i t  i s  on ly  fa i r  tha t  I  ment ion  to  

you tha t  th is  i s  what  i s  c ross ing  my mind.   You m ight  say  

someth ing  about  i t .  

MS BROWN:    I  jus t  want  to  say one th ing  about  i t  and tha t  

i s  tha t  I  asked Mr  Tsots i  to  fo rmal ise  h is  communica t ions  

w i th  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MS BROWN:    And I  thank God I  d id  because i f  I  d id  no t  

ask  h im to  fo rmal ise  h is  communica t ion  w i th  me,  I  wou ld  20 

have to  answer  to  quest ions l i ke  you a re  ask ing  now Cha i r.   

I  am not  say ing  you are  wrong  in  ask ing  the  quest ion  

because i t  does,  you know -  I  do  no t  know i f  th is  i s  th is  

por ta l  number.   I  have never  seen  a  number  l i ke  tha t ,  I  do 

no t  know i f  i t  be longs to  Mr  Essa or,  I  do  no t  know tha t .  
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I  a lso  do  not  know tha t  one,  my who le  depar tment ,  

we l l  no t  my who le  depar tment  the  Lega l  and Governance 

Un i t  and a  very,  one o f  the  most  voc i fe rous DDG’s  in  my 

depar tment .   The  one who the  most  wou ld  come up  aga ins t  

me in  every  s ing le  meet ing  on  jus t  about  every th ing  and I  

never  had a  prob lem wi th  i t ,  because I  th ink  peop le  shou ld  

be  a l lowed to  speak and tha t  i s  the  on ly  way we a re  go ing  

to  bu i ld  th is  coun t ry.   

So I  do  no t  unders tand why they  wou ld  suppor t  a  

communica t ion  l i ke  th is .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  jus t  have a  few 

aspects  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  wrap up w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  sure .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ms Brown may I  take  you  to  page  

776.  

MS BROWN:    776?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  r igh t .   Do you have tha t?  

MS BROWN:    I  do .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  so  th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom aga in  20 

K im Dav ids  and i t  i s  addressed to  –  i s  i t  Humar ie ,  I  can ’ t  

qu i te  read i t  on  my copy,  Botha o r  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

MS BROWN:    Humar ie  Botha and . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  no  who were  they,  Rusthon was 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MS BROWN:    Can I  read i t  fo r  you? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes thank you.  

MS BROWN:    Rushton and i t  i s  cc ’d  to  Anne l ise  van Wyk 

who was my spec ia l  adv iso r  and Mat ie ts i  Mogo lo  who was 

the  DG I  th ink  a t  th is  t ime,  the  Act ing  DG.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Rush ton was in  the  Lega l  &  

Governance sect i on  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Botha?  

MS BROWN:    Humar ie  Botha was what  we ca l l  a  cab ine t  10 

secre tary,  she used to  do  a l l  the  cab ine t  documents  and so  

fo r th .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wi th in  the  depar tment?    

MS BROWN:    Wi th in  the  –  she was ac tua l l y  in  the  

Min is t ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  the  Min i s t ry  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises ,  

cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:    O f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  a l l  four  o f  these ind iv idua ls  

were  in -house,  they were  a l l  o f f i c ia ls  o f  e i ther  the  20 

Depar tment  o r  the  Min is t ry,  co r rec t?  

MS BROWN:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  was K im Dav ids ,  and she sent  th is  

emai l  to  those four  on  the  11 t h  o f  May and i t  reads:  

“H i  A l l ,  
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As  d iscussed w i th  Min is te r  and as  per  her  d i rec t i ve  

herewi th  p lease  f ind  the  S  A Express Board  

nominat ions fo r  CM. ”  

And then there ’s  a  l i s t  o f  nominat ions fo r  the  Board  fo r  S  A 

Express and then  she proceeds to  se t  ou t  a  l i s t  in  re la t ion  

to  Dene l ,  cor rec t ,  tha t ’s  the  Dene l  Board ,  cor rec t?  

MS BROWN:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you know what  the  fo r  CM means,  

i s  tha t  fo r  Cab ine t  Memorandum o r  what?    

MS BROWN:   I t  cou ld  mean fo r  Cab ine t  Memorandum,  I  10 

don ’ t  know.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  bu t  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  th is  emai l  

recorded the  fac t  tha t  you had d i scussed these l i s ts  and  

had g iven a  d i rec t i ve  to  pass on  these l i s ts  to  these  

depar tmenta l  and  min is te r ia l  o f f i c i a ls  to  p rocess?  

MS BROWN:    Advocate  Kennedy  I  am not  su re  what  th is  

l i s t  i s  because I  am not  sure  what  the  –  th is  cou ld  be  the  

cu lm inat ion  where  we then a t  the  end dec ide  tha t  th is  i s  

the  l i s t  o f  peop le  tha t  w i l l  be  go ing  fo rward ,  tha t ’s  how I  

read i t ,  and tha t ’s  the  l i s t  o f  peop le  tha t  w i l l  be  go ing  20 

fo rward  and th is  i s  the  l i s t  tha t  I  conf i rm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS BROWN:    That  i s  what  I  th ink  i t  cou ld  be ,  I  am not  

sure .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  
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MS BROWN:    I  am not  sure .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Fa i r  enough.  

MS BROWN:    I  am jus t  g iv ing  you an opt ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am not  here  to  dea l  in  op t ions,  

thank you Ms Brown but  I  unders tand your  answer  i s  a  

ten ta t i ve  one and  I  accept  fu l l y  tha t  i t  i s  a  long t ime ago.   

The l i s t  then i t  appears  fo r  the  Dene l  Board  has ten  names 

on i t ,  do  you see tha t?  

MS BROWN:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  f i rs t  i s  aga in  Mr  Dan ie l  10 

Mantsha as  new mean ing p resumably  a  new appo in tee  to  

the  Board ,  because the  on ly  person who doesn ’ t  have new 

next  to  h is  o r  her  name is  Mr  Motse t i  who was cur ren t  and  

Mr  Mantsha was  then proposed as  the  Cha i r.    Now a l l  

e igh t  o f  the  –  o f  numbers  one to  e igh t  were  on  the  l i s t  tha t  

had been sent  the  l i s t  o f  11  we looked a t  ear l ie r  f rom the  

outs ide  In fopor ta l  emai l  address and then two names are 

added numbers  n ine  and ten ,  Ms Mokwena and Ms  

Mand ind i  who were  bo th  no t  on  the  In fopor ta l  ve rs ion  o f  

the  l i s t ,  do  you have any comment  on  th is?    Anyth ing  tha t  20 

s t r i kes  you here  whethe r  you have  comment .  

MS BROWN:    Jus t  the  comment  I  had p rev ious ly,  jus t  the  

comment  I  made prev ious ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes thank  you,  no t  necessary  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MS BROWN:    Bu t  I  am not  sure  i f  th is  what  –  i f  she  took 

the  m inutes  and th is  i s  the  eventua l  Board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS BROWN:    I  am not  sure  what  th is  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Perhaps th is  may he lp  you i f  you  can  

tu rn  now to  page 767.  

MS BROWN:    The cab ine t  memo? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That ’s  the  cab ine t  memo,  what  seems 

to  be  s ign i f i can t  f i rs t l y  i s  tha t  th is  cab ine t  memo tha t  came 

f rom your  m in is t ry,  cor rec t?    I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  i t  was a  10 

cab ine t  memo submi t ted  by  your  m in is t r y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:    A l l  cab ine t  memos come f rom [aud io  

d is to r ted ]  abso lu te ly  a l l  cab ine t  memos come v ia  the  

Min is t ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes bu t  I  am ask ing  you about  th is  

spec i f i ca l l y  Ms Brown,  we see the  emblem o f  the  Repub l ic  

and then i t  says  Min is t r y  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises ,  cor rec t ,  do 

you see tha t?  

MS BROWN:    Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And what  i s  a l so  s ign i f i can t  on  th is  20 

page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:    I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    . . .what  i s  s ign i f i can t  a lso  on  th is  

page is  tha t  i t  i s  da ted  11 t h  o f  May  2015.  

MS BROWN:    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  is  the  ve ry  same da te  wh ich  

appeared on the  emai l  tha t  came f rom Ms Dav ids  emai l  to  

her  four  co l leagues,  re f lec t ing  what  she had –  what  you  

had d iscussed and issued by  way o f  a  d i rec t i ve ,  tha t  we  

looked a t  a  moment  ago,  do  you see tha t?  

MS BROWN:    I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then we  have se t  ou t  f rom page 

769,  can you f ind  tha t  p lease,  i t  i s  the  th i rd  page  o f  th is  

document .  

MS BROWN:    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:    I s  tha t  the  –  Mr  Dan ie l  Mantsha ’s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That ’s  r igh t .  

MS BROWN:    Input .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That ’s  where  h is  CV is  summar i sed  

a t  54 .1 ,  and so  each o f  the  ind iv idua ls  who were  approved 

by  you fo r  appo in tment  have the i r  de ta i l s  se t  ou t  f rom 54.1  

to  54 .10  and f rom what  I  have been ab le  to  see the  l i s t  o f  

peop le  here  who  are  no t  on l y  named but  the i r  CV ’s  are  20 

summar ised cor responds exact ly  w i th  the  l i s t  o f  ten  tha t  we 

noted in  the  emai l  f rom Ms Dav ids  re fer r ing  to  you issu ing  

a  d i rec t i ve .   I s  there  anyth ing  wor thy  o f  comment  here  tha t  

you wou ld  l i ke  to  make?  

MS BROWN:    As  I  sa id  ear l ie r  I  am not  su re  i f  i t  i sn ’ t  a  se t  
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o f  m inutes  tha t  Ms Dav ids  –  I  can ’ t  remember  i f  she  is  

Dav ids  or  Dav is ,  makes or  i f  she  made i t  ou t ,  bu t  I  th ink  i t  

cou ld  have been a  se t  o f  m inutes  tha t  she i s  send ing  to  the  

Depar tment  tha t  th is  i s  how i t  a l l  pans out ,  she cou ld  have  

been the  one who took the  m inutes ,  tha t  i s  the  po in t  I  am 

mak ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and tha t  was then ca r r ied  ou t  

because we see in  the  cab ine t  repor t ,  the  cab ine t  

memorandum,  so r ry,  tha t  was prepared f rom page –  the  

page tha t  we have jus t  looked a t ,  tha t  i s  f rom page 767,  10 

tha t  in  fac t  car r ies  ou t  the  very  l i s t  tha t  Ms Dav ids  sent  in  

her  emai l ,  no t  so? 

MS BROWN:    Bu t  –  yes,  bu t  what  do  you th ink  i t  i s?    I  

know I  am not  supposed to  ask  you quest ions Advocate  

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    No.  

MS BROWN:    Bu t  I  am not  ge t t ing  the  p ic tu re .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay we l l  le t  me perhaps j us t  he lp  

you to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you may be ask ing  fo r  i t ,  i f  one takes 

these documents  a t  face  va lue  we have on the  one hand an 20 

emai l  f rom Ms Dav ids ,  who we know was your  PA,  say ing  in  

her  emai l  tha t  she sends th is  on  your  ins t ruc t ions as  

Min is te r,  tha t  the  fo l low ing ten  peop le  a re  to  be  appo in ted  

to  the  new Board  o f  Dene l ,  tha t  i s  the  one document ,  and 

the  o ther  document  i s  the  cab ine t  memorandum tha t  i s  then  
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p repared  by  the  very  o f f i c ia ls  t o  whom tha t  emai l  was 

addressed,  say ing  to  cab ine t  these are  the  ten  peop le  

whom our  m in is te r,  Min is te r  Brown,  has approved sub jec t  

to  cab ine t  approva l .   That ’s  what  i t  seems to  be  appear ing  

f rom the  face  o f  these documents ,  un less  there  is  anyth ing  

tha t  you fee l  you need to  d raw to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the 

Cha i rperson tha t  my summary may be incor rec t ,  perhaps  

we can then move on.  

 I  accept  tha t  you can ’ t  be  sure  exact ly  what  Ms 

Dav ids  was say ing  a l though one  can see the  words tha t  10 

she used there  bu t  you can ’ t  take  i t  any  fu r ther  than what  I  

have summar i sed ,  i s  tha t  r igh t  Ms Brown? 

MS BROWN:    That  i s  r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you very  much.   A l r igh t ,  there  

are  two f ina l  aspects  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ra i se  w i th  you 

very  qu i ck l y  be fo re  I  ask  the  Cha i r  jus t  fo r  a  moment  to  

check w i th  my learned jun io r  i f  there  i s  anyth ing  tha t  we  

may need to  add .  The one is  th i s ,  you i nd ica ted  ea r l ie r  in  

your  tes t imony th is  even ing  Ms Brown Mr  Mantsha had  

per fo rmed re la t i ve ly  we l l  as  Cha i rpe rson wh i le  you were  20 

Min is te r,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?   Was tha t  your  overa l l  

impress ion?  

MS BROWN:     I  th ink  so .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You a lso  ind i ca ted  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:    I  thought  so  and  I  th ink  my depar tment  
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thought  so  too ,  even though I  have seen the  document  in  

Mr  K lakud i ’s  bund le  tha t  speaks d i f fe ren t ly  bu t  I  am not  

sure  what  i s  meant  there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS BROWN:    Bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  respond to  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now Ms Brown I  don ’ t  have  i t ,  I  am 

a f ra id  I  omi t ted  i t  f rom the  bund le  here ,  bu t  I  don ’ t  th ink 

anyth ing  shou ld  tu rn  on  tha t ,  I  don ’ t  tha t  you are  l i ke ly  to  

d ispute  th is ,  you  made a  pub l i c  announcement  tha t  was  

then c i r cu la ted  to  the  med ia  and  by  the  med ia  when you 10 

appo in ted  the  new Board  to  Dene l ,  a f te r  ge t t ing  cab ine t  

conf i rmat ion ,  and  in  tha t  p ress  s ta tement  do  you reca l l  tha t  

you sa id  tha t  the  ou tgo ing  Board  you wanted to  pay  t r ibu te  

to  as  hav ing  per fo rmed we l l  and  hav ing  le f t  Dene l  in  a  

hea l thy  s ta te ,  and you commended them for  tha t .   Do you 

reca l l  say ing  tha t?  

MS BROWN:    Wel l  seven years  ago,  I  –  i t  sounds l i ke  

someth ing  I  wou ld  say.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And in  fac t  i t  i s  fea tured in  

ev idence tha t  has been g iven before  the  Cha i rpe rson,  and  20 

then you congra tu la ted  the  incoming board  headed  by  Mr  

Mantsha as  the  new Cha i rperson.  

 There  has been deta i led  ev idence  g iven in  re la t ion  

to  Dene l  by  numerous w i tnesses,  some o f  wh ich  you may 

or  may not  have  seen o r  heard  o r  read,  bu t  some o f  the  
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ev idence tha t  has a l ready been  led  be fore  the  learned  

Cha i rperson has suggested tha t  Dene l  in  fac t  underwent  a  

substant ia l  change in  fo r tunes tha t  the  re la t i ve ly  hea l thy  

s i tua t ion  tha t  app l ied  a t  the  end  o f  the  prev ious  Board ’s  

tenure  tha t  tha t  underwent  a  d ramat ic  change and in  fac t  

Dene l  then s ta r ted  to  have some ve ry  se r ious p rob lems 

thereaf te r.  

 Now Mr  Mantsha  has in  h is  ev idence before  the  

Cha i rperson here  sa id  tha t  there  were  some d i f f i cu l t ies  in  

the  f inanc ia l  per fo rmance o f  Dene l ,  dur ing  the  per iod  o f  h is  10 

cha i rpersonsh ip  bu t  he  a t t r ibu ted  tha t  to  par t i cu la r  dea ls  

tha t  had been done wrong ly,  par t i cu la r ly  by  Mr  Sa loo jee .   

Do you s tand by  your  ev idence tha t  Mr  Mantsha in  fac t  

per fo rmed re la t i ve ly  we l l?  

MS BROWN:    I  hope you wou ld  g ive  me abou t  th ree  

minutes  to  respond to  th is ,  because I  th ink  i t  i s  qu i te  an  

impor tan t  comment  tha t  needs to  be  made.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you have  got  th ree  minutes ,  you 

can go ahead.  

MS BROWN:    I ,  Cha i r  I  used to  say as  we l l  tha t  we had  20 

one –  we had R31b i l l i on  wor th  o f  o rders  on  the  order  book 

and I  sa id  tha t  in  2014/2015,  there  was no money in  Dene l .   

In  fac t  a l l  the  f inanc ia l  reco rds  w i l l  show tha t  they were  

rea l l y  hav ing  a  rough t ime.   They  compara t ive ly  speak ing  

were  speak ing  to  o ther  S ta te  Owned compan ies  l i ke  say an  
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Eskom who got  a  guarantee o f  R450b i l l i on  guarantee f rom 

Nat iona l  Treasury.    Dene l  had a  guarantee o f  R1.8b i l l i on  

bu t  i t  was coming to  an  end I  th ink  around September  

2017.    

 `So Dene l  has never  been in  good s tand ing ,  I  had 

great  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  Dene l  has g iven most  o f  

our  IP ’s  away,  they have a  70%,  Pasad[? ]  Sweden  have a  

70% ar rangement  w i th  Dene l  so  they own the  in te l lec tua l  

p roper ty  o f  Dene l ,  RayMi t ta l l [? ]  i s  anothe r  one,  51%/49% 

to  them,  so  there  is  a  range o f  ways tha t  you can  look a t  10 

th is ,  th is  i ssue,  so  tha t ’s  the  one  issue,  bu t  I  say  in  the  

2016 AGM repor t  wh ich  Mr  K lakud i  i t  appears  to  me,  I  say  

th is  AGM happens under  a  backdrop o f  a  tough economic  

c l imate ,  the  low  leve ls  o f  g rowth  are  pu t t ing  s t ra in  on  

government ’s  commi tments  to  s tab i l i se  the  count ry ’s  debt  

as  a  share  o f  the  GDP,  I  go  fu r ther  to  s tay  tha t  in  2016 tha t  

I  no te  w i th  –  the  fo l low ing w i th  regards to  the  f inanc ia l  

s ta tement  there  is  an  unqua l i f ied  aud i t  op in ion  by  the  

aud i to rs ,  I  a lso  say year  to  da te  revenue  o f  R8.2b i l l i on  

when compared aga ins t  p r io r  years  revenue o f  R5.9b i l l i on ,  20 

so  the i r  revenue i s  h igher.  

 I  say  tha t  th is  is  the  s ix th  consecut ive  year  tha t  

Dene l  i s  repor t ing  a  pro f i t  a f te r  a  decade o f  accumula t ing  

losses.   So Dene l  have been accumula t ing  losses but  what  

th is  Board  d id  was jus t  s t ra igh t fo rward ,  some o f  the  
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p rocesses o f  the  prev ious Board ,  some o f  the  s t ra teg i c  

ways o f  mov ing  fo rward .  

 I  do  say i r regu lar  expend i tu re  remains  h igh  a t  

R49mi l l ion  when  compared aga ins t  the  R47mi l l ion  o f  the  

2014/2015 board ,  so  there  is  a  R2mi l l ion  d i f fe rence but  i t  

i s  the  same,  and then o f  cou rse  the  shor t - te rm 

ar rangements  on  the  fund ing  o f  the  LSSA acqu is i t ion  and  

the  r i sks  o f  fac i l i t i es  be ing  te rm ina ted on . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  and 

tha t  came f rom the  prev ious Board .  

 And o f  cou rse  I  do  make comments  about  tha t .    10 

Then in  2017 Mr  Mantsha goes on a  road show wi th  h is  

Board  and DPE,  26 t h  and 30 t h  o f  January  in  sp i te  o f  the  

fac t  tha t  they were  unsuccessfu l  in  secur ing  ac t ive  suppor t  

f rom Nat iona l  Treasury.   So we were  now in  the  process o f  

lead ing  up to  NASREC.    I  don ’ t  b r ing  po l i t i cs  in to  i t  bu t  I  

th ink  tha t  there  is  someth ing  to  be  sa id ,  bu t  they ra ised in  

to ta l  R740mi l l ion ,  and I  v iew th is  o f  a  c lear  conf i rmat ion  

tha t  Dene l ’s  bus iness fundamenta ls ,  execut ive  leadersh ip  

as  we l l  –  th is  i s  h im wr i t ing  to  me ,  our  governance  reg ime  

is  in tac t  and investors  are  s lowly  beg inn ing  to  unders tand.  20 

 So he then,  one o f  the  b ig  p rob lems tha t  Dene l  had 

in  tha t  year  was because o f  the  po l i t i cs  I  want  to  say,  and I  

am a l so  l i ke ,  because o f  the  po l i t i cs  lead ing  up to  

NASREC,  one o f  the  prob lems Dene l  had was tha t  Nat iona l  

Treasury  wou ld  no t  ex tend the  R1.8b i l l i on ,  i t  eventua l l y  
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does ex tend i t  bu t  i t  on ly  ex tends i t  fo r  four  –  one year  and  

not  fo r  the  f i ve  years  tha t  was requ i red  fo r  inves tors  to  

ac tua l l y  pu rchase  in to  the  company.  

 So the  company d idn ’ t  go  under,  I  mean two days  

ago a  who le  un i t ,  a  who le  d i v is ion  o f  Dene l  i s  no t  ab le  to  

pay sa la r i es ,  bu t  the  company i s  no t  go ing  under,  bu t  the  

company  i sn ’ t  funded proper ly,  so  I  ac tua l l y  th ink  they  

he ld  Dene l ,  in  my humble  op in ion ,  I  th ink  Mr  Mantsha he ld  

Dene l  up  qu i te  we l l  w i th  h is  Board .  

 I  th ink  the  s to ry l i ne  and I  wou ld  l i ke  –  I  wou ld  l i ke ,  10 

and I  am not  sure  tha t  there  are  s t i l l  i nvest iga to rs  a round  

the  Commiss ion ,  bu t  I  wou ld  rea l l y  l i ke  to  have a  sense o f  

annua l  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  aga ins t  p rev ious years  and I  

have sa id  in  Eskom,  because I  mean cont ra ry  to  what  

anybody says in  the  med ia ,  anywhere  e lse ,  the  per iod  

when I  was Min is te r  in  Eskom we were  ac tua l l y  –  and not  

because o f  me –  because o f  the  Eskom fami ly  we  ac tua l l y  

do  have . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  fo r  th ree  years  and in  rea l  te rms e  

ac tua l l y  had enough energy and f inanc ia l l y  the  company 

was in  a  much bet te r  s ta te ,  bu t  the  s to ry l ine  is ,  and I  w i l l  20 

never  be  ab le  to  contes t  tha t  s to ry l ine ,  so  I  s t i l l  w ish  – or  i f  

I  had a  w ish ,  one  las t  w ish  be fo re  I  am not  here  anymore ,  

i t  wou ld  be  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  ge t  the  Commiss ion  to  do  a  

proper  assessment  o f  the  annua l  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  o f  a l l  

the  compan ies .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r  may I  ra ise  jus t  one o ther  top ic  

be fore  I  ask  to  confer  w i th  my learned jun io r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ms Brown jus t  f rom a  po in t  o f  de ta i l ,  

qu i te  unre la ted  to  what  we have  dea l t  w i th  a l ready,  Mr  

Sa loo jee  was the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  Dene l ,  under  

the  prev ious Board ,  and he was s t i l l  Group CEO unt i l  he  

was suspended  and u l t imate l y  h is  employment  was 

te rm inated under  the  new Board .    Now there  has been 10 

some ev idence led  be fo re  th is  Commiss ion  i f  you  know one 

way or  the  o ther  p lease jus t  answer  the  quest ion ,  i f  you  

don ’ t  know you must  jus t  ind ica te  you don ’ t  know,  bu t  the  

ev idence prev ious l y  has suggested tha t  the  prev ious  

Board ,  p r io r  to  Mr  Mantsha tak ing  ove r  as  Cha i rpe rson,  

were  recommend ing a  reappo in tment  o f  Mr  Sa loo jee  as  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive .   Do you know whether  tha t  was  

cor rec t  o r  no t?  

MS BROWN:    I  don ’ t  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You don ’ t  know.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The ex tens ion  o f  h is  cont rac t ,  you don ’ t  

remember?  

MS BROWN:    No,  I  don ’ t  remember  tha t .    In  fac t  I  go t  

such a  h id ing  a round Br ian  Mole fe  tha t  I  am happy I  

s tayed,  my Depar tment  recommended we s tay  ou t  i t ,  I  know 
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Mr  Sa loo jee ’s  lawyers  wro te  to  us  and the  lega l  peop le  in  

my depar tment  sa id  th is  i s  opera t iona l ,  s tay  ou t  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:  I f  I  jus t  d id  i t  fo r  every  o ther  S ta te  Owned 

company l i ke  Dene l  and l i ke  Eskom I  wou ld  be  much  

happ ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The ev idence tha t  was g i ven by  Mr  

Sa loo jee  befo re  me was tha t  when you were  in  London w i th  

h im and Mr  Mantsha,  I  th ink  there  was some exh ib i t ion  in  

London,  you had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  h im,  I  th ink  ove r  co f fee  10 

or  someth ing ,  where  you a l so  p ra i sed h im fo r  hav ing  done  

very  we l l ,  e i ther  tha t  o r  you may have sa id  the  repor ts  you  

have got  were  tha t  he  was do ing  ve ry  we l l  and tha t  you  

sa id  tha t  you were  go ing  to  ex tend  h is  cont rac t .    Have you  

got  no  reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t?    

 Oh,  she has f rozen?  

MS BROWN:    I  cou ld  have sa id  tha t ,  I  am not  deny ing  i t .   I  

sa id  I  wou ld  suppor t ,  bu t  I  am not  the  one who ex tends the  

cont rac t .   I  mean I  mere ly  l i ked  Mr  Sa loo jee ,  and Mr  

Sa loo jee  comes the  same h is to ry  as  I  do ,  and the  same 20 

background,  even though we might  be  a  l i t t le  b i t  d i f fe ren t  

ages,  bu t  I  –  i t  wasn ’ t  in  my mandate ,  i t  was  rea l l y  be tween 

the  Board  and the  Execut ive .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS BROWN:    And I  remember  very  c lea r ly  tha t  i s  one o f  
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the  issues I  remember  very  c lear ly,  tha t  i t  was 

recommended to  me not  to  ge t  invo lved,  i t  i s  the  Board  and  

the  Execut ive .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   But  when  you say i t  was between 

h im and the  Board  do  you mean the  Board  was supposed to  

make a  recommendat ion  to  you befo re  you cou ld  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   I  can ’ t  remember,  I  can ’ t  remember  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes,  bu t  normal ly  what  i s  your  

reco l lec t ion  o f  what  wou ld  happen  i f  the  CEO of  an  SOE i f  10 

h is  o r  her  cont rac t  needed to  be  ex tended,  do  you  

remember  whether  the  power  lay  w i th  you,  bu t  the  Board  

had to  recommend,  o r  whethe r  i t  was rea l l y  up  to  the  

Board ,  you had noth ing  to  do  w i th  i t .   I  wou ld  have thought  

tha t  i t  wou ld  come to  you?  

MS BROWN:    I  th ink  in  the  end the  Board  wou ld  

recommend,  wou ld  no t  recommend,  the  Board  wou ld  

approve and I  wou ld  –  I  ac tua l l y  can ’ t  remember.    

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ’ t  remember.  

MS BROWN:   I  rea l l y  can ’ t  remember,  I ’m  very  sor ry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no t  tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  i t  has  been a  

long day.   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   That  comple tes  the  

quest ions I  have o f  th is  w i tness.    I  have had a  chance to  

d iscuss w i th  my learned jun io r,  we have no  fu r ther  
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quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ye.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  thank you Ms Brown fo r  you r  

ev idence.   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  I  jus t  want  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:    Thank you Advocate .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  ment ion  one th ing  Ms 

Brown before  I  re lease you,  I  see in  tha t  document  tha t  

was sent ,  the  memorandum tha t  was sent  to  cab ine t  w i th  10 

the  names o f  the  members  o f  the  Board ,  you don ’ t  have to  

look  a t  i t ,  bu t  you can i f  you w ish ,  a t  page 770,  I  see tha t  

one o f  the  cand ida tes  who were  be ing  put  fo rward  was a  

Ms Raf i lwe Mokwena,  i t  was wr i t ten  in  the  memo tha t  she 

had obta ined her  LLB f rom the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Nata l  i n  1987  

and a  BJur i s  f rom the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Zu lu land in  1985,  and 

tha t  i s  the  same k ind  o f  degrees  tha t  Mr  Mantsha  had he  

a lso  had BJur is  and LLB f rom the  Venda Un ivers i t y  and 

then about  Ms Mokwena i t  i s  sa id  in  the  memo Ms 

Mokwena has d i rec torsh ips  in  Road Acc ident  Fund and 20 

A i rpor t s  Company o f  South  A f r i ca ,  so  th is  i s  a  cand ida te  

who had exper ience o f  s i t t ing  on  the  Boards o f  some SOE’s  

and then i t  i s  sa id  she was an  Execut ive  D i rec tor  fo r  

Magesa Mokwena  and Raf i l  [? ]  Incorpora ted ,  I  assume tha t  

was a  law f i rm  and an a l te rna te  d i rec tor  a t  the  S ta te  
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In fo rmat ion  Techno logy Agency,  S ITA,  so  she had 

exper ience o f  s i t t ing  in  the  Board  o f  the  Road Acc ident  

Fund,  in  the  Board  o f  A i rpor t s  Company South  A f r i ca ,  o f  

course  she was an execut ive  d i rec tor  in  Magesa Mokwena  

and Raf i lwe or  Raf i l  and she had the  exper ience o f  s i t t ing  

on  the  Board  o f  o r  on  the  S ta te  In fo rmat ion  Techno logy  

Agency and the  memo sa id  she brought  exper ience and 

lega l  av ia t ion  and  bus iness leadersh ip  to  the  board .  

 Ì  wou ld  have thought  tha t  she seemed to  br ing  qu i t e  

a  lo t  to  the  Board ,  I  am compar ing  her  w i th  Mr  Mantsha,  10 

and o f  cou rse  she is  a  woman.    I s  tha t  someth ing  you  

might  no t  have not iced a t  tha t  t ime or  i s  i t  someth ing  you 

d id  no t ice  bu t  you thought  Mr  Man tsha . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:    I  cannot  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ’ t  remember.  

MS BROWN:    I  can ’ t  remember  i f  I  no t iced tha t  seven 

years  ago.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS BROWN:   I  mean i f  you look a t  Mr  Musomi  he  was 

Cha i rperson o f  Inanda Newtown Hous ing  P ro jec t  fo r  20 

example ,  I  mean  I  th ink  Cha i r  i t  i s  a l l  re la t i ve  in  some 

respects ,  tha t ’s  what  I  th ink .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  I  agree,  there  is  –  i t  i s  no t  

b lack  and wh i te  as  i t  were ,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS BROWN:   And I  apprec ia te  your  comments  about  i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Thank you very  

much Ms Brown,  we apprec ia te  tha t  you ava i led  yourse l f  to  

ass is t  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  was no t  a lways smooth  go ing  I  

th ink  bu t  I  th ink  we a l l  unders tand  one another.  

MS BROWN:    Bu t  I  th ink  I  conta ined myse l f  very  we l l  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ]  we l l  you d id  we l l .    

MS BROWN:    Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  thank you very  much,  i f  we do la te r  

th ink  we need you we w i l l  app roach you,  the  Commiss ion  10 

w i l l  approach you and I  am sure  you w i l l  be  prepared to  

ass is t  the  Commiss ion  aga in .  

MS BROWN:   Of  course  Cha i r.  

COUNSEL FOR MS BROWN:    Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

COUNSEL FOR MS BROWN:   Before  we re lease Ms Brown 

jus t  qu ick ly,  no  re -examinat ion  bu t  there  is  a  second issue 

in  c los ing  Ms Brown was read ing  a  document  au thored by  

Mr  Mantsha.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

COUNSEL FOR MS BROWN:   Yes,  we wou ld  l i ke  to  en ter  

tha t  in to  ev idence o r  a l te rna t ive  we submi t  a  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  en te r ing  tha t  in to  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  maybe do  –  send a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  and a t tach  i t  and then we  take i t  f rom there .  
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COUNSEL FOR MS BROWN:   We sha l l  do  so  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  a l r igh t ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

COUNSEL FOR MS BROWN:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much to  everybody,  

thank you to  the  s ta f f  as  we l l ,  thank you to  the  techn ic ians,  

Ms Brown’s  lega l  team for  a l l  the  coopera t ion ,  to  Ms 

Brown,  thank you Mr  Kennedy and your  team,  thank you 

very  much.  

 We wi l l  ad jou rn .     

Jus t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  du r ing  the  day  10 

sess ion  tomor row S ingh,  Ano j  S ingh w i l l  con t inue w i th  h i s  

ev idence.  

 We ad journ .  

MS BROWN:    Thank you Your  Worsh ip .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 23 APRIL 2021  


